
85 7th Place East, Suite 500 

M I N N E S O T A s t ' P a u l ' M i n n e s o t a 55101-2198 
D E P A R T M E N T OF mn.gov/commerce/ 

C O M M E R C E 651.296.4026 FAX 651.297.1959 

An equal opportunity employer 

September 18, 2012 

THOMAS HIGIER 
HIGIER ALLEN & LAUTIN PC 
5057 KELLER SPRINGS ROAD SUITE 600 
ADDISON, TX 75001 

Re: F-5312 
DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS INC 
DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS INC F/A 

Dear Mr. Higier: 

The Annual Report has been reviewed and is in compliance with Minnesota Statute Chapter 
80C and Minnesota Rules Chapter 2860. 

This means that there continues to be an effective registration statement on file and that the 
franchisor may offer and sell the above-referenced franchise in Minnesota. 

The franchisor is not required to escrow franchise fees, post a Franchise Surety Bond or 
defer receipt of franchise fees during this registration period. 

As a reminder, the next annual report is due within 120 days after the franchisor's fiscal year 
end, which is May 31, 2013. 

Sincerely, 

MIKE ROTHMAN 
Commissioner 

By: 

Daniel Sexton 
Commerce Analyst Supervisor 
Registration Division 
(651)296-4520 

MR:DES:dlw 



F-5312 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
REGISTRATION DIVISION 

(651) 296-6328, 

IN THE MATTER OF THE REGISTRATION OF: 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS INC F/A 

By DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS INC 

ORDER AMENDING 
REGISTRATION 

WHEREAS, an a p p l i c a t i o n to amend the r e g i s t r a t i o n and 

amendment fee have been f i l e d , 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the r e g i s t r a t i o n dated 

June.12, 2006, i s amended as of the date set f o r t h below. 

%4m^n 
MIKE ROTHMAN 
Commissioner 
Department of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Sui t e 500 

St Paul, MN 55101 

Date : September18, 2012 
' " • ' . I1 : , ••' 



Form A - Registration Application and Certification 

UNIFORM FRANCHISE REGISTRATION APPLICATION 
£t&t» °'»*nm 

State: Minnesota 

APPLICATION FOR (Check only one): 

INITIAL REGISTRATION OF AN OFFER AND SALE OF FRANCHISES 

X RENEWAL APPLICATION OR ANNUAL REPORT 

PRE-EFFECTIVE AMENDMENT 

POST-EFFECTIVE MATERIAL AMENDMENT 

1. Full legal name of Franchisor: 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 

2. Name of franchise offering: 

Dickey's Barbecue 

3. Franchisor's principal business address: 

801 E. Piano Parkway, #135 
Piano, Texas 75074 

4. Name and address of Franchisor's agent in this state authorized to receive process. 

Commissioner or Commerce 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite 500 
St Paul, M N 55101 

5. The states in which this application is or will be shortly on file: 

California, New York, Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Maryland, Minnesota, Washington, 
Hawaii, Rhode Island, North Dakota, South Dakota, Wisconsin, Virginia 

6. Name, address and telephone number of person to whom communications regarding this application should 
be directed. 

Thomas Higier 
Higier Allen & Lautin, P C. 
5057 Keller Springs Road, Suite 600 
Addison, Texas 75001 
E-mail: thigicr(a)higicrallen,com 
Phone: 972-716-1888; Fax: 972-716-1899 

o^*<2Z^ 
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Form A - Franchise Registration Application.doc 



i lGIKR A L L E N & LAU'J'LN 
A T T O R N E Y S & C O U N S E L O R S 

T H O M A S H I G I E R 
SHAREHOLDER 

972.716.1859 Direct 
972.716.1888 Main 
972.770.7859 Fax 

thigier@higieraUen.com 

September 13,2012 

Via Federal Express 
Commissioner of Commerce 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 
85 7 th Place East, Suite 500 
St. Paul, MN 55101 
Attn: Daniel Sexton 

Re: 

Dear Mr. Sexton: 

Application for Renewal of Franchise Registration of Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc.; 
Fiscal Year Ending May 31; Your File: F-5312 

Enclosed please find the following items which I am submitting to you in order to effect the annual renewal of the 
registration by Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. to offer franchises in the State of Minnesota: 

1. Check in the amount of $300.00 payable to the Minnesota Department of Commerce for the 
registration renewal fee; 

2. FORM A - Uniform Franchise Registration Application, Certification and Corporate 
Acknowledgement; 

3. FORM B - Franchisor's Costs and Source of Funds; 
4. FORM C - Uniform Franchise Consent to Service of Process; 
5. FORM D - Franchise Seller Disclosure Forms; 
6. FORM E - Guarantee of Performance (Not Applicable); 
7. FORM F - Consent of Accountant and Audited Financial Statements; 
8. FORM G - Sample State Cover Page; 
9. Franchise Disclosure Document complete with exhibits as required therein; 
10. Black-lines of Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Development Agreement 

indicating changes made to the 2011 renewal 

If you should require any additional information or if you have any questions regarding the enclosed items, please feel 
free to contact me. Thank you in advance for your prompt processing of this renewal application. 

Very truly yours, 

HIGIER ALLEN & LAUTIN, P.C. 

Altr^J^^ 
Thomas Higier 

TH/cdd 
Enclosures 
cc: Roland Dickey, Jr. (via e-mail) 

Sarah Walters (via e-mail) 

4266.033VMinncsota 

Higier Allen & Lautin, P.C. I 5057 Keller Springs Road I Suite 600 | Addison, Texas | 75001 

www.higierallen.com 



Form A - Registration Application and Certification 

CERTIFICATION 

I certify and swear under penalty of law that I have read and know the contents of this application, including the 
Franchise Disclosure Document with an issuance date of September I, 2012, attached as an exhibit, and that all 
material facts stated in all those documents are accurate and those documents do not contain any material omissions. 
I further certify that I am duly authorized to make this certification on behalf of the Franchisor and that I do so upon 
my personal knowledge. 

Signed at Dallas, Texas, on ( ,2012. 

FRANCHISOR: 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 

By: 
Roland Dickey, Jr./President 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DALLAS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _ 
Roland Dickey, Jr., President of Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, 
person who executed this agreement in the capacity and for the 

[NOTARY STAMP] 

6ftay of JL&%&^ , 2012, 
Inc., a Texas corporation, known to me to be 

by 
the 

siherein stated. 

SHEW BETH KARP 
Notary Public. State of Texas 

My Commission Expires 
May 02. 2016 

r the State of Texas 

(Type or Print Name) 
# ^ A /y^ 

int Name) / 

Form A - Franchise Registration Application.doc 



CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DALLAS 

On this ^ d a y of J L & a & y - , 2012, before me ffi^W P/<f i tq J / L 
the undersigned officer, personally appeared Roland Dickey, Jr., known personally to to be 
the President of the Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas corporation, and that he, as 
President, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein 
contained, by signing the name ofthe corporation by himself as such officer. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

SHEW BETH KARP 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

My Commission Expires 
May 02, 2015 



Form B - Franchisor's Cost 

Franchisor's Costs and Sources of Funds for Establishing New Franchises 

1. Disclose franchisor's total costs for performing its pre-opening obligations to provide goods 
or services in connection with establishing each franchise, including real estate, 
improvements, equipment, inventory, training and other items stated in the offering. 

General Marketing $ 1,500.00 

Target Area Media 1,000.00 

Site Inspections 1,000.00 

Pre-Opening Assistance 1,000.00 

Training 2,000.00 

Administrative Services 1,000.00 

Marketing Costs and Commissions 7,500.00 

Real Estate Not Applicable 

Improvements Not Applicable 

Equipment Not Applicable 

Inventory Not Applicable 

Total $ 15,000.00 

2. State separately the sources of all required funds. 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. believes that the total costs, including sales 
commissions, for performing its pre-opening obligations to provide goods and services in 
connection with establishing a franchise is approximately $15,000.00 per franchise (see 
above for a more detailed breakdown). Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. believes it will 
have sufficient funds to perform its pre-opening obligations from (i) available cash on hand 
which, according to the audited financial statements of May 31,2012, equaled $401,558.00 
and (ii) internally generated revenues from royalties, franchise fees, and other sources, which, 
according to the audited financial. statement of May 31, 2012, equaled $10,706,931.00 
(excluding restricted funds) for its prior fiscal year ending May 31, 2011. 

Form B - Franchisor's Cosls.doc 



Form C - Consent to Service of Process 

UNIFORM FRANCHISE CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Texas (the "Franchisor"), 
irrevocably appoints the officers of the States designated below and their successors in those offices, its attorney in 
those States for service of notice, process or pleading in an action or proceeding against it arising out of or in 
connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the franchise laws of that State, and consents that an action 
or proceeding against it may be commenced in a court of competent jurisdiction and proper venue within that State 
by service of process upon this officer with the same effect as if the undersigned was organized or created under the 
laws of that State and had lawfully been served with process in that State. We have checked below each state in 
which this application is or will be shortly on file, and provided a duplicate original bearing an original signature to 
each state. 

X California: Commissioner of Corporations X 
X Hawaii: Commissioner of Securities X 
X Illinois: Attorney General X 
X Indiana: Secretary of State X 
X Maryland: Securities Commissioner X 
X Michigan: Attorney General X 
X Minnesota: Commissioner of Commerce X 

New York: Secretary of State 
North Dakota: Securities Commissioner 
Rhode Island: Director, Department of Business Regulation 
South Dakota: Director of Division of Securities 
Virginia: Clerk, Virginia State Corporation Commission 
Washington: Director of Financial Institutions 
Wisconsin: Administrator, Division of Securities, Department of 
Financial Institutions 

Please mail or send a copy of any notice, process or pleading served under this consent to: 

Roland Dickey, Jr. 
Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 
801 E. Piano Parkway, #135 
Piano, Texas 75074 

Dated Effective September 1, 2012. 

FRANCHISOR: 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DALLAS 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURA 
a Texas corporation 

By: 
Roland Dickey, Jr., Presiden 

.INC., 

a* 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this / day of ^ j fyfJ t&T/WW , 2012, by 

Roland Dickey, Jr., President of Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas corjforation, known to me to be the 
person who executed this agreement in the capacity and for thgHunjoses therein stated. 

[NOTARY STAMP] 

SHERI BETH KARP 
Notary Public; State of Texas 

My Commission Expires 
May 02. 2015 

NoWfv Wblic in andffor the State of Texas 

(Type or Print Name) / 

Form C - Consent to Service of Process doc 
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GUARANTY 

- N O T APPLICABLE— 



Auerbach Alber t 
& C o l d , L . C . 
C E R T I F I E D P U B L I C ACCOUNTANTS 

Form F - Consent of Accountant 

August 31, 2012 

AUDITOR'S CONSENT 

Auerbach Albert & Gold, LLC consents to the use in the Franchise Disclosure Document issued 
by Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. ("Franchisor") on September 1, 2012, as it may be 
amended, of our report dated August 7, 2012, relating to the financial statements of Franchisor 
for the period ending May 31,2012, May 31,2011, and May 31,2010. 

AUERBACH 

By: _ 

BERT & GOLD, LC 

Name: James Y. Albert 

Title: Partner 

Dallas, Texas 

12801 N. Central Expwy. • Sniic 1500 • Dallas, TX 75243 
iel 972 239 4699 • fax 972 239 4799 • ww.aagcpn.com 
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A u e r b a c h A l b e r t 
& C o l d , L . C . 
C E R T I F I E D P U B L I C ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and 
Stockholders of Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Dickey's Barbecue 
Restaurants, Inc. (a Texas corporation) (the Company) as of May 31, 2012, 2011 and 
2010 and the related statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the* financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonablFbasis"for our opinion" 

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position ofthe Company as of May 31, 2012,2011 and 2010, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

*u*Uci JtieU & fyU, 4.0. 
Auerbach Albert & Gold, L.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

Dallas, Texas 
August 7, 2012 

12801 N. Central Expwy. • Suite 1500 • Dallas, TX 75243 
rel 972 239 4699 • fax 972 239 4799 • www.aagcpa.com 



DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 
BALANCE SHEET 

M A Y 31,2012,2011, AND 2010 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash - restricted 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 

doubtful accounts of $0 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Deferred tax asset 
Investment securities 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Due from related parties, net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts of $0 (2012) and $101,398 (2010) 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 

of $258,487 (2012) 
Deposit 

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAITASSETS 

2012 2011 2010 

$ 401,558 
187,210 
951,762 

$ 359,452 
54,715 
825,136 

$ 105,021 
12,501 
637,057 

78,312 
31,285 
1,697 

477,292 
18,504 
1,697 

140,653 
18,136 
1,697 

1,651,824 1,736,796 915,065 

60,000 134,774 

132,407 96,919 79,797 

75,000 - -

267,407 96,919 214,571 

"$ 4919,231 ~$"r,833;715 $ 1,129,636 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
Current portion of notes payable 
Due to related parties 
Income taxes payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABIUTIES 

2012 2011 2010 

$ 566,688 $ 1,021,916 $ 551,854 
317,030 199,663 . 293,543 
19,973 22,283 22,823 

- - 79,124 
186,606 180,034 75,740 

1,090,297 1,423,896 1,023,084 

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 
BALANCE SHEET 

M A Y 31,2012,2011, AND 2010 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Notes payable, net of current portion 
Deferred incentive income 
Deferred tax liability 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 200,000 shares, 
issued and outstanding 100,000 

Additional paid in capital 
Retained earnings 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

2012 2011 2010 

42,660 
187,500 
33,007 

60,916 

16,888 

37,137 

6,117 

263,167 77,804 43,254 

1,353,464 1,501,700 1,066,338 

1,000 1,000 1,000 

63,500 
501,267 

63,500 
267,515 

63,500 
(1,202) 

565,767 332,015 63,298 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 1,919,231 $ 1,833,715 $ 1,129,636 

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED M A Y 31, 2012, 2011, AND 2010 

2012 2011 2010 

REVENUE 
Operating income 
Franchise fees 
Advertising income 

$ 8,899,629 
1,807,302 
3,809,047 

$ 5,994,869 
1,271,901 
2,740,685 

$4,851,453 
680,066 

1,873,493 
Total Revenue 14,515,978 10,007,455 7,405,012 

COST OF SALES 
Franchise setup costs 
Franchise maintenance costs 

1,217,815 
1,310,443 

958,296 
1,068,972 

648,761 
725,466 

Total cost of sales 2,528,258 2,027,268 1,374,227 

GROSS PROFIT 11,987,720 7,980,187 6,030,785 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 11,393,724 7,444,129 5,901,588 

INCOME (LOSS) F R O M OPERATIONS 593,996 536,058 129,197 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Other 

303 
(6,294) 

(149) 

606 
(18,780) 

139 

315 
(8,849) 
4,000 

Total other income (expense) (6,140) (18,035) (4,534) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 587,856 518,023 124,663 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 354,104 249,306 68,113 

NET INCOME $ 233,752 $ 268,717. $ 56,550 

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2012,2011 AND 2010 

Common Stock 

Shares Amount 
Additional 

Paid-in Capital 
Retained 

Earnings (Deficit) Total 

Beginning Balance, June 1,2009 100,000 $ 1,000 $ 63,500 J (57,752) $ 6,748 

Net income _ _ 56,550 56,550 

Ending Balance, May 31,2010 11,000 1,000 63,500 (1,202) 63,298 

Net income . _ 268,717 268,717 

Ending Balance, May 31,2011 11,000 1,000 63,500 267,515 332,015 

Net income _ -. 233,752 233,752 

Ending Balance, May 31,2012 11,000 S 1,000 S 63,500 $ 501,267 $ 565,767 

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED M A Y 31,2012, 2011, AND 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
Gain on sale of propery and equipment 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable 
Income tax receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Deferred tax asset 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: -
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Income tax payable 
Deferred incentive income 
Deferred tax liability 

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Restricted funds 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
Decrease (increase) in due from related parties 

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Issuance of notes payable 
Increase (decrease) in due to related parties 
Payments on notes payable 

CASH USED FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 

2012 2011 2010 

J 233,752 $ 268,717 $ 56,550 

46,196 41,981 45,220 
- - (4,000) 

(126,626) (188,079) (46,391) 
- - 77,444 

323,980 (336,639) 132,759 
(12,781) (368) (2,926) 

(455,228) 470,062 (159,548) 
117,367 (93,880) 108,191 

6,572 104,294 75,740 
187,500 - -
16,119 10,771 (3,878) 

336,851 276,859 279,161 

(132,495) (42,214) (5,881) 
(81,684) (59,103) -

- - 4,000 
(60,000) 134,774 (92,914) 

(274,179) 33,457 (94,795) 

52,032 
- (79,124) (98,894) 

(20,566) (28,793) (29,125) 

(20,566) (55,885) (128,019) 

42,106 254,431 56,347 

- 359,452 105,021 48,674 

$ 401,558 $ 359,452 $ 105,021 

CASH PAH) DURING THE YEAR FOR: 

INTEREST 

INCOME TAXES 

6,294 $ 18,780 I 8,849 

$ 186,684 $ 86,310 $ 41,745 

See auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED M A Y 31,2012,2011 AND 2010 

Note 1: Organization 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated in 1994 under 
the laws of the State of Texas. The Company was formed for the purpose of 
franchising barbecue restaurants. At May 31, 2012 Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, 
Inc. had 234 operating franchises and 40 more in various stages of becoming 
operational. There are 103 of the operating franchises are located in Texas, with the 
remainder operating in other states. The Company's management team has 
successfully operated barbecue restaurants at various locations in Texas since 1941. 

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of presentation - The accompanying financial statements are presented in 
accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. 

Income Taxes - Deferred income taxes are determined utilizing the asset and liability 
approach in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, 
Accounting for Income Taxes. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities and assets are 
determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and the net operating loss carry forwards, using enacted tax rates 
in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. 

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation 
No. 48 ("FIN 48"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which prescribed a 
comprehensive model for how a company should measure, recognize, present, and 
disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that the company has taken 
or expects to take on a tax return. The Company adopted FIN 48 as of June 1, 2009 
and, thereafter, recognizes the tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is 
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the 
taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits 
recognized in the financial statements from such positions are measured based on the 
largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate 
settlement. There was no impact to the Company's financial statements as a result of 
the implementation of FIN 48. 

Revenue and Expenses - Operating income consists of contractual franchise royalties 
based on a percentage of monthly sales which are recognized as revenue in the month 
earned. Supplier incentives not included in advertising income are also included in the 
operating income category. 



DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED M A Y 31, M A Y 31,2012,2011 AND 2010 
(CONTINUED) 

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Initial franchise fees are recognized as revenue once substantially all of the initial 
services of the Company required by the franchise agreement have been performed and 
no other material conditions or obligations related to the determination of substantial 
performance exist. For the year ended May 31, 2012, there were $1,702,302 in initial 
franchise fees. 

Franchise owners receive assistance in such areas as real estate site selection, 
construction consulting, purchasing and marketing from Company personnel. The 
costs of providing such assistance, whether in pre or post opening phases, are expensed 
as incurred. 

In some instances where contractual agreements exist, commissions for new franchises 
are paid to third parties. These commissions are generally recognized as an expense 
when the related franchise fee revenue is earned. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all liquid investments, with an 
original maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. At 
May 31, 2012, the Company had $127,327 in uninsured cash balances. 

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts in 
which the deposits are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
("FDIC"). The operating accounts of the Company are held at an institution that is 
provided unlimited coverage by the FDIC for non-interest bearing transaction accounts 
as part ofthe Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. As of the 
date of this report, this program is effective through December 31,2012. Topic 825 of 
the FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("FASBASC"), Financial Instruments 
identifies these accounts as a concentration of credit risk requiring disclosure 
regardless of the degree of risk. This risk is managed by maintaining deposits with 
high quality financial institutions and monitoring cash such that balances are rarely, if 
ever, in excess of the FDIC insurance limits. In addition, management does not 
believe that the Company is exposed to any significant risk related to financial 
institutions holding the Company's cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash balances related to the Marketing Fund are considered restricted cash. 



D ^ ^ Y ^ B A R R E C U E R E S T A U R A N T ^ I N C 
NOTESTOEINANC^STATE^ENTS 

E O R T H E Y E A R S E N D E D ^ Y ^ ^ Y 3 4 2 ^ ^ l A ^ 

(CONTO^D) 

N ^ ^ S o m m a r y o f S i ^ f i c a o t A c c ^ o t m g P ^ ^ ^ o ^ 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ P r o p e ^ ^ 
dep^ation. Depreciation is eompntedusingtiie straight-hne methodover the 
estimatednsefhi lives oftime assets as follow vehieles^5ye^ 
equipment^5 to^years^ and computer eqnipment^3to5years. Depreciation 
expense forthe years ended May 3 4 2 0 ^ 
44,251,respectively. 
B l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ D Trade accounts receivable are reported at the amount 
management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Differencesbetweenthe 
amount due and the amount management expects to collect are reported in the results 
of operations of the year in which those differences are detern^ed,with an offsetting 
entry toavaluationaliowancefbrtrade accounts receivable. Balances that are still 
outstanding afrer management has used reasonable collection efforts arewritten off 
throughacharge to the valuation allowance andacredit to trade accounts receivable. 

^^^^^^^^^Compensa tedabsencesforvaca t ionpay , sick pay, and 
personal time offhave been accrued since they can be reasonably estimated. 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ T h e Comply maintainsaMarketm^ 
includes contractual advertising and marketing fees paid monthly by franchisees and 
incentives paid by certain suppliers for promotion and utilization oftheir products in 
the franchise locations. Production costs ofadvertismg,TYorradio commercials, 
programming and other marketing activities are paid out of the Marketing Fund and 
charged to operations as incurred. The total of such expenses fbr the years ended May 
3i,2012,2011and2010were$2,^,872,$2,2^^ 

The franchise agreements generally require a predetermined percentage ofthe 
franchisee's gross monthly revenue to bepaid to theMarketing Fund for related 
advertising and marketing. The predetermined percentage of the franchisee's gross 
monthly revenue varies by contract and ranges up to 4%. Funds collected for 
advertising and marketing under the franchise agreements that are restricted for that 
purpose are recorded asdeferred revenue and are recognized as revenue once the 
related advertising costs are expensed, ^receivable from franchises is recognized in 
cases wheretheadvertisingexpenses exceed marketing fee collectionsinagiven 
period. In either case no profit is recognized from advertising and marketing fees 
collected in accordance with the franchise agreement. 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED M A Y 31, M A Y 31,2012,2011 AND 2010 
(CONTINUED) 

Note 2; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Estimates - Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial 
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues 
and expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Date of management's review - Subsequent events have been evaluated through 
August 7,2012, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Note 3: Related Party Transactions 

Consulting fees, other payments, and expenses paid or incurred by the Company to 
related parties and/or affiliated companies directly or indirectly owned and/or 
controlled by the Company's officers, shareholders or their immediate families totaled 
$1,103,307, $1,060,408, and $600,991 for the years ended May 31, 2012, 2011 and 
2010, respectively. 

Note 4: Income Taxes 

As of May 31,2012, the deferred tax asset and liability recognized consists ofthe 
following components: 

Deferred Income Tax Asset 
Accrued vacation and professional fees $ 31,285 

Deferred Income Tax Liability 
Depreciation timing differences 33,007 

Net deferred asset (liability) $ (1,722) 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, MAY 31,2012,2011 AND 2010 
(CONTINUED) 

Note 4: Income Taxes (continued) 

The provision for income taxes for the year ended May 31,2012 consists of the 
following: 

Current Federal.Tax Expense $ 193,712 
Current Franchise Tax Expense 157,054 
Deferred Tax Expense 3,338 

Total Tax Provision $ 354,104 

Reconciliation of federal income tax expense from applying statutory rates to net 
income before income taxes to federal tax expense for the year ended May 31,2012: 

Federal statutory tax rates applied to net income $ 199,871 
before income taxes 

Benefit of franchise tax expense deduction (51,077) 
Items not deductible from taxable income 31,051 
Temporary differences and other 13,867 

Current Federal Tax Expense $ 193,712 

As of May 31, 2012, the tax returns for fiscal years ended May 31,2009 and thereafter 
remained subject to examination by the IRS. 

Note 5: Leases 

The Company leases office space, office equipment and certain vehicles under lease 
agreements classified as operating leases. The following is a schedule by year of 
future minimum lease payments required under operating leases that have initial or 
remaining non cancelable lease term in excess of one year as of May 31,2012: 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, MAY 31,2012,2011 AND 2010 
(CONTINUED) 

Note 5: Leases - (continued) 

Year ending May 31, 2013 $ 194,353 
Year ending May 31, 2014 244,482 
Year ending May31,2015 234,242 
Year ending May 31,2016 210,631 
Year ending May 31,2017 144,604 

$ 1,028,312 

Related rent expense for the years ended May 31, 2012, 2011 and 20,10 was $236,313, 
$165,607 and $138,645, respectively. 

Note 6: Notes Payable 

The Company purchases certain vehicles used in operations through retail installment 
loan agreements generally payable over 48 months with interest rates ranging from 0-
9% and secured by the underlying assets. The following is a schedule by year of 
future aggregate installments on maturities of retail installment loan agreements as of 
May 31,2012: 

2013 $ 19,973 
2014 21,102 
2015 15,741 
2016 5,817 

62,633 
Less current portion (19,973) 

$ 42,660 

Note?: Retirement Plan 

The Company maintains a SIMPLE IRA account for all eligible employees. In 
addition to the employee's elective deferral, the Company matches an amount not 
exceeding 3% of employee's gross compensation. Contributions made for the years 
ended May 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $,56,648 $34,491 and $35,488, 
respectively. 
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FORM G 

SAMPLE STATE COVER PAGE AND SAMPLE STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 
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S T A T E C O V E R P A G E 
\, 

D I C K E Y ' S B A R B E C U E R E S T A U R A N T S , INC., 
A T E X A S C O R P O R A T I O N 

801 E. P L A N O P A R K W A Y , #135 
P L A N O , T E X A S 75074 

P H O N E : (972) 423-2201; W W W . D I C K E Y S . C O M 

Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a state franchise administration before 
offering or selling in your state. REGISTRATION OF A FRANCHISE BY A STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE 
RECOMMENDS THE FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. If you 
learn that anything in this Disclosure Document is untrue, contact the FTC and the appropriate State authority. 

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit E for information about the franchisor, or about franchising in your 
state. 

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW UNCONDITIONALLY AFTER THE INITIAL TERM 
EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A NEW AGREEMENT WITH DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER 
TO CONTINUE TO OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO 
RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE, IF ANY. AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN ORDER TO RENEW. 

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise: 

1. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED UNDER APPLICABLE MINNESOTA LAW, THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES 
YOU TO RESOLVE MOST DISPUTES WITH DICKEY'S BY NONBIND1NG MEDIATION AND, IF NONBINDING 
MEDIATION IS UNSUCCESSFUL, BY ARBITRATION IN TEXAS. IN SOME CASES, DISPUTES MAY BE 
SUBMITTED TO LITIGATION IN THE COURTS IN TEXAS TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER MINNESOTA. 
YOU UNDERSTAND THAT OUT OF STATE MEDIATION, ARBITRATION OR LITIGATION MAY FORCE YOU TO 
ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO MEDIATE, 
ARBITRATE OR LITIGATE WITH DICKEY'S IN TEXAS THAN IN YOUR HOME STATE. 

2. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED UNDER APPLICABLE MINNESOTA LAW, THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT STATES 
THAT TEXAS LAW GOVERNS THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE THE SAME 
PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS YOUR LOCAL LAW. YOU MAY WANT TO COMPARE THESE LAWS. 

3. THE MAJORITY OF RESTAURANTS OPERATED BY DICKEYS FRANCHISEES OR BY AN AFFILIATE ARE 
LOCATED IN TEXAS. OPERATING RESULTS FOR DICKEYS RESTAURANTS LOCATED OUTSIDE OF TEXAS 
ARE GENERALLY LESS ESTABLISHED. 

4. UPON EARLY TERMINATION OF THE FRANCHISE, YOU MUST PAY DICKEY'S LIQUIDATED DAMAGES EQUAL 
TO ROYALTIES PROJECTED TO BE PAID BY YOU OVER THE REMAINING TERM OF THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT BASED UPON THE AVERAGE NET SALES OF YOUR RESTAURANT OVER THE TWELVE (12) 
COMPLETE CALENDAR MONTHS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING TERMINATION. 

5. DICKEYS OR ITS AFFILIATES OR OTHER FRANCHISEES MAY PROVIDE CATERING AND DELIVERY SERVICES 
AND MAY ESTABLISH OTHER CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION AND SELL OR DISTRIBUTE ANY PRODUCT OR 
SERVICE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC UNDER THE SAME AND/OR A DIFFERENT TRADEMARK, POSSIBLY IN 
COMPETITION WITH YOUR FRANCHISE. 

6. THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE. 

Dickey's uses the services of one or more franchise brokers or referral sources to assist us in selling our franchise. A 
franchise broker or referral source represents us, not you. We pay this person a fee for selling our franchise or referring you 
to us. You should be sure to do your own investigation of the franchise. 

Effective Date: See following page for state effective dates. 
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h STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, 
or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New 
York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin. 

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the following 
states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates: 

Disclose: 

A. 

B. 

C. 

0. 

CALIFORNIA Pending 

HAWAII Pending 

ILLINOIS Pending 

MICHIGAN Pending 

RHODE ISLAND Pending 

SOUTH DAKOTA Pending 

WASHINGTON Pending 

WISCONSIN Pending 

VIRGINIA Pending 

NEW YORK Pending 

INDIANA Pending 

NORTH DAKOTA Pending 

MARYLAND Pending 

MINNESOTA Pending 

The states in which this proposed registration application is or will be shortly on file: 
California, Hawaii, New York, Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Washington, Rhode Island, 
South Dakota, Wisconsin, Virginia, North Dakota, Minnesota, Maryland. 

The states that have refused to register this franchise offering: None 

The states that have revoked or suspended the right to offer franchises: None 

The states in which this proposed registration of these franchises has been withdrawn 
within the last five years, and the reasons for revocation or suspension: None 
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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC., 
A TEXAS CORPORATION 

801 E. Piano Parkway, #135 
PLANO, TEXAS 75074 

(972) 423-2201 
WWW.DICKEYS.COM 

B A R B E C U E P I T 

The franchisee will operate under the name and mark "Dickey's Barbecue Pit" one (1) or more fast casual quick 
service restaurants specializing in freshly prepared barbecue style meats and other food products. The total 
investment necessary to begin operation of a single Dickey's Barbecue Pit restaurant ranges between 
$63705668.958- $44^966149.958 for the conversion of a previously finished-out leased restaurant facility within 
a non-traditional location, $4067638127,560 - $4627666208.560 for the conversion of a previously finished out 
leased restaurant facility in a traditional location, $£§67262269.406 - $310.282350.406 for the conversion of a 
previously finished out leased retail space in a traditional location, and $3427976348.651 - $396.976429.651 for 
a new leased restaurant facility in a traditional location. This includes $21,500 or more that must be paid to the 
franchisor or affiliate. 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in 
plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive 
this disclosure document at least fourteen (14) calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or 
make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, 
however, that no governmental agency has verified the Information contained In this document 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure document alone 
to understand your contract Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure 
document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment The information in this disclosure document can help you make up 
your mind. More information on franchising, such as nA Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise", which can 
help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission 
("FTC"). You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, 
NW, Washington D C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. 
Call your state agency or visit a public library for other sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them. 

ISSUANCE DATE: September 1. 2012. 



STATE COVER PAGE 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC., 
A TEXAS CORPORATION 

801 E. PLANO PARKWAY, #135 
PLANO, TEXAS 75074 

PHONE: (972) 423-2201; WWW.DICKEYS.COM 

Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a state franchise administration before 
offering or selling in your state. REGISTRATION OF A FRANCHISE BY A STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE 
RECOMMENDS THE FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. If you 
learn that anything in this Disclosure Document is untrue, contact the FTC and the appropriate State authority. 

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit FE for information about the franchisor, or about franchising in your 
state. 

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW UNCONDITIONALLY AFTER THE INITIAL TERM 
EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A NEW AGREEMENT WITH DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER 
TO CONTINUE TO OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO 
RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN ORDER TO RENEW. 

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise: 

1. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED UNDER APPUCABLE MINNESOTA LAW, THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES 
YOU TO RESOLVE MOST DISPUTES WITH DICKEY'S BY NONBINDING MEDIATION AND, IF NONBINDING 
MEDIATION IS UNSUCCESSFUL, BY ARBITRATION IN TEXAS. IN SOME CASES, DISPUTES MAY BE 
SUBMITTED TO LITIGATION IN THE COURTS IN TEXAS TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER MINNESOTA 
LAW. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT OUT OF STATE MEDIATION, ARBITRATION OR LITIGATION MAY FORCE YOU 
TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO 
MEDIATE, ARBITRATE OR LITIGATE WITH DICKEYS IN TEXAS THAN IN YOUR HOME STATE. 

2. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED UNDER APPUCABLE MINNESOTA LAW, THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT STATES 
THAT TEXAS LAW GOVERNS THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE THE SAME 
PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS YOUR LOCAL LAW. YOU MAY WANT TO COMPARE THESE LAWS. 

3. THE SPOUSE(S) OF THE FRANCHISEE AND/OR DEVELOPER, AS THE CASE MAY BE, ARE REQUIRED TO SIGN 
THE FRANCHISE AND/OR DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, MAKING THEM JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY LIABLE 
FOR ALL OBLIGATIONS AND DEBTS OF THE FRANCHISE WHETHER OR NOT THEY ARE INVOLVED IN THE 
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS. THIS REQUIREMENT PLACES THE PERSONAL ASSETS OF 
YOU AND YOUR SPOUSE AT RISK, 

& 4T-THE MAJORITY OF RESTAURANTS OPERATED BY DICKEYS FRANCHISEES OR BY AN AFFILIATE ARE 
LOCATED IN TEXAS. OPERATING RESULTS FOR DICKEYS RESTAURANTS LOCATED OUTSIDE OF TEXAS 
ARE GENERALLY LESS ESTABLISHED. 

6 SrUPON EARLY TERMINATION OF THE FRANCHISE, YOU MUST PAY DICKEY'S LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
EQUAL TO ROYALTIES PROJECTED TO BE PAID BY YOU OVER THE REMAINING TERM OF THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT BASED UPON THE AVERAGE NET SALES OF YOUR RESTAURANT OVER THE TWELVE (12) 
COMPLETE CALENDAR MONTHS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING TERMINATION. 

5. GrDICKEVS OR ITS AFFILIATES OR OTHER FRANCHISEES MAY PROVIDE CATERING AND DEUVERY 
SERVICES AND MAY ESTABLISH OTHER CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION AND SELL OR DISTRIBUTE ANY 
PRODUCT OR SERVICE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC UNDER THE SAME AND/OR A DIFFERENT TRADEMARK, 
POSSIBLY IN COMPETITION WITH YOUR FRANCHISE. 

6. T/THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE. 

Dickey's uses the services of one or more franchise brokers or referral sources to assist us in selling our franchise. A 
franchise broker or referral source represents us, not you. We pay this person a fee for selling our franchise or referring you 
to us. You should be sure to do your own investigation ofthe franchise. 

Effective Date; , 
Effective Date: See followtnq page for state effective dates. 



STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, or be 
exempt from registration: California. Hawaii. Illinois. Indiana. Maryland. Michigan. Minnesota. New York. North 
Dakota. Rhode Island. South Dakota. Virginia. Washington and Wisconsin. 

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the following states 
having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates: 

CALIFORNIA Pending 

HAWAII Pending 

ILLINOIS Pending 

MICHIGAN Pending 

RHODE ISLAND Pending 

SOUTH DAKOTA Pending 

WASHINGTON Pending 

WISCONSIN Pending 

VIRGINIA Pending 

NEW YORK Pending 

INDIANA Pending 

NORTH DAKOTA Pending 

MARYLAND Pending 

MINNESOTA Pending 

& The states in which this proposed registration application is or will be shortly on file: California, 
Hawaii. New York. Illinois. Indiana. Michigan. Washington. Rhode Island. South Dakota. 
Wisconsin. Virginia, North Dakota. Minnesota. Maryland. 

The states that have refused to register this franchise offering: None 

C. The states that have revoked or suspended the right to offer franchises: None 

D. The states in which this proposed registration of these franchises has been withdrawn within the 
last five years, and the reasons for revocation or suspension: None 
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ITEM 1 
THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES 

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, "Dickey's", "franchisor", "we" and "our" means 
Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas corporation, the franchisor. "You" means the person or 
entity that buys the franchise and, if such person is a partnership, corporation or other entity, also 
includes the ownerspersons that own equity interests in such entity. 

Dickey's is a Texas corporation incorporated on March 7, 1994. The company's principal place of 
business is 801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074. The company also operates at 4514 Cole 
Avenue, Suite 1015, Dallas, Texas 75205. Dickey's does not have any parent companies or any affiliates 
which offer franchises in any line of business or provide products or services to franchisees. There are 
no predecessors of Dickey's. Dickey's does not do business under any other name. Since its formation, 
Dickey's has offered Restaurant franchises. 

Dickey's sole business is to offer, sell and service franchises for the development and operation of quick 
service fast casual dining restaurants (the "Restaurants") specializing in freshly prepared food featuring 
barbecued meats under the service mark (the "Mark") displayed on the cover page of this Disclosure 
Document. The Restaurants utilize modem barbecue cooking technology and several proprietary 
concepts and recipes, including the barbecue sauce. 

While some of Dickey's existing Restaurant franchises offer a cafeteria-style dining format, to meet 
evolving customer demands and tastes, Dickey's currently offers franchises featuring quick service dining. 
Most of the Restaurants are located within suburban shopping centers or in stand-alone buildings located 
on busy streets, but Restaurants are also located in "non-traditionar venues such as food courts or 
convenience stores or within institutional settings. Dickey's current business model for new franchises 
focuses on Restaurants in leased spaces of approximately 1,800 square feet located in shopping centers, 
and therefore this Disclosure Document is primarily tailored to provide information on Restaurants opened 
by franchisees under this model. However, this Disclosure Document also provides information on 
Restaurants opened in "non-traditional' venues. 

Dickey's does not operate any Restaurants of the kind described in this Disclosure Document, but 
Dickey's Barbecue Pit, Inc. ("DBP"), a Texas corporation affiliated with Dickey's having a principal place 
of business at 801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074 and an operating office at 4514 Cole 
Avenue, Suite 1015, Dallas, Texas 75205, has operated similar Restaurants since 1941, and Restaurant 
Growth, Inc. ("RGI"), a Texas corporation affiliated with Dickey's? having a principal place of business of 
801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074 and an operating office at 4514 Cole Avenue, Suite 
1015, Dallas, Texas 75205, has operated similar Restaurants since 2007. Except as described in this 
Item 1, Dickey's, DBP and RGI have not and do not engage in any other kinds of business or offered or 
offer franchises in any other lines of business. 

Dickey's authorized agent to receive service of process in the State of Minnesota is Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce, 85 7th Place East, Suite 500, St Paul, MN 55101, with a copy to Dickey's 
at 801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074; Attn: Roland Dickey. Jr. 

Dickey's acquired its right to use and sublicense to franchisees the Mark pursuant to a license agreement 
with DBP, its affiliate. The license agreement is attached as Exhibit D. (see Item 13). DBP has operated 
pit barbecue Restaurants generally utilizing the cafeteria-style format but offering the same food products 
as the quick service franchises described in this Disclosure Document since 1941. As of the date of this 
Disclosure Document, DBP (or RGI) operates five (5) cafeteria-style and two (2) quick service 
Restaurants in the Dallas-Fort Worth, Texas metropolitan area and one (1) quick service Restaurant in 
Louisville, Colorado. When reference is made in this Disclosure Document to "company-owned" or 
"company-operated" Restaurants", this means Restaurants owned and operated by DBP and RGI. DBP 
and RGI do not franchise, and have not, franchised Restaurants or any other kind of business. 

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT • MINNESOTA Final: 09-01-20442Q12 
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Po^oaottothis Disolosore Oocome^ Oicke^s iso^eringqua^ed individual corporation iimitad 
iiabiiityoompaoiaa, and partnorahipstho opportunity to davaiop and operate Restaur 
oomprahensive and unique system (the "Systems that inoiudearigh^ 
names^trademarks and service marks as weii as distinctive exterior and interior des ign ,d^^ 
schemes, furnishings and equipment for Restaurant premised confidential recipes, procedures, 
specifications and formulas for preparing food and beverage products and for operations; inventory and 
management control methods; initial and ongoing training and seminars and advertising and promotional 
servicesand assistance. 

Each franchise relationship is offered by Oickey^s based on one oftwo arrangements; 

t. The firat arrangement isasingle franchise agreement ("Franchi^ Agreement underwh^ 
shall establish one (1) Restaurant ataspecifiediocationThe Franchise Agreements 
be required to execute for this Restaurant is attached to this Oisciosure document as Exhibit 8. 
(See Item^regarding initial Franchise Fee). 

2 The second arrangement isadevelopment agreement (the development Agreement") which 
requiresyou to establish more than one(1) Restaurant within a defined geographic area 
according t o a time schedule provided in the Oevelopment Agreement. The Development 
Agreementyouwillberequired to execute is also attached to thisOisclosureOocument as 
ExhibitC You will be required to execute the form of Franchise Agreement Dickey's is then 
offering to new Oickey's franchisees for each Restaurant established under the Development 
Agreement (Seeltem^regarding initial Franchise Fee) 

If you are consideringasingle franchise, you will receiveacopy of our Franchise Agreement, if you are 
considering more thanone(1) franchised Restaurant, you willreceive copies of both theFranchise 
Agreement and the Development Agreement. The Franchise Agreement and Development Agreement 
are each referred to in this Disclosure Documentas an "Agreement." 

The Restaurants'products and services are marketed to customers of all ages and economic levels. 
Preferred locations for the Restaurants ara in heavily populated suburban areas on or near mâ or streets 
and highways. While there can be fluctuations in sales of the Restaurants'products and services, sales 
are not typically seasonal. 

The market for restaurant services is well-established but highly competitive. There are many single 
lo^tion, family-operated barbecue restaurants and numerous regional and national restaurant s^^^ 
currently operating and^or offering franchises for barbecue-style restaurants which feature menu ite 
similar to those offered by Dickey's and the Restaurants. Additionally, the Restaurants will compete for 
the dining dollar with the full range of other types of food service operations, many of which may be 
located in close proximity to the Restaurants. There also exists active competition among restaurants for 
the employment of management and service personnel as well as for the acquisition of attractive leas^ 
sites suitable for restaurants. 

Dickey's believes its competitive position will be enhanced due to its distinctive offering ô  
food using high quality, fresh ingredients and proprietary recipes served quickly at affordable pri 
inacomfortable, friendly setting. Although Dickey's continues to develop or franchise Restaurants in 
Texas, where its name and reputation are well established, Dickey's is now offering franchises for 
Restaurants throughout the United States Dickey's believes that Restaurants in this 
the potential for success, and that Restaurants will be able to ultimately achieve consistent p a ^ 
these markets asaresultofDickey'sdevelopingnamerecognition and distinctive food offering 

Therestaurantindustryisheavily regulated. Many of the laws, rules and regulations that apply to 
business generally have particular applicability to restaurants All Restaurants must comply with federal, 
stateand local lawsapplicabletotheoperationand licensing ofarastaurant business, include 
truth in menu and labelino laws and all aoolicable health permits and^or inspections and approvals by 
municipal, county or state health depai^ents that reoulate food service preparation, handlino.^ 
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and sales and food se^ioe o o e r a ^ 
ooonty, state and federal bonding oodas and handicap aooaaaoodas You should consider these laws 
and regolationswhen evaluating your purchase ofafranchise. 

The U ^ Food and Orug Administration, the U ^ Department of Agricultura 
departments administer and enfold regulations that govern food preparation and service and re^ 
sanitary conditions State and iocai agencies inspect restaurants to ensure that they comply with these 
laws and regulations 

The Federal Clean Air Act and various state laws require certain state and local areas to meet nationals 
quality standees limiting emissions of ozone, carhon monoxide and particulate matter ^ 
emissions from commercial food preparation. Some state and local governments have also adopted, or 
are considering, proposalsthat would regulate indoor air quality, including thelimitationofsmoldng 
tohacco products in public places such as restaurants. 

iTEM2 
OOSINESSEXPERIENCE 

Thefollowing isalist of any directora, trustees, general partners, principal officera and other 
with management responsibility relating to the sale oroperation ofthe franchise offered h y ^ ^ 
Document, together with enfranchise brokers. The principal position and employerof each such 
individual during the last f ive^yeara, including each position's starting date, ending date and l o ^ 
are listed below. Unlessotherwisespecified below, the location of each position is Dallas,Texas. 

Chairman^olandROickey 

RolandROickey serves as Chairman ofthe SoardofDickey'sand has served in that capacity s ^ 
of 20t1. Mr. Oickey previously served as the Chief Executive Officerfrom 2006 to May of 201^ 
President of Oickey's from the date of his initial employment by the company in March of1994 until 2006. 
Mr. Oickey began working in the family's barbecue business in 1966 and since 1971 has been President 
of OSP.Mr.Oickeyworks out ofboth the headquarters office in Piano, Texas and the operations office in 
Oallas,Texas. 

President and Chief Executive Officer: Roland Oickev. Jr. 

Roland Oickey,Jr,son of Roland R.Oickey, was named Chief Executive Officer in May of 2011^ Mr. 
Oickey began working at Oickey's in July of1999, and in 2006, became the President ofOicke^ Priorto 
becoming President, Mr Oickey served as Vice President of Dickey's Mr. Oickey works out of both the 
headquarters office in Piano, Texas and theoperations office in Oallas, Texas 

Oirector of Real Estate: Cullen Oickey 

CullenOickeybeganservicewithOickey'sinFebruaryof 2006 asaOirectorofand is involved in real 
estate ooerations Mr. Oickey, son of RolandR Oickey, also has worked as an independent commercial 
real estate agent in the Oallas,Texas area since 2001 Mr Oickey works out of the operations office in 
Oallas,Texas. 

Oirector:TOOickey.lll 

TO Oickey. Illbeoan service with Oickev's in January of 2011 asaOirector and is involved with 
ooerations. Priortothattime. Mr Oickey owned and ooeratedaOickey'sSarbecue Pit in Frisco.Texas 
from 2007 before ioinino the corporate office asaOirector Mr Oickey is the son ofTO Oickey. Hand 
brother of Roland R. Oickey. co-founder. Mr.Oickeyworks out ofthe ooerations office in Oallas.Texas. 
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Vice Pre^deot of Human Resooroes^ Michel Frazi l 

Michel Frazier joined Oickey io September of 2003 as an Acc^ 
Janua^2008, Ms. Frazier served as Director of Aooountin^ She is now Vice President of Human 
Resources and Administration. Ms. Frazierworks out ofthe ooerations office in Daiias^Texas. 

Vice President of Ooerations:Tim Sharp 

From 1090 to 2005.Tim Sharp worked as Reoionai Director of Operations for Chevv's Fresh Me^ From 
2005 untii 2008, he was empiovedhv Cracker Sarrei as District Manager. Mr Sharp heoan service with 
Dickey's as Fieid Services Manager in Juiv of 2008. was promoted to Director of New Unit Deveiopment 
in 2000. was promoted to Senior Director of Operations and Area Deveiopment in 2010, and in 2012. he 
was promoted tohis current position as Vice President of Operations. Mr. Sharp works out of the 
operations office in Daiias.Texas. 

Vice President of Deveiopment: Richard Phiiiips ^ 

Richard Phiiiips joined Dickey's as Franchise Deveiopment Manager in 2000. became Director of 
Franchise Deveiopment in 2010. and in 2011 was promoted to his current position as Vice President of 
Franchise Deveiopment Priortoioining Dickey's. Mr. Phiiiips worked in the construction fieidasaproiect 
manager and was empioyed by Cooper General Contractors, and he was responsibie for constructing 
many Dickey's Restaurants throughout the country from 2008 to 2000. Mr. Phiiiips works out of the 
operationsofficeinDaiias^exas 

Chief Financial Officer: Caries Reyes 

Carlos Reyes ioinedOickey's in April 2011. In addition to his position as Chief Financial Officer 
Reyes oversees eight of Dickey's company-owned stores in the Dalias^Fort Worth area. Priortoioining 
Dickey's. Mr. Reyes workedfor Sysco Corporation aschieffinancialofficer for 18years at various 
locations in North America including Dallas.Texas from 2008 to 2011 Mr. Reyes isaCertified Public 
Accountant. Mr.Reyes works out ofthe operations office in Dallas.Texas. 

Director of Commodity Suying: Owen Edwards 

Owen Edwards began working for DSP in1074 and has served asaRestaurant Manager for DSP 
starting in 1080. Mr Edwards began service at Dickey's in January of 1007 and served as Director of 
Franchise Development from 2008 until 2011 before becoming Directorof Commodity Spying. Mr. 
Edwards is located atthe headquarters office in Piano, Texas. 

Director of Marketing: JoetteVou^ 
JoetteVoung^oinedDickey'sinJuneof2011 as Director of Marketing. Prior to coining Dickey's, Ms. 
Voung worked as a marketing consuitant in the San Francisco Say area from 2000 to2011 with 
companiessuchasThe Princeton Review and SikiniSands. From 2002 to 2000, Ms.Voung worked with 
TheAmericanHeartAcsociotionservingtwoyearsaDirectorofMarketing in San Francisco a n d ^ 
yeara in various marketing and communications roles at the national headquarters in Dallas,Tex^^ 
Voungworksoutoftheoperations office in Dallas, Texas 

Paula Dzuck Suarez^oined Dickey's in February of 2011 as Director of Training and New Store 
Development. From 2007 to 2011, Ms. Suorez performed analysis and consulting services with 
RealPage, Incorporated,osofl^are provider for property management companies in the ^ 
Ms. Suarez served as the NationalTraining Manager for Lincoln Military Housing,asubdiv^ 
Property of Dallas^Texas in 2008. Ms. Suarez works out ofthe operations office in Dallas,Texas. 
DirectorofCommunications:JeffreyOruber 
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Jeffrey Gruber began service with Dickey's as a Marketing Coordinator in March of 2008 and was 
promoted to Director of Marketing in 2009. In June of 2011 he became Director of Communications. 
Prior to working for Dickey's, Mr. Gruber practiced law at Byrne Cardenas & Smitherman, L L P . from 
June of 2005 until November of 2006, R R. Donnelley Global Real Estate Services from May of 2007 until 
January of 2008, and Goldstein & Scopellite, P.C. from February of 2008 until March of 2008. Mr. Gruber 
is a licensed attorney in the state of Texas. Mr. Gruber works out of the operations office in Dallas, 
Texas. 

Director of Daniel SiblevMarketing: Joette Young 

Before joining Dickey's in August of 2008 as Project Manager, Daniel Sibley worked for Lanelogic, LLC 
from 2006 to 2008 as a Trading Inventory Consultant. From 2004 to 2005, Mr. Sibley worked in Trading 
Operations with Ameritrade. Mr. Sibley was promoted to Director of Construction of Dickey's in 2009. Mr. 
Sibley works out of the operations office in Dallas, Texas. 
Joette Young joined Dickey's in June of 2011 as Director of Marketing. Prior to joining Dickey's. Ms. 
Young worked as a marketing consultant in the San Francisco Bay area from 2009 to 2011 with 
companies such as The Princeton Review and BikiniBands. From 2002 to 2009. Ms. Young worked with 
The American Heart Association serving two years a Director of Marketing in San Francisco and five 
years in various marketing and communications roles at the national headquarters in Dallas. Texas. Ms. 
Young works out of the operations office in Dallas. Texas. 

Director of Franchise Development: Richard Phillips 
Richard Phillips joined Dickey's as Franchise Development Manager in 2009 and became Director of 
Franchise Development in 2010. Prior to joining Dickey's, Mr. Phillips worked in the construction field as 
a project manager and was employed by Cooper General Contractors and he was responsible for 
constructing many Dickey's Restaurants throughout the country from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Phillips works out 

Director of Purchasing: Jeff Forrester 

Jeff Forrester joined Dickey's in August of 2011 as Director of Purchasing. Prior to joining Dickey's, Mr. 
Forrester served as Purchasing Manager for La Madeleine Inc. in Dallas, Texas from 2010 until 2011. 
Mr. Forrester was employed by The Bowling Proprietor's Association of America as Foodservice Account 
Manager in Arlington, Texas from 2006 until 2010, and from 2003 until 2006, Mr. Forrester was employed 
by Sysco Food Services of Dallas, Texas as a Marketing Associate. Mr. Forrester works out of the 
operations office in Dallas, Texas. 

SeftioF-Director of -Area Development: Tim SharpDaniel Sibley 

Tim Sharp has extensive experience both opening and operating restaurants. 
Sharp worked as Regional Director of Operations for Chevy's Fresh Mex. From 2005 until 2008, he was 
employed by Cracker Barrel as District Manager.—Mr. Sharp began service with Dickey's as Field 
Services Manager in July of 2008, was promoted to Director of New Unit Development in 2009 and in 
2010, promoted to his current position of Senior Director of Operations and Area Development.—Mfr 
Sharp works out of the operations office in Dallas, Texas. 
Before joining Dickey's in August of 2008 as Project Manager, Daniel Siblev worked for Lanelogic, LLC 
from 2006 to 2008 as a Trading Inventory Consultant. From 2004 to 2005, Mr. Sibley worked in Trading 
Operations with Ameritrade. Mr. Siblev was promoted to Director of Construction of Dickey's in 2009 and 
became Director of Area Development in 2012. Mr. Siblev works out of the operations office in Dallas. 
Texas. 

Director of Training: Ashley Wright 

Chief Financial Officer Carlos Reyes 

Carlos RevesAshlev Wright joined Dickey's in ApftlOctober of 2011. In addition to his position as Chief 
Financial Officer, Mr. Reyes oversees eight of Dickey's company owned stores in the Dallas/Fort Worth 
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area. Prior to joining Dickey's, Mr. Reyes worked for Sysco Corporation as chief financial 
years at various locations in North America including Dallas, Texas from 2003 to 2011. Mr. Reyes is a 
Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Reyes works as Content Training Manager, and in November 2011. she 
became the Director of Training. From 2009 to 2011. Ms. Wright worked as Service and Development 
Manager for Romano's Macaroni Grill in Dallas. Texas. From 2008 - 2009 Ms. Wright served as Area 
Trainer for Kona Grill based out of Baton Rouge. Louisiana. From 2003 - 2007 Ms. Wright worked with 
Bahama Breeze in various administrative, training and management roles. Ms. Wright is based out of the 
operations office in Dallas, Texas. 

Director of Barbecue U: Chris Kellev 

Vice President of Accounting and Administration: Michelle Frazier 
Chris Kellev joined Dickey's in September 2011 as a training manager and was promoted to Director of 
Barbecue U in November 2012. Prior to working for Dickey's. Chris Kellev was partner and general 
manager of Capitol Pub in Dallas from 2007- 2011. From 2004 to 2007 Chris Kellev ran the Dubliner on 
Greenville Avenue as a general manager. Chris Kellev was employed bv the Comer Bar and Grill off of 
McKinney avenue in Dallas as general manager from 2000 to 2004. 

Director of Information Technology: Eimilie Mitchell 

Eimilie Mitchell joined Dickey's November 2010 as Director of Operations RGI over the Corporate Stores, 
and was promoted to Director of IT in January of 2012. Prior to joining Dickey's. Ms. Mitchell worked for 
MICROS as a Lead Project Installer from 2007-2010. In 2007 she was in Las Vegas and opened Asia as 
the Operations Manager. From 2005-2007. Ms. Mitchell worked for Gotham City Restaurant Group as 
Director of Beverage. Ms. Mitchell works out of the operations office in Dallas. Texas. 

Director of Franchise Sales: Jerrel Denton 

Jerrel Denton began service with Dickeys in 2005 as Director of Finance-Construction, and has served as 
Director of Business Development since January of 2009. Prior to joining Dickey's. Mr. Denton served as 
Vice President and Co-Owner of Promontory International. Inc. d/b/a Mega Wraps of Texas from 2003 to 
2006 and was involved with the marketing and sales of franchises for the organization. Before Mega 
Wraps. Mr. Denton served as managing partner for a Sonic franchise in Texas. Prior to Sonic. Mr. 
Denton was Regional Manager for Taco Bueno Restaurants in Dallas. Texas. Mr. Denton was also a 
multi-unit franchisee for Grandv's Restaurants in Tennessee. Georgia, and Florida. Mr. Denton works out 
ofthe operations office in Dallas, Texas. 

Director of Franchise Sales: Ryan Reeves 

Michelle FrazierRvan Reeves joined Dickey's in September of 2003 as an Accounting Manager. From 
March. 2007 to January. 2008. Ms. Frazier served as Director of Accounting. She is now November of 
2010 as Franchise Development Representative. Prior to his employment with Dickey's. Mr. Reeves was 
owner of Majority Entertainment. LLC from 2009 to 2010. Mr. Reeves held positions with Blockdot. Inc. 
as Director of Business Development from 2008 to 2009. and IZoom Online. LLC as Vice President of 
Accounting and AdministrationSales from 2006 to 2008. MsMr. FfazierReeves works out of the 
operations office in Dallas, Texas. 
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V^Pres id^Oireotor^Oo 

Corby Cronin has been iothorestaorant business siooo 199^—Ha began, beqionioq bisoaraarat 
Breooa^sef Houston in 1995asaprepooo^ Afrer graduating Joboson^Wales diversity witha 
degree in Culinary Arts, be worked as the Banquet Chef at the Wyndham Resor ts 
Colorado He trained under James Mazzio,Food^WineMagazine'sTopTen Chefs of tOOO, at 15 
Degrees in Boulder Colorado before opening and operating several restaurants in Denver, Colorado. Mr. 
Cronin movedtoDallas,Texas in 2003tostort his own oontraoting company that served residenfi^^ 
homebuilders in the Dallas-Fort Worth,Texas metropolitan area. Mr Cronin sold his business in 2007 
and joined Dickey's in September of 2007 as director of purchasing. In 2000, Mr. Cronin became Vice 
President of Coerations. and in 2012 became Director of Franchise Sales Mr Croninworksootofthe 
operations office in Dallas,Texas. 

DirectorofFranchise Sales: Brett Heinen 

Director of Business Develooment: Jerrel Denton 
Brett Heinen joined Dickey's in 2012 as Director of Franchise Sales. Prior to ioinino Dickey's, Mr.Hein^ 
worked with the Henry S.Miller Brokerage Company asasales associate specializing in i ndus^ 
office transactions and focusing predominantly on tenant reoresentotion. Prior to working in c o ^ ^ 
real estate he served in several different positions within Ferguson Enterprises. Mr.Heinenworksoutof 
the operations office in Dallas, Texas. 
Jerrel Denton began service with Dickeys in 2005 as Director of Finance-Construction, and has served as 
Director of Business Development since January of 2000. Priortoioining Dickey's, Mr. Denton served as 
Vice President and Co-Cwner of Promontory International,Inc.amoster franchise d/b/a Mega Wraps of 
Texas from 2003 to 2005 and was involved with the marketing and sales of franchises for the 
organization.—Before Mega Wraps,Mr. Denton served as managing partner foraSonic Franchise in 
Texas. PriortoSonic, Mr. Denton was Regional Manager for Taco Bueno Restaurants in Dallas,Texas 
Mr.Dentonwasalsoamulti-unitfranchisee for Grandy's Restaurants in Tennessee, Georgia, and Florî ^^ 
Mr.Denton works out ofthe operations office in Dallas,Texas 

Franchise Development Representative: Colin NickersonTransition Manager Brvan Pelt 

Co^in—NickersonBrvan Pelt joined Dickey's in June 2011 as a Franchise Development 
RepresentotiveConsultonLPriortojoining Dickey's. Mr. Nickersonwasafranchise sales executive with 
The CyNick Group, LLC from 2007 to 2010, and director of sales with Gold's Gym Pelt was employed as 
asalesmanagerwithGfficebroker.com in Dallas.Texas from 2005 to 20072005 to 2011.From 2005 to 
2005.Mr. PeltwasabranchmanagerwithNationstarMortgageinLewisville.Texas, and from 2000 to 
2005. he was an owner and operator ofaGeneral Nutrition Center franchise in Keller.Texas. Mr 
NickersonPelt^worksoutoftheoperations office in Dallas, Texas 

Franchise Broker and Area Developer ^St. Louis, Missouri): Doug Gruder 

Doug Gruder and his company, Restaurant Brokerage, LLC d/b/a Dickey's St Louis, began serving as an 
areadeveloperandafranchisebrokerforDickey'sintheSt. Louis, Missouri area in 2005 Previously, 
from 1003 to 1005,Mr.Gruder served as an area developer for Ouizno's Classic Subs in the SL Louis, 
Missouri area and,since 1003 Mr. Gruder has owned and operated Restaurant Realtŷ  Inc.,aSt. Louis 
based company specializing in the sale of restaurants 

Franchisee and Area Developer (North Carolina^: Greg Woloszczuk 

GregWoloszczukand his company,GMW Carolina, Inc., becameaDickey's franchisee in 2 
began serving as the area developer for North Carolina in 2010. Mr.WoloszcukWoloszczuk has been 
involved in various types of business including retail, restaurants, and high technology for over20 yea 
Since 2004, Mr. WoloszcukWoloszczukhasservedasDirector of Technical Marketing, Directorof 
Employee Development Professional Services and Director of East Coast Operations for NetApp of the 
ResearchTriangle Park, North Carolina. 
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Franchisee and Area Developer (South Carolina): Todd Brents and Bill Friend 

Todd Brents and Bill Friend and their company, Verdana Investments, LLC, became a Dickey's 
franchisee in 2008 and Area Developer in 2010. Mr. Brents has been involved in corporate finance and 
consulting since 2001 among various industries, including restaurants, hospitality and retail. Mr. Friend 
has over 20 years of experience in manufacturing and operations management. From 2003 to 2008, Mr. 
Friends was operations manager at Avail Medical Products in Asheville, North Carolina. 

FranchiseFranchisee and Area Developer (Mississippi and Louisiana): Justin Harris 

Justin Harris, co-owner of CH Development, Inc., became a Dickey's franchisee in August of 2006. Mr. 
Harris served as quality assurance supervisor with Double D, Inc. in Carriere, Mississippi from December 
of 2005 until July of 2006. 

EraftGhiseFranchisee and Area Developer (Utah): John Thomson and Dave Michelson 

in 2010, John Thomson founded Finger Lickin* Brands, LLC, a franchisee of three Dickey's Restaurants in 
Utah. Mr. Thomson also owns StarWash Eco-Smart CarWash with two locations in Salt Lake City and 
South Jordan, Utah. From 1909 until 2002, Mr. Thomason founded and served as Chief Executive Officer 
of CarrierPoint, Inc., a software company serving heavy manufacturers, and in March of 2003, Mr. 
Thomas orchestrated the acquisition of CarrierPoint by TransCore, a transportation technology company, 
where he continued his role reporting to the CEO until 2010. 

Franchise and Area Developer (Utah): Dave Michelson 

Dave Michelson is an owner of Finger Lickin' Brands, LLC, a franchisee of three Dickey's Restaurants in 
Utah since 2010. Prior to joining Finger Lickin' Brands, LLC, Mr. Michelson was the General Manager of 
StarWash Eco-Smart CarWash since 2006 where he was responsible for operations and corporate 
profitability. 

FfanehiseFranchisee and Area Developer (Pennsylvania and Illinois): Richard (Dick) Kile and Robert 
Heintzelman 

Dick Kile joined Dickey's as a co-owner of a Dickey's Restaurant in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania in 2007. 
Mr. Kile is a co-owner of Tri-Emerald Financial Group, a financial services company headquartered in 
Lake Forest, California. 

Franchise and Area Developer (Pennsylvania and Illinois): Megan Heintzelman 

MegamRobert Heintzelman joined Dickey's as a co-owner of a Dickey's Restaurant in Bethlehem, 
Pennsylvania in 2008: MsMr. Heintzelman became an Area Developer for Dickeys in Pennsylvania and 
Illinois in August of 2010. 

Franchise and Area Developer (Illinois): Rick Kile 

Rick Kile joined Dickey's as an Area Developer in Illinois in 2010 working with his father, Dick Kile. Prior 
to joining Dickey's, Mr. Kile was employed in the architecture and land planning field. Beginning in 2005, 
Mr. Kile was employed by Nuszer-Kopatz, a landscape architecture and land planning firm in Denver, 
Colorado, and specialized in community development.—In 2007 he left to pursue a position with HKM 
Architect and Planners, focusing on mixed use and commercial development in the Chicagoland area. 

FfanshiseFranchisee and Area Developer (Wyoming, Idaho and OregonNorthem Utah): B.J. McDouqal 
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B.J. McDougal and his company, McDougal Development LLC joined Dickey's in January of 2011 as an 
area developer in the states of Wyoming, Idaho and GfeooAnorthem Utah. Mr. McDougal also owns and 
operates Idaho Wings, Inc. since 2008 in Utah and Idaho. From July of 2006 until April of 2008, Mr. 
McDougal owned BJV McDougal, Inc. 

Franchise Consultant: Bryan Pelt 

ing Dickey's 
manager with Officebi 

4ft June 2011 as a Franchise Consultant, Mr. Pelt was employed 
is, Texas from 20 5 to 2008, Mr. Pelt was a 

branch manager with Nationstar Mortgage in Lewisville, Texas, and from 2000 to 2005, he was an owner 
and operator of a General Nutrition Center franchise in Keller, Texas. 

Ryan Reevt 
his employment with Dickey's, Mr. Reeves was owner of Majority Entertainment, LLC from 2009 to 2010. 
Mr. Reeves held positions with Blockdot, Inc. as Director of Business Development from 2008 to 2000, 
and IZoom Online, LLC as Vice President of Sales from 2006 to 2008. 

ITEM 3 
LITIGATION 

Except for the actions described below, there is no litigation that must be disclosed in this Disclosure 
Document. 

4T icue Restaurants. Inc., v. Lira. LLC and Luigi Manoione. United States District 
Court Northern Disl 

Dickey's original complaint was filed on February 16, 2010 based upon trademark infringement 
under the Lanham Act, breach of contract through failure by Lira, LLC, a former 

make applicable contributions to the marketing fund; failure to have the subject 
restaurant open for business on designated dates; failure to account for off site 
sales from a trailer which was located routinely at Boise State University; failure 
to disclose all sales records for all operations both on site and off site and failure 
to allow the Dickey's representative to inspect the—restaurant premises and 
review accounting records.—Dickey's original complaint additionally included 
counts based on breach of a covenant not to compete, misappropriation of trade 
secrets, suit on an account, and a count seeking an injunction. 

A Permanent Injunction was obtained on April 22, 2010 enjoining Defendants 
from operating the restaurant located at 2846 E. Overland Rd., Suite 190, 
Meridian, Idaho 83642, and using, in any manner, any confidential methods, 
procedures, techniques, and trade secrets, the trademarks, the proprietary 
marks, and trade secrets of Dickey's, or infringing on the common law rights of 
the Dickey's by using, advertising, promotion, display, distribution, offering for 
sale, and sale of any product copying Dickey's system, trademarks, proprietary 
marks and trade secrets; violating the confidentiality and non compete 
agreements for a period of two (2) years following the termination of the franchise 
agreement on January 10, 2010. 

An Agreed Judgment was entered on September 14, 2010 for a permanent 
injunction on terms sought by Dickoy'c and the recovery of $25,613.11 in 
damages and attorney's fees of $76,904.77 with interest at the rate of 4% per 
annum, 
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21. Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. v. Surfing Gator. L L C , and David E. Detrick. Justice Court 
Precinct 3, Place 3, Dallas County, Texas; Cause No.: JC-10-01010N. 

Dickey's filed its complaint against Surfing Gator, L L C . and David E. Detrick, 
former franchisee, on December 17, 2010 for past-due monthly royalty payments 
and advertising fund payments in the amount of $1,039.64 and to collect the 
unpaid balance on a promissory note in the amount of $6,146.85. Defendant 
Surfing Gator, L L C . was non-suited from the lawsuit. On April 28, 2011, a 
default judgment was entered in favor of Dickey's against David E. Detrick in the 
principal amount of $7,186.49, $2,000.00 in attorney's fees, and post-judgment 
interest at 5%. 

32. Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants. Inc. v. David H. Chen, 416th Judicial Court of Collin County, 
Texas; Cause No. 416-2505-2011 

Dickey's original complaint was filed on June 13, 2011 against David H. Chen, a 
former franchisee, for breach of the franchise agreement relating to the 
Corsicana, Texas restaurant operated by Mr. Chen. On September 27. 2011. a 
judgment was entered in favor of Dickey's is seekingagainst Mr. Chen for 
$227.041.67 in compensatory damages in the amount of $227,041.67. The case 
is pending., plus $3.150 in attorney's fees and post-judgment interest 

43. Dickey's CorsicGna Barbecue Restaurants. Udlnc. v. David H. Chen. 401*-JwdiGialGEM 
Investment Group. L L C , James Slopak and Cheryl L. Porter-Slopak, United States 
District Court. Collin County. Texas: CauseNorthem District of Texas. Dallas Division. 
Civil Action No. 404-3:11-02511CV-2W28Q4-L 

Dickey's-Corsicana, Ltd., an affiliate of Dickey's, filed its original complaint on 
June 13, 2011, seeking compensatory damages in the amount of $105,000.00 
against David H. Chen, a former franchisee of Dickey's, for breach of the lease 
agreement relating to the Corsicana, Texas restaurant. The case is pending. 
Dickey's original complaint and request for an injunction was filed on October 19. 
2011. Dickey's sought liquidated damages as a result of defendants' breach of 
the franchise agreement and further sought an injunction preventing the 
defendants from operating their restaurant under a different name. On April 18. 
2012. the court denied Dickey's motion for injunctive relief. On June 7. 2012. the 
parties settled the litigation pursuant to which the franchise agreement was 
terminated, and defendants paid Dickey's a settlement payment of $5,000, 
agreed to not infringe upon Dickey's trademarks and further agreed to specified 
restrictions in the future operation of their restaurant 

ITEM 4 
BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEMS 
INITIAL FEES 

Single Unit Arrangement If you acquire the right to operate one (1) Restaurant, an initial franchise fee of 
$15,000 (the "Franchise Fee") is payable to Dickey's in a lump sum at the time the Franchise Agreement 
is signed. Dickey's reserves the right to charge a larger initial Franchise Fee for franchises in non-U.S. 
locations to defray the higher costs anticipated with respect to such foreign locations. 
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Oev^oomeotAgreementffvooac^^ 
ooderaOevetopmeot Agreements 
$10,000 deposit tor each sobsegueotRestourentatter the i o i ^ R e s ^ 
TheOeveiopmentFeeispayehieioeiompsomtoOioke^setthetimetheOevetopm 
signed. Io addition to the Oeveiopment Fee, tor eeoh Restaurant to he established under the 
Oevelopment Agreement you will he required to payaFrenohlse Fee of $15,000 payahletoOiokey's in 
lump-sum at the time the related Franohise Agreement is signed However, the $15,000 Franohise Fee 
tor eaoh subsequent Restourantatter the first Restaurant to he established under the Oeveiopment 
Agreement will be reduced to $10,000 if you meet certain development milestones. From the 
Oevelopment Fee, $15,000.00 shall be applied tothe $15,000 Franchise Fee forthe first Restaurantto be 
established under the development Agreement and each $10,000 deposit shall be applied toward the 
reduced $10,000 Franchise Fee for each subsequent Restaurant if you timely satisfy the timetable and 
comply with the other terms of your development Agreement. Otherwise, if you do not timely develop 
and open your Restourent and complywith the otherterms ofthe OevelopmentAgreement, the standard 
Franchise Fee of $15,000 shall apply to each Restaurant you develop, with the balance of the Franchise 
Fee to be immediately paid by you in lump sum. 

Except asnoted above, theinitialFranchiseFee and if applicable, the OevelopmentFee,are each 
uniformly imposed on all franchisees subject to this OisclosureOocument. Oickey's reserves the right 
but is not obligated,toreduce the initial Franchise Fee (and the Oevelopment Fee) for ex is f ingO^ 
franchisees who elect to purchase additional Oickey's franchises. The Franchise Fee and Oevelopment 
Fee are each non-refundable. 

In addition, at least sixty (50) days prior to the opening of your Restaurant you shall paytoOickey's 
$5,000,whichshall be fi^lly expended by Oickey's on your behalftodefray the costs and expenses of 
your Restaurant's grand opening and initial local advertising and promotion. You also are requiredto 
reimburse Oickey'sforthecostand expenseof any siteinspection in excessof thethree(3)site 
inspection visits provided by Oickey's at no cost. Further, you must pay to Oickey'sa$1,500 fee for the 
initial traininooreoram which your Operating PrincioalOwner/Ooerator and two ^ 
are requiredtoattend and included cost of training materials and unitorms, which fee is due at the 
you registerfortraining.These fees, costs and expenses are uniformly imposed on all franchisees subject 
tothisOisclosureOocument, payable in lump sum arid are non-refundable. 

^REMAINOEROFFAOELEFTINTENTIONALLYEtAN^ 
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ITEM 6 
OTHER FEES 

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 
•r' '. ' -

Royalty 5% of Net Sales Payable weekly on the 
Wednesday following the 
calendar week to which such 
payments relate 

See footnotes (1), (2) and (3). 

Marketing Fund 4% of Net Sales Payable weekly on the 
Wednesday following the 
calendar week to which such 
payments relate 

See footnotes (1), (2), (3) and 
(10). 

Insurance Premiums vary depending on 
location 

As agreed or upon notice from 
Dickey's if you have failed to 
pay premiums 

Dickey's has the right to obtain 
insurance and charge you with 
the cost of the premium if you 
fail to purchase same. See 
footnote (4). 

Tralnlna Instruction 
and Materials and-
Uniformc 

$500.00 per person 
fminfmum $1.500.001 

Due at time of registration for 
training 

See footnotes (1)and (5). 

Audit Cost of audit plus the lesser of 
15% interest or maximum rate 

30 days after billing Payable only if audit shows 
understatement of at least 2% 
of Net Sales for any month. 
See footnotes (1), (3). (6) and 
(7). 

Site Evaluation Costs All of Dickey's reasonable costs 
and expenses 

30 days after billing Dickey's provides 3 on-site 
evaluations for your Restaurant 
at no charge to you. See 
footnote {1)and (8). 

Transfer Greater of $10,000 or Dickey's 
reasonable costs and expenses 

5 days prior to confirmation of 
transfer 

Payable to Dickey's when 
franchise Is sold. No charge for 
franchise transferred to a 
corporation which you control. 
See footnote (1)and (6). 

Renewal $10,000 5 days prior to commitment of 
10-year renewal term 

Payable to Dickey's if you elect 
to renew your franchise prior to 
expiration of initial 20-year term. 
See footnote (1)and(6). 

Management 5% of Net Sales Payable monthly Only payable If Dickey's elects 
to operate the Restaurant after 
your death or disability. See 
footnotes (1) and (3). 

Interest 15% or maximum rate, 
whichever Is less 

Immediately See footnotes (1)and(6). 

Legal Actual legal fees and expenses As incurred by Dickey's to 
enforce your obligations 

Incurred only if a court 
determines you have breached 
the Franchise Agreement See 
footnotes (1)and (9). 

Termination Royalty fees for remaining term 
of Franchise Agreement 

Immediately See footnotes (1). (3) and (11). 

Footnotes: 

( 1 ) The fee is uniformly imposed and collected by and payable only to Dickey's and is 
nonrefundable. 

( 2 > You are required to pay to Dickey's a royalty fee equal to five percent (5%) of Net Sales of the 
Restaurant and a contribution to the Marketing Fund equal to four percent (4%) of Net Sales for each 
calendar week period (the "Sales Period"). These payments are electronically drafted upon your account 
by ACH transfer based upon your statement certifying Net Sales for the Sales Period. 
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^ "Ne tSa^ io^odes^^^ 
^ t o r e ^ o g , cannot d ^ 
and beverage redemption of g ^ c a ^ a o d m e ^ a o d i s e ^ ^ b ^ ^ 
p r e d o o ^ T s h ^ s w o e ^ ^ o a p ^ w e t o h o ^ o t o ^ a o d ^ o ^ e r ^ ^ 
renting to the Ro^ureotwhe^or for oash or credit end roge^oss 
provided, that Net Sales excludes seies tax or o t ^ 
the apprepriate taxing authority, employee meals and discounts for meals purchased 
coupons approved hyOickey's. 

^ If you, for any reason, fail to obtain or maintain the insurance required hy each Pranchise 
Agreement entered into between Dickey's and you, as these requirements may he revised from time to 
time by Dickey's in its Operations Manual and such other manuals,written materials and directives as 
Dickey's shall have developed for use in the Restaurant (the 
has the right and authority (but not the obligation), to immediately obtain such insurance and to ^ 
the same to you, which charges, togetherwithareasonable fee for Dickey's expenses in so acting, w i ^ ^ 
payablebyyou immediately uponnotice. Insurance costs are non-refundable. Insurance coverage 
requirements are unifom l̂y imposed on all franchisees subject to ti^is Disclosure Document however, th^ 
costs of this coverage may not be uniform for all franchisees because premiums may vary in accordance 
with the insurer, marketplace conditions, the location of the insured's premises, the insurance 
requirements of applicable law and other factors These costs will not be collected or imposed in whole 
orin part on behalfofanythird party by Dickey's, and are payable to the applicable insureroragent 

^ Dickey'sreservestherighttochargeafeefortrainino instructions, manuals and materials and 
toadditionallvof$50000 oeroerson ($1.50000 minimum). Dickey's reserves the riohttocharoeafee for 
uniforms. 

^ Interest is not charged unless royalty, Marketing Fund contribution, transfer or renewal fee 
payments, or any other sum due to Dickey's is not paid when due or an audit reveals underpayments 
based on Net Sales. In addition, Dickey's reserves the right tb collect out-of-pocket expenses associated 
with any ofthese matters. 

^ Although audit costs are uniformly imposed on all franchisees subject to this Disclosure 
Document, the cost of eachaudit may not be the same for each franchisee. Audit costs will vary 
depending on factore such as the audit tirm utilised, billing arrangements and time spent to complete t̂̂ ^ 
audit 

^ Althoughsite evaluation costs are uniformly imposedonall franchisees subject to this 
Disclosure Document,for each additional site evaluation in excess of the three (5) site evaluations 
provided by Dickey's at no cost, the cost of each such additional site evaluation may not be the same for 
each franchisee. Site evaluation costs will vary depending on factors such as the location of the 
franchisee, travel expenses and duration ofthe site visit 

^ Although legalcostsareuniformly imposedonall franchisees subject to thisDisclosure 
Document, the amount of legal costs may not be the same for each franchisee, ^egal fees will vary 
depending on factora such as the nature of the legal matter, law tirm utilised, billing arrangement 
timespentinconnectionwiththe legal matter. 

^ Dickey'smay require that you participateinanapprovedlocalorregionaladvertising 
cooperative with certain other franchisees If you are required to participate inaDickey's^approved 
advertising cooperative,acertain percentage of your Mart̂ eting Pund contribution will be a p p l i e d ^ 
the local or regional advertising, marketing and promotions targeting the geographic area in which y^^^ 
Restaurant is located Under the terms of Dickey's current standard cooperative advertising agreement, 
feesarenotassessed by the advertising cooperative For additional information, see Item11, Paragraph 
0,titied"Advertising" 
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Unless otherwise indicated in writing from Dickey's, and to the extent permitted by applicable 
law, you must pay to Dickey's in a single lump sum payment, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, 
royalty fees for the remaining term of the Franchise Agreement (or the renewal term, if applicable) 
calculated based upon the average Net Sales of your Restaurant prior to termination. For example, if 
your average monthly Net Sales for the prior twelve (12) months was $83,333.33, and you have three (3) 
years remaining on the term of your Franchise Agreement, your liquidated damages would be 
$150,000.00 ($83,333:33 x five percent (5%) royalty fee x twelve (12) calendar months x three (3) 
remaining years). If vour Restaurant has not vet opened, liquidated damages will be calculated based 
upon the average Net Sales of all Dickey's Restaurants in operation for less than twelve (12) months. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 
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ITEM 7 
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

TYPE OF 
EXPENDITURE 

AMOUNT ' " " METHOD OF 
PAYMENT 

WHEN DUE TO WHOM 
PAYMENT IS TO 

BE MADE 

TYPE OF 
EXPENDITURE 

NON-
TRADmONAL 
CONVERSION 

RESTAURANT 
CONVERSION 

RETAIL SPACE 
CONVERSION 

SHELL 
BUtLDMQ 

FIWSH-OUT 

METHOD OF 
PAYMENT 

WHEN DUE TO WHOM 
PAYMENT IS TO 

BE MADE 

Architectural 
Plans m ' " ' 

SO $2,000 $6,000 $10,000 Lump Sum 30 Days After 
Execution of Lease 

Architectural Firm 

Permits $0 $1,000 $2,000 $2,000 Lump Sum As Incurred State or Municipal 
Agencies 

Leasehdd^^rovements (1,200 $4645020.15 
0 

1124.550 $177,70019 
8.700 

Negotiable Negotiable Landlord 

Furniture, Fixtures, 
Eaubment Catejinj^ Van swwie.ro 

?'$4$.7P3 

$3243355.35 $7467787,801 
- $114,801 

$104,23111 
M W - . 

$145,896 

Lump Sum As Incurred Vendors/ 
Contractors 

SUB-TOTAL 
(Construction) 

144^0419.90 
3.146.903 

$307^37220.3 
*1.$%47J51 

$293^3422 

$326.896 

Franchise Fee 115,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 Lump Sum Execution of 
Franchise 

Agreement 

Dickeys 

D e p o s i t s ^ 1 , 5 1 

$3,000 -
$8,000 

$3,000 -
$6,000 

$3,000-
$6,000 

$3,000 -
$6,000 

Lump Sum As Incurred Landlord/UtHlttes 

Training 1 1 9 ' $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 Lump Sum Upon Training 
Registration 

Dickey's 

ServSafe 
Training 

$555 $555 $555 $555 As Arranged As Arranged ServSafe 
approved 
Instructor 

O p e n ^ n ^ a r . $4,000-
110.000 

$4,000 -
$10,000 

$4,000-
$10,000 

$4,000 -
$10,000 

Lump Sum Vendors' Terms/As 
Incurred 

Vendors/ 
Dickey's 

M S * * - $15,000 -
$34,000 

115,000 -
134,000 

$15,000-
$34,000 

$15,000-
$34,000 

Cash As Needed Various Payees 

Insurance w- ' " ' $5,000-
$8,000 

15,000 -
18,000 

15,000 -
18,000 

$5,000 -
$8,000 

Annually Annually Insurance Agents 

Pre-Restaurant Opening 
$6,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 Cash 60 Days Prior to 

Opening 
Dickey's 

SSSiS $ 0 -
$3,000 

$ 0 -
13,000 

$ 0 -
$3,000 

$ 0 -
$3,000 

As Arranged As Arranged Vendors 

a ^ R n a n c e $ 0 -
120,000 

1 0 -
$20,000 

$ 0 -
$20,000 

$ 0 -
$20,000 

As Arranged As Arranged Lender 

SUB-TOTAL (Other 
Start-Up Expenses) 

149,056-
1103,085 

$49,055-
1103,065 

$49,055-
$103,055 

$49,088-
$103,088 

T O T A L " " WrWSfiMS 
a-

$44T I85614fi1 

958 

1408*38127. 

m-

m 

$3W T3M2fi9 J4 
fig. 

Q& 

8.651 • 
$386,87642 
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Footnotes: 
( 1 ) See Item 5 for initial fee required for multiple unit arrangement under a Development 

Agreement, and for circumstances when the Franchise Fee may be discounted and/or negotiated. 
Neither Dickey's nor any affiliate of Dickey's offers any financing for your Franchise Fee or any portion of 
your initial investment Dickey's will be pleased to refer you to independent lenders who may finance 
some portion of your initial investment, but Dickey's makes no promises that any such financing will be 
available to you, and Dickey's does not guarantee any such loans to you. 

{ 2 ) These amounts are estimated costs for acquiring and adapting Dickey's prototype plans for 
use in connection with your proposed Restaurant. 

P) Dickey's requires that you lease the premises for the Restaurant The amounts provided are 
based on a Restaurant within a shopping center, free-standing structure, or non-traditional setting 
containing the approximate footprint size for a Non-Traditional Conversion, Restaurant Conversion, Retail 
Space Conversion or Shell Building Finish-Out Restaurant, as applicable, described in footnote (19) 
below. Construction costs at the low end of this estimate assume previously finished out Non-Traditional 
or Restaurant Conversions in which a general contractor may not be required. Your costs may be lower if 
the landlord assumes the costs of converting and finishing out the space to Dickey's prototypical 
standards and specifications. Any such contribution by the landlord will likely, however, be factored into a 
higher lease rental rate. These amounts are Dickey's best estimate based upon commercial leasing and 
remodeling/finish-out rates and conditions in the Dallas-Fort Worth, Texas metropolitan area and may 
vary substantially based upon local commercial leasing conditions, cost of utility deposits, and labor rates 
and conditions and the availability and prices of materials. 

( 4 ) These amounts include costs for tables, chairs, track lighting fixtures, cabinets and decor 
items required for the Restaurant, costs for the Aloha Point-of-Sale system and Profit Management 
Console, computer hardware and software, refrigeration and other kitchen equipment, hood and fire and 
ventilation system and stainless steel, a catering van (with Dickey's "wrap") and catering equipment, and 
a barbecue cooking system. These figures can vary substantially. Costs at the low end of this estimate 
assume existing useable furniture, fixtures and equipment with very few additional items to be purchased. 
Costs at the high end of this estimate assume that all furniture, fixtures, and equipment are purchased 
new. These figures are Dickey's best estimate based on current equipment costs and financing conditions 
in the Dallas-Fort Worth, Texas metropolitan area. Costs may vary substantially depending on 
geographic location, creditworthiness and financing arrangements. These amounts also include interior 
and. exterior signage. The cost of signage may vary significantly depending on the location of the 
Restaurant, landlord and municipal requirements, and market conditions. 

< 6 ) Permit fees will vary depending on location and on whether any applicable federal, state or 
municipal laws or regulations require the payment of occupational taxes for restaurants. Permit fees will 
be greater for any construction for the finish-out or renovation of the Restaurant and will likely take more 
time to obtain. Permit fees will also likely be higher if your Restaurant is required to serve alcoholic 
beverages. Any state income or franchise taxes required to be paid for corporate franchisees are not 
included. 

( B ) The costs of insurance may vary substantially depending on the insurer, the location of the 
Restaurant, the value of the equipment and improvements and your claims history. The cost does not 
include any premium for worker's compensation insurance, liquor liability, auto liability, or any non-
subscription alternatives, and the amount of such premium will vary widely based upon state insurance 
markets, number of employees, and other factors. 

m Dickey's estimates that the range given will be sufficient to cover food and paper inventory 
needs for the first week of operations when training and dry-runs of Restaurant services occur prior to the 
opening of the Restaurant to the general public. These amounts may vary according to your sales 
volume during the indicated period and according to local suppliers' terms. 
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^ T h e amount provided wi^be 058^ 
^ r v i o ^ ^ o ^ root and other o o o ^ 
and other operating oxponsos during the i o i t ^ t h r o o ^ m o These amounts may vary 
depending upon yoursaiesvoiume, your managements^ how oioseiyyoufoiiowOiokey'sm 
procedures, iooaieoonomio conditions and wage rates, oo 
circumstances These amounts are estimates, and Oickey's cannot guaranty that you wiii not have 
additional expenses starting the Restaurant 

^ The amounts shown include costs and expenses of a ^ra^dnew store ooenino 
promotion^nitial marketing pacl^ge for the Restaurant,for which you are required in the 
Agreement to pay to Oickey's ^5,000 to be spent by Oickey's, in its discretion, on your 
connection with your ora^Restaurant opening promotion (including, to fund local advert^^ 
matehais and promotional support during the first s i x ^ m o n t h s ofthe operation of your Restaurant^^ 
full accounting of the sums spent by Oickey's in connection with your g^nd^peni^^ 
provided. While Oickey^s will exercise best efforts to spend the full ^ ,000 in c o n n e c t 
opening promotion, any remaining balance after the first six (S) months of the operation ofyour 
Restaurant will be deposited into the Marketing Fund and applied by Oickey's in a c c o ^ 
procedures described belowforthe utilization ofthe proceeds ofthe Marketing Fund. 

^ ^ ^ ^ I ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ t ^ f y ^ r ^ r o t i n o 
Restaurant managers to attend and complete the initial training (but excluding the fees described 
f oo tno te^be low) . These amounts include estimated transportation costs, the cost of lodging and 

^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ ( ^ ^ ^ r y f o r t h e O p o r o t i n ^ P r i n c i p a l O w n e ^ ^ ^ ^ 
expenses. Your costs may be greater depending upon your distance from the Oallas-Fort Worth, Texas 
metropolitan area and the lodging and meals chosen, and youremployee wages 

^ T h e s e amounts only apply if you choose to employ professionals to review this Oisclosure 
Oocument and assist you in your organization and fonnation and are Oickey's best estimate of legal and 
accountingfees associatedwith such costsand expenses Your actual costs may vary subs tan^^ 
depending on difficulties encountered, the individual professionals utilized and o r g a n s 
chosen. 

^ T h e s e amounts only apply ifyou choose to finance certain costs related to opening the 
Restaurant (including, without limitation, any finish-out or renovation costs and eq 
working capital) withathirdparty lender These amounts are not payable to Oickey's and will vary 
depending on the terms ofthe financing you negotiate with your lender and the fees, costs and expenses 
incused by lender and any other party involved in the financing. All amounts are estimates only based 
uponOickey'sexperiencetodate 

^Theseamounts are non refundable. 

^ T h e s e amounts may or may not berefundable depending on the nature of the expenditure 
and yourarrangementwith the payee 

^ T h e amounts provided are based on Restaurants located within shopping centers, free 
standing structures or nontraditional settings as the footprint size f o r a N o n - T r a d ^ ^ 
Restaurant Conversion, Retail Space Conversion or Shell Building Finish-Out 
described in footnoted) below 

^ T h i s amount represents the fee assessed by Oickey's for its initial training p rog^^ 
your OporotinoPrincipalOwner^Cperator and two (^Restaurant managers are required to attend. It also 
includes the cost of training manuals and uniforms The training fee is ^OO for each person that 
registers for training. The training fee does not include anv costs for uniforms (which Oickev's reserves 
the rioht to charoe former anv additional costs or expenses incurred by yourtrainees in conne 
the initial training program i n c l u d e If more 
than three (^trainees attend training, an additional training fee of^OOperpersonw^ 

^ C H I S E O I S C L O S U ^ D O C ^ N T M i ^ S O T A F l ^ ^ ^ ^ 
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^ O i o ^ s h a s ^ e d o o ^ e ^ 
siooe to compi^ these estima^s St^Oioke^soaooot assure you that you wi^expeoeooeth^ 
same level of oosts You should reviewthesetiguresoarefullywithahusioess advisor before m 
deolsloo to purchase the fraoohlse. The loltlal lovestmeotestlmatesrelatetoaslogle Restaurant Io the 
listedoategory You may extrapolatefromtheseestimatesaod from I tem^^^ 
foropening more than one^^RestauraotuodertheOevelopmentAgreemeotarraogement 

^ T ^ ^ l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ t h ^ y o o r O p o r o t ^ P r i o o ^ 
managers will be required to attend a o d o o m p ^ 
beoomeServSafeoertified.Theou^entoostofServSafetraioiogisapproximately^^^ 

^ T h e table provides ao estimate of your initial iovestmeotfora Oiokey's Restaurant 
ooostruotedioaooordaooe with Oiokey'sourrerit prototype plans and s p e c i f i c For purposes ofthe 
table,a"NooTradit iooalCooversioo^meaosaoooversioriofaphorfoodse^ 
oonveoieooe store, food oourt orother^oo-traditiooal" setting and ty^̂  
square feet A^Restauraot Coriversid^ means the oooversiooofapreviously finished o 
restaurant facility oootaioiog approximately 1^00 square feet A^Retail Space Conversion meaos the 
conversion of previously finished out commercial retail space not equipped with ra^ 
containing approximately 1,^0 square feet "Shell Building Finish Cut" means unfinished commercial 
space in a "shell" condition, typically located within a commercial retail center and containing 
approximately 1,800 square feet The table assumes in all cases that you will the lease the location of 
yourRestaurant The information isarranged to providearangeofyourestimated initial i n v e s t 

I T ^ S 
R ^ S T R I C T I O ^ S O N S O ^ R C ^ S O F P R O O ^ C T S A N O S ^ R ^ C ^ S 

You are required to purchase your barbecue sauce (batch and prepackaged), barbecue sauce 
seasonings, salad dressings, pre-made salads and other ingredients for proprietary recipes from 
approved suppliers Currently, neither O ickey noranyofits affiliates are approved suppliers ofany such 
items, nordoes any ofticerofOickey'scurrently own an interest in any such supp l ie rs i t i san t i c^ 
the costs of these food products will be insignificant in relation to ail purcha 
establishing and operating of the Restaurant Oickey^s does not pennit franchisees to contract with any 
alternative suppliers fortheproductsdeschbed in this paragraph, nor does it issue specifications^ 
items. 

Youmust also purchase your foodproducts, paper stocks and other supplies only from approved 
suppliers underanystandardsand specifications prescribed in the Manuals. Oickey'shasdevelopeda 
list of approvedsuppliers for these items. It is anticipated that such purchases may constitutea 
significantpercentageofall purchases made byyou in connection with the operation ofyour Restaurant 
You may request that Oickey's approve alternative supplied. Any charges incurred by 
connection with the testing and inspection of the proposed supplier's offeringmust be paid b y ^ 
franchisee requesting such approval While Oickey's does not maintain written criteria for alternate 
suppliers, upon request, Oicke^swill evaluate alternative suppliers based upon meatand 
^ndf reshnessand drvooodsoua l i t vand based upon the suppliers financial position, business 
reputation, delivery pertorrnance, accessibility, credit rating, and other c r i t e ^ It is anticipated that the 
review process will take thirty (^0) days. Oickey's reserves the right to revoke its approval if the 
alternative supplier fails to continue to meet Oickey'sthen^rrent criteria Cickey's does not permit 
franchiseestocontractwith any alternative suppiiersotherthan those approved in 
and discretion. 

Oickey's requires that you purchase and utilize its current-approved point of sale system and related 
hardware and software (currently, the Aloha Point^f^ale system with the Profit 
and may from time to time additionally require Oickey's franchisees to utilize a d d ^ 
software programs. Oickey's has developedalist of approved suppliers forthe point of sale system and 
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ra^ed software and hardware If so required by Oiokey^yoo are o h ^ 
software the operation of your Restaurant in addition, Oiokey's may subsequently from time to time 
require you to purchase andutiiize any upgrades,additions,enhanoements or repiaoements of the 
hardwara or software that are developed by or on behaif of 0̂  
suohoost asOiokey's or its approved vendorsmakesuohupgrades, additions, enhanoements,and 
repiaoementsavaiiabietofranohisees operating underthe System (See itemS). The amount of the cost 
of these upgrades,enhanoements or repiaoements is anticipated to be insignificant in relation to a 
purchases and leases by you in establishing and operating of the Restaurant Oickey's does not permit 
franchisees to contract with any alternative suppliers of computer hardware and software,^ 
issue specifications forthese items. 

Youmust purchase or lease all of your equipment, includingbarbecuepits, under any specifications 
prescribed in the Manuals. These specifications include standards for temperature, design and 
performance, and are based on Oickey's sole judgment and discretion, based on the experience of the 
company-owned Restaurants and Oickey's experience as a franchisor You may purchase this 
equipmentfrom any supplier approved by Oickey's Oickey's has developedalist of approved equipment 
suppliers In addition, Oickey's will approve alternative suppliers based upon technical specification 
based upon the supplier's financial position, business reputation, delivery performs 
other criteria. Any charges incurred by Oickey's in connection with the testing and inspection of the 
proposed supplier's offering must be paid by the franchisee requesting such approval Suppliers are 
evaluated, approved or disapproved onacase by case basis It is anticipated thatthe review process will 
take thirty^) days. Oickey's reserves the right to revoke its approval if the alternative supplierfails to 
continue to meet Oickey'sthen^un^ent criteria Oickey'sdoes not pennit franchisees to contractwith any 
alternative suppliers otherthan those approved in Oickey's sole ̂ udgmentand discretion. 

Oickey's may also provide you with written guidelines governing the minimum standards and 
specifications ofcertain products, services and equipmentwhich you procure from unrelated third pa^^^ 
These standards and specifications may be set forth in the Manuals. Oickey'smayfrom timetotime 
modify these standards and specifications, as well as the other standards and specifications discu 
this ItemS, by providing youwith written notification 

It is anticipated that the requiredpurchases and leases from approved suppliers will c o n s ^ ^ 
substantial majority of all purchases by you in connection with the operation of the Restaurant Oickey's 
estimates that up to fifty percent (^0^) of your initial investment to establish and open 
shall be applied to required purchases and leases, and that up to seventy-five percent (75^ of your 
expenditures to operate the Restaurantshall be applied to required purchases and leases 

Certain approved suppliers currentlyormayhereafterpayto Oickey's or an affiliate (including 
Marketing Fund) compensation or otherwise credit the account of Oickey's or an affiliate 
orrebatesin amounts based onacertain percentage of the purchases you may make from such 
suppliers. Ouring thefiscalyearending May ^1, ^ I ^ ^ O ^ , Oickey'sand its affiliates realized 
Si g ^ S^S ^ ^ OOO from vendor rebates or credits which 
total revenues of S 1 0 ^ ^ 0 0 ^ 5 1 ^ S Oickey's and its^a^^^ 
costs in discharging its duties and obligations to its franchisees, to partially f u n d ^ 
to generate revenues. 

There are currently no required purchases or leases for which Oickey's or its affiliates are the ap^^^ 
supplier, nor does any officer of Oickey's own an interest in any of the approved suppliers Oickey's 
reserves the right in the future to designate Oickey's, an affiliate orasupplier in 
Oickey'sownsan interest, asanapprovedsupplierforadditional items. 

Oickey's has negotiated volume discount arrangements with certain designated suppliers for its 
franchisees (including pricing and paymenttei^s), based upon volume purchases by the 
suooliers may reouire you to enter into separate contracts with them. 

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT • MINNESOTA Final: 0W)1-3O442fll2 
2044-2012^013 Disclosure Documentdoc Pa9019 



You are obligated to purchase approved products only from approved vendors and suppliers, and any 
failure to do so may put you in default under your Franchise Agreement. There are no purchasing or 
distribution cooperatives, although Dickey's retains the right to establish them. Dickey's does not provide 
any benefits (such as additional franchises) to franchisees based upon a franchisee's purchase of 
particular products or services or use of particular supplies. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT - MINNESOTA Final: 09-01-20442011 
2044-2012:2013 Disclosure Documentdoc Page 20 



ITEM 9 
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS 

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you find 
more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this Disclosure 
Document 

FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS 

Obligation 

i 

Disclosure 
Document Item 

Article In Franchise 
Agreement 

Article In 
Development 
Agreement 

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease Item 11 Articles 3 and 7 Articles 

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases Items 7 and 11 Articles 7 and 8 - Artide 3 

c. Site development and other pre-opening 
requirements 

Item 11 Article 7 Artide3 

d. Initial and ongoing training Item 11 Articles 3, 6, 9 and 15 Artides 5 and 8 

e. Opening Item 11 Articles 3, 5 and 7 Artide 3 

f. Fees Items 5 and 6 Articles 4 and 5 Articles 2, 5, 6, 7, B 
and 9 

g- Compliance with standards and 
pol ides/ope rating manual 

Items 6 and 16 Articles3. Sand 11 None 

h. Trademarks and proprietary information Items 13 and 14 Articles 1,8,10,11 
and 12 

Articles 6, 7 and 8 

i. Restrictions on products/services offered Item 16 Articles Artides 5 and 6 

j . Warranty and customer service 
requirements 

Item 16 Articles Artides 9 and 15 

k. Territorial development and sales quotas Item 12 None Artides 1,3,4 and 6 

1. Ongoing product/service purchases ItemS Articles None 

m. Maintenance, appearance and remodeling 
requirements 

Items 16 and 17 Articles 2, 7, 8,14 
and 17 

Artide 6 

n. Insurance Item? Articles 8 and 14 None 

0. Advertising Items 6, 7 and 11 Articles 3, 5 and 8 Article 1 

P Indemnification Item 11 Articles 9,10,15 and 
20 

Artide 9 

q OwnerfcOwner/ODerator's 
participation/management/staffing 

Item 15 Articles 8 and 9 Artides 5, 8 and 9 

r. Records and reports Item 6 Artides4, 5and13 ArtideS 

s. Inspections and audits Items 6 and 11 Artides 3,7, 8 and 13 None 

L Transfer Item 17 Artida 15 Artides 3, 6, 7, 5 and 9 

u. Renewal Item 17 Artlde2 None. 

v. Post-termination obligations Item 17 Articles 17 and 18 Artides 4, 6 and 9 

w. Non-competition covenants Item 17 Article 18 Attachment B 

X. Dispute resolution Item 17 Article 27 Artide 14 
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ITEM 10 
FINANCING 

Dickey's does not offer direct or indirect financing. Upon request, Dickey's will refer you to independent 
lenders who may finance some portion of your initial investment, but Dickey's makes no promises that 
any such financing will be available to you. Dickey's does not receive any consideration for placing 
financing with any lenders. Additionally, Dickey's does not guarantee your note, lease or any other 
obligation. 

ITEM 11 

FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, Dickey's Is not required to provide you with any assistance. 

A. Pre-Qpenino Obligations 
Before you open your business, Dickey's will: 

1. Designate your protected territory. (Franchise Agreement - Article 1). 

2. Integrate vou into Dickey's "Phases and Stages" program, an integrated 
instructional/communications program to assist vou in the planning, development and opening of 
vour Restaurant and in which vou will be obligated to participate. (Franchise Agreement - Article 
31 

& ^Provide you with its then-current written site selection guidelines and counseling and such 
assistance as Dickey's deems advisable. (Franchise Agreement - Article 3). 

4, ^Provide on-site evaluation (up to three (3) visits without additional charge) and assistance as 
Dickey's may deem necessary on its own initiative or in response to your request for site 
acceptance. (Franchise Agreement - Article 3). 

5, ^-Accept or not accept a site for your Restaurant location. For additional information, see Item 
11, Paragraph 0, titled "Site Selection". (Franchise Agreement - Articles 1 and 7). 

& ^Provide you with a list of approved architects to whom Dickey's has supplied a set of 
prototypical architectural and design plans for a Restaurant. You may engage only an architect 
firm listed on Dickey's then-current list of approved architects, unless Dickey's approves in writing 
another architect which you request to engage. You will be required to independently and at your 
own expense have the design plans and specifications adapted for the finish-out or renovation of 
your Restaurant by the Dickey's-approved architect of your choice. Dickey's does not provide 
any assistance in conforming the premises to local ordinances and building codes or in obtaining 
any required permits. Dickey's must review and approve all plans and specifications for the 
finish-out or renovation of your Restaurant (Franchise Agreement - Articles 3 and 7). 

7, ^Provide you with assistance and advice concerning equipment, signs, fixtures, supplies and 
opening inventory selection and purchasing in connection with the opening of the Restaurant as 
Dickey's deems appropriate. See Item 8 regarding equipment, opening inventory and supplies 
provided by Dickey's or its approved suppliers and any written specifications for those items. 
Dickey's does not provide any of these items directly and will not deliver or install any such items. 
(Franchise Agreement - Article 3). 

& ^-Provide an initial training program for two (2) designated managers and your Operating 
PrinGioalOwner/Ooerator. For additional information, see Item 11, Paragraph E, titled "Training". 
Dickey's will not provide any assistance in hiring any of your employees; however, all employees 
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most meet Oickey then c o r r e ^ ^ 
ap^ca^e training req^remeots (FranchiseAgraemeot-Arti^es^Sand^ 

g. ^ P ^ d e o n i i n e access to the Operations ^enoai^erain so 
of contents for the Operations ^anoal is a ^ 
soh^ects covered and nomber of pages devoted in the Operations ^anoai to each respective 
soh^ect Yoo most sthctiycompiyv^th the Operations i^anoai and other ^anoais in operating the 
business Oickey's has the right to revise the contents of the ^anoais at any time Youmust 
compiywithaiichangestothe manuals when you receive them (FranchiseAgreement Articles 
3and1^ 

^ ^ P r o v i d e you withaiist of approved suppliers and prefers 
and other written directives as Oickey's deems appropriate from time to time. (Franchise 
Agreement Articies^and^ 

^ ^^Aoorove any advertising and promotional items to he used in connection with your 
^ra^Restaurant opening''promotion, a^ 
trained representative of Oickey's to provide on-site training, supervision and assistance around 
the time of your "orandRestaurant opening". For additional information, see ItemU, Paragraph 
E, titled "Training" (FranchiseAgreement Articles5and^ 

B OhligationsAf^erQpening 

Ouringyouroperationofthefranchised business, Oickey's will: 

1 Notify you of any additions, replacements or other changes regarding the menu i tems^or^^^ 
o^roductsand servicesapprovedforsale by Oickey's (FranchiseAgreement-ArticleS^ 

2 Provideonsite training, additional initial training programsforsuccessorand replacement 
managers and Restaurant personnel, and other training programs and seminars as Oickey's 
deems appropriate from time to time. Oickey's will not provide any assistance in hiring any of 
your employees; however, all employees must meet Oickey's then-current standards and criteria 
for the applicable position and any applicable training requirements. For additional information, 
see ItemU,Paragraphs, titled "Training".(FranchiseAgreement-Articles3and^. 

3. Provide, as Oickey's deems appropriate, advice and written materials concerning techniques of 
managing andoperatingtheRestaurant, including new developments andimprovements in 
restaurant equipment, food products, packaging, and preparation (FranchiseAgreement-Article 
^ 

4 Provide you with guidelines on pricing policies You have the righttosellyourfood products and 
merchandiseandofferservicesatany pricesyou maydetermine, solong asyou arein 
compliance with Oickey's general guidelines on pricing policies as set forth in the l^a 
otherwise in writing. Subject to applicable legal constraints, you must participate in and comply 
with all sales and promotional programs promulgated by Oickey's from time to time (Franchise 
Agreement-Articled. 

5. Pravide indemnification against and r e ^ 
in any proceeding arising outofyouruseofany ofthe Proprietary ^arks,ifyourconductandyo^ 
Principals'the conduct of each person owning an eguitv interest in vou with respect to such 
proceeding and use of the Proprietary ^arks is in compliance with the terms of the Franchise 
Agreement. (FranchiseAgreement-ArticlelO^. 

S. Loan to you, upon your request, subject to the approval of Oickey's and at such cost as Oickey's 
makes these materials available to other franchisees operating under the System, copies of any 
then-current training films and instructional videos and audio materials that may be from time to 
timedeveiopedandmadeavailabletofranchiseesbyOickey's.(FranchiseAgreement Article 
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7. O o n d u ^ i o ^ d i s o r e ^ 
o fRe^ora^ for f ranohiseesgeoe^ 
any costs iocorrad by yoo or Rostaorant personnal in attanding soob avantswiii ba yoor 
rasponsibiiity (FranobisaAgraamaot Artioio^ 

8. Provide ongoing oparationaiassistaooa^^ 
totbaavaiiabiiityofappropriata Oioka^s personnel (PranobisaAgraam^ 

g. inspect tbe Restaurant and evaioatetbe Restaurants products and services at soo^ 
Oickey's may deem advisable to maintain tbebigb standards of qoaiity^ 
oftbeSystem. (PrancbiseAgreement Articled 

10 Provide interim management ofthe Restaurant in tbeeventoftbedeatborpermanentdisabili^ 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ 

any otherperson with a director indirect beneficial ownership interest in yoo if Oickey's 
determines, in its sole discretion, that soch person had substantial control o r s o p e ^ 
management ofyour Restaurant Soch interim management is provided by Oickey's at its option 
and Oickey's will chargeamonthly management fee of five percent ( ^ of Net Sales plos pass 
through costs and expenses. In addition, if Oickey's provides one of its employees as manager, 
yoo most pay Oickey's the manager's then-corrent salary for the time of soch interim 
management. (PranchiseAgreement-Articled. 

11 Approve or disapprove of any advertising and promotional materials and programs yoo propose 
Poradditional information, see Item 11, Paragraph 0, titled "Advertising". (Pranchise Agreement 
-Articles 3,5and 8̂ . 

12. Oontinoe to fomishyoowithalist of approved vendors and^or specifications for certain 
andservices or notify voo of anv additions to or chances to the aooroved vendors and^or 
specifications. (Pranchise Agreement-Articles 3, 7andS^. 

1S Provide additional or remedial training Por additional information, see Item 11,Paragraphs, 
titled "Training" Oickey's will not provide any assistance in hiring any employees; however, all 
employees most meet Oickey's then-corrent standards and criteria forthe applicable position and 
any applicable training requirements. (Pranchise Agreement-Articles 3,Sand 0 .̂ 

14 Establish or modifyapromotionalgift card acceptance program for so long as Oickey's elec^ 
do so. (Pranchise Agreement-Article 5 .̂ 

15 Assign to yooafranchise business manager in Oickey's sole discretion to advise yoo as to any 
operational matters regarding yoorRestaorant as Oickey's may reqoire (Pranchise Agreement-
Articles^ 

ISEstablishedEstab^ or maintainacatering hotline in which yoo 
sob^ectto the policies, procedures, terms and conditions prescribed in the l^anoals. Sy 
participating in the catering hotline, yoo will be required to offer certain standard cate^^^ 
required by Oickey's from time to time. Oickey's reserves the right to discontinoe or modify the 
catering hotline atanytime. 

0 Advertising 

1. Y ^ ^ r e q o i r e d to carry ootaora^Restaorantopenino promotion relating to th^ 
yoorRestaorant in accordancewith the ^anoals and asotherwise required by Oickey's, t̂  
from the period beginning priorto the opening ofyoorRestaorantthroogh the firstsix(S^ months 
of operation. Any advertising and promotional campaigns osed by yoo in connection with soch 
ora^dRestaorantopeningpromotionmost be approvedby Oickey's prior to ose. Yoo shall 
comply with the direct and local advertisingand promotional campaign for g r a r ^ R ^ 
openings devised andadapted for yooby Oickey's The ^,000 payable to Oickey^s for 
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"Promotional and Pre-Opening Expenses" described in Item 7 will be spent by Dickey's, in its 
discretion, on your behalf in connection with your grandRestaurant opening promotion. This 
amount will be used by Dickey's, in its discretion, to fund marketing materials, local advertising 
and promotional support related to the grand opening promotion (including during the first six (6) 
months of the operation of your Restaurant). A full opening promotion. Upon vour request, an 
accounting of the sums spent by Dickey's in connection with your gfandRestaurant opening 
promotion will be provided. While Dickey's will exercise best efforts to spend the full $5,000 in 
connection with your wandRestaurant opening promotion, any remaining balance after the first 
six (6) months of the operation of your Restaurant will be deposited into the Marketing Fund and 
applied by Dickey's in accordance with the procedures described below for the utilization of the 
proceeds of the Marketing Fund. Sums from the Marketing Fund will not be applied towards 
Promotional and Pre-Opening Expenses related to your gramdRestaurant opening promotion. 

2. . You will be required to build Dickey's brand awareness in your community through word of mouth, 
community marketing, in-store sampling, the offering of free dinner cards, etc. You are not 
required to expend any minimum amount on local advertising. 

3. All advertising and promotion by you in any medium is required to be conducted in a dignified 
manner and is required to conform to the standards and requirements of Dickey's as set forth in 
the Manuals, the marketing catalog or otherwise. You may advertise in any medium other than 
over the internet, provided that you are required to obtain Dickey's approval of all advertising and 
promotional plans and materials prior to use if such plans and materials are not included in the 
Dickey's marketing catalog or have not been prepared by Dickey's or previously approved by 
Dickey's during the six (6) months prior to their proposed use. You are required to submit such 
unapproved plans and materials to Dickey's. Dickey's has fifteen (15) days from the date of 
receipt of these materials to approve or disapprove such plans and materials. You may not use 
unapproved plans or materials until they have been approved by Dickey's, and are required to 
promptly discontinue use of any advertising or promotional plans or materials, whether or not 
previously approved, upon notice from Dickey's. (Franchise Agreement - Article 5). 

4. Dickey's has established and intends to maintain a URL website, www.dickeys.com, promoting 
the System and identifying the location of franchise and company-owned Restaurants. You are 
required to authorize Dickey's to identify and promote your Restaurant on Dickey's websiter-and 
and further authorize Dickey's to modify its website from time to time and to conduct promotions 
on a system-wide basis, and vou and vour Restaurant will participate in all such promotions. You 
are prohibited from establishing or utilizing vour own URL website to promote your Restaurant 
(Franchise Agreement - Article 5). 

5. Dickey's or an affiliate administers a marketing fund for the purpose of producing marketing 
materials for the System on a System-wide basis (the "Marketing Fund"). Sums from the 
Marketing Fund will not be applied towards Promotional and Pre-Opening Expenses related to 
your erandRestaurant opening (including, without limitation, new store opening kits or related 
local advertising or promotional support). You are required to make a continuous contribution to 
the Marketing Fund in an amount equal to four percent (4%) of the Net Sales of your Restaurant 
As of the date of this Disclosure Document, all new franchisees under the System are required to 
contribute the same percentage of their Net Sales towards the Marketing Fund. However, certain 
franchisees who executed Franchise Agreements prior to the date of this Disclosure Document 
may be required to contribute a lower percentage of their sales towards the Marketing Fund. The 
Marketing Fund is maintained and administered by Dickey's or its designee, in its sole discretion, 
as follows: 

a. The Marketing Fund is intended to maximize general public recognition and acceptance of 
the Proprietary Marks. Dickey's will direct all marketing and advertising programs and will 
have sole discretion to approve or disapprove the creative concepts, materials, and media 
used in such programs and the placement and allocation thereof. DBP will, with respect to 
company-operated Restaurants, contribute to the Marketing Fund. In administering the 
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Marketing Fond, O i o ^ s a n d i t s ^ 
which are equivalent or prop^^ 
franchisee benefits dlrectiyorpro rata from tiiepiacementofadvertising. 

h. The Marketing Fund may he used by Dickers in its sole discretion to satisfy or defray any 
and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing andpreparing marketing campaigns, 
promotions and advertising, including, without limitation, the cost of preparing and conducting 
television, radio, magazine and newspaper advertising campaigns; direct mail and outdoor 
billboard advertising; public relations activities; employing advertising agencies to assist 
therein; costs of Oickey's personnelandotherdepartmentalcostsfor advertising that is 
internally administered or prepared by Oickey's; costs of providing other advertising materials 
to Restaurants; and costs of maintaining national''1-800''customer and^or franchisee service 
telephone numbers if Oickey's elects to establish this service All sums paid by you to the 
Marketing Fund will be maintained inaseparateaccountby Oickey's or its designees and will 
not be used to defray any of Oickey's general operating expenses, except for such 
reasonable administrative costs, salaries and overhead, that Oickey's may incur in activities 
reasonably related to the administration or direction of the Marketing Fund and development 
and implementation of marketing programs for franchisees and the System. Any funds not 
spent in the fiscal year in which they accrue will be carried fon^ard and used in connection 
with advertising activities conducted during the following fiscal year The Marketing Fund will 
not be used by Oickey's for the targeted purpose of promoting franchise sales, but application 
of the Marketing Fund may indirectly benefit franchise sales. The Marketing Fund and its 
eamingswillnotothen^iseinuretothebenefitofOickey'sandwill be operated solely a s a 
conduitforcollectingand expending the advertising fees asoutlined above 

c. Astatement of the operations of the Marketing Fund will be prepared annually by Oickey's 
and will be made available to you upon request, as well as an accounting of Marketing Fund 
expenditures The Marketing Fund is audited on an annual basis as part of Oickey's annual 
audit. Forcaiendarf iscalvear2^andino May 31. 2012. monies in the Marketino Fund were 
expended as follows: 

Category Percentage 

Administrative Z£8% 
Production 2&4520% 
Media §©^470% 
Placement 
Other1 2^72% 

Dollar Amount 
•i 

$2b7;797 
: $561,353 

: /$1,913,6% 

% $62.311-

d. Although the Marketing .Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, Dickey's may terminate 
the Marketing Fund in its discretion. The Marketing Fund will not be terminated, however, 
until all monies in the Marketing Fund have been expended for advertising or promotional 
purposes or returned to contributing franchised or company-operated Restaurants, without 
interest, on the basis of their respective contributions. (Franchise Agreement - Article 5). 

6. You may be required to participate in a local or regional advertising cooperative organized and 
approved by Dickey's, and composed of certain other franchisees located in the geographic area 
in which you are located. Membership in, and the coverage of, each advertising cooperative is 
defined geographically, typically based upon the metropolitan area in which the Restaurant is 
located. Not all areas will have a Dickey's-approved advertising cooperative. If you are required 
to participate in a Dickey's-approved advertising cooperative, a certain percentage of your 
Marketing Fund contribution may be applied towards advertising, marketing and promotions 
targeting the local or regional area comprising your advertising cooperative pursuant to the terms 
of a cooperative advertising agreement The same percentage of each advertising cooperative 

1 The category "Other" consists of public relations fees, food donations, community donations and food reimbursements. 
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members sales revenue designated^ 
agreement with Dickers will be applied 
premotions Advertising cooperatives are not required to prepare financial statements, but an 
accounting ofthe funds utilized by an advertising cooperative will be provided upon request byan 
advertising cooperative member Each advertising cooperative is governed by the terms of an 
advertising cooperative agreement approved by Oickey's Oickey's standard cooperative 
advertising agreement Is available to you for review upon request Advertising, marketing and 
premotionai activities are based onama^ority vote ofthe members ofthe advertising cooperative; 
however, Oickey's must approve all such activities and reserves the right to initiate any 
advertising, marketing and promotional activity on account of the advertising cooperative 
Additionally, Oickey's administera the application of the funds designated for use by adver t i^ 
cooperatives Oickey's may terminate an advertising cooperative pursuant to the terms of each 
particular cooperative advertising agreement (typically by providing thirty (30) days ph^^ 
notice of its intent to terminate the advertising cooperative as of Oecember 31st of the year the 
notice is given) Oickey's reserves the right to require advertising cooperatives to be formed, 
changed, dissolved or merged. Oompany-owned Restaurants are not required to participate in 
advertising cooperatives but may electtodo so (FranchiseAgreement-Article5). 

7 Oickey's has established the National Franchise Advertising and Advisory Council (the''Ooun 
to advise franchisees on advertising policies The Council is composed of franchisees and 
representatives of Oickey's The initial Council members were appointed by Oickey's. Future 
Council members will be elected by franchisees in the Council members region.The Council 
serves in an advisory capacity only and does not have operational or decision-making power 
Oickey's has the power to dissolve or change the Council at any time without notice to you and 
may form other advisory councils. 

0 SiteSelection 

1 Oickey's typically requires that you lease the Restaurant site Oenerally, Oickey's does not own 
the Restaurant sites leased to its franchisees. The site for the Restaurant is selected by you, 
subject to the acceptance of Oickey's The Restaurant may not be relocated without Oickey's 
prior written consent Before you lease the site for the Restaurant, you are required to locatea 
site that satisfies the site selection guidelines provided to you by Oickey's and submit to Oickey's, 
in the fonn specified by Oicke^adeschption of the site, including evidence satisfa^ 
Oickey's demonstrating that the site satisfies Oickey's site selection guidelines,toge^ 
other infoirnation and materials that Oickey's may require, includingaletter of intend 
evidence that confirms your favorable prospects for obtaining the site. You shall submit such 
information forthepreposed site to Oickey's for its acceptance no laterthan ninety (90) days after 
the execution ofthe FranchiseAgreement Oickey'swill have thirty (30) days afterreceipt ofthis 
infom^ation and materials from you to accept or not accept, in its sole discretion, the proposed 
site as the location forthe Restaurant You are required to acquire by lease, atyourexpense, the 
site for yo^Restaurant within one hundred eighty (130) days after execution of the Franchise 
Agreement unless Oickey's decides, in its discretion, to extend such period You must obtain the 
acceptance from Oickey's of any lease for the Restaurant premises prior to execution by you If 
you fail to acquireasite forthe Restaurantwithin the required period, Oickey's may, among o ^ 
things, terminate the Franchise Agreement upon notice to you and retain the Franchise Fee and 
any other fees paid you under the Franchise Agreement (FranchiseAgreement-Articles1,3 
and 7) 

2 Oickey's will provide to you such site selection guidelines and such site selection counseling 
assistance as Oickey's deems advisable Oickey's guidelines for site selectionrequire an 
evaluation of the demographics of the market area for the location (including the population and 
income level of residents in the market area), size and other physical attributes of the l o ^ 
proximity to residential neighborhoods and proximity to shopping centera, entertainment f a c ^ 
other businesses that attract consumers and generate traffic and other factors deemed relevant 
by Oickey's (FranchiseAgreement-Articles1,3and 7). 
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3. O i o k ^ w ^ a ^ p r a ^ e o n ^ 
o e c e s ^ o r i o r e ^ ^ t o ^ ^ 
^ ^ o o ^ a n y p r e ^ e d ^ p r i o ^ o ^ r e c e ^ o f ^ ^ ^ 
Oioke^s as described above. O i c k e ^ s w ^ p r o v i d e u p t o ^ r e e ^ ^ 
Restaurant (and for each Restaurant onderaOevelopme^Agreeme^atnoadd^ 
you. Tberaafter, if additional on-site evaluations ara deemed necessary by Oicke^^ 
initiative oratyourraasonable request, you mustpayaraasonablefeeforeacb additional on-site 
evaluation and must reimburse Oickey's for all reasonable expenses in connection with such 
onsiteevaluation, includin^witbout limitation, trie cost of travel ̂  
(FrancbiseAgreement Art icles1,3and^ 

4 Oickey's estimates that trie time from execution of the Franchise Agreement to the 
commencement of operations of the Restaurant will be from six^months to one^)yearThe 
actualtimerequired may vary depending upon the time necessary to locate and then approvea 
site, financing, the permits and licenses necessary forthe finish-out or renovation ofthe 
Restaurant and the operation of the Restaurant, the finish-out or renovation of the Restaurant as 
itmaybeaffectedbyweatherconditions, shortages, delivery schedulesandothersimilarf^^ 
preparation of the interior and exterior of the Restaurant (including decorating, purchasing and 
installing fixtures,eguipment and signs,andlandscaping) and complete preparation for the 
operation of the Restaurant (including purchasing inventory and supplies) You are obligated to 
open the Restaurant and commence business within one (1) year following the execution of the 
Franchise Agreement, or in accordance with the development schedule set forth in the 
OevelopmentAgreement,asapplicable (FranchiseAgreement-Articles1,3and7). 

E. Trainino 

1 Not later than sixty (SO) days prior to the opening date of the Restaurant,your Operating 
^rincipalOwne^O^era^and^ 
satisfaction, Oickey's initial training program. Each participant mustsatisfy Oickey's then^urrent 
requirements for admission to the initial training program. Tobeadmitted into the initial training 
program, Oickey'scurrently requiresthateach potentialtrainee has (a) attended and s u c c e s s ^ 
completed at its own cost such ServSafe trainino classes and obtained ^ ^ t h e ServSafe Food 
ManaoerOertificates and such other ServSafe eer i l y 
completedaphone interview witharepresentative of Oickey's,and(c) delivered to O i c k e y ' s ^ 
completed copies of Oickey's current application forms and payment of the training fees 
initial trainingprogram Oickey's intends to offer initial trainingmonthly. Training will be 
conducted at Oickey'scorporatetraining center and^oratacompany-operated Restaurant or 
another location designated by Oickey's. Currently, ail such locationsare in the North Te^ 
Oickey's will determine, in its sole discretion, whether youremployees have satisfactorily 
completed initial training Oickey's anticipates that completion of the initial training program will 
require approximatelyu^three(3)weeks Ifany ofyourdesignated participants f a ^ 
admissionrequirements for theinitial training program, if the initial training programisnot 
satisfactorily completed byyourtraineesa^ 
in its reasonable business judgment based upon the performance of your trainees, determines 
that the initial training pregram cannot be satisfactorily completed by such person(s),yo^ 
immediatelydesignateareplacementtrainee(s), as applicable, to apply for and complete such 
training within thirty (30) days from the date of any such occurrence (but in any event n o t ^ 
than sixty (SO) dayspriortotheopening date ofthe Restaurant).(FranchiseAgreement-Articles 
3,Sandg) 

2. if you fail to designate replacement trainee(s) who have satisfied the admission required 
the initial training pregram is notsatisfactorily completed by any replacementtrainee (orthe in^^^ 
trainee, ifnoreplacementisdesignated)bythedeadlines 
that the training pregram cannot be satisfactorily completed by such person(s), Oickey's 
its solediscretion, terminate the Franchise Agreement upon noticetoyou and retain the 
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Fraoohise Fee andany other fees paid hyyooooder the Franohise Agreement (Franohise 
Agreement-Artioies^Sandg^ 

3. Oiokey's wiii provide instruotors^ and training materiais and uniforms forthe initial training 
program ataoostto^you^of $500 per person. The training materials ourrentiy consist of the 
Manuals (including the Operations Manual, reoipe hook, training manual and mad^etingoa^ 
checklists, demonstrations and on the ioh-trainino. Oickey's reserves the right to charge 
additional amounts for uniforms. In addition, vou are responsihie for all expenses incurred hv vour 
trainees in connection with any initial training program including, without l imi^ 
lodging, meals, and wages. (FranchiseAgreement-Articles3,8andg). 

4. TheOoarating PrincioaiOwner^Ooeratorand youremployees may attend such additional or 
remedial training programs and seminars as Oickey's may offer from time to time. All certified 
managers shall he required to complete twelve (12) credit hours of continuing education courses 
per year atarate of one (1)credit hour per month. Shouldacertified manager not fulfill the one 
(1)credit hour per month requirement, that managerwill lose their certified status and he required 
to complete Oickey's field certification program in order to he recertified. At Oickey's discretion, 
such additional training (including on-site remedial training),will he mandatory^ 
andother Restaurant personnel as requiredhy Oickey's. For all such training, Oickey'swill 
provide the instructors and training materials; however, Oickey's reserves the right to imposea 
reasonable fee for such training, including costs of travel, lodging, meals, and wages f o r ^ 
representatives. You are responsible for any and all expenses incurred by you or yourtrainees in 
connection with such additional training including, without limitation, the costs o 
meals, and wages. (Franchise Agreement-Articies3,8and 9). 

5 In connection with the opening of the Restaurant, Oickey's will provide you with at l ^ 
trairiedrepresentative of Oickey's to provide on-site training, supervision and a s s i s t 
respect to such matters and for such period of time determined by Oickey's in its sole discretion. 
The on-site training, supervision and assistance for consecutive days and may be provided either 
before and^or after the opening of the Restaurant Except as otherwise provided in this item 11, 
you will be responsible for training ail Restaurant personnel in accordance with the specif ic 
and standards regarding such training described in the Manualsor otherwise in writing by 
Oickey's. (FranchiseAgreement-Article9). 

6. Oickey's training department is headed by Paulo Suorez, who typically conducts the init^ 
program is run bvOhris kellev. MsMr.Suarez's^ellev's experience is detailed in Item 2. 

7. Below isasummary of the subject matters,hours of classroom trainings hours of on-the-iob 
training and the location for Oickey's initial training program. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK! 
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T - TRAINING PROGRAM . % 

Subject Hours of 
Classroom 
. Training 

Hours of On-Tho-Job 
Training 

Location 

Restaurant Operation Up toB Up to 66 Dickey's corporate training center, or at another 
Restaurant or location designated by Dickey's 

Food Preparation and 
Service 

Up to 8 Up to 40 Dickey's corporate training center, or at another 
Restaurant or location designated by Dickey's 

Station Training 0 Up to 4 Dickey's corporate training center, or at another 
Restaurant or location designated by Dickey's 

Purchasing Up to 8 Up to 8 Dickey's corporate training center, or at another 
Restaurant or location designated by Dickey's 

Accounting and Controls Up to 8 Up to 4 Dickey's corporate training center, or at another 
Restaurant or location designated by Dickey's 

Marketing and Advertising Up to 18 Up to 8 Dickey's corporate training center, or at another 
Restaurant or location designated by Dickey's 

TOTAL Up to 50 Up to 130 

F. Point of Sale System 

1. Before commencement of the operation of the franchised Restaurant, you must purchase the 
required computer hardware, software, internet connections and service, required dedicated 
telephone and power lines and other related accessories, peripherals, consoles and equipment 
required to operate Dickey's then-current mandatory point of sale system. Currently, as of the 
date of this Disclosure Document, Dickey's requires that its franchisees use the Aloha Point-of-
Sale system (including such add-on consoles as Dickey's may require). The Aloha Point-of-Sale 
system is available from Radiant Systems, Inc., the only supplier currently approved by Dickey's. 
The current cost of this point of sale system is approximately $10,000 to $15,000. Dickey's also 
currently requires that you implement the and use the Profit Management Console reporting 
system, a product of Transactional Web, Inc., the only supplier currently approved by Dickey's. 
This reporting system currently costs $150 per month. You must maintain the point of sale 
system and related consoles and keep them in good repair. Dickey's may also from time to time 
require you to purchase and utilize any additions, upgrades, enhancements and replacements of 
the software and hardware (including point of sale systems) developed by or on behalf of 
Dickey's, or otherwise required by Dickey's, at such cost as Dickey's or its approved vendors 
make such upgrades, enhancements and replacements available to franchisees operating under 
the System. The cost of maintaining, updating, upgrading or replacing your point of sale system 
cannot be estimated at this time because it will depend on your repair history, local costs of 
computer maintenance and service in your area and technological advances which cannot predict 
at this time. (Franchise Agreement - Article 8). 

2. The point of sale system will store information concerning your sales, inventory, accounting and 
other operations. You may not further modify or manipulate (except for pricing) the database for 
the computer software systems without Dickey's prior consent Dickey's may retrieve from your 
point of sale system all information we consider necessary, desirable or appropriate. There is no 
contractual limitation on Dickey's right to access information from your point of sale system. You 
will have independent access to the information that will be generated or stored in the point of 
sale and reporting system, but you may not manipulate the data that is generated. (Franchise 
Agreement - Article 8) 
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O O ^ o p m ^ A q r e e m ^ 

^youen^iotoaOev^opme^Agreemeotw^Oiokey^O^ 
in this Item l l fo reach of the Restaurant you open and operas In addition,so iong as you are in 
oomplianoe with your obligations under the O e v e ^ ^ 
anyotherpartytoopenandoperateaRestaurantwithinyourdesignatedTerhtory. 

I T ^ M ^ 
TERRITORY 

The Franohise Agreement grants to you the hghttooperateaRestaurantatasingle location selected 
you and accepted hy Oickey's You will offer the approved products and services of the System only 
through your Restaurant You do not have the right to use alternative channels of distribution (e.g., 
catalog sales, internet sales,etc.) in connection with offering the products and services o f ^ 
unless otherwise approved by Oickey's. 

The Restaurantwill be located withinadesign 
theFranchiseAgreement 

Once the Restaurant location is established and accepted, the Assigned Area shall automatically and 
without reguirement of further action be modified to encompass and be limited to that geographi^^ 
(the^xclusive Area^ withinone^) mile of theRestaurant site. You arereguiredtooperatethe 
Restaurant only at this accepted location and may not ralocate the Restaurant without Oickey's prior 
written consent based upon its sole judgment and discretion. You may not establish or operate another 
Restaurant except pursuant toaseparate Franchise Agreement 

except as provided below, during the term ofthe Franchise Agreement and subject to your full 
compliance with the Franchise Agreement, neither Oickey^ 
Restaurant or license any other person or entity to establish or operateaRestaurant within the Exclusive 
Area 

However. Oickey's. OSP.R^I. and anv Oickey's franchisee may, at any time, advertise and promote the 
System and fulfill customer orders (including, but not limited to, by providing catering and delivery 
services) in the Exclusive Area. Oickey's may also offer and sell (and may authorize others to offer and 
sell) products and services which may be similar to those offered by the Restaurants, under the 
Proprietary Marks in the Exclusive Area, if offered and so 
and catalog sales, internet sales, grocery store sales, and other channels of distribution), and Oickey's 
may offer and sell (and may authorize others to offer and sell) products and services in the Exclusive 
Area which may be similar to those offered by the Restaurants, under names and marks other than the 
Proprietary Marks. Neither Oickey's norany of itsaffiliatescurrently plan tooperate or franchise 
businesses underadifferentmarkwhichwiil offer goods or services similar to those offered under the 
System. Oickey's is not required to compensate you in any way for offering or selling in your Exclusive 
Area any ofthe products or services described in this paragraph. 

Ouring the tem^ of the Franchise Agreement, the territorial rights granted to you are not dependent upon 
theachievementofacertainsalesvolume, market penetration or other contingency, nor are there any 
circumstances which permit Oickey's to modify your territorial rights prior to the exp i ra^ 
of the Franchise Agreement. Except as provided in any OevelopmentAgreement, you will not be granted 
any options, rights offirst refusal or similar rights to acquire additional franchises. 

UnderaOevelopment Agreement, you are assignedageographicaraa (the''Territory'') within which 
arerequired to develop two(2)ormoreRestaurantsinaccordance with a prescribeddevelopment 
schedule. The size of theTerritory may range fromaportionofacity or an unincorporated area toa 
single ormulti^unty or single state area and will be described in Articlelofthe OevelopmentAgreement 
typically byamap,by boundary streets or highways,city limit or county line boundaries,by an area 
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eooompassedw^ioaradiosofasp^ 
eocompassaspeoified population 
Oiokoy^maypresoobo 

Subjoot to your full oompllanoa with tho Oovolopmoot Agroomoot and tha remaining part ofthis 
oaraoraoh. neither Oloka^s nor nor R O l ^ 
thanyou,toestahllsh,aRestaurantlntheTerntoryduhngthetermoftheOevel^^ 
Olokey's, any Olokey'a franchisee, and any other authorized person or enti^ may, at any t ^ 
and promote the System, or fulfill customer orders (Including, hut not limited to provide 
delivery services) in the Territory. Oickey's may also offer and sell (and may authorize others to offer and 
sell) products and services which may he similar to those offered hy the Restaurants, under the 
Proprietary Marks In the Territory or elsewhere, If offered and sold otherthanthroughaResta^^^ 
product and catalog sales, Internet sales, grocery stores, and other channels of distribution) and 0 ^ ^ 
may offer and sell (and may authorize others to offer and sell) In the Territory or elsewhere, products and 
services which may he similar to those offered hy the Restaurants, under names and marks other than 
the Proprietary Marks. Neither Oickey's nor any of Its affiliates currently plan to operate or franchisee 
business underadifferent mark which will offer goods or services similar to those offered under th^ 
System. Oickey's is not required to compensate you in anywayforoffering or selling In yourTerritory any 
ofthe products or services described In this paragraph 

The territorialrights granted to you under theOevelopment Agreement are not dependent upon the 
achlevementofacertainsalesvolume,marketpenetration or other contingency except as stated In the 
following paragraph. Also, except as stated In the following paragraph, there are no circumstances under 
which the Territory may be altered priorto the expiration ortermlnation ofthe OevelopmentAgreement 

if you fail to timely open the minimum number of Restaurants in compliance with the development 
schedule as regulredln the OevelopmentAgreement or otherwise commltamaterial event of default 
under the OevelopmentAgreement as described In item 17,Oickey's may, In addition to other remedies, 
terminate, modify or reduce the Territory granted to you. 

I T ^ ^ 
TRADEMARKS 

The Pranchise Agreement grants you the right to use certain trademarks, trade names, serviceman 
symbols, emblems, logos and indicia of origin designated by or licensed to Oickey's, including the Marî  
(collectively, the^Proprietary Marks"), only in themanner authorized by Oickey's andonly for the 
operation of theRestaurant at the location specifiedin the Pranchise Agreement.TheOevelopment 
Agreementdoesnotgrantyou any rightto use orany interest in the Proprietary Marks. 

The Proprietary Mark displayed on the cover page of this Disclosure Oocument, the principal commercial 
symbol which Oickey's will license to you, and the other Proprietary Mark listed l^low, are each o ^ 
OSP and registered on the U.S. PatentandTrademarkOffice principal registerasfoll^ 

Oescriotion Federal Registration No. OateofReoistration 

Oickey's Barbecue Pitsince 3,205,121 Februarys, 2007 
1941 

Oickey's 3,237,281 May1,2007 

ATexastraditionsince1^1 1,030,072 ^une11,100S 
Oickey's Barbecue Pit 
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^ a ^ d a v ^ and renewal 
Marks have baan^ad. No a p p l i ^ ^ 
stata. 

Oioka^saoqoirad from OBP ̂ aright to osa and lioansathaosa of t h a P r o ^ 
p^oanttoaparpatoallioansaagraamantbatwaaoOioka^sandOS^aoopyofwh^ 
ExhibitO Undarthalioansaagraaman^Oioka^sisspa^ 
Propriatary Marks to yooprovidad that Oioka^sosaofthaPrepriataryMa^ 
and operation of Restaurants hy Oioke^s or its iioensees, the promotion, marketing and seiiing of 
franchises hyOiokey's or its sohiioensees, and any other use necessary or incident thereto and (ii) any 
other use approved in writing hyOSP. Any other assignment or transfer of Oickey's rights under the 
license agreement requires the priorwritten consent of The license agreement cannot he modified 
without the written consent of Oickey's and Additionally,the license agreement is perpetual in 
duration, hut it may he terminated if either Oickey's or OSP are in default under the license agreement 
and such default is not cured within thirty (30) days of written notice of the same Apartyis in default 
under the license agreement if (i) it breaches any covenant or agreement set forth in the agreement, (ii)i^ 
files or has filed against itahankruptcy proceeding,(iii)afinalnon-appealahle judgment in excesses 
$10,000 is taken against it without being satisfied within thirty (30) days, (iv)i^ 
debts as they become due, or (v) it is legally dissolved Ifthe licenseagreementistenninated(i) Oickey's 
will no longer be entitled to utilize or license to newfranchisees the rightto use the Propheta^ 
08P will be entitled to use and license the Proprietary Marks, (iii) Oickey's must assign to OSP, upon 
08P'sreguest,Oickey'sright,title and interest in and to all Pranchise Agreements and (iv) any then-
existing franchisee to whom the right to utilize the Proprietary Marks has been licensed may contin^^ 
utilize the Proprietary Marks until the expiration of the term of its Pranchise Agreement and any re^^ 
oroption periods available orafforded to such franchisee at law orby agreement 

Except for the license agreement between Oickey's and OSP described above, there are no agreements 
cun^ently in effectwhich significantly limit Oickey's rights to use or license the Proprietary Mark^ 

You are required to immediately notify Oickey's of any infringement or challenge to your use of the 
Proprietary Marks or claim by any person to any rights in any of the Proprietary Marks. You and your 
Principals are not permitted to communicate with any person other than Oickey's and Oickey's counse 
connection with any such infringement, challenge, or claim. Oickey's has sole discretion to take such 
action as it deems appropriate and the right to exclusively control any litigation or Patent andTradema 
Office or other administrative proceeding arising out of any infringement, challenge or claim or o 
relating to any of the Proprietary Marks. You are required to execute any and all instruments and 
documents, render such assistance and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of Oickey's 
counsel, be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain Oickey's interests in any such litigation or 
Patent and Trademark Office or other administrative or other agency proceeding or to othen^seprote^ 
and maintain Oickey's interestin the Proprietary Marks 

Oickey's will indemnify you against and reimburse you damages for which you are held liable in any 
proceeding arising out ofyour use of any ofthe Proprietary Marks, provided thatyour conduct a ^ 
your Principals with respect to such proceeding and use of the Proprietary Marks is in compliant 
the terms ofthe PranchiseAgreement 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Item 13, totheextent required underapplicable 
Minnesota law, Oickey's will protectyourrightto use th^ 
marks, trade names, logo types or other commercial symbols licensed to you by Oickey's or indemnify 
you for any loss, cost or expense arising out of any claim,suit or demand regarding the use ofthe same. 

Except as provided above, Oickey's is not obligated by the Pranchise Agreement to protect any rights 
granted to you to use the Proprietary Marks or to protect you against claims of infringement or unfair 
competition with respectto them. However, although Oickey's is not contractually obligated to protectthe 
Proprietary Marks oryour right to use them, asamatter of corporate policy, 08P and Oickey's intend to 
defend the Proprietary Marks vigorously. 
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Dickers may require yoo to d i s c o s 
(^or more additional or substitute 
and indicia of originifOiokay's, in its sola discretion,datam^^ 
banaticiai to tbaSystam.Oickay'swiiireimburaa you tor your direct out-of-pockataxp^^ 
such change up toamaximum amount of $2,000. 

You are required to comply with Oickey's instructions in filing and maintaining 
fictitious name registrations and you must execute any documents deemed necessary hy Oickey's or its 
counsel to obtain protection for the Proprietary Marks or to maintain their continued validity and 
enforceability. In addition, youmay not directly or indirectly contest the validity of OSP's or Oickey's 
ownership in the Proprietary Marks. 

Your rights to the Preprietary Marks grentedin the Pranchise Agreement are nonexclusive to you 
Oickey'sand 08P,therefore, haveandretain, subjectonlytoyourrightsintheTerritoryandinthe 
Assigned Area (See Item 12), certain rights with respect to the Proprietary Marks, incl̂ ^^ 
to the following rightŝ  

1. To use and to grant other licenses for the use of the Proprietary Marks in addition to those 
licenses already granted to existing franchisees; 

2. Todevelop and establish other systems using the Proprietary Marks or other names or marks 
and to use and to grent licenses or franchises thereto without providing any rights therein to you; 
and 

S. To engage,directiy or indirectly, throughits employees, representatives, licensees,assigns, 
agents and others, at wholesale, retail or otherwise, in (i) the production, distribution, license 
sale of products and services and (ii) the use in connection with such production, distribution, 
license and sale,ofthe Proprietary Marks and any and all trademarks,trade names, service 
marks, logos, insignia, slogans, emblems, symbols, designs, and other identifying charecteri 
as may be developed or used from time to time by Oickey's. 

There are no currently effective material determinations of the U.S.PatentandTrademark Office, the 
TrademarkTrial and Appeal Board orany state of trademarkadministratororcourt regarding the 
Proprietary Marks, nor arethereany pending infringement, oppositionor cancellation proceedings 
regarding the Proprietary Marks Further, there is no pending material federal or state court litigation 
regarding Oickey's use or ownership rights to the Proprietary Marks. There are no superior prior rights or 
infringing uses regarding the Proprietary Marks known to Oickey's which could materially affect your use 
ofthe Proprietary Marks. 

I T ^ ^ 
P A T ^ T ^ O O P Y ^ H T ^ A N O P R O P R I ^ T A R Y I N P O ^ A T I O N 

There are no patents or copyrights material to the franchise and Oickey's does not have any pending 
patent applications. There have not been any material determinations of the U.S. Patent Office, the U.S. 
Oopyright Office oracourt regarding any patent orcopyrightmaterial to the franchise 

Oickey'sclaimsacommon law copyright, trede secret pretection,and preprietary interests in the recipes 
development and operating procedures and know-how contained in the Manuals or otherwise used in 
connection with the development and operation of the Restaurants You and each of your 
Princioalsoeraonownino an acuity interest in vou are orehibited. during the term of vour Agreement 
thereafter, from communicating, divulging or using for the benefit of any other person, persons, 
partnership, association, corporation or other entity any confidential information, knowledge o 
concerning the methods of development and operation of the Restaurants which may be communicated 
to vou or anv of vour Princioals. your Owner^Ooerator or anv other person affiliated with you, or ofwhich 
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they may be apprised by virtue of your d e ^ ^ 
Agreement You and aoob of your Principal are pem^ i ^ 
vour PrinoioaiaOwner^oerafor and manaoer^ of vour Restaurant and auob other o e ^ 
have aooess to it in order to operate the Restaurant Neither vou nor vour PrinoioaisOwner^oerator or 
anv other person affiliated with vou are permitted at anv time, without Oiokev's prior written 
oopy, duplicate, reoord or othen^ise reproduce suoh materials or infom^afion, in whole or in p̂ ^̂  
otherwise make the same available to any unauthorized person. Any and all information, knowledge, 
know-how and techniques used in or related to the S y s t e m s 
PrincipalsOwner^perator orany other person affiliated with vou including but not limited to, the 
Manuals, recipes, plans and specifications, marketing informafion and strategies and site evaluafi^^ 
selection guidelines and techniques, are deemed confidential for purposes ofthe Agreements. 

At Dickers request, you must require any peraon who has an ownerahip interest in you orwho otherwise 
has or will have access to any confidential information of Oickey's, to execute and deliver to O i c ^ 
agreement by which the signatory covenants and agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the 
received by such person or entity in connection with their relationship with Oickey's. 

If vou or your PrincipalsOwner^Qperator develop any new conceptprocess.or improvement in the 
operation or promotion of a Restaurant, you are required to promptly notify Oickey's prior to 
implementation and provide Oickey's with all necessary related information, without compensation. 
Oickey's reserves the right to approve any such new concept, process or improvement prior to 
implementation.You and your PrincipalsOwner^Operatoracknowledoe that anv such concept, process.^ 
improvementwillbecomethepropertyofOickey's and Oickey's may use or disclose such infor^^ 
otherfranchiseesordevelopersas it determines to be appropriate 

Except as disclosed in this Item 14, there are no present agreements which limit the use of any patent, 
patent application or copyright material to the franchise. Oickey's is not obligated to protect any patent or 
copyright, nor does Oickey's have any contractual obligation to defend its franchisees against any c ^ 
arisingfromafranchisee'suseofpatented orcopyrighted materials 

Oickey's is notawara of any claims of any patent or copyright infringement which could materially affect 
you. 

I ^M^S 
O8^OATIONTOPARTI0IPAT6 

I N T ^ A O T U A ^ 
OPERATION O F T ^ F R A N O ^ S E ^ O S I N E S S 

1. You must designate and retain an individual to sei^e as the ^ 
underthe Franchise Agreement You must designate your OperatinoPrincipaiOwner^Qperator at 
the time ofexecution of the Franchise Agreement The Operating PrincipalOwnerBOperator must 
meetthefollowing qualifications; 

(a) a^ If youarean individual, you shall perform allobligations of theOperating 
PrincipalOwner^Qperator. 

^ ^ If you are a corporation, limited liability company, limited 
partnership,or any other entity,the Operating PrincipalOwner^Qperator shall.at all times 
during which he or she serves asOperatingPrincipalOwner^Qperator.^directly or indirectly 
hold an ownership interest in vou.^workona''ful l time''basis in the Restaurant, a n d ^ 
be fully authorized,directed and entitled to manage and control the day-to-day business 
affairs ofyou and to take any action which you are required to take oromitto take underthe 
agreement Agreement all in such Operating Principal'sOwner^Qperator's sole discretion, 
and withoutthe approval or^oinderofany person or entity. 
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2. Typically, Dickey's only permits one person to serve as the Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator 
under a Franchise Agreement. The Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator is required to execute 
the Franchise Agreement and is bound by all of the obligations of the Franchise Agreement You 
may not change your Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator without Dickey's prior written consent 
The Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator is required to successfully complete Dickey's initial 
training program. 

3. Dickey's requires that the Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator participate in the on-premises 
supervision of your Restaurant 

4. In addition to the Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. you must appoint at least two (2) managers 
per Restaurant to assist in the day-to-day management and supervision of each such Restaurant 
Each manager must be appointed in a timely manner in order to satisfy each manager's initial 
training obligation under the Franchise Agreement, must be approved in writing by Dickey's, and 
must devote full time and best efforts to the daily management and supervision of the Restaurant. 
Managers are not required to have any equity interest in the franchise. 

5. The Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator and each manager must meet any other of Dickey's 
standards and criteria for such positions, as set forth in the Manual or otherwise in writing by 
Dickey's. 

6. The Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator and any manager must satisfy the training requirements 
set forth in the Franchise Agreement If, during the term of the Franchise Agreement, the 
Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator or any manager is not able to continue to serve in such 
capacity or no longer qualifies to act as such in accordance with the Franchise Agreement, you 
must promptly notify Dickey's and designate a replacement within thirty (30) days after the 
Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator or manager ceases to serve. Any replacement will be subject 
to the same qualifications listed above. You must provide for interim management of the 
Restaurant until a replacement is designated, and this interim management must be conducted in 
accordance with the Franchise Agreement 

7. You are required to retain such additional managers, chefs, and other persons as Dickey's deems 
necessary for the operation and management of the Restaurant All such personnel must satisfy 
Dickey's educational and business criteria as provided to you in the Manuals or otherwise and 
must be individuals acceptable to Dickey's. These individuals must also satisfy the applicable 
training requirements set forth in the Franchise Agreement and the Manuals. 

8. You may. not employ any individual who is at the time or was at any time during the prior six (6) 
months employed in a managerial or administrative position by Dickey's or any of its subsidiaries 
or affiliates without the prior written consent of Dickey's. As a condition to such consent, you may 
be required to compensate the former employer for the reasonable costs and expenses incurred 
by the employer in connection with the training of any replacement employee. 

9. Pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, at Dickey's request, you shall require and obtain from your 
Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. and other person or entity which is one of your principals or 
anv personaffiliated with vou who has received or will receive confidential information or training 
from Dickey's, the execution of covenants not to compete and to maintain the confidentiality of 
information they receive in connection with their relationship with you. These covenants must be 
similar to those set forth in Article 18 of the Franchise Agreement 

10. Each of your principalsperson who owns an equity interest in vou. including the Owner/Operator. 
is required to jointly and severally guaranty payment and performance of your obligations to 
Dickey's. 
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I T ^ ^ 
R ^ T ^ O ^ O N S O N ^ A T T ^ F R A N ^ S ^ M A Y S ^ 

You are ^ u i r e d t o u s e the Re^uran t premises s o ^ y ^ ^ e 
maintain hostess houra as p r e y e d for io the Manuals or as 0 ^ 
writing.You may not use or permit the use ofthe premises for any other purpose or activity at any ti^ 
without first obtaining the written consent of Oickey's. 

Youa re required to meet and maintain the highest health standards andretingsappiicahie to the 
operation of the Restaurant You must furnish to Oickey's, within t h r e e ^ d a y s after receiptacopy of 
any inspection report, warning, citation, certificate, rating and any other document issued hy any fed^ 
state,local or other administrative agency, instrumentality or organization with respectto^ 
safety conditionsof the Restaurant 

Toensure that the highest degree of quality and service is maintained, youmust operate the Restaurant 
in stnct conformity with such methods, standards and specifications as required hy law and as 0 ^ ^ 
may from time to time prescrihe in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. You must maintain in sufficient 
supply and use and sell at all times only such food and beverages 
equipment, supplies and paper goods that conform to Oickey's standards and specifications and that are 
acquired from vendors or suppliera approved by Oickey's; prepare all menu items in accordance w ^ 
Oickey's recipes and procedures for preparation contained in the Manuals or other wn t tend i re^ 
including the prescribed measurements ofingredients; and refrain from deviating from Oickey's standa 
and specifications by the use or offer of non-conforming items or differing amounts of any items, without 
Oickey's priorwritten consent You are required to sell and offer for sale only such menu items, products 
and servicesas havebeen expressly approved for sale in writing by Oickey's; torefrainfromany 
deviation from Oickey's standards and specifications without Oickey's prior written consent; and to 
discontinue selling and offering for sale any menu items, praducts or services which Oickey^ 
discretion, disapprove in writing at any time. (See item 8). 

You are required to offerfor sale and sell atthe Restaurant all menu items and other designated products 
and se^ices (including gift cards) required by Oickey's and to provide such preducts and services 
manner and style prescribed by Oickey^s, including dining-in, catering and carry^ut serviced Oickey's 
has the unlimited right to add, alter or discontinue the types of authorized goods and services which yo 
may offer. You do not have the right to change the menu items and other designated products and 
serviceswhich you are required to offerand sell atthe Restaurant 

Subject to the general policies and procedures set forth in the Manuals or othen^ise announced by 
Oickey's from time to time (and specifically including periodic promotions announced by Oicke^^ 
time to time) you have sole discretion as to the prices to be charged to customers forthe offerand sale of 
any menu items, products, merchandise, and services. 

Oickey's has developed and will continue to develop for use in the System certain products which are 
prepared fram highly confidential secret recipes and which are trade secrets of Oickey's Because o f ^ 
importance of quality and uniformity of production and the significance of such products in the Sys^^^ 
is to the mutual benefit of the parties that Oickey's closely control the preduction and distributi^^ 
products. Accordingly, if such products becomeapart of the System, you must use only Oickey's secret 
recipe products and must purchase solely from Oickey's or fromasource designated by Oickey's all of 
your requirements forsuch products 

Oickey'swill makeavai lableatareasonablecostand,at i tsopt ionwi l i require you to purchase from 
Oickey's for resale to your customers certain promotional merchandise identifying the System such as 
prepackagedbarbecuesauceandotherfood items, gift cards,T-shirts, sweatshirts, caps, 
in amountssufficientto meet your customers'demand. 

You are required to maintain competent, conscientious, and trained personnel to operate the Restaurant 
in accordancewith the FranchiseAgreementand the Manuals and totake such stepsas are necessaryto 

^ N C H i S E O i S C t O S U R E O O C U M ^ M ^ S ^ ^ ^ ^ 4 ^ 
2 O ^ 2 0 ^ ^ ^ O ^ o ^ D ^ m ^ ^ P a g e ^ 



ensure that your employees preserve good customer relations, comply with such dress code and/or wear 
uniforms as Dickey's may prescribe in the Manuals or otherwise and observe reasonable standards of 
grooming and cleanliness. 

Dickey's does not restrict your solicitation of customers. All advertising and promotion by you in any 
medium must conform to the standards and specifications of Dickey's set forth in the Manuals or 
otherwise and all advertising and promotional plans and materials must be approved by Dickey's prior to 
your use of such plans and materials. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTI 
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ITEM 17 
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

This table lists certain Important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should 
read these provisions In the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provliion Section In Franchise or 
Other Agreement 

[Article In 
Franchise Agreement/ 
Article in 
Development 
Agreement 

Summary 

[Items shown In plain bold-face text depict summary from Franchise 
Agreement / /Terns shown in Italicized text depict nummary from 
Development Agreemenf\ 

a. Length of the franchise term Artide 2/ 
Article 4 

20 years, subject to periodic remodeling J 
Depends on number of Restaurants you commit to open. 

b. Renewal or extension of the term Article 2/ 
Not applicable. 

If you are not In default you can renew franchise for 10 additional 
years./ 
Not applicable. 

c Requirements for franchisee to 
renew or extend 

Article 2/ 
Not applicable. 

The "renewal" of the franchise means that you may continue to 
operate the franchise at the existing location for an additional 10 
years provided, among other things, that you execute Dickey's 
then-current Franchise Agreement which may contain materially 
different terms and conditions from the original Franchise 
Agreement The requirements for the franchisee to renew or extend 
the franchise term Include that you pay a renewal fee of $10,000, 
sign a new franchise agreement In the then-current form which may 
contain materially different terms and conditions, comply wtth the 
requirements of the new agreement (Including higher royalties and 
advertising contributions, but excluding any franchise or renewal 
fees), remodel, give 6-12 months notice, satisfy all monetary 
obligations, provide evidence of your right to possession for the 
renewal term, execute a release (unless prohibited by applicable 
local law), comply wtth the then-current qualifications and training/ 
Not applicable. 

d. Termination by franchisee Articles 16 and 17/ 
Article 6 

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement but will be required to, 
among other things, make a lump sum payment of the royalty fees 
due for the remaining term of the Franchise Agreement (alao see 
Item 171., below)V 
You may terminate the Franchise Agreement but will be required to 
comply wtth the matters set forth in item 171. 

e. Termination by franchisor without Article 16/ 
ArtdeB 

Dickey's has no such rights/ 
Dhke/s has no such rights. 

f. Termination by franchisor with 
cause 

Artideie/ 
AfAWe 6 

Dickey's can terminate only if a franchisee defaults/ 
Dlcke/a can terminate if a developer defautts. 

g. - "Cause" defined - curable defaults Article 16/ 
Artfcte 6 

Pursuant to applicable Minnesota law (see "Note Regarding 
Controlling Minnesota Law" appearing Immediately below this 
table), Dickey's may not terminate the Franchise Agreement for any 
default untO (1) Dickey's shall have provided written notice setting 
forth all of the reasons for the termination or cancellation of the 
Franchise Agreement at least ninety (90) days In advance of 
termination or cancellation and (II) the reasons stated for the 
termination or cancellation In auch notice shall not have been 
corrected to the satisfaction of Dickey's within sixty . (60) days of 
receipt of the notice; except that such notice shall be effective 
Immediately upon receipt for the following grounds for termination 
or cancellation: (a) voluntary abandonment of the franchise 
relationship; (b) conviction of an offense directly related to the 
business conducted pursuant to the franchised business; or (c) 
failure to cure a default under the Franchise Agreement which 
materially Impairs the goodwill associated wtth Dickey's trade 
name, trademark, service mark, logotype or other commercial 
symbol after receipt of written notice to cure of at leaat twenty-four 
(24) hours In advance thereof/ 

Except as otherwise required under applicable Minnesota law (see 'Note 
Regarding Controlling Minnesota Law" below), you have thirty (30) days 
to cure any default other than those specified In Item 17h. 
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision Section In Franchise or 
Other Agreement 

[Artide In 
Franchise Agreement/ 
Article In 
Oeve/opm ent 
Agrsemanq 

Summary 

[items shown In plain bold-face text depict summary from Franchise 
Agreement / Items shown In Italicized text depict summary from 
Development Agreementi 

h. "Cause" defined - non-curable 
defaults 

Article 16/ 
Article 6 

Non-curable defaults Include (I) voluntary abonck 
fronohtoo rolotlonshlpi (II) conviction of an offonoo directly related 

inducted pursuant to the franchlood buslnooci or 
default under the Franchise Agroomont-whfoh 

namer trademarkr-service 
symbol after receipt of wrlttoi 
U4\ houro In advance thereof/bankruptcy or Insolvencv (Dickey's 
Mqht W tWm'nMq Ml* franchise upon a frynch'aw'ft henkrupfcy may 
not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law), failure to locate • 
prewwd oft* or gWrc pwepted Iggfltion. mpraftr. wngqlWrtim 
or dissolution, lew or foreclosure of vour assets, ludoments 
against vou. failure to meet health and safety standards, breach of 
confidentiality or non-compete obligations, unapproved transfers, 
failure to open vour Restaurant within 1 year and repeated defaults 
SYMlffMmd./ 
Except as otherwise required under applicable Minnesota law (see 'Note 
Regarding ControUing Minnesota Law" below). Non-curable defaults 
Include bankruptcy or insolvency (Dickey's right to terminate upon a 
developers bankruptcy may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy 
taw), judgments against you, levy or foreclosure ofyour assets, failure to 
pay the Development Fee, failure to comply wtth the development 
schedule, failure to timely execute Franchise Agreements and to pay 
Franchise Fee, failure to timely open Restaurants or replacement 
Restaurants, conviction or plea of nolo contendere to certain offenses by 
your MncioalOwner/Ooerator. threat or danger to public health or safety 
resulting ftom constrvcthn, maintenance or operation of any Restaurant 
failure to designate a replacement Qoorating PrincipalOwner/Operator. 
failure to comply wtth certain covenants, representations and warranties, 
transfer or attempted transfer of obligations under the Development 
Agreement failure to affect an approved transfer upon death or disability, 
misuse ofthe Proprietary Marks, repeated material defaults.,. 

I. Franchisee's obligations on 
termination/non-renewal 

Article 17/ 
Article 6 

Obligations include ceasing operation ofyour Restaurant, making a 
lump sum payment of the royalty fees due for the remaining term of 
the Franchise Agreement, ceasing use of confidential Information 
and the Proprietary Marks, completing the de-ldentfflcatton wtth 
Dlcke/a, at Dickey's option, assigning your lease and telephone 
number to Dickey's, payment of Dickey's damages, costs, and 
expenses and other fees, returning ell Manuals, materials, files and 
customer lists, selling to Dickey's, at Dickey's option, all of your 
assets, and complying wtth confidentiality covenants (also see Item 
17r, below)/ 
Obligations Snctude loss, reduction or modification of Territory and 
compliance wtth non-competition covenants. 

J. Assignment of contract by 
franchisor 

Article 18/ 
Article? 

No restriction on Dickey's right to assign/ 
No restriction on Dtcke/s right to assign. 

Transfer by franchisee- defined Artide 16/ 
Artide 7 

Includes transfer of contract or assets or ownership change/ 
Includes transfer of contract or assets or ownership change. 

I. Franchisor approval of transfer by 
you 

Artide 16/ 
Article? 

Dickey's has the right to approve all transfers (except transfers 
which are not of a "controlling Interest" and transfers of less than 
1% Interest In publicly held corporations) but will not unreasonably 
withhold approval/ 
Dlcke/s has the right to approve all transfers (except for transfers which 
are not of a 'controlling interest" and transfers of less than 1% interest in 
publicly traded corporations) but will not unreasonably withhold approval 
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision Section In Franchise or 
Other Agreement 

[Article In 
Franchise Agreement/ 
Article In 
Development 
AgreemenA 

Summary 

[Items shown In plain bold-face text depict summary from Franchise 
Agreement / Items shown In Italicized text depict summary from 
Development Agreementi 

m. Conditions for franchisor approval 
of transfer 

Article IS/ 
Article? 

Except as otherwise required under Minnesota Law, conditions 
Include payment of a $10,000 transfer fee (or such greater amount If 
Dickey's costs and expenses exceed this amount), receipt of 
payment of all monetary obligations, no default under any 
agreements, execution of a general release (to the extent not 
prohibited under applicable law), execution of an agreement by the 
new franchisee to assume your obligations, If required, execution 
of a new Franchise Agreement and other agreements, you remain 
liable for all of your obligations, the new franchisee completes 
training and otherwise qualifies and the new franchisee renovates 
the Restaurant as required/ 
Except as otherwise required under Minnesota taw, conditions include 
payment of a $10,000 transfer fee (or such greater amount if Dtcke/s 
costs and expenses exceed this amount), payment of ait monetary 
obligations, no default under any agreements, execution of a genera/ 
release (to the extent not prohibited under applicable taw), execution of 
an agreement by the new developer to assume your obligations. If 
required, execution of a new Development Agreement and other 
agreements, you remain liable for all of your obligations and new 
developer satisfies Dickey* requirements for a developer. 

n. Franchisor's right of first refusal to 
acquire franchisee's business 

Article 16/ 
Arttclo? 

Dlckey'e can match an offer for the franchisee's business/ 
Dfcftgyfr can match an offer for the developer's business. 

o. Franchisor's option to purchase 
franchisee's business 

Article 17/ 
N/A 

Dickey's has option to purchase the assets of your business upon 
termination of the franchise/ 
Dickey^ does not have any such option. 

Death or disability of franchisee Article 15/ 
Artide 7 

Interest In franchise must be transferred to an approved person 
within 12 months In the event of death and 6 months In the event of 
disability/ 
Interest In development rights must be transferred to an approved person 
within 12 months in the event of death and 8 monffts in the event of 
disability.. 

q. Non-competition covenants during 
the term of the franchise 

Article 18/ 
Artide 8 

You will not divert any business or customer to a competitor and 
you will not be Involved In a competing restaurant/ 
You will not divert any business or customer to a competitor and you will 
not be Involved In a competing restaurant 

r. Non-competition covenants after 
the franchise is terminated or 
expires 

Article 18/ 
Article B 

No competing business for 2 years within 30 miles of your 
Restaurant or within 6 miles of another Restaurant (Including after 
assignment)/ 
No competing business for 2 years within S miles of the boundary of the 
Territory or within 5 mBes of another Restaurant 

Modification of the agreement Article 25/ 
Artfcfe 14 

Generally, no modifications without your consent, except Dickey's 
may unilaterally change the scope of the competition covenants, 
Proprietary Harks and Manual/ 
Generally, no modifications without your consent, except Dlckofs may 
unilaterally change the scope of the competition covenants and the 
Proprietary Marks. 

Integration/merger dause Article 25/ 
Article 14 

Only the terms ofthe Franchise Agreement are binding (subject to 
state law), except nothing in the Franchise Agreement disclaims the 
representations made In this Disclosure Document or Its 
attachments and addenda. Any other promises may not be 
enforceable/ 
Only the terms of the Development Agreement are binding (subject to 
state law), except nothing In the Development Agreement dlsdaims the 
representations made in this Disclosure Document or its attachments or 
addenda. Any other promises may not be enforceable. 

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration or 
mediation 

Article 25/ 
Artfcfe 14 

Except as otherwise required under Minnesota law, and-except for 
certain claims, all disputes must be mediated and, If not resolved, 
arbitrated, in Texas/ 
Except as otherwise required under Minnesota law, and-except for 
certain claims, ail disputes must be mediated and, if not resotved, 
arbitrated, In Texas. 

v. Choice of forum Article 25/ 
Artide 14 

Litigation must be In -PaHasthe state courts of Collin County. Texas 

or th, fffdemi aitw court to thg MwthMi PWrt of T«oi. 
except es otherwise required by applicable Minnesota law/ 
Litigation must be in PaHasthe state courts of Collin County. Texas orthe 
federal district court for the Northern District of Texas, except as 
otherwise required by applicable Minnesota law. 
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision Section In Franchise or 
Other Agreement 

[Article In 
Franchise Agreement/ 
Article In 
Development 
Agreement 

Summary 

[Items shown In plain bold-face text depict summary from Franchise 
Agreement / Items shown In ttallclzed text depict summary from 
Development Agreementi 

w. Choice of law Article 28/ 
Article 14 

Texas law applies except as otherwise required by applicable 
Minnesota law, (See "Note Regarding Controlling Minnesota Law" 
belowH 
Texas law epplles except as otherwise required by applicable Minnesota 
law (see 'Note Regarding Controlling Minnesota Law" below). 

Note Regarding Controlling Minnesota Law 

To the extent required under applicable Minnesota law, the following supersede and override any 
inconsistent or contrary terms or provisions in this Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement and 
the Development Agreement, including with regard to the termination and renewal of your franchise: 

MINNESOTA STATUTES, SECTION 80C.21 AND MINNESOTA RULE 2860.4400(J) 
PROHIBIT THE FRANCHISOR FROM REQUIRING LITIGATION TO BE CONDUCTED 
OUTSIDE MINNESOTA, REQUIRING A WAIVER OF A JURY TRIAL, OR REQUIRING 
THE FRANCHISEE TO CONSENT TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, TERMINATION 
PENALTIES OR JUDGMENT NOTES. IN ADDITION, NOTHING IN THE OFFERING 
CIRCULAR OR AGREEMENTS CAN ABROGATE OR REDUCE ANY OF THE 
FRANCHISEE'S RIGHTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN MINNESOTA STATUTES, CHAPTER 
80C, OR FRANCHISEE'S RIGHTS TO ANY PROCEDURE, FORUM, OR REMEDIES 
PROVIDED FOR BY THE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION. 

WITH RESPECT TO FRANCHISES GOVERNED BY MINNESOTA LAW, THE 
FRANCHISOR WILL COMPLY WITH MINN. STAT. SEC. 80C.14, SUBDS. 3, 4, AND 5 
WHICH REQUIRE, EXCEPT IN CERTAIN SPECIFIED CASES, THAT A FRANCHISE BE 
GIVEN 90 DAYS NOTICE OF TERMINATION (WITH 60 DAYS TO CURE) AND 180 
DAYS NOTICE FOR NON-RENEWAL OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. 

Additionally, Minnesota may have court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement or 
Development Agreement with regard to your relationship with Dickey's. 

NOTE: The state in which your Restaurant will bo located may have laws which supersede tho provisions 
of the Franchise Agrooment listed in the table above (collectively, "Controlling Law"), including, with respect 
to the renewal and termination of your Franchise Agreement and any releases or waivers to be provided 
under the Franchise Agreement. The Franchise Agreement provides that the provisions of the Franchise 
Agreement are modifiod and amended so that the Controlling Law supersedes and governs any contrary 
provisions of the Franchise Agreement to the extent that the Controlling Law is (a) binding on the parties to 
the Franchise Agreement and in effect on the date of the Franchise Agreement, (b) the Controlling Law is 
not permitted under applicable law to be waived or modified by the terms of the Franchise Agreement; (c) 
the Controlling Law is applicable to the matters set forth in the Franchise Agreement, (d) required by the 
Controlling Law, and (d) required under tho Controlling Law to render any inconsistent provision of the 
Franchise Agreement legal, valid and enforceable. 

ITEM 18 
PUBLIC FIGURES 

Dickey's currently does not use, compensate or provide any benefit to any public figure to promote its 
franchise, but reserves the right to do so in the future. 
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ITEM 19 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial 
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the 
information, and the information is included in the disclosure document Financial performance information 
that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if. (i) a franchisor provides the actual records of 
an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (ii) a franchisor supplements the information provided in 
this Item 19, for example, by providing information about performance at a particular location or under 
particular circumstances. 

We do not make any representations about a franchisee's future financial performance or the past financial 
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or 
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an 
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other 
financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the 
franchisor's management by contacting Roland Dickey, Jr. (at 801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 
75074; Telephone Number 972-423-2201), the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state 
regulatory agencies. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 
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ITEM 20 

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 
SYSTEM-WIDE OUTLET SUMMARY 
FOR YEARS 30082010 TO 20442012 

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the 
Start of the Year 

OutieteattheEnd 
ofthe Year 

Net Change 

Franchised 
20092010 #105 444109 +244 

Franchised 20402011 441109 444126 +4417 Franchised 
20442012 444126 436212 +2485 

Franchised 

Company-Owned 
20082010 6 6 0 

Company-Owned 2040 6 6 4 Company-Owned 
2011 6 78 +42 

Company-Owned 

2012 S 7 -1 

Company-Owned 

Total Outlets 
20082010 87111 447115 +204 

Total Outlets 2040 447 447 +44 Total Outlets 
2011 447115 443.134 +2619 

Total Outlets 

2012 134 219 +85 

Total Outlets 

NOTES: 

(1) The figures above and in each subsequent table presented in this Item 20 are for the fiscal years June 
1, 2008 - May 31, 2009, June 1, 2009 - May 31, 2010, and-June 1, 2010 - May 31, 2011. and June 1. 
2011-May 31, 2012. 

(2) Unless otherwise indicated, the company-owned Restaurants listed above and in each subsequent 
table presented in this Item 20 are owned by DBP and RGI. 
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TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN FRANCHISOR) 
FOR Y E A R S 30082010 TO 20442012 

State Year Number of Transfers 
2010 o 

Arkansas 2011 1 
2012 o 
2010 1 

Colorado 2011 0 
2012 1 

20082010 30 
Texas 2040 3 

2011 11 
2012 17 
2010 o 

Missouri 2011 2 
2012 2 
2010 o 

Florida 2011 2 
2012 1 
2010 0 

Idaho 2011 0 
2012 1 
2010 0 

Illinois 2011 0 
2012 1 
2010 o 

Indiana 2011 o 
2012 0 

20082010 0 
MimerataNorth Carolina 2011 Q 

2012 1 
2010 0 

New York 2011 40 

ftfli c&oun 
20082012 1 

2010 0 
Ohio 2011 30 

2012 0 
2010 0 

Washinoton 2011 o 
2012 1 

20882010 41 
TOTAL 2040 3 

2011 4616 
2012 26 
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S T A T U S O F F R A N C H I S E D O U T L E T S 
F O R Y E A R S 20082010 T O 30442012 

State Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlet, 
Opened 

Term-
TarmlmrtJonsIn 

adone/ 
Tranefore 

Non-
Ren ewa la 

Reacquired 
By 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
OseFaODeratlont -

tione-
Other Reason* 

Outlets 
at End 
ofthe 
Year 

Affcaneae 2009 0 4 0 Q Q 0 4 

A R K A N S A S 
2010 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

A R K A N S A S 2011 1 0 On 0 0 0 1 

Arizona 20082 

012 
ol 3 l 0 0 0 0 32 Arizona 

A R I Z O N A 
2010 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

A R I Z O N A 2011 3 0 0 0 0 1 2 

CaMomia 20092 

012 
02 8Q 0 0 0 4Q 82 CaMomia 

CALIFORNIA 
2010 8 3 0 0 0 4 87 

CALIFORNIA 2011 7 5 4/0 0 0 0 8 

Getorwle 20092 

012 
3§ a l l 0 0 0 0 620 

1 3 W ) I 6 | 0 m | o | o | o l e 
2044 5 4 0 0 0 0 8 

Detoware 
C O L O R A D O 

20082 

010 
45 0 40 0 o l 0 04 Detoware 

C O L O R A D O 

2011 4 .1 o o o o 5 

Detoware 
C O L O R A D O 

2012 5 2 0 0 o o 7 

Detoware 
C O L O R A D O 

C O N N E C T I C U T 
2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

C O N N E C T I C U T 2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rodda 20002 

012 
0 1 0 0 0 0 1 Rodda 

FLORIDA 
2010 1 3 w2 0 0 0 2 

FLORIDA 2011 2 3 3m 0 0 0 2 

20002 

012 
o2 al 0 0 0 0 33 

G E O R G I A 
2010 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

G E O R G I A 2011 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 
2012 3 2 0 0 Q 0 5 

IDAHO 
2010 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 

IDAHO 2011 Q 1 0 0 0 0 1 
2012 1 2 Q o o o 3 

ILLINOIS 
20082 

010 
40 0 0 0 0 0 40 

ILLINOIS 

20402 

011 
40 02 0 0 0 02 4Q 

ILLINOIS 

2012 ° 3 2 0 0 0 3 
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STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS 

FOR YEARS 30082010 TO 30442012 

Stats Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlet* 
Opened 

l e e a -
TflFIHlPHflftr*^ 

atiefM/ 
Transfere 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
By 

Franchisor 

Ceased 

" " W * " 
Other Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
ofthe 
Year 

2044 4- 4- m 0 0 0 * 
Iowa 2000 1 2 3 0 0 0 3 4 

2010 1 1 0 0 0 01 a1 

IOWA 2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2012 1 o Q Q 0 0 1 

INDIAN/ V 

20002 

010 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

INDIAN/ 

2040 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | 0 I 0 I 0 

INDIAN/ 

2011 0 3 1/0 0 0 0 2 

2012 2 1 1 0 0 0 2 
2000 0 4 0 0 0 0 4-

KANSAS 

2010 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

KANSAS 2011 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2012 2 0 0 0 o. o 2 

Marytand 
KENTUCKY 

20082 

010 

0 30 0 0 0 40 4fi 

2011 0 0 o o o o 0 

2012 0 1 o Q o o 1 

MARYLAND 

2010 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

MARYLAND 2011 1 1 1 0 o 0 1 
20442 

012 
1 40 4V0 0 0 0 1 

MASSACHUS ETTS 

20002 
010 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

MASSACHUS 

2040 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 I 0 I 0 | 0 

MASSACHUS 

I 2011 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 
Mimeaeta 2008 0 4 0 0 0 0 4-Mimeaeta 

2040 4- 3 0 0 0 0 3 
Mimeaeta 

2044 2 4 0 0 0 0 7 
MbsiMlppi 2000 4- 0 0 0 0 4-MbsiMlppi 

2040 4- 4 0 0 0 0 2 
MbsiMlppi 

2044 2 3 4# 0 0 0 4 
Misaourt 2000 3 

3 
0 Q 0 0 6 

20402 

012 
61 0 ol 0 0 0 60 

204+ 6 2 w 0 0 0 6 
Nabmake 2009 4 0 0 0 0 4 0 

MICHIGAN 

2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

MICHIGAN 2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2012 p 1 0 Q o o 1 

MINNESOTA 

2010 1 2 0 0 0 Q 3 
MINNESOTA 2011 3 4 0 0 0 0 7 

2012 7 5 0 0 Q Q 12 
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STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS 
FOR YEARS 20092010 TO 30442012 

State Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

T e m -
TermlnatJoiwtn 

aflena/ 
T m s f m 

Non-
Ren ewa la 

Reacquired 
By 

Franchisor 

Ceased 

o-e™-
Other Reasons 

Outlet* 
at End 
ofthe 
Year 

MISSISSIPPI 
2010 1 1 o o 0 0 2 

MISSISSIPPI 2011 2 3 1 o 0 0 4 
2012 4 o o o 0 0 4 

MISSOURI 
2010 5 o o 0 0 0 5 

MISSOURI 2011 5 2 1 0 0 0 6 
2012 6 2 1 0 0 o 7 

NEBRASKA 
2010 Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 

NEBRASKA 2011 Q Q 0 0 o Q Q 

Nevada 20002 

012 
0 2 0 0 0 0 2 Nevada 

NEVADA 
2010 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

NEVADA 2011 3 0 1/0 0 0 0 2 

20002 

012 
+2 43 40 0 0 0 45 

NEW MEXICO 
2010 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

NEW MEXICO 2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
2012 1 o 0 0 0 0 1 

NEW YORK 
20002 

010 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

I 20*0 | 0 | 0 o I o I o I o I 0 
2011 0 35 2/o 0 0 o2 1 
2012 1 2 o o 0 0 3 

North Carolina 2008 3 0 4 0 0 0 2 

NORTH 
CAROLINA 

2010 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 
NORTH 

CAROLINA 
2011 2 5 1/0 0 0 0 6 

Ohio 20002 

012 
46 03 4V0 0 0 0 ofi Ohio 

OHIO 
2010 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

OHIO 2011 1 1 1/0 0 0 0 1 OHIO 
2012 1 2 1 o o 0 2 

OHIO 

OKLAHOMA 
20082 

010 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1 2040 | 0 | 0 o | o | o I o I 0 
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STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS 
FOR YEARS 30092010 TO 20U2012 

State Year Outlet* et 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Temv 

JMtomn** 
Non-

Renewals 
Reacquired 

By 
Franchisor 

Ceased 
OperaQpenrtlopa -

B o w -
Other Resaona 

OutJet» 
at End 
ofthe 
Year 

2011 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 
Oregon 20082 

012 
42 ol 4Q 0 0 0 03 Oregon 

OREGON 
2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

OREGON 2011 0 ol 0 0 0 Ql 0 

Pennsylvania 20082 

012 
0 1 0 0 0 0 1 Pennsylvania 

PENNSYLVANIA 
2010 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

PENNSYLVANIA 2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
2012 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

SOUTH CAROLINA 
2010 1 0 Q 0 P o 1 

SOUTH CAROLINA 2011 1 1 Q 0 Q 0 2 
2012 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

SOUTH 
GamWPAKQTA 

20082 

010 
0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

• i •IL l~i •• 11 • i •• 

3044 + 0 0 0 0 0 4-

• i •IL l~i •• 11 • i •• 
3 0 U 4 4 0 0 0 0 3 

3000 
2040 

0 
0 

0 
4 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
4-

2011 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
2012 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 • 

Tonnooooo 2008 2 0 Q o 0 4- 4-

TENNESSEE 
2010 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

TENNESSEE 2011 1 0 1» 0 0 0 0 

Texas 200C 

_ai 
2 
2 

670 e£) 0 0 0 70 wO Texas 200C 

_ai 
2010 69 76 &o 0 0 0 7069 

TEXAS 2011 69 9 9m 0 2 02 7265 

2012 65 3_Q 1 0 0 0 94 
Utah 2008 4- 0 0 0 0 0 4-

UTAH 
2010 1 0 1/0 0 0 0 0 

UTAH 2011 0 34 0 0 0 ol 3 

Virginia 20002 

012 
43 45 0 0 0 0 
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S T A T U S O F F R A N C H I S E D O U T L E T S 
F O R Y E A R S 20082010 T O 20442012 

State Year Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened ™ 

Non. 
Renewals 

Reacquired 
By 

Franchisor 

Gassed 

^ e ^ -
Other Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
ofthe 
Year 

VIRGINIA 
2010 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

VIRGINIA 2011 2 01 0 0 0 01 2 
2012 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 

W A S H I N G T O N 
2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 fi 

W A S H I N G T O N 2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q 
2012 g 3 o o o o 3 

W I S C O N S I N 
2010 Q o o Q o o o 

W I S C O N S I N 2011 o 0 0 0 0 0 Q 
2012 o 2 o o o Q 2 

W Y O M I N G 
20062 
010 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

I 2GW | 0 [ 0 0 I 0 I 0 | 0 ] 0 
2011 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Total 
20002 
012 

wl 440 6/0 0 0 « 0 4441 
Total 

T O T A L 
2010 m 3420 1 0 A 0 01 45 444115 

T O T A L 2011 448115 6057 27/4426 0 2 410 443134 
2012 134 90 5 o o o 219 

S T A T U S O F C O M P A N Y - O W N E D O U T L E T S 
F O R Y E A R S 30082010 T O 20442012 

State Y e a r Out lets at 
Start o f 

Y e a r 

Out lets 
O p e n e d 

Out lets 
Reacqu i red 

F rom 
F ranch i sees 

Outlets 
C l o s e d 

Outlets 
S o l d to 

F ranch isees 

Outlets at E n d of 
the Yea r 

Texas 
26082010 5 0 0 0 0 5 

I 2040 I 6 1 0 1 0 1 0 I 0 1 6 
2011 5 0 42 0 0 §7 

New- 20002012 47 0 0 01 0 46 
Mexico 

2010 1 0 0 1 0 0 
New 
Mexico 

2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Colorodo 20082012 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2040 0 0 0 0 0 0 

20142010 0 0 1 0 0 1 
Colorado 2011 1 Q 0 0 0 1 

2012 1 0 0 o 0 1 

Total 
20082010 6 0 Q l G l 0 6 

| 2040 1 6 1 o 1 o 1 4 1 0 I « 
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2011 66 0 2 0 0 78 
2012 8 0 o . 1 0 ; ; 7 

... • "2 • . . ..... j, ; % , 

• ••» • '.-
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P R O J E C T E D O P E N I N G S A S O F M A Y 31, 20442012 

State Franch ise 
Agreement S igned 

But Outlet not 
Opened 

Projected New 
Franch ised Outlet in the 

Next F isca l Year 

Projected New 
Company-Owned 

Outlets In the Next 
F isca l Year 

AfizenaAlabama 1 2Q 0 
CoiffomioArkansas 62 31 0 
ConnocticutArizona 23 1 0 

RofWaCalifomia 414 3 0 
GeoreiaColorado 44 20 0 
WahoConnecticut 1 20 0 

WmeisFlorida 25 40 0 
WmmaGeorqia 46 21 0 
MteMaanldaho 1 4Q 0 

81 480 0 
MioDisoippilndiana 43 3Q 0 

MieseuriMaine 42 40 0 
NevadaMinnesota 47 40 0 

Nev^¥erkMiSSiSSiDDi 46 30 0 
North CarolinoMissOUri 1 30 0 

Nebraska 6 2 0 
Nevada 2 0 0 

New Mexico 1 0 0 
New York 2 0 0 

North BaketaCarolina 43 2 0 
owoNorth Dakota 43 20 0 
OfemOklahoma 84 1 0 

South Dakota 32 20 0 
Texas 4420 464 1 

Utah 4 8 0 
VwgWa 0 4 0 

Washington 2 3 8 
Wfeconoin 4 3 0 

WyomiroUtah 012 24 0 
Virainia 1 0 0 

Washington 5 2 0 
WestVirqinia 1 0 0 

Wisconsin 2 0 o 
Wvomina 2 0 0 

Total 62123 8821 1 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

ArtzenaAlabama: 

Wiggins. Roseanne Lyon 
Location to be determined 
(Montgomery) (334) 872-0320 

Arkansas: 
Maverick Group Management 
LLC/JJC 

Location to be determined 
(Bentonville) (417) 234-4889 

Maverick Group Management 
LLC/JJC Location to be determined (Favetteviin (417) 234-4889 

Arizona: 

SmokinAZ LLCForrest Erik A Z 85251 

F791 9 East Thomas Road, 
iuite 111. Scottsdale. 

(480602) 368758-73360998 
Forrest. Erik Location to be determined (Tempe) (602) 758-0998 
Harris. Rov Location to be determined (Avondale) (443) 621-0877 

California: 
Kao. Alice S. Location to be determined (Bav Area) (408) 253-9552 

Marsh King Bag by, DkmnaChristine 

3846 McHenry Avenue, Modesto, California 
esa&aLocation to be determined 
(Bakersfield) (268805)684714-76847726 

Bag by, Christine 
3621 California Ave, Bakersfield, 
California 93309 (805)714-7726 

Brothers Food Service. LLC 

Brothers Food Service. LLC 

Location to be determined (Paso 
Robles) (805)478-6639 
Location to be determined (ATTOYQ 
Grande) (805) 478 - 6639 

Fu. Ming Yi "Elliott" Location to be determined (San Bruno) (650) 922 - 2840 

Interests 
;Katzenbarqer 

407 N. Pocific Coast Highwav5110 Laouna 
Blv.. Suite +O2120, Redondo BeaohElk 
Grove. C A 9027792758 (340916) 770712-70706639 

Katzenbarqer Interests 
Location to be determined 
(Sacramento) (916)712-6639 

Katzenbarqer Interests 
Location to be determined 
(Sacramento) (916) 712-6639 

QweosMcLauohlin. DamonJason 

I, California 
04624Location to be determined 
(Temecula) (026541)326852-37080934 

Polperro Group. Inc. 
1016 Rilev Street Suite 4 & 5. Folsom. 
CA 95630 (916) 781 -6584 

tPolperro Group. Inc. 
Location to be determined 
(Carmichael) (#4916) 817781 -23636584 

Connoctlcut: 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

GehenSchiano. AHenDonna and 
Louis Location to be determined (244925) 688830 - 48884227 

Wolcott. Richard Allen 
12290 Industry Blvd.. Suite 47. 
Jackson. CA 95642 (209) 295 - 7902 

Colorado: 

Bungalow Holdinas. LLC 
Location to be determined (Grand 
Junction) (303) 989-1550 

Rusnak, Robert "Bob" and 
Barbara 

1460 Garden of the Gods Road. 
Colorado Sorinqs. CO 80907 (719)964-7250 

The Waterford Restaurant Location to be determined (Colorado 
(303)471 -1654 Group. Inc. Blvd & I-25) (303)471 -1654 

Volf. Larrv 
8715 Sheridan Road. Westminster. 
CO 80003 (308) 383 - 6706 

Connecticut: -

Mark and Donna Ferrari. LLC 
160 Rubber Avenue. Nauoatuck. CT 

(203) 518-0811 Mark and Donna Ferrari. LLC 06770 (203) 518-0811 

Florida: 

A Rib and a Praver. Inc. 
2525 West International Soeedwav 
Blvd.. Ste. 200. Davtona Beach. FL (321)615-0543 

Grumov Munsta Pumokin Location to be determined 
(904)910 - 6223 Comoration (Middleburq) (904)910 - 6223 

Lewis. Debra and John 
8159 Woodville Hiqhwav. Wood vi lie, 
FL 32362 (850) 510-1520 

South Florida BBQ. Inc. 
13499 US 41 Southeast Fort Myers. 
FL 33907 (239) 633 - 3722 

Vu. Carol and Ertur. David 
Location to be determined (Boca 
Raton) (954) 649 - 6119 

-

Georaia: 
3 Guvs BBQ LLC and DBP of 
Athens. LLC 

810 Hawthorne Avenue. Athens. GA 
30606 (706) 818-2714 

Barlow Family Enterprises. LLC 
6011 Watson Blvd.. Suite 380. Warner 

(478) 919-4380 Barlow Family Enterprises. LLC Robins. GA 31088 (478) 919-4380 

GHHK GroupGeorqia Restaurant 
Ventures. LLC 

3302§Location to be determined 
(Savannah) (386912)786547-80265655 

v ; . t . " • . | ' - - • : > • - . ; | / < 

Georqiat Restaurant Ventures. 
LLC (912) 547-5655 

Latham, Matthew 
1610 Ridenour Blvd. Kennesaw, 
Georgia 30144 (404) 200-5516 

Michals. Nicole and Aaron 
415 Peachtree Parkway. Suite 255. 

(215) 806-0144 Michals. Nicole and Aaron Cumminas. GA 30041 (215) 806-0144 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

Idaho: 
vmensBND Retreat. LLC Location to be determined (Pocatello) (436208) 627529-44641655 

Illinois: 

SommerfoldBak, Dan and Stoffono, 
SGGttJoseoh 

Panada Square, Wheaton, IHinoio 
604&7Location to be determined 
(Oakbrook) (638708) 447436-84321744 

Indiana: 
Midkiff. Garv Location to be determined (Valoaraiso) (219) 947-1378 

JSNA^APDQue, Inc. 

3419 Avenue of the Citleo, Molino, IHinoio 
642668455 Broadway. Merrillville. IN 
46410 (663219)340512-42432731 

| 
Indiana; | 
PDQue, Inc. Location to be determined (Hammond) (219)512-2731 

Maine: 
Dickev's Barbecue at the Mall. 364 Maine Mall Road. South Portland. 

(207) 329-7126 LLC ME 04106 (207) 329-7126 
L&B BBQ. LLC 23 Banqor Street. Auausta. ME 04330 (207)691 -0568 

Minnesota: 

Cramer. Patrick 
10230 Baltimore Street. Suite 800. 
Blaine. MN 55449 (612) 799-4692 

Grevious, Jodi S. 
15857 US Hiqhwav 59 South. Detroit 
Lakes. MN 56501 (701)388-2708 

Fourth Impact Restaurant 
GfewLundell Caoitaf. LLC Road 42. Savaoe. MN 55378 (952) 464261 -68877617 

Capital. LLC 
Location to bo dotorminodl Va l lev fa i r 

Drive.Shakooee. MN 65379 (952) 464261 -68877617 

Teplev. Shelia and Daniel 
2956 W. Division Street Suite 3. St 

(320) 761 -6953 Teplev. Shelia and Daniel Cloud. MN 56301 (320) 761 -6953 

w+eeeNwakama. JaeAnthonv Avenue. Marshall. MN 56528 (642507) 888829 - 32643580 
Waytashok, Richord | Location to bo dotormlnod 1 (612)686 G473 
Nwakama, Anthony Location to be determined (Willmar) (507) 829 - 3580 

Mississippi: 
L&B Ventures LLC/Southern 
Foods 1225 Hiqhwav 42. Petal. MS 39465 **** 

Earleyr^tootbv Entemrises. Inc. 
268 Dogwood Blvd, Flowood, Missicoippi 
39232Location to be determined (601)672-5715 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

(Jackson Metro) 

Earlev Entemrises. Inc. 
Location to be determined (Jackson 
Metro) (601)672-5715 

Earlev Enterprises. Inc. 
Location to be determined (Jackson 
Metro) (601)672-5715 

Earlev Enterprises. Inc. Location to be determined (Brandon) (601)672-5715 

Queen Citv Food Services. LLC 
Location to be determined 
(Philadelphia) (601)513-4703 

Missouri: 

Robinson, Gijon 
119 St. Robert Blvd., St. Robert, 
Missouri 65584 (832) 508 - 3558 

Nebraska: 

Carter, Robert 
2662 Comhusker. Ste. 9. Lincoln. NE 

(402) 440- 0064 Carter, Robert 68521 (402) 440- 0064 
Carter. Robert Location to be determined (Lincoln) (402) 440- 0064 
Carter. Robert Location to be determined (Lincoln) (402) 440- 0064 

RCCochran. Inc. 
217 East Stollev Park Road. Suite 1. 

(308) 440 - 7836 RCCochran. Inc. Grand Island NE 68801 (308) 440 - 7836 

RCCochran. Inc. 
3060 East r Street, Kearney, NE 
68847 (308) 440 - 7836 

RCCochran. Inc. Location to be determined (Hastings) (308) 440 - 7836 

Nevada: 

DvefA B & Son. DafreHlnc. 
Location to be determined, 
(Henderson) (702) 521 -6339 

Tellis. Tina 
4510 North Rancho Drive. Las Veaas. 

(702) 290 - 0727 Tellis. Tina NV 89130 (702) 290 - 0727 

New Mexico: 
Skvbera. Orlinda R. 820 North US 491. Gallup. NM 87301 (214) 693 - 8804 

New York: 

MooreDRG Holdinas. James and 
Tolbert, RyanLLC 

4380+Location to be determined 
(Upstate) (518) 683987-we7500 

UpstateNYBBQ. LLC Location to be determined (Rochester) (585) 771 -0348 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

North Carolina: 

BF Foods, LLC 
2001 Widewaters Pkwy., Kniqhtdale, 
NC 27545 (919)235-7171 

BF Foods. LLC 
Location to be determined (North 
Raleigh) (919) 235-7171 

PavisBF Foods. EfjsLLC Location to be determined fAoex) (919)43?235-8§577171 

Bridges. Ronald 
2278 South Jefferson Highway. 
Sanford. NC 27330 (919) 880-7100 

GTC Development LLC 
Location to be determined (Guilford 
Col (833)816-4241 

GTC Development LLC 
Location to be determined (Forsyth 
Co/Guilford Co) (833)816-4241 

North Dakota: 

Becker. Joshua 
623 South Washington Street Grand 
Forks. ND 58201 (325) 260 - 5020 

Deraney, Jaimie 
3402 13th Avenue South, Suite A, 
Fargo, North Dakota 48103 (218) 850-7124 

Grevious. Jodi S. Location to be determined (North Port) (701)388-2708 

Oklahoma: 

Two Cowgirls and a Bull LLC 
408 South Air Depot. Midwest City. OK 
73110 (972) 977 - 3978 

Two Cowgirls and a Bull LLC 
2800 Northwest 63" Street Suite 500. 
Oklahoma Citv. OK 73116 (972) 977 - 3978 

Pinnacle Restaurants. LLC Location to be determined (Tulsa) (214) 683-1540 
Pinnacle Restaurants. LLC Location to be determined (Tulsa) (214) 683-1540 

owoSouth Carolina: 

iD Brown Ventures. 
Inc. 

629 Covered Bridqe10136 Two Notch 
Road, Delaware. Ohio 4301 fiColumbia. S C 
29229 (640)871 0368 

South Dakota: 

Deraney, Jaimie 
Location to be determined (Sioux 
Fallsl (218) 850-7124 

Nwakama, Anthony 
Location to be determined (Sioux 
Falls) (507) 829 - 3580 

Texas: 
AAN United Fortune. Inc.: Magic 
Food USA. Inc. Location to be determined (Little Elm) (972) 998 - 9951 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

AAN United Fortune, Inc.: Magic 
Food USA. Inc. 

Location to be determined (Balch 
Springs) 

Alexis Properties LLC 
5209 Rufe Snow. North Richland Hills. 
TX 76180 

(972) 998 - 9951 

Dellenbauqh. Steve 
807 South Central Expressway. Suite 
300. Anna. TX 75409 

(817) 456-8950 

Nehdar. Kirk Location to be determined (DFW) 
(214) 557-6700 
(972) 632 - 7427 

Nehdar Kirk Location to be determined (DFW) (972) 632 - 7427 
Kress Childs LLC Location to be determined (Austin) (512) 699-8798 

I renEsqu ive l . Viet (Kevin) DMarCOS 
A., Marcos M and Amanda 

1<113 Weot Buckingham Road, Garland. Toxae 
76042Location to be determined 
(Austin) 

Monroe. Brandon 
Monroe. Brandon 

Location to be determined 
(Modlothian) 

(469512) 566275- §6476565 

Location to be determined (Mansfield) 
(817) 454-8303 
(817) 454-8303 

Wisdom. J . Alan and Nikki 
keggtttMason, Don J r&Don MlLaiTV 
"Paul" and Kristin 

Location to be determined (Levelland) (806) 894-3211 
6695-Kvte28155 Tom ball Parkway, Kybr 
Texas 78640Tomball . T X 77375 

AfealVahal ia. MohammedMark 

1611 Justin Road Suite 11BA, Lowisvillo, Toxae 
76Q77Location to be determined 
Prosper) 

(630713) 708254 - 66808431 

JtefliWilson, AaimMatthew B. 

40033710 South Modford DrivoCarrier 
Pkwy . . Su i te 100, Lufkin, Toxae 

76804Grand Prairie. TX 75052 

(872214) 360705 - 24889120 

(743972) 630754 - 68081478 
Whittenbera. Montie L Location to be determined (Humble) 

Restaurant Growth Inc. 
8008 Cedar Springs Road. Suite 
C2190. Dallas. TX 75235 

(972) 310-7291 

(972) 248-9899 
Cattle Comer Restaurants LLC 
Camiero.Rovdon 

Location to be determined (Beaumont) 
Location to be determined (Houston) 

Selman, Samuel K. 
Location to be determined (North 
•aredo) 

(832)863-6718 

Alexander Morgan L L C O w e n s . 
Wallace 

(956)285-4534 

Location to be determined (DFW) (817) 40+688 - 62479573 
Bhatty, Sal 661 Louie Honna Blvd., Suite 330, Round Rock, 

Texas 78664 

Utah: 
Bungalow Holdings LLC Location to be determined (Vernal) 
Bungalow Holdings LLC 
Bungalow Holdings LLC 
Bungalow Holdings LLC 

Location to be determined (Ooden) 
Location to be determined (Fort Union) 
Location to be determined (Tooele) 

Bungalow Holdinas LLC 
Location to be determined (Spanish 
Fork) 

Turner. Blake V. 7742 Campus View Drive. Suite 130. (801)828-7730 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT YET OPENED 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. 

Bldq. B. West Johnson. UT 84084 

Huang, Jason 

138000 S Bangortor Hwy, Dropor, Utah 
84030Location to be determined 
(Midvale) (801)592-8882 

Huanq, Jason 
Location to be determined 
fTavlorsville) (801)592-8882 

Finaer Lickin' Brands LLC 
Location to be determined (South 
Jordan) (801)898-7600 

Finqer Lickin' Brands LLC 
241 Wesw 100 South. Salt Lake Citv. 
UT 84101 (801)898-7600 

Jensen. Mel and Bonnie 
Location to be determined (North St 
Georqe) (435) 668-4409 

Galli Adventures and Event 
Planning LLC Location to be determined (Park Citiv) (435) 657-2276 

Virainia: 

Henshaw. Terrv 
7037 Forest Hill Avenue. Richmond. 

**** Henshaw. Terrv VA 23225 **** 

Washington: 
C&D BBQ Foods LLC Location to be determined (Femdale) (360) 393-2181 

ZfetouSchrader. JaeouesDale 
WAr4839GLocation to be determined 
(Bellinqham) (283604) 88+535 - 77472463 

Schrader, Dale 
Location to be determined 
(Bellinqham) (604) 535 - 2463 

Schrader. Dale Location to be determined (Blaine) (604) 535 - 2463 

Younq. Gina F. 
1001 Coooer Point Road Southwest. 
Suite 175. Olvmoia. WA 98502 (360) 451 - 3765 

West Virainia: 

Reeves. Steohanie A. 
1002 North Eisenhower Drive, 
Becklev. WV 25801 (304) 731 - 2054 

Wisconsin: 

Bern. Butch A. 
1320 North Broadwav. Menomonie. WI 

(715) 225-6844 Bern. Butch A. 54751 (715) 225-6844 

Pecor. Aaron 
895 Lombard! Avenue. Green Bav. WI 

(920) 373 - 5638 Pecor. Aaron 54304 (920) 373 - 5638 

Wyoming: 
D&WeSmall. steveJohn Alexander Location to be determined (Sheridan) (608307) 332871 - 82485948 
Small. John Alexander Location to be determined (Gillette) (307) 871 - 5948 
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LIST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Arkansas: 
RTGRRTC Ventures Inc 105 S. Dixieland St., Lowell AR 72745 (479)770-0123 

Yang. Por 
1951 East Hwv. 412. Siloam Springs. 
Arkansas 72761 (479)238-1112 

Arizona: 
Arizona Barbeque LLC 7337 E Shea Blvd, Scottsdale, AZ 85260 (480) 368-5569 

I 2470 Happy Volloy Rd, Phoenix, AZ 86086 I (623)868 0844 

Smokin AZ LLC 
1914 S. Power Road. Mesa. Arizona 
85206 (480) 358-7335 

California: 

AbbeyHill Enterprises Inc. 
701 Pleasant Grove Blvd., Ste. 150, 
Roseville, CA 95678 (916) 253-9235 

Bagby, Christine 

BBQ So Cal LLC 

2212 South Bradley Road. Suite D-3. 
Santa Maria, CA 93454 
9670 Haven Ave, Rancho Cucamonga, 
CA 91730 

(905) 825-6600 

(909) 477-4555 

BBQ So Cal LLC 
16391 Siena Lakes Pkwy, Fontana, CA 
92336 (909) 356-1295 

Brothers Food Service, LLC 

C4CE Inc. 

799 Foothill Blvd.. Suite A. San Luis 
•Obispo. CA 93405 
1031 Cochrane Ave., Suite 100, Morgan 
Hill, CA 95037 

(805)996-0005 

(408) 778-8575 

CooJoy LLC 
1524 N. Vasco Rd., Uvermore, CA 
94551 (925) 606-4200 

CooJoy LLC 
6654 Koll Center Pkwy., Ste. 330, 
Pleasanton, CA 94566-3170 (925) 426-6800 

Ed Phillips (CA Corporation) 
77 North Main Street. Porterville. CA 
93257 (559) 832-2227 

Green, Chris & Mercedes 
11971 Central Ave Ste A, Chino, CA 
91710 (909) 902-1374 

GJones3 Ventures. LLC 
407 N. Pacific Coast Highway. Suite 102. 
Redondo Beach. CA 90277 (310)3794202 

Lqhrer, Marc 
1402 Camden Ave.. Campbell. CA 
95S08 (408)915-5051 

LPC Enterprises. Inc. 
5391 Prospect Road. San Jose. CA 
95129 (408) 725-1608 

LPC EnteqwiseEnterprises. Inc. 

Marsh-King. Dianne 

43321 Boscell Rd^ Ste. P9-B, Fremont, 
CA 94538 
2816 McHenry Avenue. Modesto. CA 
95350 

(510) 687-1805 

(209)542-8505 

Owens, Damon 

Saucv Fingers 

Schiano, Donna and Louis 

5434 Yanado Vallev Road. Concord. CA 
24521 
9035 Reseda Blvd.. Los Angeles. CA 
91324 
3191 D Crow Canyon Place. San 
Ramon. CA 94583 

(925) 689-5525 

(818)527-2271 

fl2flttlH227 

Stephens. Amy 
2634 Pleasant Hill Road. Pleasant Hill. 
CA 94523 (925)271-9299 
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LIST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Wolcott. Richard Allen 
9035 Roseda Blvd.. Los Angeles. CA 
91324 (818)527-2271 

Colorado: 
Aqhom EnterprioooBungalow Holdings. 
LLC 

3140 S Wadsworth Blvd, Lakewood, CO 
80227 
2331 23 r o Avenue. Greeley. CO 80634 ~ 

(303) 989-1550 
D.H. O'Hara. LLC (970)330-700! 

HMSHost USA LLC 
14500 W Colfax FC711, Lakewood, CO 
80401 (303) 215-7100 

MML Restaurants Inc 
10230 E Arapahoe Rd, Centennial, CO 
80112 (303) 792-2444 

MML Restaurants Inc 5350 S Santa Fe Dr, Littleton, CO 80120 (303) 893-2557 

Restaurant Growth Inc (RGI) 
459 S McCaslin Blvd, Louisville, CO 
80027 (303) 604-0223 

The Waterford Restaurant Group Inc 
4004 Red Cedar Drive, Highlands 
Ranch, CO 80126-8069 (303) 944-8556 

Connecticut 
Cohen. Alan 4577 Main Street. Bridgeport. CT 06606 (203)66^15 

Florida: 

C & R Family Enterprises Inc. 
2653 Bruce B Downs Blvd., Ste 101, 
Wesley Chapel, FL (813) 406-4473 

GHHK Group, LLC 
11338 Miramar Parkway. Miramar. FL 
33025 

Warren Restaurants, LLC 
(954) 450-2810 

5414 Deep Lake Rd. Oviedo, FL 32765 (407) 657-5018 

Georgia: 

3 Guys BBQ, LLC 
2131 Hog Mountain Rd, Watkinsville, GA 
30677 (706) 705-1326 

Georgia Restaurant Ventures. LLC 
1109 U.S. Hwv 80 E.. Unit E. Pooler. GA 
31322 

Kuehl, Charles & Carta 
460 Crosstown Road, Peachtree City, 
GA 30269 

(912)986-1286 

(678) 364-9573 
Premier Group Properties LLC 13075 Hwy 9 N., Milton, GA 30004 (770) 664-2504 

Premier Group Properties LLC 
6631 Roswell Road. Suite 7. Atlanta. GA 
30328 (404)255-Q917 

Idaho: 

BND Retreat. LLC 
2090 East 17" Street. Idaho Fal ls lD 
83404 

G8 Enterprises, Inc. 
1807 12" Avenue Road. Nampa. ID 
83681 

(208) 528-7427 

(208) 461-0600 

Meridian BBQ LLC 
2845 Overiand Road, Suite 190, 
Meridian, ID 83642-9435 (208) 884-8999 

" "no ' s : 

Bak, Joseph 
Jensen, Bill 

15110-A South LaGrange Road. Oriand 
Park. IL 60462 
?419Avenue ofthe Cities, Moling, IL 

(708) 226-3090 
(309) 797-1100 

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT - MINNESOTA 
2044-2012:2013 Disclosure Documentdoc 

Final: 05-01-20442012 
Page 62 



UST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

61265 
JTA Holdinas. LLC 206 Danada Sauare. Wheaton. IL 60189 (630) 590-9518 

Indiana: 
D n n i i n I n m 1 7 1 " 
* U L M J M t \ J | T" I i 

Lamarbis, LLC 
6200 US Hwy, Route 6, Portage, IN 
46368-5057 (219) 938-5486 

PDQue Inc 
713-B Indianapolis Blvd.. Schereville. IN 
46375-1798 (219) 322-9690 

Iowa: 

JBNATA Inc 
4706 Utica Ridge Rd, Davenport, IA 
52807 (563) 344-4757 

Kansas: 

A & A Industries LLC 
7284 W 121 a St., Ste. 101, Overland 
Part, KS 66213 (913) 338-5902 

WGW of Kansas Inc. 609 NW Us Hwy 24, Topeka, KS 66608 (785)215-8215 

Kentucky: 

Rianev. David and Eva 
1001 Jamestown Road. Columbia. KY 
42728 (270) 385-9100 

Maryland: 

Baltimore BBQ LLC 
1121 State Route 3 N, Gambrills, MD 
21054 (410) 451-2328 

MassachusettsMlchiqan: 

Comolli ManaqomontKANDG Develooment 
20 Commerce Way, Seekonk, MA 02771 • 
68233672 Rochester Road. Troy. Ml 

(808248) 338250-62009263 GrouD. LLC 48083 (808248) 338250-62009263 

Minnesota: 

DL Hlavac Enterprises. LLC 
1000 Paul Bunvan Drive NW. Suite 100. 
Bemidii. MN 56601 (218) 444-6022 

Eggerud Enterprises Inc 
3090 Courthouse Lane, Suite 100, 
Eagan, MN 55121-1672 (651)905-7725 

First Impact Restaurant Group LLC 
13131 Riverdale Drive, Suite 100, Coon 
Rapids, MN 55448 (763) 427-0149 

Fourth Impact Restaurant Group LLC 
13250 Technology Drive. Eden Prairie. 
MN 55344 (952) 934-5126 

Mueller. Dale 
157$ Qwens Drive, Suite %02, 
Woodbury, MN 55125 (651)739-1515 

RMW Twins. LLC 
5466 St. Croix Trail. North Branch. MN 
55056 (651) 400-7947 

Second Impact Restaurant Group LLC 
250 E. Travelers Trail, Bumsvitle, MN 
55337-4099 (952) 882-4651 

Stewart, Jason & Jessica 
14165 James Road. Rogers. MN 55374-
9317 (763) 420-4227 
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LIST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Snover, Eric and Jon 
8088 Old Carriage Court North, 
Shakopee, MN 55379-315^ (952) 233-7319 

gnovqr, Eric and Sjewprt, Jason 
3195Vicksbura Lane. Plymouth. MN 
55447-4755 (763) 746-0029 

Third Impact Restaurant Group LLC 
11631 Fountains Or.. Ste. 305. Maple 
Grove. MN 55369 (763) 416-2271 

StewartWiese. Jason & JeocicaJae 
14166 Jomoo1316 South Frontage Road, 
RooereHastinqs, MN 66374 931755033 063651) 420319-43270389 

i, Shakopee, 

Snovor, Erio and Stewart, Jooon 3195 Vteksburg Lane, Plymouth. MN 66417-4766 
(862) 233-7319 

Mississippi: 

CH Development Inc 
50 Cross Creek Pkwy, Hattiesburg, MS 
39402 (601)450-1710 

iriev Enterprises. Inc. 

3100 Hardy Street Ste268 Dogwood Blvd. 
40, HattiesburgFlowood. MS 39401 
706639232 (601)336992-66664200 

L & B Ventures LLC 2159 Hwy. 15 N, Laurel, MS 39440-1836 (601)428-5855 

Queen City Food Services LLC 
103 South Frontage Road, Ste. 200, 
Meridian, MS 39301-6136 (601)483-3805 

Missouri: 
Chridan Enterprises. LLC 

D & L Ventures Inc 

2540 Granite R d , Lebanon, MO 65536 
9000 N. Skyview Ave., Ste. 1600, 
Kansas City, MO 64154 

(417)532-4227 

(816) 505-3900 
SREE. LLC 9200 Olive Blvd. Olivette. MO 63132 (314) 993-9933 

SREE. LLC 
932 Meramec Station Rd Ste K. Vallev 
Park. MO 63088 (6?6) 225^227 

Market Express Inc 
1912 South Brentwood Blvd., St. Louis, 
MO 63144-1812 (314) 961-6699 

Sri Sainath LLC (314) 993-9933 
Sri Sainath LLC Sta K, Valley Park, MO 63088 (636) 2264227 
VPS Enterprioect LLC Rd, Ballwin, MO 63011 (314) 909 9000 

iMaverick Group 
Management LLC/JJC 
Maverick Group Manaq?m?nt L L C / ^ C 

2640 Granite Rd.. Lebanon1360 Republic 
Road, Springfield, MO 6663665804 
111 N. Massev Blvd.. Nixa. MO 65714 

(417)632887-42272227 
(417)724-1100 

Nebraska: 
Carter, Robert l ^ i a ^ g ! ^ (402) 447-7757 

RCCochran. Inc. 
222 West 42 
68847 

Street, Kearney, NE 
(308)23+4696 

Nevada: 
D and M Rib Team LLC 395 E Plumb Ln, Reno, NV 89502 (775) 324-7427 

D and M Rib Team LLC 
290 Lemon Drive. Suite 102. Reno. NV 
89506 (77$) 677-2099 

I D and M Rib Team LLC 

31 Hill Road LLC 

23 1650 Robb Drive. Reno. NV 895; 
3250 Retail Drive. Suite 100. Carson 
Citv. NV 89706 

(775) 787-1383 

(775)525-0555 

JPQue LLC 
7430 Las Vegas Blvd S Ste 110, Las 
Vegas, NV 89123 (702) 220-4227 
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UST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

New Mexico: 

Joseph Mathieu 
1660 S. Valley Dr., Las Cruces, NM 
88005 (575) 525-2525 

New York: 

GombocoSpom. AankPerrv and Adltvo 
173 Sunrise Highway. Rockville Centre? 1 
Smithfield Blvd.. Plattsburah. New York 
11570-470512901 (646518) 304593-56476179 
10 Westaate Drive. Fishkill. NY 12524 (845) 896-9680 

ORG Holdinas. LLC 
756 Upper Glen S t . S t f e Q , . 
Queensbury. NY 12804 (518) 798-7500 

North Carolina: 

BedwdBF Foods, Walter A.LLC 
3103 E. Tenth Street, Greenville, NC 
2785&4203 (252) 246353-22330190 

Bridges, Ronald; Perez, Gloria 
10564 S. US Highway 15/501, Southern 
Pines, NC 28387-5167 (910) 246-1511 

E. L. Davis. Inc. 
6552 Glenwood Avenue. Raleiah. NC 
27612 (919) 436-3994 

GMW Carolina Inc 
200 Crossroads Blvd Ste 100, Gary, NC 
27518 (919) 233-5801 

GMW Carolina Inc 
5318 New Hope Commons Dr Ste 210, 
Durham, NC 27707 (919)418.1101 

GMW Carolina Inc 
170 East Davie Street, Raleigh, NC 
27601 (919)809-8830 

GTC Development LLC 
615 Jonestown Road, Winston-Salem, 
NC 27103-1206 (336) 790-3246 

GTC Development LLC 
5872 Samet Drive. Suites 133 & 135. 
Hiah Point. NC 27265 (336) 905-7777 
1036 Lenoir Rhvne Blvd.. Southeast. 
Hickory. NC 28802 (828) 855-9390 

Ohio: 

Bridges, William 
820 Sunbury Road, Delaware, OH 
43015 (740) 363-2400 

Salem. Anthonv 
960 North Court Street. Medina. OH 
44256 

Oklahoma: 

Park Enterprises LLC 
115 SE W m Street #110, Norman, OK 
73071 (405)321-7427 

WoeeoelPinnade Restaurants. MafkLLC 
6044 S. Yale Ave.. Tulsa. OK 74135-
7412 (918) 551-6500 

Pinnacle Restaurants. LLC 
820 North Aspen. Broken Arrow. OK 
74012 (928) 208-0777 

Oreaon: 

Cameron. Mike 
124 NE Third Street Gresham. OR 
97030 (503)328-8795 
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UST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Pennsylvania: 

Summit Barbeque LLC 
3221 Schoenersville Rd, Bethlehem, PA 
18017 (610) 625-2200 

T & T Entemrises. LLC Mill Creek Road. Allentown. PA 18106 (610) 366-7484 

South Carolina: 

Verdana Investments LLC 
6001 Wade Hampton Blvd, Taylors, SC 
29687 (664) 848-0004 

Verdana Investments LLC 
13921 Asheville Highway, Gramling, SC 
29348 (864) 472-2424 

South Dakota: 

Holway, Leo 
1565 Haines Avenue, Rapid City, SD 
57702 (605) 791-5400 

Texas: 
AAN United Fortune. IncVMaaic Food 3505 South Street. Nacaodoches. TX 

(936)559-5461 USA. Inc. 75964 (936)559-5461 

Addison's Best BBQ Inc 
14999 Preston Rd Ste 100C, Dallas, TX 
75254 (972) 661-2006 

Addison's Best BBQ Inc 3711 Beltline Rd.. Addison. TX 75001 (972) 241-1800 

Afzal, Muhammad 
3320 Long Prairie, Flower Mound, TX 
75022 (972) 691-0197 

Afzal, Muhammad 
3220 E Hebron Pkwy, Carrallton, TX 
75010 (972) 307-1100 

Almeda Barbecue LLC 
1224 N Hwy 377 Ste 221, Roanoke. TX 
76262 (817)491-3100 

Arterbum Brothers LP 2324 McKinney Ave, Dallas, TX 75201 (214) 703-2591 
Arterbum Brothers LP 5745 SH 121. The Colony, TX 75056 (214) 703-2702 

Asia Modem LLC 
5330 N Macarthur Blvd Ste 168. Irving, 
TX 75038 (972) 580-1917 

Asia Modem LLC 3254 Irving Blvd, Dallas, TX 75247 (214) 638-5123 

Bar-B-Q Pit Stop No 1 LLC 
10700 Kuykendahl Rd Ste A, The 
Woodlands, TX 77381 (281)298-8422 

BCF Enterprises Inc 1301 Century Way. Wylie, TX 75098 (972)429-8525 

Bhatty. Sal 
661 Louis Henna Blvd.. Suite 330. 
Round Rock. Texas 78664 (630) 670-1354 

Brazos East Enterprises LLC 
2750 South Preston Road. Celina. TX 
75009 (972) 347-4788 

Buffalo Partners Ltd 2710 W Commerce, Buffalo, TX 75831 (903) 322-6666 

Carpenter. Dwain 
5001 US Hiahwav 227 S. Abilene. TX 
79605 (325) 695-0047 

Conrado Enterprises Inc 
2469 Dalworth St., Grand Prairie, TX 
75050 (972)641-9044 

CRL Enterprises LLC/Brodie LLC 
5350 Burnet Road, Suite 1, Austin, TX 
78756-2006 (512) 892-2283 

CRL Enterprises LLC/Brodie UC 
5207 Brodie Ste. 115. Sunset Vallev. TX 
78745 (512) 892-2283 

380 Crossroad Inc 2401 Hwy 380, Crossroads, TX 76227 (940)440-0514 
Curtis. Ryan 951 North Beach Street. Fort Worth. TX (682)64174)222 
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LIST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

76111 

CTTY Restaurant HoldlnqeCurtis. U=CRvan 

401 WWhitoctono251 Southwest Wilshire 
Blvd.. Ste C4O0126. Codar PorkBurieson. 
TX 786+376028-4700 (642817) 260295-44862006 

Curtis. Rvan 
6219 Oakmont Blvd.. Fort Worth. TX 
76132 (817)346-0110 

Dickey's Barbecue Pits Inc 4610 Central Expy. Dallas, TX 75206 (214) 370-4550 
Dickey's Barbecue Pits Inc 1211 14th St. Piano, TX 75074 (972) 423-9960 
Dickey's Barbecue Pits Inc 7770 Forest Ln, Dallas, TX 75230 (214) 691-1494 
Dickey's Barbecue Pits Inc 1441 Coit Rd Ste A, Piano, TX 75075 (972) 867-2901 

Do. Peter 
6531 FM 78. Suite 102. San Antonio. TX 
78244 (210)560-3227 

Dutch. John 7316 Louetta Road. Sorina. TX 77379 (281)251-2809 

Fatted Calf Holdings LLC 
1911 Taylor Street, Ste A, Houston, TX 
77007-3950 (832) 673-0077 

Faroa. Rao Umar 
4001 South Medford Drive. Suite 100. 
Lufkin. Texas 75901 

The Fort Worth Zoological Association 
1989 Colonial Pkwy, Fort Worth, TX 
76110 (817)759-7500 

Grace BBQ Ventures. Inc. 2912 N. Beltline Road. Irvina. TX 75062 (972) 255-0033 

Gruene Barbecue Unlimited LLC 
5695 Kvle Parkway. Suite 100. Kvle. TX 
78640 (512) 268-3200 

Haskell Restaurant Group LLC 
Hnft tv F r i r 1 ASS 

5210 WWadley Ave, Midland, TX 79707 (432) 689-4500 
\4 1 /^nc\ ClACi ATT4 

natrty, ciiu | tot 

Hersai USA LLC 
6011 FM 1488 Rd., Ste. A, Magnolia, TX 
77354 

r r | {o£.a) W4W 1 

(281)259-5619 

Hill. Kent 
1511 Justin Road Suite 118A. Lewisville. 

(972) 317-3400 Hill. Kent Texas 75077 (972) 317-3400 

Jai Ambedurqa, LLA 
717 Hebron Parkway. Suite 130. 
Lewisville. TX 75067 (214) 914-5414 

Jai Ambedurga LLC 
1001 N 1-35 E Ste 116A, Desoto, TX 
75115 (469) 567-8341 

JLB Barbecue LLC 
501 N Industrial Blvd Ste 100, Bedford, 
TX 76021 (817)354-5551 

JLB Barbecue LLC 
5412 Blue Mound Road, Fort Worth, TX 
76106-1942 (817)289-0030 

Johnson. Scottv 701 N. Main. Seminole. Texas 79360 (432) 209-0154 

Joni. LLC 
1418 North Loop 336 West. Conroe. TX 
77304 (936) 539-2560 

Judge Corporation 120 E. Highway 80, Forney, TX 75160 (972) 564-5577 

Kotufa Entemrises. LLC 
401 W Whitestone Blvd Ste CI 00. Cedar 
Park. TX 78613 (512) 250-1495 

Kotufa Entemrises LLC 
7247 Bandera Rd, San Antonio, TX 
78238 (210)543-9700 

Kotufa Entemrises LLC 
3107 TPC Pkwy Ste 106, San Antonio. 
TX 78259 (210)497-1177 

Kotufa Entemrises LLC 
834 NW Loop 410 Ste 105, San Antonio, 
TX 78216 (210)979-7733 

Kress Childs. LLC 
696 Hiqhwav 71 West. Bastrop. TX 
78602 (512) 772-4131 

Kwon Entemrises 
1 n P n l n n r n I I P 1 I T 

2445 W Northwest Hwy Ste 106, Dallas, 
TX 75220 (214) 350-3095 

c o c n t / n c e t c a i m - n 
t-o r cMfcHlUo-l_L.v» | I t L 

M & J BBQ Restaurants LLC 
1109 Bay Area Blvd., Houston, TX 
77058-2559 (281)286-7427 
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UST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Modem Pyramids Inc 
1700 Dalrock Road, Rowlett. TX 75088-
5501 (469) 368-0093 

MontgomoryNew. KemethGuv 

261 Southweot Wilchlro Blvd., Sto 126r-

110. Rowlett. TX 7602&47GG75089 (847972) 296412-20060667 

Ortiz. Luis 
2521 East US Exoresswav. Suite 100. 
Mission. TX 78572 (956) 682-6077 

Plutus Partners LLC 
2687Eldorado Parkway at Fm 423. Suite 
100. Little Elm, TX 75068 (469) 362-6776 

Preston 5 BBQ Inc (Dale Smith) 4032 Preston Rd, Piano, TX 75093 (972) 398-3030 
Preston 5 BBQ Inc (Dale Smith) 1150 N Piano Rd, Richardson, TX 75081 (972) 907-8494 
Preston 5 BBQ Inc (Dale Smith) 405 S Central Expy, Allen, TX 75013 (214) 495-8877 
Preston 5 BBQ Inc (Dale Smith) 3721 S I-35 E. Denton. TX 76210 (940) 566-5290 
Preston 5 BBQ Inc (Dale Smith) 8628 Hwy 121. McKinney. TX 75070 (972) 727-1300 
Pride Ventures, LLC 11824 FM 2305, Belton, TX 75613 (254) 780-9900 
The Promize Barbecue LLC 642 Uptown Blvd. Cedar Hill. TX 75034 (972) 291-3060 

Quirooa. Heriberto 
1201 South Jackson Road. Suite 9. 
Pharr. TX 78577-6859 (956) 631-2012 

Renaissance Advantage Group LLC 
3700 Gus Thomasson, Mesquite, TX 
75150 (972) 686-6822 

Restaurant Growth Inc 
2525 Wydiff Ave., Ste 130, Dallas, TX 
75219-2551 (214) 780-0999 

Restaurant Growth Inc 
600 N Central Expy, McKinney, TX 
75070 (972) 540-5340 

Rosario Enterprises Inc. 
1201 Elm SI , Ste. FC4, Dallas, TX 
75270 (214)760-2400 

Shallow Creek Restaurant 
Sidonm Inc 1 ir.' 

2919 Forest Lane, Dallas, TX 75234 (972)247-1534 
I i o n r w f t d 

Sidsam Inc 801 S Denton Tap Rd, Coppell, TX 
75019 (972) 393-7800 

Sidsam Inc 5530 S Cooper, Arlington, TX 76017 (817)468-0898 
Sidsam Inc 1009 N Hwy 77, Waxahachie, TX 75165 (972) 937-3030 

Simone-Jones LLC 
2297 Earl Rudder Fwy, College Station, 
TX 77840 (979) 696-5400 

Smoke and Fire Inc 
5412 Slide Rd Ste 100, Lubbock, TX 
79414 (806) 791-5300 

Fif&and-Smoke and Fire Inc 
5217 98^ St , Ste. 900, Lubbock, TX 
79424 (806)698-1798 

SNI Food Inc 9004 Garland Rd, Dallas, TX 75218 
L l A t i m n D n t t n m w C i . M n A ' i n 1 m i f ^ i n l l n T V T C f l C 

(214)321-7018 
7 \ A\ A e A * * 

Snyder Dickey's BBQ LLC 
4509 College Avenue, Snyder, TX 
79549-6012 (325) 436-0225 

Southwest Minority Financial Group Inc 
DFW Airport, Terminal A, Gate 19, 
Dallas. TX 75261 (972) 574-3798 

Southwest Minority Financial Group Inc 
DFW Airport, Terminal C, Gate 6, Dallas, 
TX 75261 (972) 574-3857 

Southwest Minority Financial Group Inc 
DFW Airport, Terminal E, Gate 12, 
Dallas, TX 75261 (972) 574-3867 

Summit Restaurants LP 1801 Ballpark Way, Arlington, TX 76006 (817) 261-6600 
Summit Restaurants LP 711 Keller Pkwy, Keller, TX 76248 (817)741-7676 

Summit Restaurants LP 
451 University Drive. Fort Worth. TX 
76107 (817)231-8813 

Texas Prime Cuts. LLC 4520 Sherwood Way. Ste. 109. San (325)9494271 
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UST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Anaelo.TX 76901 

TOG Restaurant Group LLC 
2951 Ridge Rd Ste 119, Rockwall, TX 
75032 (972) 771-7205 

Thomason. Laura 
601-C St. Hwv. 75 N. Huntsville. TX 
77320 (936) 295-8700 

TLC Restaurants LLC 1858 Precinct Line Rd, Hurst, TX 76054 (817)656-0200 
1413 West Buckingham R w A Qarland, 
TX 75042 (972) 530-3137 

VabaWaVahala. Mark 7070 Preston Road, Frisco, TX 75034 (972) 377-7679 

WMameVahala. AndrewMark 
642 Uptown Blvd. Cedar HIII6841 Warren 
Parkway. Suite 205. Frisco. TX 75034 (872214) 283705-86629120 

WDoualass Distributina Ltd. 
529 W. Lamar Street. Sherman. TX 
75090 (903) 870-2083 

Waaner. Stephen 6838 Westheimer. Houston. TX 77057 (713) 278-0435 
WRAB LLC 260 N Kimball Ave, Southlake, TX 76092 (817)442-5700 
Yi, Chris 726 N Harwood, Dallas, TX 75201 (214)740-1661 

3911 Lawrence Road. Suite 600 (940) 692-4227 

Utah: 

Finger Lickin' Brands LLC 
1385 State Street, Orem, UT 84097-
8012 (801)898-7600 

Finger Lickin' Brands LLC 
599 West Pacific Drive, American Fork, 
UT 84003-1695 (801)492-0400 

Finaer Lickin' Brands LLC 
2592 South 5600 West #103. West 
Vallev. UT 84120 (801)969-6600 

Finger Lickin' Brands LLC 
1846 South 335 West. Suite A Salt Lake 

(801)467-6984 Finger Lickin' Brands LLC Citv. UT 64115 (801)467-6984 
Galli Adventures and Event Plannina 595 South Main Street. Heber Citv. UT 

(435) 657-2276 LLC 84032 (435) 657-2276 

Huang.Jason 
138000 S. Ganaerter Hwv.. Draper. UT 
84020 (801)803-6866 

Huana.Jason 
5578 South Redwood Road. Suite 0. 
TaviorsviHe. UT 84123 (801)803-6848 

VWensJensen. U=CMel and Bonnie 
2610 S. Pioneer Drive, St. George, UT 
84790-7442 (435) 674-1206 

Virginia: 

TCB Foods incHenshaw. Terrv 

1017 Wards Rood, Lynchburg9809 West 
Broad Street. Glen Allen. VA 24602-
204323060 (434804) 237527-64661318 

Premier Group Properties LLC 
1555 Meadowview Drive, Danville, VA 
24541-7333 (434) 685-3446 

TCB Foods Inc 
4017 Wards Road, Lyn^bgrq, VA 
24502-2943 (434) 237-8465 

Washinoton: 

C&D BBQ Foods LLC 
8082 Guide Meridian Road. Ste 103. 
Lvnden.WA 98264 (360) 656-5861 

Deopina. Garv 
1118 Suoermeil Wav Southwest Suite 
105. Auburn. WA 98001 (253) 333-2991 

Frgghe Fusion LLC 
21109 Highway 410. Suite G4A. Bonnev 

(2$?) 381-7747 Frgghe Fusion LLC Lake. WA 98390 (2$?) 381-7747 
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UST OF CURRENT OUTLETS 

Franchisee Address of Outlet Telephone No. of Outlet 

Wisconsin: 

Dibble. Steve 
4833 Annamark Drive, Suite 200, 
Madison. WI 53704 (6081 249-4205 

Pekol. Daniel 
311 E. Clairmont Ave.. Eau Claire. Wl 
54701 (7151 830-9790 

Wyoming: 

Solano, Victor and Lesley 
76 Gateway Blvd., Rock Springs, WY 
82901-5709 (307) 382-7427 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES WITH TERMINATED, CANCELLED OR NON-RENEWED OUTLETS, 
WHO CEASED TO DO BUSINESS OR HAVE NOT RECENTLY COMMUNICATED WITH DICKEY'S 

Franchisee City State Current Business 
Telephone No. or 

Alternative Contact 
Information 

Barbecue LLC 
ManaqomontP & R 

»Phoenix 
Circo'G BBQ LLC Burbank 

GAAZ 
GA 

(848623) 369451-93497538 
i M f f t QfiK-Wfirifi 
\w i ++j v w vXrwsM 

JSC & AcoodatosAbbevhill 
Entemrises LLC 
Saddleback B B Q S o C a l L L C 

Hacienda HeightsUncoln CA 
Lake ForestCorona 

(626916) 330253^4689235 
CA (848909) 462985-84469504 

Nauven. Anthonv & Theresa Dublin CA 
Cooper Pfopertioo of So FL LLCRigney , 
David & Eva 

(510) 364-3652 

MiamiEdmonton H=KY (306270) g48406^3§80885 
Gabriel PedrazaElledae. Samuel HomeotoodWest Bloomfield H=MI 
Warren Restauranto L L C O m e a r a . T i m 
& Julie 

(3QS248) 634470-68006258 

TallahasseeApple V a l l e y FtMN (860952) 264342-24234246 
Wfa4=LGMiller, Jacob T. MeridianMankato IOMN 
BertfamSnover. RvaftEric & J o n Mount VemonMinneapol is 

(308507) 472236-444^5988 
w=MN (648952) 346342-06604246 

LawrenceSavegh. MtehaeiMHad WoodstockBronx w=NY (846914) 3Q29Q6-482Q0437 
BGK-Ri 
Barbeque LLC 

tummit 
BioomingtonKinq of Prussia INPA (843610) 828799-26900943 

iKellyA. Stacey 
and Leo R. Holwav 

BethesdaPennington 
County M D S D 

Chesterfield MO 
(972605) 674391 -87438742 

Southomor'G Comor LLC Concord NC 
J & R Diooount Liquors ktc 
OptimarBBQ LLC 

Bay Shorn NY 
Mlddletown NY 

(626) 330 4468 
(718) 801-7968 

EnglefioM Inc OH (740) 928 8215 
Boavorton OR 

Great Tasting Barbecue Inc Columbia TN (931)360-8429 
Carrera's Que LLC Grand Prairie TX (972) 237-7766 
Gary Colwell ai Corpus Christ! TX (361)852-0323 
Forooshanl, Karim Addison TX (972) 241-1800 

BWvWe TX (830) 980 2622 
ROPCQSnvder Dickev's BBQ 
Concepts L L C LafedoBiq Spring TX (966817) 726307-65606722 
Williams. Andrew Cedar Hill TX (469) 426-1345 
Select Food Enterprise IncBishop. 
Jacob DaiiasClear Lake TX (214) 349674-06926658 
siPSAMMontqomerv, incKenneth 
Chen. David Corsicana TX (801)362-4968 

SLKfiATTarkham. Ahmed El Paso 

Investments. LLC 
^Thompson 

iQuiroga. Heriberto 
U801THorr3021mpn9676& Do lo res 

Longview 

^ISISVAAIexandriaLLCMcAllen 

TX 

S210mLAn347tQpi1^28o(915) The-
Hanry & Joooph Company LLC383-

1962 

TX (903) 646-7470 

TX (214)415-6549 
JR BBQ, Inc. Rowlett TX (208) 921-0062 
GEM Investment Group LLC Olympia WA (253) 380-6927 
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NOTES: 

(1) The above table lists information for each franchisee who had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not 
renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under a Franchise Agreement 
during the most recent completed fiscal year, or who have not communicated with Dickey's within ten 
(10) weeks of the issuance date of this disclosure document 

(2) IF YOU BUY THIS FRANCHISE, YOUR CONTACT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED TO 
OTHER BUYERS WHEN YOU LEAVE THE FRANCHISE SYSTEM. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK! 
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INFORMATION REGARDING PREVIOUSLY-OWNED FRANCHISED OUTLETS UNDER 
FRANCHISOR'S CONTROL 

Ownefrahchisee City 
* 

State Current 
Business 
Tel. No./ 

Last 
Known 

Home Tel; 
No. 

Time Period 
When Previous 

OwBorFranchispe 
Controlled Outlet 

Reason For 
Change in 
Ownership 

Time Period When 
Franchisor Retained 

Control of Outlet 

DBPF, LLC Rockwall TX (214) 695-
8757 

October 2007-
July 2009 

Partnership 
Dispute 

July 2009 - Present 

Abundant Food 
Services, Inc. 

Dallas TX (972-237-
78667859 

December 2006 
-August 2009 

Financial 
Hardship 

August 2009 -
Present 

313 
Investments, Inc. 

Louisville CO (303) 926-
1484 

June 2006-
October 2009 

Financial 
Hardship 

October 2009-
Present 

M.A. Goens, Inc. McKinney TX (615) 521-
0841 

August 2003-
September 2010 

Financial 
Hardship 

September 2010 -
Present 

NOTES: 

(1) The above information for each outlet listed is for the time period constituting Dickey's last five (5) 
fiscal years. 

(2) Control of the above outlet was retained by RGI. 

During the last three (3) fiscal years, Dickey's franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses. In some 
instances current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their 
experience with the System. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware 
that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you. 

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the System known to Dickey's. 

ITEM 21 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following audited financial statements are attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A: 

1. Audited balance sheet of Dickey's as of May 31, 20442012, and related statement of operations, 
shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. . 

2. Audited balance sheet of Dickey's as of May 31, 20402011. and related statement of operations, 
shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. 

3. Audited balance sheet of Dickey's as of May 31, 20092010, and related statement of operations, 
shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. 
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ITEM 22 
CONTRACTS 

Attached to this Disclosure Document are copies of the following contracts and agreements (and the 
attachments thereto) regarding the franchise offering: 

1. Franchise Agreement (attached as Exhibit B) 

2. Development Agreement (attached as Exhibit C only if you are considering more than one (1) 
Restaurant) 

3. Trademark License Agreement (attached as Exhibit D) 

ITEM 23 
RECEIPTS 

Two (2) copies of a detachable acknowledgement of receipt are attached to this Disclosure Document as 
Exhibit GF. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 
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EXHIBIT A 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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EXHIBIT B 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
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EXHIBIT C 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
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EXHIBIT D 

TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENTOPERATIONS MANUAL 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
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TRADEMARK LICENSI 

This Amended and Restated Trademark License Agreement, originally made and entered into effective as 
of (although not necessarily on) March 1, 1994, is hereby amended and restated as of June 1, 2011, by 
and between Dickey's Barbecue Pit, Inc., a Texas corporation, with its principal place of business at 801 E. 
Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 76074 ("DBPI"), and Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas 
corporation with its principal place of business at 801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074 
("DBRI"). 

WHEREAS, DBPI has developed and acquired valuable rights and goodwill in certain trade names and 
service marks including the name and mark "Dickey's", the service marks attached hei 
and all logos, insignias, and trade dress asso< 

IBPI owns all right, title and interest in the registrations from the United States Patent and 
ice for the service marks described on Exhibit "A" and all goodwill assoc 

WHEREAS, the above-described trade name, trademark, 
registrations, and applications, together with all goodwill and rights 
sometimes collectivelv referred to as the "Marks". 

inia, trade dress, 
nth, are hereinafter 

is to grant DBRI an exclusive license to use and sublicense the Marks in 
connection with the business to be conducted by DBRI and its sublicensees, subject to DBPI's right to 
control the standard of services offered under the Marks and subject to DBPI's ongoing rights 
utilize the Marks for its own account. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of $10.00 and other good and valuable 
consideration, tho receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged and confessed: DBPI and DBRI 
hereby agree as follows: 

4T DBPI hereby grants to DBRI 
under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

laid right to use the Marks on a worldwide basis 
The license hereby granted shall be exclusive; save and 

IPI reserves the right to use the Marks for its own account in accordance with Paragraph 7 
hereof.—DBRI hereby accepts such license and agrees to be bound by and subject to the terms and 
conditions hereof. DBPI and DBRI shall from time to time reach agreement upon or modify the amount of 
royalty fees to be paid by DBRI to DBPI for the license granted hereunder; provided, that the amount of 
such royalty shall nevor oxcoed a commercially reasonable amount in accordance with standard industry 
practices. 

2r In order to protect the goodwill associated with the Marks, and in order to prevent any deception to 
the public, DBRI shall insure that all services provided under the Marks shall conform to such standards 
and specifications as to quality as may be prescribed by DBPI and approved by DBRI from time to time. 
DBPI and DBRI agree that the use of the Marks shall be limited to the promotion and operation of Dickey's 
restaurants by DBRI or its licensees, the promotion, marketing, and selling of Dickey's franchises by DBRI 
or its sublicensees, and any other use necessary or incident thereto. Any other use of the Marks shall 
require the prior written consent of DBPI, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

3r DBPI specifically authorizes DBRI to sublicense the Marks to third parties which own and operate 
"Dickey's" restaurants pursuant to franchise agreements entered into with DBRI. DBRI agrees that it shall 
diligently monitor its sublicensees' use of the Marks in order to insure that all service provided under said 
Marks conforms to such standards and specifications as to quality which may be prescribed by DBPI and 
approved by DBRI. DBPI specifically acknowledges that the restrictions on the use of the Marks set forth in 
DBRI's franchising program and franchise agreements comply with DBPI's standards and specifications. 
DBRI agrees to notify DBPI in writing of any unauthorized use of the Marks by any thin 
franchisees in good standing under their 
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Ar DBRI acknowledges that DBPI is the sole owner of the Marks and that all goodwill arising from the 
use of said Marks by DBRI shall inure to the benefit of DBPI. DBPI shall have the right to inspect and 
observe the uses made by DBRI or its sublicensees of the Marks, and DBRI agrees to supply DBPI upon 
request, specimens of its use of the Marks. 

& DBPI will maintain in good standing and police the Marks against any infringing use. At the request 
of DBRI, DBPI will file suit or take appropriate legal action against infringing third parties and/or defend the 
Marks against conflicting claims asserted by third parties. DBPI shall give DBRI prompt written notice of 
any third party claim asserted or of any infringing use by any third party with respect to the Marks, shall 
consult with DBRI with respect to policing or defending the Marks, and shall allow 
and become a party to any litigation or proceeding relating to the Marks. 

& 
marks for Dickey's. 

and warrants to DBRI that it will diligi is federally registered service 

7r DBPI warrants and represents to DBRI that its use of the Marks will be limited to the geographical 
areas outside the assigned territory of any licensee of DBRI under a validly existing franchise agreement 
not in default. DBPI agrees that it shall not utilize the Marks nor further license the use of the Marks in 
connection with any Restaurant within the assigned territory of any licensee of DBRI under a validly existing 
franchise agreement not in default. 

dr A party shall be in default hereunder if it breaches any covenant or agreement set forth herein or if 
it files or has filed against it a bankruptcy proceeding, if a final non appealable judgment in excess of 
$10,000 is taken against such party without being satisfied within thirty (30) days, if such party generally 

87 Any party alleging a default thereunder shall give the defaulting party written notice detailing with 
specificity the nature of the default and affording the defaulting party a thirty (30) day period in which to 
cure such default. In the event the defaulting party fails to cure such default within such thirty (30) day 
period, the defaulting party shall have the right to terminate this License Agreement by written notice to the 
nondefaulting party and/or pursue such relief or remedies as may be available at law or in equity. Upon 
termination of this License Agreement, the rights of DBRI or its licenses to use the Marks shall be modified 
as follows: (i) DBRI shall no longer be entitled to utilize or license to new franchisees the right to use the 
Marks, (ii) DBPI shall be entitled to use and license to third parties the right to use the Marks, (iii) DBRI 
shall, at DBPI's request, assign to DBPI DBRI's right, title and interest in and to all franchise agreements 
with franchisees; and (iv) any then existing franchisee of DBRI to whom the right to utilize the Marks has 
been licensed may continue to utilize the Marks until the expiration of the term of its franchise agreement 
and any renewal or option periods available or afforded to such franchisee at law or by agreement. 

certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the appropriate party at the address for such party set 
forth hereinabove, and shall be deemed received five (5) days following deposit in a regularly maintained 
receptacle for the United States mail, postage prepaid, and delivered as aforesaid.—Either party may 

add ret 

44T This License Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder, shall continue for 
an indefinite term unless and until the parties otherwise agree in writing. 

42T Except for DBRI's right to license the Marks to franchisees, neither party shall have the right to 
assign or transfer its rights, duties, privileges and obligations hereunder without the prior consent of the 

43r Each party hereby represents and warrants to the other that the parties executing this License 
Agreement on their behalf are duly authorized to enter into this License Agreement and that, upon full 

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT - MINNESOTA 
^2012-2013 Disclosure Documentdoc: - -

Final: 09^)1-2012 _ 
ExhIWDj 



execution, this License Agreomont will constitute the legal and binding agreement of the parties, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

447 This License Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
United States of America and the State of Texas and shall be performable in Collin County, Texas. 

4& Subject to the restrictions against ascignmont and transfer as set forth herein, this License 
Agreement shall inuro to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and assigns. 

4& This License Agreement 
hereto. 

>nly by mutual agreement in writin; 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this License Agreement as of the day 
and year first above set forth. 

DICKEYS BARBECUE PIT, INC., 
a Texas corporation 

Roland Dickey, Jr.. President 
©yf im 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAl 
a Texas corporation 

Byf U%U 
Roland Dickey, Jr., President 
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EXHIBIT " A " 
to Trademark Llcenco Agrooment 

SERVICE MARKS 

Description Country 

le Pit since 1941 3.205:121 February 6, 2007 

Dickey's United States -3;237,281; y \May 1, 2007 

A Texas tradition since 1941 United States 1,980,072 /June 11, 1996; 
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OPERATIONS MANUAL 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FIRST: 

• History 

• Brand Promise 

• Scorecard 

• Open to Close 

• Principles 

• Top 10 

• Team Training Guide 

• Move with the Food 

No. Pages-4423 

OUR-FOOD: 

• Gold Standards 

• Pictures of Procedures 

• Recipe Book 

• Catering Book 

• Purchasing 

• Sysco Guide 

No. Pages-#728 

OU&FOLKS: 

• Team Positions 
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• Leading and Training 

• Best Hiring Presentation 

• AlebaHouriv Team Training Guide 

• Guest Service Best Hiring Presentation 

• Aloha Guide 

No. Pages - #638. 

OUR-FACILITIES: 

• Tour of Dickey's 

• Set-Up for Success 

• Three Compartment Sink 

• Cleaning & Maintenance 

No. Pages-4420 

FINANCIALS: 

• KPI's 
• Financials 

• MSR 

• Accounting 

• Daily Numbers 

• Cash Handling 

• Schedule 

• Dickeys.net 

No. Pages - 7624 

FOUNDATION: 

• Operations Department 
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• Marketing Department 

• Legal Department 

• IT Department 

No. Pages - #462 

FINAL STEPS TO OPENFASTFORWARD: 

• Steps to Opening 

• Phases and Stages 

• Construction Process Checklist 

• Key Vendor Contacts 

>n List 

in to Arrival 

• Benchmark Lists 

• Sample Opening Sign Offs 

• Training Quizzes 

• Small-Wares Order 

No. Pages -2628 

FORMS & SIGNSAPPENDIX: 

No. Pages-7077 

TOTAL NO. PAGES - 666300 
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EXHIBIT FE 

DIRECTORY OF AGENCIES 

The following list contains names, addresses and telephone numbers of state and federal agency 
personnel having responsibility for franchising disclosure/registration laws and selected business 
opportunity laws. Entries for the Federal Trade Commission appear at the end of the list 
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CALIFORNIA 
Department of Corporations 
Securities Regulations Division 
Los Angeles 
320 West 4 * St., Suite 750 
Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344 
(213) 576-7500 (866)275-2677 
Sacramento 
1515 K. St. Suite 200 
Sacramento, CA 95814-4052 
(916)445-7205 
San Diego 
1350 Front St., Room 2034 
San Diego, CA 92101-3697 
(619)525-4233 
San Francisco 
71 Stevenson Street, Suite 2100 
San Francisco, CA 94105-2980 
(415) 972 8559 

CONNECTICUT 
Department of Banking 
Securities and Business Investment Division 
260 Constitutional Plaza 
Hartford, CT 06103 
(860) 240-8229 

FLORIDA 
Department of Agriculture and 
Division of Consumer Services 
P.O. Box 6700 
Tallahassee, FL 32314 
(850) 488-2221 

HAWAII 
Commissioner of Securities 
Business Regulation Division 
Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
335 Merchant Street. Rm 205 
Honolulu, HI 96813 
(808) 586-2722 

ILLINOIS 
Franchise Bureau . 
Office of Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield. IL 62706 
(217)782-4465 

NEW YORK 
Office of Attorney General 
Franchise Section 
120 Broadway. 23* Floor 
New York, NY 10271 
(212) 416-8222 

NORTH DAKOTA 
Securities Department 
600 E. Boulevard Ave. 
State Capitol - 5 t h Floor 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 

Consumer Services, 

INDIANA 
Indiana Securities Division 
Franchise Section 
Indiana Government Center South 
302 West Washington, Room E-111 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317)232-6681 

IOWA 
Director of Regulated Industries Unit 
Iowa Securities Bureau 
340 Maple 
Des Moines, IA 50319 
(515)281-4441 

MARYLAND 
Office of Attorney General 
Securities Division 
200 Saint Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

MICHIGAN 
Department of Attorney General 
Consumer Protection Division 
Antitrust and Franchise Unit 
670 Law Building 
Lansing, Ml 48913 
(517)373-7117 

MINNESOTA 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 
Registration Division 
85 7 t h Place East, Suite 500 
St. Paul, MN 55101-21198 
(612) 296-6328 

NEBRASKA 
Department of Banking and Finance 
1230 "O" Street, Suite 400 
Lincoln, NE 68509-5006 
(402) 471-3445 

WASHINGTON 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 
P.O. Box 9033 
Olympia, WA 98507-9033 
(360) 902-8760 

WISCONSIN 
Division of Securities 
Department of Financial Institutions 
P.O. Box 1768 
Madison, Wl 53701 
(608) 266-8557 
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(701)328-2910 

OREGON 
Department of Consumer and Business Services 
Division of Finance and Corporate Securities 
Labor and Industries Building 
Salem, OR 97310 
(503) 378-4140 

RHODE ISLAND 
Department of Business Regulation 
Securities Division 
John O. Pastore Complex 
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 69-1 
Cranston, RI 02910 
(401)222-3048 

SOUTH DAKOTA 
Department of Revenue and Regulation 
Division of Securities 
445 East Capitol Avenue 
Pierre, SD 57501-3185 
(605) 773-5953 

TEXAS 
Statutory Document Section 
Secretary of State 
P.O. Box 12887 
Austin, TX 78711 
(512) 475-1769 

UTAH 
Division of Consumer Protection 
Department of Commerce 
160 East 300 South 
P.O. Box 146704 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6704 
(801) 530-6601 

VIRGINIA 
State Corporations Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising 
P:0. Box 1197 
Richmond, VA 23218 
(804) 371-9051 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
Division of Marketing Practices 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Pennsylvania Avenue at 6th Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202)326-3128 
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RECEIPT 

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION IN PLAIN LANGUAGE. READ THIS DISCLOSURE 
DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY. 

IF DICKEYS OFFERS YOU A FRANCHISE, IT MUST PROVIDE THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO 
YOU FOURTEEN (14) CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH, OR 
MAKE A PAYMENT TO, THE FRANCHISOR OR AN AFFILIATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
PROPOSED FRANCHISE SALE (OR EARLIER PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE STATE LAW). 

IF DICKEYS DOES NOT DELIVER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ON TIME OR IF IT CONTAINS A 
FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, OR A MATERIAL OMISSION, A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND 
STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE FEDERAL TRADE 
COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580 AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE AGENCIES AT THE 
ADDRESSES NOTED ON EXHIBIT FE. 

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each applicable franchise seller offering 
the franchise is: . 

Dickey's authorized agent to receive service of process in the State of Minnesota is Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce, 85 7th Place East, Suite 500, St Paul, MN 55101, with a copy to Dickey's at 
801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074; Attn: Roland Dickev. Jr. 

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each applicable franchise seller offering 
the franchise is: . 

The issuance date of the Disclosure Document is: September 1.20—2012. 

I received the Disclosure Document on . , 20 that included the following Exhibits: 

1. Exhibit A - Financial Statements 
2. Exhibit B - Franchise Agreement 
3. Exhibit C - Development Agreement (included only if you are considering more than one (1) 

Restaurant) 
4. Exhibit D - Trademark License Agreements. Exhibit E Operations Manual Table of Contents 
65. Exhibit FE_- Directory of Agencies 
76. Exhibit GF_- Receipts 

Signed: 
Print Name: 
Title: 
Address: 

Telephone No.: 
Email: 
Dated: 
Individually or as an Officer of: 

You must return a fully completed and signed copy of this Receipt to: 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 
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801 E. Piano Parkway, #135 
Piano, Texas 75074 
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RECEIPT 

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION IN PLAIN LANGUAGE. READ THIS DISCLOSURE 
DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY. 

IF DICKEY'S OFFERS YOU A FRANCHISE, IT MUST PROVIDE THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO 
YOU FOURTEEN (14) CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH, OR 
MAKE A PAYMENT TO, THE FRANCHISOR OR AN AFFILIATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
PROPOSED FRANCHISE SALE (OR EARLIER PURSUANT TO APPLICABLE STATE LAW). 

IF DICKEY'S DOES NOT DELIVER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ON TIME OR IF IT CONTAINS A 
FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, OR A MATERIAL OMISSION, A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND 
STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE FEDERAL TRADE 
COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580 AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE AGENCIES AT THE 
ADDRESSES NOTED ON EXHIBIT FE. 

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each applicable franchise seller offering 
the franchise is: . 

Dicke/s authorized agent to receive service of process in the State of Minnesota is Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce, 85 7th Place East, Suite 500, St Paul, MN 55101, with a copy to Dickey's at 
801 E. Piano Parkway, #135, Piano, Texas 75074: Attn: Roland Dickev. Jr. 

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each applicable franchise seller offering 

The issuance date ofthe Disclosure Document is: September 1. 20—2012. 

I received the Disclosure Document on , 20 that included the following Exhibits: 

1. Exhibit A - Financial Statements 
2. Exhibit B - Franchise Agreement 
3. Exhibit C - Development Agreement (included only if you are considering more than one (1) 

Restaurant) 
4. Exhibit D - Trademark License Agreements. Exhibit E - Operations Manual Table of Contents 
65. Exhibit FE_- Directory of Agencies 
76. Exhibit GF_- Receipts 

Signed: 
Print Name: 
Title: . 
Address: 

Telephone No.: 
Email: 
Dated: 
Individually or as an Officer of: 

You must return a fully completed and signed copy of this Receipt to: 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 
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6.1. Corporation, Partnership or Limited Liability Company 9 
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D I C K E Y ' S B A R B E C U E R E S T A U R A N T S , INC. 
F R A N C H I S E A G R E E M E N T 

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into and effective on the 
Effective Date (herein so called) stated below, by and between DICKEYS BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, 
INC., a Texas corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Franchisor" or "Dickey's", and the person or entity 
identified below in the Owner/OoeratorFranchisee Summary as the Owner/OoeratorFranchisee. 
hereinafter referred to as the "Owner/OoeratorFranchisee" or "you". The purpose of this Agreement is to 
set forth the terms and conditions of the business relationship between Franchisor and the 
Owner/OoeratorFranchisee. 

OWNER/OPERATORFRANCHISEE SUMMARY 

EFFECTIVE DATE (Date Executed by Dickey's): 

TERM: Twenty (201 Years from Effective Date 

REQUIRED OPENING DATE: One (1) Year from Effective Date 

OWNER/OPERATORFRANCHISEE: 

BUSINESS ENTITY: corporation/ partnership/ individual/ limited liability company, 
formed under the laws of: 

OWNER/OPERATOR'SFRANCHISEE'S ADDRESS: 

OWNER/OPERATOR'SFRANCHISEE'S TELEPHONE: 

OWNER/OPERATOR'SFRANCHISEE'S FACSIMILE: 

OWNI ^FRANCHISEE 'S E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

ATTORNEY OR ADVISOR: 

ATTORNEYS OR ADVISOR'S ADDRESS: 

FRANCHISE FEE: | ROYALTY: MARKETING FUND: 
$15,000.00 5% 4% 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT - MINNESOTA 
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W I T N E S S E D 

W H E R E A S O ickey has acqoirad the ^ 
e^ertaodmaoey has developed aoo iquaaod distinctive system relating te the estahiishment and 
operation of quick style restaurants under the name and mark "Oickey's Barbecue Pit" (each a 
"Pestaurant")featuring thesale of freshly-prepared barbecued meatsand other food products (the 
"Systems 

W H E R E A S the distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without l i m ^ 
and interiordesign, decor, color schemeandfumishings; special recipesand menu items, uniform 
standards, specifications and procedures for o p e r a s 
inventory and management control, training and assistance and advertising and promotional progr^^ 
ofwhich may be changed,improved and further developed by Oickey's from time to time; 

WHEREAS, Oickey's has determined to continue development of the System through the granting of 
franchises using certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, symbols, logos^ name and emblems, 
and indicia of origin,including but not limited to the mark "Oickey's Barbecue Pit''and such o t h e r s 
names, service marks and trademarks as Oickey's may develop in thefuture to identify for the p u b l i c s 
source of services and products marketed underthese marks and underthe System and representing the 
System'shigh standards ofquality, appearance, and service(collectively^ the "Proprietary 

WHEREAS, you acknowledge the Importance of Oickey's high standards of quality, cleanliness, 
appearance and customer service and the necessity of operating the business franchised hereunder in 
conformitywith Oickey's standards and specifications;and 

WHEREAS,you desire to use the System in connection with the operation ofaRestaurant under the 
name "Pickets Barbecue Pit''at the location specified hereunder as well as to receive and apply the 
trainingandotherassistanceprovided by Oickey's in connection therewith; 

NOW,THEREPORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments set f o ^ 
herein, thereceiptandsuf^ciencyofwhich are hereby acknowledged, agree as follows: 

ART IOLELPRANOHISE 

1^ ORANT Oickey's hereby grants to you, upon the terms and conditions in this Agreement, the 
right and franchise, and you undertake the obligation, to develop and operatea"Oickey's Barbecue P ^ 
Restaurant (your"Restaurant"or"franchisedbusiness") and to use, solely in connection with your 
operation of the Restaurant, the Proprietary Marks and the System, as such may be changed, improved 
and further developed by Oickey's from time to time, only at the Accepted Location (as defined 
l ^w i th in the Assigned Area (as defined in A r t i c l e l ^ 

1.2 AOOEPTEOLOOATION The "Accepted Location" shall be the leased site foryour Restaurant 
in the Assigned Area accepted by Oickey's pursuant to A r t i c l e d You shall not relocate the franchised 
business without the prior written consent of Oickey's. This Agreement does not grant you the right or 
franchise to operate the Restaurant or to offer or sell any products or services described under this 
Agreementatorfromanyotherlocation 

1.3 ASSIONEOAREA The"AssionedArea"isdescribedasfollows: 
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Poorto yoordesignation and O i c ^ 
franohisos to open and operate Restaurants^ 
large enough for you to iooate, establish and operateaRestaurant within suoh Assign At suoh 
time as you looate and Oiokey'saooepts the proposed looation within the Assigned Area, the Assi^^ 
Area shall automatioally and without requirement of further action he reduced to an area withinao 
mile radius of the Accepted Location^Opon Oickey's request, the Accepted L o c a ^ 
in writing, in such form andsuhstance acceptable to Oickey's, which describes the location of the 
Accepted Location and is executed by you and Oickey's. Notwithstanding, Oickey's, and any Oickey's 
owner/ooeratorfranchisee and anv other author^ed person or e n ^ may, at any timê  advertise and 
promote the System, orfulfill customer ordera (including but not limited to catering and d e l ^ 
in the Assigned Area, and Oickey's may offer and sell (and at^orize others to offer and sell) produce 
and services which may be similarto those offered by the Restaurant, underthe Proprietary Mar̂ ^̂  
AssignedArea, if offered and sold other than throughaRestaurant (e.g., product and catalog sales 
through direct mailings or Internet sales, pre-packaged food items through grocery stores or 
supermarkets,lntemetsales,or memorabilia or recipes through other ratail outlets). Except for the 
foregoing,during the term of this Agreement, Oickey's willnot establish and operate or license or 
authorize any other party to establish or operateaOickey's Barbecue Restaurant within the Assigned 
Area. 

ARTIOLE^TERMANORENEWAL 

2.1 INITIALTERM. Except as otherwise provided herein, the initial term of this Agreement shall 
expiretwenty(20)yearsfromthe Effective Oate ofthis Agreement. 

2.2 RENEWAL You may, at your option, renew the franchise granted hereunder for an additional 
term of ten (10) years, such teirn to begin upon the expiration of the initial term, s u b ^ 
conditions, all ofwhich (as determined by Oickey's) must be satisfied priorto such renewal: 

1. Youshall give Oickey's writtennotice of your election to renew not less than six (S) 
monthsnormorethantwelve(12)monthspriortotheend ofthe initial term; 

2. You shall repair or replace, at your cost and expense, equipment, (including computer 
hardwareandsoftware), signs, menu boards(interiorand drive-through, asapplicable), interior and 
exterior decor items,flxtures,fumishings, supplies and other products and materials required for the 
operation of your Restaurant as Oickey's may reasonably require and you shall obtain, at your cost and 
expense, any neworadditional equipment, fixtures, supplies and other products and materials which may 
be reasonably required by Oickey's for you to offer and sell new menu items from your Restaurant or to 
provide your Restaurant's services by alternative means suchas drive-through, carry-out or delivery 
arrangements and shall otherwise modernize your Restaurant promises (including, without l i m ^ 
modernization of your Restaurant to conform to Oickey 
requirements), equipment (including computer hardware and software), signs, menu boards (̂ ^̂  
drive t̂hrough, as applicable), interior and exterior decor items, fixtures, furnishings, supplies, 
products and materials required for the operation of your Restaurant, as reasonably required by Oickey^s 
to reflect the then-curront standards and image of the System as contained in the Manuals (as de^^^ 
Article 0.S) or otherwise providedin writing by Oickey's; provided, that youshallnotberequired to 
modernize your Restaurant more frequently than once everyfive(O) years, that Oickey's shall provide y^^ 
withareasonabletimeperiodwithinwhichtoeffectsuchrepairs, roplacements or acquisitions, and 
the total cost of such repairs, replacements or acquisitions during any five (S) year period shallnot 
exceed^0,00000; 

0. You shall not be in default of any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement 
between you and Oickey's or its subsidiaries or affiliates; and you shall have substantially and timely 
complied with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and such other agreements during their 
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tern^ 

4 Yoo have satisfiad all manatary ahligatians awad hy yau ta Okay ' s and its 
sohsidiar iasandaf^iatasondarthis^ 
sohsidiariasara^liatasandshalihavatimalymatthasaohligationsthrou^ 

5. Yooshali peasant avidanca satisfactory to Oickay's that yaohavatha right taromai^ 
possession afthaAccaptad Location forthad 

6. You shaii axacuta Oickey's then-current form of franchise aoreemenL and your 
Owner/Ooerator and investors shall executeaoersonalouaranty for the renewal term^whic^ 
shall supersede this Agreement and any prior franchise agreement relating to your Restaurant in ail 
respects, and the terms of which may differ from the terms of this Agreement and may include, ŵ  
limitation, a higher royalty fee, Marketing Fund (asdefined in ArticleO^contrihution, or minimum 
advertising expenditure requirement; 

7. Youshall pay Oickey'safranchise renewal fee of $10,000.00; 

0. To the extent not prohibited hy applicable law, you and vour Owner/Ooerator and 
Investors shall executeaoeneralrelease^inafonn prescribed bv Oickey's. of anv and all claims vou may 
have, of whatever nature or kind, against Oickey's and its subsidiaries and affiliates and their res^^ 
officers, directors, shareholders, partners, employees, servants, representatives, indepen 
and agents, in their corporate and individual capacities, including without l i m i t a ^ 
this Agreement and any other agreement between you and Oickey's or its subsidiaries or a f f i l e 
underanyfederal,stateand local laws, rulesand ordinances; and 

0. You shall complywlth Oickey's then-currentqualification and training requirement 

Ifanyoftheaboverequirementsarenotsatisfied pursuantthis A r t i c l e d , to the extent requiro^ 
Stat. 00O.14, Subd.4,Oickey's shall provide you withawritten notice of its intention not to renew at 
one hundred eighty (100) days in advance of the expiration of the Agreement should you fail to^correc^ 
any reasons for termination upon having received written notice setting forth all reasons for the 
termination at least ninety (00) days in advance of termination and (ii) you shall have failed to corre^ 
reasons stated for termination in the notice within sixty (00) days of receipt of such notice ( e x ^ 
notice is effective immediately upon rece ip t s 
Subd0(a)(ii)(1)^0) 

ARTIOLE30IOK8YSOUTIES 

Oickey's shall provide the following services and assistance to you: 

3.1 SIT6S6L60TION Oickey's shall provide the following site selection assistance: 

1. Oickey's shall furnish you written site selection guidelines and such site selection 
counseling and assistance as Oickey's may deem advisable; and 

2. Oickey's shall provide such on-site evaluation as Oickey's may deem necessary on its 
own initiative or in response to your reasonable request for site a 
Oickey's shall not provide on-site evaluation for any proposed site prior to the receipt of a l l r ^ ^ 
information and materialsconceming such site prepared pursuantto Articled Oickey's will provide up to 
three (O)on-siteevaluationsfor your Restaurant (or for your first Restaurant underaOevelopment 
Agreement). Thereafter, if additional onDsiteevaluations aredeemed appropriate by Oickey 'soras 
requested by you,you shall payareasonable fee for each such evaluation and shall reimburse Oickey's 
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f o r ^ r o a s o o a ^ e expenses iooo^^ 
w ^ e o ^ i m ^ e n ^ e ^ 
Agreement meens en agreement to esteblish more then e n e ^ ) R e s t a u r 
E^eotiveOetehyOioke^s end yoo or yoore^iete, end pursuant to w h i ^ 
this Agreement. 

3 ^ OESIGN PLANS Oiokey's shaiimaintainaiist of approved arohiteots to whiohOiokey's 
providedaset of prototypioai design plans foraOiokey'sSarheoue Restaurant. You shall, independents 
and at your expense, have suoh design plans and s p e o i f l ^ 
of your Restaurant hyaOiokey's-approvedarohiteot of your ohoioe in aooordanoe with A ^ You 
may not engage any arohiteot in oonneotion with your Restaurant not listed on Oiokey'sthen-ourrentlis^ 
approved arohiteots 

3.3 TRAINING Oiokey's shall provide an initial training program for oertain of your personnel in 
aooordanoewithArtioleOandshallmakeavailahlesuohothertraining programs and seminars as it 
deems appropriate All training provided hyOiokey's shall hein aooordanoewithArtiol^ 

3.4 INITIAL PURCHASE Oickey's shall provide you assistanoe and advioeoonoeming equipment 
and opening inventory selection and purchasing in oonneotionwith the opening ofyourRestaurant 

3.0 PRE^OPENINO. OPENING ANO OPERATING ASSISTANCE Oickey's shall provide you 
s^with' 'ore-ooenino assistance''in accordance with Oickey's''staoes and phases" orooram.^ 
providevou with on-siteooenin^supei^isionand assistance and thereafter such additional advisory 
assistance in the operation of the franchised business during the tenn of this Agreement as set forth in 
Articled 

3.0 MARKETING PUNO Oickey's has estahlishedasystemwide marketing fund (the "Marketing 
Pund")promoting the Systeminaccordance with Article 0.0. Oickey's may modify or terminate the 
Marketing Pund a tany t ime in accordance with Article 0.0 and providefortheadvertisementand 
promotion of your Restaurant and the System hy such other methods as setforth in Article 0. 

3.T AOVERTISINGANO PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS Oickey's may, from time to time, make 
available toyoua ta reasonah le cost certainadvertisingand promotional materials and information 
developed by Oickey's for your use in marketing and conducting local advertising for your Restaurant. 
Oickey's shallhave theright toreviewandapprove or disapprove all advertisingand promotional 
materialsthatyou propose to use pursuantto ArticlesOandO. 

3.0 OPERATING MANUALS ANOSOPTWARE Oickey'sshallprovidetoyou, on loan, and atthe 
cost established by Oickey's or its vendors, one (1) set ofthe franchise manual (the "Pranchi^ 
and such othermanuals, written materials(coliectively,as the same may be revised by Oick^^ 
to time, the "Manuals") and s o f ^ r e p r ^ r a m s as Oickey's may, from time to time, develop for use in the 
franchisedbusiness,asmorefullydescribedinArticlesOand^. Alternatively, O ickey 'smay,asO^^ 
deems appropriate, make the Pranchise Manual and such other Manuals available to you through an 
established on-line website You will be required to utilize computer hardware and s o ^ 
ArticleOBIO Oickey's or Oickey's approved vendor or suppliershall also make available to you, from time 
to time, any upgrades, enhancements or replacements to the software that are developed by or on behalf 
of Oickey's, at such cost as Oickey's makes such upgrades, enhancements, and replacements available 
to other owner/operatorsfranchiseesoperatino underthe System. 

3.0 TRAINING MATERIALS Oickey's may create,from time to time,training films and other 
instructional video and audio materials Upon request, Oickey's shall make available to you, from time to 
time, on loan, these ma te r i a l sa t suchcos tas Oickey's makes such materialsavailable to other 
owner/operatorsfranchisees operating underthe System. 
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3BI0 ONGOING SEMINARS ETC. O ickey s ^ f r o m ^ e ^ ^ ^ i n ^ ^ r o ^ ^ 
m e ^ n g ^ organize and oooduct seminar and other related a o t ^ e s regarding the System far 
ewner/eoeratarsfranohiseea generals Oiokey'a may require yaor attendance at suoh events. Except as 
approved hy Oickey's, any costs incurred hy you or your Restaurant personnel in attending suc^ 
shaiiheyourresponsihiiity Any video or audio tapes reiating to such meetings and seminars will he 
made avaiiahie to you ,on ioan ,a t such cost as Oickey's makes such materiaisavaiiahie to other 
owner/operatorsfranchiseesooeratino underthe System. 

^ ONGOING INSTROOTIONAL MATERIALS Oickey'sshaiiprovidetoyou,fromtimetotimeas 
Oickey'sdeemsappropriate, adviceand written materiais concerning techniques of managihgand 
operating your Restaurant, including new developments and improvements in restaurant equipment, food 
products, packaging, and preparation. Except as set forth herein, you are responsihle for the training of 
your employees in accordance with Oickey's standards. 

^12 ONGOING OPERATING ASSISTANCE Suhjecttotheavailahilityofappropriate personnel of 
Oickey's, Oickey's shall provide you ongoing operational assistance from time to time as Oickey's deems 
necessary. 

3BI3 LIST OP ARRROVEO SUPPLIERS ANORREPERREOVENOORS Oickey^sshall provide you, 
following execution of this Agreement and thereafter from time to time as Oickey's deems appropriate 
duringtheterm of this Agreement,withalist of Oickey's approved suppliers and preferred vendors as 
descrihed in Articled 

3BI4 PROPRIETARY PROOOOT SALES Oickey's may make availahleatareasonahlecostand, at 
its option, may require you to purchase from Oickey's or an affiliate for resale to your customers, certain 
packaged food products such as hottledharhecue sauce, spices, gif̂  cards availahle for r ^ 
any Oickey's Restaurant, and certain promotional merchandise identifying the System (such as gif̂  
T shirts, sweatshirts, and caps), in amounts sufficienttomeetyourcustomerdemand 

^ I S MAINTENANCE OP STANOAROS Oickey's shall seek to maintain the high standards of 
quality, appearance, and service of the System, and accordingly shall conduct, as it deems advisa 
inspections of your Restaurant and evaluations of the products sold and services rendered therein, as 
more fully descrihed in Article 

A R T I C L E ^ P R A N C R I S E A N O R O Y A L T Y P E E S 

4 ^ PRANCNISEPEE. You shall pay Oickey's an initial franchise fee ("Pranchise Pee") in an amount 
equal to PifteenThousandOollars($1S,00000) upon the execution of this Agreement Soch Initial 
Pranchise Pee shall be non^ondab le . IfaOevelopment Agreement has heen executed,theinitial 
Pranchise Pee will he payable according to its terms. 

ROYALTY PEES You shall payacontinuing nonrefundable royalty fee throughout the term of 
this Agreement, equal to five percent (S^) of the Net Sales (as defined in Ar t i c led ) of your Restaurant, 
whichshallbedueandpayableand shallbeelectronicallydraf^ed on your designated bank account on or 
before the Wednesday following the calendar week to which such payments relate. If the date on which 
suchpaymentswould otherwise be due is notabusiness day, then payment shall be due and drafted 
upon on the next business day. ^ou shall not be entitled to withhold any payments due to Oickey's on 
grounds ofalleged non performance by Oickey's under this Agreement. The calendar week for which 
royaltyfees are due is sometimes referred toas the "Sales Period". 

4.3 SALES REPORT You shall, during the term of this Agreement on or before the eighththird 
( S ^ ^ dayofeachcalendarmonth, submitto Oickey'sastatement (the "Monthly Sales R e p o ^ 
by you, setting forth (i) your Restaurant's Net Sales for each Sales Period during the previous calendar 
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m o o ^ ^ ^ e a m o o ^ o f ^ e r o y a ^ 
^ ^ e M a r ^ o g F o o d c o n ^ ^ 
Res^oraot income s^emeot and other rooo^loadd^ 
wee^yhesie, in eooh manner eeOioke^emeyreqoire^ereportde^ 
the oorrentSeiee Period prior to the time that yoorroyeity fees end Market ings 
Saies Period isdoe and payahie 

44 ACH TRANSFERS Aii payment of royalty fees, Marketing Pund oontrihotione and any other 
sums owed to Oickey's hereunder shaii he made hy ACH eieotronio transfer drawn upon yoor account a 
your hank Such payments shaii he determined hased upon information retrieved hy Oickey's from the 
Point of Saie System (as defined in Article 0^3) regarding the appiicahie weekly Sales Period. You 
agree to accept Oickey's calculation of the royalty fees and Marketing Pund contrihutions due h^^^ 
absent manifest mathematical error You shall execute and deliver to Oickey's the ACH authorization in 
the form attached as Attaohn^entAhereto (or such other form as mav he reouiredhv Oickey's or its 
hank) ^oufurther covenant to maintainyour account identifiedin the ACH transfer au tho r 
throughout the term of this Agreement and to maintain within such account such funds as are necessary 
to process the payment and transfer of royalty fees or Marketing Pund con^ihutions from time to time. 
Payment of royaltyfees or Marketing Pund contrihutions to Oickey's hy check orin any othermanner may 
he madeonly upon the express written consent of Oickey's. 

45 LATE PAYMENTS Ifany payment orfee due underthisAgreement is notpaidhyyou when the 
payment or fee is due, you shall pay Oickey's, in addition to the overdue amount, interest on such amount 
from the date it was due until paid at the rate of fifteen percent (15^) per annum, or the maximum rate 
permitted hy law, whichever is less. Inaddition, youshallreimhurseOickey's for any out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred hy Oickey's in connection with any such late paymentorthe collection ofany such late 
payment If any payment orfee due under this agreement is returned NSP,you shall pay to Oickey's an 
additional amount ofThirtyPiveOollars ($3500) for each NSP occurrence A n y ^ 
Article 4.0 shall he an event of default under Article 10. Oickey's entitlement to such interest shall he in 
addition to any other remedies Oickey's may have in law or in equity, arising under this Agreement or 
otherwise. 

4.0 NET SALES. As used in this Agreement,"Net Sales" shall include all revenue from the sale of 
services and products hyin^store dining, carry-out; delivery, catering, and others 
limited to, the sale of food and beverages, the redemption of gif̂  cards, and the sale of merchandise, 
(eg,prepackaged barbecue sauce or other food products, and anyT-shirts, sweatshirts, e ^ 
other income of whatever nature or kind relating to the franchised business, whether forced 
and regardless of collection in the case of credit; provided that Net Sales shall not include any 
or other taxes collected from your customers and paid to the appropriate taxing authority,empl^^ 
meals and the discounts offered for meals purchased with promotional coupons approved by Oickey's, 
and any accounts receivable representing Net Sales forwhich you have previously paid royalty fees but 
which subsequently you have deemed uncollectible Oickey's may, from time to time, in writin 
certain other items to be excluded from Net Sales. Any such permission may be revoked or withdrawn at 
anytime inwriting by Oickey's in itsdiscretion 

ARTICLES. AOVERTISINOANORELATEOPEES 

0.1 PARTICIPATION You shall participate actively in and comply with all advertising, marketing, 
and sales promotion programs in complete accordance with the terms and conditions e s ^ 
Oickey's for each program, subject to restrictions imposed by applicable law. In ail aspects of these 
programs, including without limitation, the type, quantity, timing, placement a^^ 
areasandadvertisingagencies,totheextentpermittedbylaw, Oickey's procedures, standees an 
specifications shall be final and binding upon you. 
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^ 2 GRANORESTAURANT OPENING Y o o s ^ o a ^ o ^ a a r a ^ R ^ 
ro^ngtotheopeoiogofyoorRe^oraotioacco^aooew^^eM^ 
O i o k e ^ ^ e x t e n d from the period beginning p r i o r t o ^ 
^montr ieofopera^on. Anyedve^eingendpromotioneioempeignsueedbyyooinoonneot^ 
eoorig^andReeteura^opening promotion must b^ ^ousbeiioompiy 
with tbe direot and iooei advertising end promotions oampeign for g r a ^ 
Oiokey's and adapted for your Assigned Area When reouired.butnot iater tbansixty^days priorto 
your sobeduied Restaurant opening, you sbaii pay to Oiokey'sPiveTbousandOoliars ( $ 5 , 0 0 0 ^ 
" G r a n d R e s t a u ^ Opening Promotion Funds") to be s ^ 
suobarandRestaurant opening promotion. Tbe Gra^dRestaurantOoenino Promotion Funds wiii be used 
by Oiokeys, in its discretion, to fund marketing materiais,iooai advertising and promotiona 
totbea^^Restaurantooening promotion (inoiuding during tbe f i rs^s ix^mnntb^ 
Upon vour Restaurant).roouest. afui iaooountinoof tbe GrandRestaurant Opening Promotion Funds 
spent by Oiokey's in oonneotion with vour grandRestaurant opening promotion wiii be provided Wbiie 
Oiokey'swiiiexeroise best efforts to spend tbe fuî  a 
Funds in oonneotion with yourorar^Restaurontopenino promotion any remaining b a i a n o ^ ^ r ^ 
six (6) months of tbe operation of your Restaurant wiii be deposited into tbe Marketing Fund and app^^^ 
by Oickey's in aooordanoe with the prooedures described herein for the utilization of the proceed 
Marketing Fund Sums from the Marketing Fund will not be applied towards costs and expenses related to 
your gra^dRestaurant openino promotions any remainino sums in the GrandRestaurant Opening 
Promotion Funds shall not be credited toward any other obligation ofyours described in this Agreement. 

^ 3 LOOAL MARKETING You shall build Oickey's brand awareness in your Assigned Area through 
direct local marketing and promotion of your Restaurant Upon Oickey's request, you shall furnish to 
Oickey's,onamonthly basis, supporting documentation evidencing your efforts Examples of local 
marketing include, but aro not limited to, promotion through word of mouth, in-store s a m p l i n g , a n d ^ 
offering of free dinner cards and Se My Guest cards (SMG) You may expend such sums on local 
marketing as you deem appropriate Any advertising and promotional materials must be approved by 
Oickey's priorto use. 

^ 4 GIFTOAROS Oickey's has established and administersapromotional gift card acceptance 
progrom.You will be required to purchase and carryaminimum carrying inventory of gif̂  cards fro^ 
Oickey's pursuant to such program You shall honor any such gif̂  card presented at your Restaurant for 
the purchase offood and beverage items. 

^ 5 WEBSITE INTERNET PROMOTIONS In order to avoid causing public confusion, you are 
prohibited from establishing and operat ingaORL website relating to your Restaurant Oickey's has 
established and intends (but is not obligated) to maintain a website under the domain name 
"Oickeys com" (the "Oickey's Website"). You authorize Oickey's to identify and promote your Restaurant 
on Oickey's Website. 

O.S PRICINGS PARTIOIPATION IN PROMOTIONS You shall have the right to sell your food 
products and merohandise and offer services at any prices you may determined subject toin accordance 
w ^ O i c k e y ' s ^ r i c i r ^ u i d a n c e a s ^ s e t forth in the Manuals or o ^ Subject to any 
applicable legal constraints, you shall participate in and comply with all sales and p r o m o s 
featuring''value deals",kids meal programs, and meal or food item promotions promulgated by Oick^^ 
from time to time 

O.T GENERAL STANOAROS Al ladvert is ingandpromotionbyyou in any medium shall be 
conducted inadignified manner and shall conform to thestandards and requirements of Oickey's as set 
forth in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. You shall obtain Oickey's approval of all advertising and 
promotional plans and materials prior to use if such plans and materials have not been prepared by 
Oicke^s or proviously approved by Oickey's during the six (S) months prior to their proposed use You 
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sha^ submit sooh unapproved p ^ 
auob plansand materiaiewitb^ ^au shall not usa 
suoh unapproved plans or materials until thay have baan approved by Oloka^s, and upon nat l^ 
Oiokey's, you shall promptly discontinue use of any advertising erpromotlonal plans or mat^^ 
or not previously approved. 

^ S MARKETING FONO Oickey's has establlshedaMarketlng Fund for the purpose of promoting 
theSystem The Marketing Fund may be operated by an affiliate of Oickey's You agro^ 
the Marketing Fund four percent of your Net Sales of your Restaurant as determined by Oicke^^ 
Such fee shall be paid weekly at the time and in the mannerforwhich royaltyfees are paid as setforth in 
Articled 

You agree that the Marketing Fund shall be maintained and administered by Oickey's or its designee,^ 
its sole discretion, as follows: 

1. Oickey's or its designee shall direct all advertising prograrns and shall have sole 
discretion to approve or disapprove the creative concepts, materials and media used in such programs 
and the placement and allocation thereof Oickey's will own the copyrioht in the desion. content and 
materials created usino Fund monies Youaoree and acknowledge thatthe Marketing Fund is int^nd^dtn 
maximize general public recognition and acceptance ofthe Proprietary Marks and enhance the col^^^ 
success of allRestaurantsoperatingunder the System. Oickey^s or Oickey's Barbecue Pit, Inc. (an 
affiliate of Oickey's) shall,with respect to Oickey's Barbecue Pit Restaurants operated by s u c h a s 
("Oompany-Operated Restaurants''), contribute to the Marketing Fund onamonthly basis based o n a 
percentage of monthly sales with respect to such Company Operated Restaurants. In administering the 
Marketing Fund, Oickey's and its designee undertake no obligation to make expenditures for you whic^ 
are eguivalent or proportionate to your contributions or to ensure that any particular 
owner/operatorfranchisee benefits directly or pro rata from the placement of advertising 

2. You agree that the Marketing Fund may be used by Oickey's or its designee, in its sole 
discretion, to satisfy any and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing and propari 
(including, without limitation, the cost of preparing and conducting t e l ev i se 
magazine and newspaper advertising campaigns, diroct mail and outdoor billboard advertis^^^ 
relations activities, employing advertising agencies to assist theroin, costs of Oickey 
other departmental costs for advertising that is internally administered or prepared by Oickey 
providing other advertising materials to Restaurants operated underthe System, and the costs of 
maintaining Oickey's Website, and the costs of a national customer and/or 
owner/operatorfranchiseesei^ice telephone number if such service is implemented hy P i c k e d All 
sumspaidbyyoutotheMarket ing Fund shall be maintained inaseparateaccountby Oickey's or its 
designee and shall not be used to defray any of Oickey's general operating expenses, except for such 
reasonable administrative costs and overhead, if any, as Oickey's or its designee may incur in act^^ 
reasonably related to the administration or direction of the Marketing Fund and advertising progra 
owner/operatorsfranchisees and the System. The Marketing Fund and its earnings shall not otherwise 
inure to the benefit of Oickey's. TheMarketing Fund isoperated solely asaconduit for collecting and 
expending the marketing and advertising fees as outlined above and may also be used to establisha 
catering hotline. 

3. Astatementof the operations of theMarketing Fund shall bepreparedannually by 
Oickey's and shall be made available to you upon request. 

4. Although the Marketing Fund is intended to beo f perpetual duration, Oickey'smay 
terminatetheMai^etingFundatanytime.TheMarketing Fund shall not be terminated, however, un^ 
monies in the Marketing Fund have been expended foradvertisingorpromotional purposes orretumed to 
contributing franchised or Oompany^perated Restaurants, without interest, on the basis oftheir 
respective contributions 
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0^ AOVERT^NG CO-OPS Oickey may, io^so^d is^ io^roqu i rayoo to p^^^ 
local or rogionaladva^ogoooparativas organized and approved^ 
other ownar/ooaratorefranohlsaaslooatad In the oaooraohlo area in which 
cooperative advertising agreement If yoo are required to participate inaOickey'e-approved advertising 
cooperative, you will he required toexecute Oickey's then-current standard advertising cooperative 
agreement. Oickey's may terminate any advei^sing cooperative pursuant to the terms of each particular 
cooperative advertising agreement. Oickey's reserves the right to require advertising cooperatives to he 
formed, changed, dissolved or merged. 

ARTIOLE^YOUROROANIZATION 

^1 OORPORATIO^ PARTNERSHIP OR LIMITEO LIAOILIIY OOMPANY If you are a 
corporation,apartnershiporalimitedliah^ 
covenant to Oickey's, and you will provide Oickey's with all documentation required hy Oickeŷ  
evidence, that: 

1. You are duly organized and validlyexisting underthe state law ofyourformation; 

2. You are duly qualified to do business in each jurisdiction in which your business activities 
orthenatureofthepropertiesowned byyou require such qualification; 

3. Your organizational documents shall at all times provide that your activities are limited to 
the development and operation of Restaurants; 

4. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
all necessary action on behalf of you and the holders of ownership interests in you, and by all persons 
and entities whichdirectly or indirectly control or manage your business and affairs (collect 
''Management Oroup''), and such actions do not and will not violate, breach or constitut̂  
any agreement, judgment,order, law, rule or regulation to which any of the foregoing isaparty or by 
which bound; 

5. Your ownership interests are accurately and completely described in Article 21. Further, 
upon Oickey's requestfromtimetotime, you shall provide to Oickey'sacurrent list of all holders of direct 
and indirect ownership interests in you; 

6 Ifthereshouldbeachange in any owner of your direct or indirect ownership interest 
which results in such ownervou^ directly or indirectly holdino percent (20^1 or more of vour outstandi^^ 
ownership interest or any change in the ownership or composition of the Management Group, you shall 
notify Oickey's in writing prior to such change and otherwise comply with the terms and conditions ô  
Article 1^ and you shall cause each such person or entitvnew owner of an eouitv interest in vou to 
execute this Agreement as one of your Principalslnvestors (as defined in Article 26.3.3) and be 
individuallybound by all ofyour obligations hereunder; 

7. If you have or at any time shall issue any certificate evidencing any ownership interest in 
you,you shall have conspicuously noted upon such certificateastatement in form satisfactory to 0 ^ 
that it is held subject to all restrictions onTransfers imposed by this Agreement. In addition,you shall 
maintain on yourrecords instructions against theTransfer of any of your ownership interests ^ i cha ra 
prohibited under this Agreement without Oickey's prior written consent, and your organizational 
documents shall also provide that all ownership interes 
imposed by this Agreement; 

3. You and̂  at Oickey's reouesL your Owner/Ooerator and each of your Principalslnvestors. 
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have provided Dickey's with your most recent financial statements and the most recent financial 
statements of your PrinGipalsOwner/Qperator and Investors. Such financial statements present fairly your 
financial position and that of each of your Principalslnvestors, as applicable, at the dates indicated therein 
and with respect to you, the results of your operations and your cash flow for the years then ended. You 
agree that you shall maintain at all times, during the term of this Agreement, sufficient working capital to 
fulfill your obligations under this Agreement. Each of the financial statements mentioned above has been 
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the respective periods 
involved and, except as expressly described in the applicable notes, applied on a consistent basis. No 
material liabilities, adverse claims, commitments or obligations of any nature exist as of the date of this 
Agreement whether accrued, unliquidated, absolute, contingent or otherwise, which are not reflected as 
liabilities on your financial statements or those of your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator or Investors. 

6.2 OWNER/OPERATOR'SFRANCHISEE'S NAME. You will not use the name "Dickey's" or any 
derivative thereof in your corporate, company, partnership or other entity or sole proprietorship name. 
You will hold yourself out to the public as an independent contractor operating your Restaurant pursuant 
to a franchise from Dickey's, and will place a highly visible sign to such effect at a prominent location 
within your Restaurant You will file for a certificate of assumed name in the manner required by 
applicable state law so as to notify the public that you are operating your Restaurant as an independent 
business pursuant to this Agreement. 

6.3 YOU AND YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS. _ Y o u and your PAneWsOwner/Ooerator and 
Investors, as applicable, acknowledge and agree that the representations set forth above in this Article 6 
are your continuing obligations and those of your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator and Investors and that any 
failure to comply with such representations shall constitute an event of default under Article 16. You will 
cooperate with Dickey's in its efforts to verify compliance with such representations. 

ARTICLE 7. SITE SELECTION. PLANS AND CONSTRUCTION 

7.1 SITE SELECTION. You assume all cost, liability, expense, and responsibility for locating, 
obtaining and developing your site for your Restaurant within the Assigned Area and for finish-out or 
renovation and equipping your Restaurant at the Accepted Location. You shall not make any binding 
commitment to a prospective lessor of real estate with respect to a site for your Restaurant unless the site 
is accepted as set forth below. You acknowledge that Dickey's acceptance of a prospective site and the 
rendering of assistance in the selection of a site does not constitute a representation, promise, warranty 
or guarantee by Dickey's that your Restaurant operated at that site will be profitable or successful. 
Except as expressly provided herein, no provision of this Agreement will be construed or interpreted to 
impose any obligation upon Dickey's to locate a site for the Accepted Location, to assist you in the 
selection of a suitable site for the Accepted Location, or to provide any assistance to you in the lease of 
the Accepted Location. 

7.2 SITE LOCATION. Prior to acquiring by lease a site for your Restaurant, you shall locate a site for 
your Restaurant within the Assigned Area that satisfies the site selection guidelines provided to you by 
Dickey's pursuant to Article 3.1 and shall submit to Dickey's in the form specified by Dickey's a description 
of the site, including evidence satisfactory to Dickey's that the site satisfies Dickey's site selection 
guidelines, together with such other information and materials as Dickey's may reasonably require, and a 
letter of intent or other evidence satisfactory to Dickey's which confirms your favorable prospects for 
obtaining the site. Recognizing that time is of the essence, you agree that you will submit such 
information and materials for the proposed site to Dickey's for its acceptance no later than nmetvsixtv 
(8060) days after the execution of this Agreement. Dickey's shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of this 
information and materials to accept or not accept, in its sole discretion, the proposed site as the location 
for your Restaurant No site may be used for the location of your Restaurant unless it is first accepted by 
Dickev's. You acknowledge and agree that Dickev's acceptance of vour proposed site is not an 
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assurance that the R e ^ o r a o t w ^ a c h ^ v e a ^ 
thatvouroroooeedelte^eetaOlekeBem^^ 

7.3 F A ^ U R E T O A O O ^ R E S ^ Yoo^a^ratoacooirathesi te^va^ 
stated i n A ^ e ^ S h e l o w , and in the manner reqoirad in Artic^^ 
default underthisAgreement 

7.4 AOOEPTANOE OF LOCATION. At such time as yeu locate and Dickers accepts the prapesed 
Iccaticn within the Assigned Area,the Assigned Area shall automatically and without reqû  
further actionhe reduced to an area wlthinaone^)-mile radius of the AcceptedLocation. Upon 
Oickey's requesttheAcceptedLocationshallhe confirmed in writing^insu^ 
acceptahle to Oickey's, which descries the location of the Accepted Location and is executed hy you 
Oickey's. 

7.5 LEASE OF RESTAURANT SITE You shall he required to leaseasite for your Restaurant 
constitutingas^cewhichis ready for finlsh^ut or conversion toaOickey's Restaurant Within one 
hundred eightynine^(480^ days after execution of this AgraemenL you shall leased ̂  
locationforyourRestaurantatasiteacceptedhy Oickey's as set forth ahove. Unless Oickey's has 
grantedyouanextension inwriting, if you fail to acquire an accepted site within such timeperiod, 
Oickey's may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon notice to you. In such event, Oickey's 
shall not he ohligated to return the Franchise Fee or any other fees paid hy you under this Agreement 
You shall furnish to Oickey'sacopy of the executed lease for your Restaurant site within t e n ^ 
its execution. 

7.8 ZONING ANO REGULATORY ARFROVALS You shall he responsihleforohtainingallzoning 
and regulatory approvals which may he required hy state or local laws,ordinances or regulations orwhich 
may he necessary asaresult of any restrictive covenants relating to your Restaurant premises Priorto 
beginning the finish-out or ranovation of your R e s ^ 
certifications required forthe lawful construction or remodeling and operation of y^^^ 
certify in writing to Oickey's ̂ at the insurance coverage specified in Article 14 is in full f o ^ 
and that all required approvals, clearances, permits, and certifications have heen obtained. Upon 
raquest you shall provide to Oickey's additional copies of your insurance policies or certi^ 
insurance and copiesofall such approvals, clearances, permits, and certifications 

7.7 OESIGNSERVIOES You must independently obtain, at your own expense, any architectural, 
engineering,and design services you deem necessary forthe finish-out or renovation of your Restaurant, 
provided that you may only engage an architectural firm listed on Oickey's then-currant l̂ ^̂  
architects, unless Oickey's approves in writing another architect which you request to engage With the 
assistance of a Oickey's-approved architect, you shall adapt the prototypical design plans and 
specifications for the finish-out or renovation of your Restaurant provided to you by Oickey's in 
accordance with Article32as necessary and shall submit such adapted plans to Oickey's for review. If 
Oickey's determines, in its sole discretion, thatany such plans are notconsistentwith the best int̂ ^^ 
the System, Oickey's may prohibit the implementation of such plans, and in this event will notify you of 
any objection(s) within fifteen (15) days of receiving suchplans. If Oickey's fails to notify you of an 
objection to the plans within this time period, you may use such plans. If Oickey's objects to any such 
plans,it shall provide you withareasonablydetailedlist of changes necessary to make the plans 
acceptable. You shall resubmit your plans with such changes, and Oickey's will notify you within fifteen 
(15) days of receiving the resubmitted plans whether the plans are acceptable. If Oickey's fails to notify 
you of any objection within such time period, you may use the resubmitted plans. Oickey's will have no 
rasponsibility to you or any other party ifthe Accepted Location is not finished out or ren 
your contractor:(i) according to Oickey's prototype architectural design plans and sp 
compliance with allapplicablefederal, state or local lawsand ordinances; or(iii) in agood and 
workmanlike manner. 
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7.8 ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE AND NOTICES UNDER LEASE. At Dickey's option, no lease for 
your Restaurant premises shall be accepted by Dickey's unless a rider to the lease permitting an 
assignment of the lease to Dickey's and providing for the delivery of all notices to Dickey's simultaneously 
with the delivery of such notices to you as tenant is attached to the lease and incorporated therein. You 
acknowledge and agree that Dickev's approval or acceptance of a lease does not mean that the 
economic terms of the lease are favorable; it means only that the lease contains certain lease terms that 
Dickey's requires. 

7.9 FINISH-OUT OR REMODELING. You shall diligently pursue the finish-out or remodeling (as 
applicable) of your Restaurant. During the time of the finish-out or remodeling, you shall provide Dickey's 
with such periodic reports regarding the progress of the finishing-out or remodeling as may be reasonably 
requested by Dickey's and you shall regularly communicate with Dickey's construction department 
regarding the status of the project. Dickey's may require that you engage a professional construction 
manager to oversee the project. In addition, Dickey's shall make such on-site inspections as it may deem 
reasonably necessary to evaluate such progress. The finish-out or remodeling of your Restaurant shall 
be completed no later than sixty (60) days following the date you sign your lease. Within a reasonable 
time after the date of completion of the finish-out or remodeling Dickey's shall, at its option, conduct an 
inspection of the completed Restaurant You acknowledge and agree that you will not open your 
Restaurant for business without the written authorization of Dickey's, that authorization to open shall be 
conditioned upon your strict compliance with this Agreement, and that Dickey's will not unreasonably 
withhold its authorization. 

7.10 COMMENCE BUSINESS. You acknowledge that time is of the essence. Subject to your 
compliance with the conditions stated below, you shall open your Restaurant and commence business on 
or before one (1) year after the Effective Date of this Agreement, unless you obtain an extension of such 
time period from Dickey's in writing or unless otherwise provided in a Development Agreement between 
you and Dickey's. Prior to opening, you shall complete all exterior and interior preparations for your 
Restaurant, including installation of equipment, fixtures, furniture, chairs, tables, lights, kitchen equipment, 
the barbecue pit and signage, pursuant to the plans and specifications and from vendors approved by 
Dickey's, and shall comply with all other pre-opening obligations of you, including but not limited to, those 
obligations described in Articles 4.1, 6.1, 7, 0, 9 and 12 to Dickey's satisfaction. If you fail to comply with 
any of such obligations, Dickey's shall have the right to prohibit you from commencing business. Your 
failure to open your Restaurant and commence business in accordance with the foregoing shall be 
deemed an event of default under Article 10. 

ARTICLE 8. RESTAURANT OPERATIONS 

8.1 OPERATING PRINCIPAL. OWNER/OPERATOR Upon execution of this Agreement, you shall 
designate an individual to serve as the "Operating PrinGipalOwner/Qperator" of your Restaurant, unless 
Dickey's waives such requirement in writing. The Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator shall satisfy the 
following qualifications, unless waived in writing by Dickey's: 

1. If you are an individual, you shall perform all obligations of the Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperator. 

2. If you are a corporation, limited liability company, limited partnership, or any other entity, 
the Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator shall, at all times during which he or she serves as Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperator. (i) directly or indirectly hold an ownership interest in you, (ii) unless otherwise 
waived bv Dickev's. work on a full-time basis (not less than forty MO) hours per week) in the Restaurant, 
and (iii) be fully authorized, directed and entitled (including, under thevour governing documents^ef-yeu 
and the Management Group, and under any agreements and/or duly adopted resolutions by the 
shareholders, directors, officers, members, managers, and/or any other owner or governing body of you 
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and each o f^eMooogemo^Gro^^ 
take any action which yao are required to take or cm^tc take underthe 
Phncioa^Qwnar/QoaretoBeeoiadiscretionandwithoutth^^^n^^ 

3 Except ae otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Operating 
Princioa^OwnerBOoereto^ 
hypothecation, iien, charge, encumhrence, voting agreement, proxy, security interest or pu 
options. 

TheOperetinoPrincioaiOwner/O^ 
he individuaiiy, jointly, and severeiiy hound hyaiiohiigations of you, the Operating P ^ 
Princioais. and shaii and herehvdoesouarantvoavmentand oerformanceof. ail vour ohiioations 
hereunder There shaii he no change, removal, resignation or addition of the Operating 
Princi^Owner/Ooeratorwithout Oickey's priorwritten consent You and vour Princioalslnvestorsherehv 
represent and warrant that, as of the date of this Agreement, the undersigned person executing this 
Agreement as the Ooeratino PrincioaiOwner/Ooerator has heen designated as your Operating 
PnneioalOwner/Ooeratorands^ 
Operating PrincioalOwner/Ooerator. 

^ 2 SUPERVISION ANO MANAOEMENT Oickey's requires that the Operating 
PrincioalOwner/Operetormustwork at least forty MO) hours oerweek a n d e a n 
supervision of your Restaurant You shall also employ, in addition to the Operating 
Princi^Owner/Qperetor at l e a s t s 
outthe day-to-day managementand supervision of each such Restaurant.Tohe certified, such manager 
must satisfactorily complete the initial training ohligations set for^ 
educational, managerial andhusiness standards andsha l l he approved in writinghy Oickey's In 
addition, each managermust devote fulltime and hest efforts to the daily managementand supervise 
your Restaurant. 

0.3 POSITION OUALIPIOATIONS The O p e ^ 
managers shall meet any other of Oickey's standards and criteria for such positions, as set forth in the 
Manuals orotherwise in writinghy Oickey's 

0.4 TRAINING REQUIREMENTS The Operating PrincioaiOwner/Qperator and at least two (^ 
managers shallsatisfy the trainingrequirements set forth in ArticleO lf,during the term of this 
Agreement, theOperating PrincipalOwner/Qperetor or anv manager is not^hl^ to c o n ^ i n ^ t ^ ^ ^ 
such capacity or no longer qualifies to act as such in accordancewi^ this ArticleO, you shall promptly 
notify Oickey's and designate a replacement within thirty (00) days after the Operating 
P^ncioalOwnerBOperetor or manager c^^^ 
qualifications listed ahove You shall provide for interim management of your Restaurant until such 
replacement is so designated, and such interim management to he conducted in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

^ 0 AOOITIONAL MANAGEMENT POSITIONS You shall retain such additional managers, chefs, 
and other persons as Oickey's, in its reasonahle discretion, deems necessary for the operation and 
management of your Restaurant All such personnel shall satisfy Oickey's educational and business 
criteria as provided to you in the Manuals or otherwise and shall l ^ individualsacceptah^ 
Such individuals shall satisfy the applicable training requirements in ArticleOand such o ^ 
required by Oickey's. 

0.0 HIRING You understand that compliance by all owner/operatorsfranchisees and developers 
operating under the System with Oickey's training and operational requirements is an essential and 
material element of the System, and that Oickey's consequently expends substantial time, effort, and 
expense in training personnel to in turn train and supervise Oickey's franchisees, their owne r^^ 
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a n d o ^ o e ^ o n o ^ Aoco^og^you agree t h a t d ^ 
employ any ind^doalwhoie at the time or was at a n y t i m e ^ 
Oioke^e orany ofiteeuhaidiarieeora^iatee,inolodin^ 
orOiokey'sBarheoueP^ ino ^oworkinCompanyOperatedReetao^ 
apprevai of Oioke^whioh approval may he withheld in Oiokey'eeol^ The parties expressly 
aoknowledge and agree that no ourrent or former employee of Oiokey's, its sohsidiaries and a ^ 
ofanvowner/ooeratorfranohiseeordeveloperonderthe System shall heathird party henefioiaryof^ 
Agreement or any provision hereof Any suoh approval hyOiokey's shall not oonstitutearepresentation 
orwarrenty^thatyou are legaliyentitledtoemploysuoh employee, or (ii) as to the future pe^ 
suoh employee orfom^er employee of Oiokey's or its suhsidiaries and affiliates, and O i o ^ ^ 
liahle for any losses,of whatever nature or kind, inourredhy you asaresult of your hiring of suoh 
individual. 

8^ USE OF RESTAURANT PREMISES You shall use your Restaurant premises solely for the 
operation of the frenohised business, shall maintain business hours as provided for in the Manualsor 
Oiokey's may s^oify from time to time in writing and shall refrain from using or permitting^ 
premises for any other purpose or activity at any time without obtaining the prior written oonsent of 
Oickey's. Business hoursofoperationshallbeprominentlyposted on each entrance door and all food 
items shall be available for customera to purchase during the posted business hours of operation. 

PERSONNEL. You agree to maintain competent,conscientious,and trained personnel to 
operate your Restaurant in accordance with this Agreement and the Manuals and all applicable lawŝ  
regulations, and codes of your jurisdiction and to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that your 
employees establish and preserve good customer relations, comply with such dress code and/or wear 
such uniforms as Oickey's may prescribe in the Manuals or otherwise and observe reasonable standards 
of grooming and cleanliness. 

O.S HEALTH ANO SAFETY STANOAROS You shall meet and maintain the highest health and 
safety standards and ratings applicable to the operation ofyour Restaurant You shall furnish to Oickey's, 
within three (3) days after receipt thereof,acopy of any inspection report, warning, cita^^^^ 
rating, and any other document, of whatever nature or kind, issued by any federal, state, local, or other 
administrative agency, instromentality or other organization withrespectto the health 
of your Restaurant. Toensurethehighestdegreeofhealth and safety of both your customers and 
employees, you shall prohibit unauthorized persons from gaining access to the kitchen. 

8BI0 PROOUOTSANO SERVICES To ensure that the highest degree of quality and service is 
maintained, youshalloperateyour Restaurant instrict conformity withsuch methods, procedures, 
standards and specificatioris as Oickey's may from time to time prescribe in the Manuals or othen^ 
writing Youfurtheragree: 

1. ToooenvourRestauranttotheoublicdurinosuchhoursofooerationasmavbereouired 
bvOickev's(currentlv 1^00am. to ^OOom seven davsaweek) and to offer for sale and sell at your 
Restaurant allmenu items and other designatedproductsandservicesrequiredby Oickey's and to 
provide such products and services in the manner and style prescribed by Oickey's; 

2. Tosell and offer for sale only the menu items, products and services that have been 
expressly approved for sale in voting by Oickey's, to refrain from deviating from Oickey's stan^^^ 
specifications without Oickey^s prior written consent, and to discontinue selling and off^^ 
menu items, products or services which Oickey's may, in its discretion, disapprove in writing 

3 To maintain in sufficient supply and to use and sell at all times only such food and 
beverage items, ingredients, products, materials, supplies, uniforms, and paper goods that conform t̂  
Oickey's standards and specifications and that are purchased from vendors or suppliers approved by 
Oickey's, to prepare all menu items in strict accordance with Oickey's recipes and proceduresfor 
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preparation c o o ^ n ^ ^ 
presoribadmoasoremon^of^re^ 
staoda^aaodapao^oat ionaby^aosaoro^ofoon-oo^orm^ 
itam^ without Oioka^priorwrittanooosant 

4 ToparmitOioka^aoditarepresao^ 
sampiaao^oodoroonfooditamafromyouriovaoto^o^remyourRas^ 
io amounts reasonahiyoaoassa^ tor tasting hyOioka^s or an iodapanda^ 
whathar suoh sampiasmaatOioka^sthao-ourraotraoipas, standards and s ^ in addition to 
anyotharremadiasitmayhavaundarthis^^ 
tasting iftha supplier of thaitam has not previously haanapprevadhyOiokay's or ifthasampiaf^^^^^ 
oonformwithOioka^sspaoifioations;and 

5. purchase or lease and install, at your expanse, aii fixtures, furnishings, harha^ 
cooking equipment kitchen and dining room equipment, Point of Sale System 
(including internet connections and service, dedicated telephone and power lines and other rel^^^ 
accessories, peripherals, consoles and equipment required to operate the Point of Sale System) and 
software (including without limitation the software descrihed in Article^^^ 
exterior asapplicahle),decoritems and signsrequiredhy Oickey's, all ofwhich^^^ 
vendors and suppliera approved hy Oickey's and must conform to Oickey's standards and specifica^^ 
as Oickey's may reasonahlydirectfrem time to time in the Manuals or othen^se inwriting,^ 
from installing or permitting to he installed on or al^ut your Restaurant premised 
written consent, any fixtures, furnishings, kitchen and dining room equipment, computer h a ^ ^ 
software, menu hoards, decor items, signs, games, vending machines or other items not prev̂  
approved hy Oickey's If any of the property descrihed ahove is leased hy you fromathird party, such 
leasemustheapprovedhyOickey's,inwriting,priortoexecution Oickey'sapprevalsha^ 
upon such lease containingaprovision which permits any ofyour interest in the lease to he a s s ^ 
Oickey's upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement and which prehihitsth^ 
imposing an assignmentorrelatedfeeuponOickey'sinconnectionwithsuch assignment 

^ ^PPROVEO SUPPLIERS Exceptforthoseitemswhich you are required to ohtain from Oickey's 
or its designee, you shall ohtain all food and heverage items, ingredients, supplies, equips 
the Point of Sale Systems allowing remote access hy Oickey's), computer hardware and software, 
materials and other products used or offered for sale at or from your Restaurant solely from vendors or 
supplied (including manufacturera,distrihutora and other sources) approved hyOicke^^ 
demonstrate, to the continuing reasonahle satisfaction of Oickey's, the ahility to m ^ 
currentstandardsand specifications forsuch items, who possessadequatequalitycontrolsandcap^^^ 
to supply your needs promptly and reliahly and who have heen approved in writinghy Oickey's pnor to 
any purchases hy you and have not thereafter heen disapproved. Oickey's or any affiliate or subsidiary 
may he an approved supplier of certain items and products Oickey's may or may not receive 
compensation orothereconomichenefitsfromtheseapprovedsuppliers.lfyoudesireto purchase, lease 
oruseanyproductsfrom an unapproved supplier, you shall suhmittoOickey'sawrittenrequestforsuch 
approval or may request the supplier to do so. You shall not purchase or lease from any supplier until 
such supplier has heen approved in writinghy Oickey's Oickey's shall havethe rightto require that its 
representatives and agents he permitted to inspect the supplier's facilities an 
supplierhedeliveredeithertoOickey'sortoanindependentlahoratorydesignated byOickey'sf^^ 
Achargenotto exceed the reasonahle cost ofthe inspection and the actual cost ofthe testshall he paid 
hyyouorthesupplier Oickey'sreservestheright,atitsoption,toreinspectfremtimetotime^ 
and products of any such approved supplier and to revoke its approval upon the supplier's failure to 
continue to meet any of Oickey's then-current criteria Nothing ahove shall require Oickey's to approve 
any particular supplier. 

Oickey's may also provide you from time to t i m e a ^ 
typically of use to persons owning Restaurants similar to your Restaurant. You are not required to 



subscribe to those sauces ooless O ickey so ^ i p o ^ e ^ Oioko^smeyormeynotreoeivooompsnsetion 
or other ooooomiohonefits from those p r e y e d vendors. The list of preferred vendors mey he mod^ed 
hyOiokey's from time to time. 

SYSTEM SECRET R E C C E S Yoo eoknowiedge end egreethetOiokey'shes developed end 
meyoontinoe to develop for ose in the System herheooe seasonings, herheooeseooe,seied dressings 
end other prodootswhioh ere prepared from highly oonfidentielseoretreoipes end w h i o h ^ 
of Oiokey's or an affiliate. Seoaose of the importanoe of quality and uniformity of prodootion and the 
signifioanoe of suoh products in the System, it is to the mutual benefit of the parties that Oickey's 
control the production and distribution of such products Accordingly, you agree that as and when such 
products becomeapart of the System,you shall use only Oickey's secret recipe products and shall 
purchasesolelyfromOickey'sorfromasourcedesignated by Oickey's all of your requiremen 
products. 

8^3 SOFTWARE ANO HARDWARE Oickey's requires that you utilize certain computer hardware 
and software in connection with the operation ofyour Restaurant. You agree to implementand use in the 
operation of your Restaurant point of sale computer hardware, software and related consolesand 
modules approved and required by Oickey's (collectively, the "Point of Sale System"). Additionally, you 
agreeto implementand use OuickSooksaccounting software in theoperation of yourRestaurant. 
Further, you agree to implement and use in the operation of your Restaurant any upgrades, 
enhancements, replacements and additions to any computer hardware and software (including, without 
limitation, with regard the Point of Sale System) required by Oickey's from time to time You shall be 
licensed to use or subscribe to and implement and keep in good repair all accounting/financial reporting 
programs and systems as Oickey's may require (and any upgrades, enhancements, replacements, 
modifications or additions required by Oickey's the^ 
System which allows Oickey's to access your accounting and cash receipts and sales directly, a 
regard, you acknowledge that Oickey's shall have exclusive control over (and you shall not attempt to 
modify orregulate)such systems and programs and the data generated thereby. 

PRE-PAO^AOEOFOOO ITEMS ANO PROMOTIONAL MEROHANOISE Oickey^ may make 
availahleatareasonahlecostand,atitsoption,will requireyoutopurchasefrom Oickey's, for resale to 
your customers, certain prepackaged food items such as meats, barbecue sauce and vegetables and 
certain promotional merchandise identify^ 
necessarytomeetyourcustomerdemand. 

8BI5 AOVERTISINOANO PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS You shall require all advertising and 
promotional materials, menu boards, signs, decorations, paper goods (including menus and all fo 
stationery used in thefranchised business), and otheritemswhich may be designated by Oickey's t̂  
the Proprietary Marks in the form, color, locationand manner prescribedby Oickey's. You willnot 
conduct any advertising, promotion, marketing, public relations or telemarketing program o 
your Restaurant unless and until Oickey's has given you priorwritten approval for all concepts, material 
or media proposed on any such advertising,promotion,marketing,public relations or t e l e m a ^ 
program or campaign. You shall purchase collateral marketing materials from Oickey's or its designated 
supplier as required in connection with such advertising and marketing programs. You will not permit any 
third party to advertise its business, services or products on the premises of the Accepted L o ^ 
withoutobtaining the priorwritten approval ofOickey's 

8^0 MAINTENANCE. Youshal l ,atyourexpense, repair, paint and keep inac lean and sanitary 
condition the interior,theexterior,the parking lot, menu boards (interior and exterior,^ 
signage, interior and exteriorlighting, and the grounds ofyourRestaurentandtheAcceptedLoca^^ 
wil lreplaceall f loorcovering, wall coverings, light fixtures, curtains, blinds, shades, furniture, room 
furnishings, wall hangings, menu boards, signs, fixtures and other d ^ r items as such ^ 
worn-out, soiled o r i n disrepair. All mechanical equipment, including ventilation, heating and air 
conditioning,must be kept in good working order by you at all times and must meet Oickey's quality^ 
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s taoda^ ^ rep^oementeqo ipmeot^^ 
other items osedioyourRe^oraot by y o o m u ^ o o m p ^ w ^ O ^ 
epeo^oetiene. 

^ 7 REMOOE^NGANOREOEOORA^ON OF RESTAURANT AtOioke^sreoueet^eu^meke 
the reeeeoehle oepitel expenditures neoessery to extensively remodel, modernize, redeoorete end 
renovate your Resteurent(lnoluding,without limitation, to oonform your Rested 
ourrent Restaurant speoi^oationsandrequirements) and the AooeptedLooatlon and to replao^ 
modernize the furniture, menu hoards, fixtures, supplies and equipment so that your Restaurant w i ^ 
times refleot the then-ourrent image of Oiokey's Restaurants. All remodeling, modernization, redeooration 
and renovation must he done in aooordanoe with the standards and speoifioationspresorihedhyOiokey's 
from time to time, and must have the priorwritten approval of Oiokey's. All replaoements forthe furniture, 
menu hoards, fixtures, supplies and equipment must oonfom^ to Oiokey'sthen-ourrentqua^ 
and must he approved hyOiokey's in writing You will oommenoe remodeling, modernizing, redecorating 
andrenovatingyour Restaurant within six(S) months after the date youreoeive written notioefrom 
Oickey's specifying the required remodeling, modernization, redecoration and renovation, and will 
diligently complete suchremodeling, modernization, redecoration andrenovationwithinareasonahle 
time. You will not he required to extensively remodel, modernize, redecorate and renovate your 
Restaurant orto replace and modernize its furniture, menu hoards, fixtures, supplies and equipment m^^^ 
than once evei^ five (S) years during the term of this Agreement, or incur more than $40,000 00 
for each such remodeling or renovation. 

OBIS SIONAOE You shall only display signs on or within your Restaurant premises which comply 
with guidelines established hy Oickey's or that have heen approved hy Oickey's in writing, and you shall 
not use or display any other signs of any kind or nature on or within your Restaurant without obtaining 
prior written approval of Oickey's. You will, at your expense, be responsible for any and all installation 
costs, sign costs, architectural fees, engineeringcosts, constructioncosts, permits, licenses, repairs, 
maintenance, utilities, insurance, taxes, assessments and levies in connection wi^ 
the signs including, if applicable, all electrical work, construction of the base and fo^ 
power lines and all required soil preparation work. You will comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, lease requirements, building codes and ordinances relating to the er^^ 
use of the signs. You may not alter, remove, change, modify, or redesign the signs unless approved by 
Oickey's in writing. Oickey's reserves the right from time to time to redesign the layout or the plans and 
specificationsforsignage duringtheterm of the Agreement without your approval or consent. Within 
thirty (00) days after receipt of written notice from Oickey's, you must, at your expense, either m 
replace yoursignage so thatthe signs at your Restaurantcomply with Oickey's modified signage 
requirements. You will not be required to modify or replace the signs more than once everyfive(O) years. 
Oickey's will be entitled to seek injunctive relief against you, without the posting of any boh^ 
require you, at your expense, to: (i) exhibit, use and display the approved signs at your Restaurant during 
the term of this Agreement;^) remove the signs upon the termination or expiration of this Agre^ 
and (iii) remove the signs from any former location upon any relocation ofyour Restaurant. 

0.10 VENOINOANOOAMINOMAOHINES You will not permit any juke box, video electronic 
games,vending machines, coin or token operated machines (including pinball), gambling mach^^ 
other gambling devices to be used in the premises of your Restaurant, other than those approved by 
Oickey's in writing. You willnot keep or offer for sale or allow employees to offer for sale at your 
Restaurant anytickets, subscriptions, pools, chances, raffles, lottery tickets or pull tabs, except 
consentofOickey's 

0.20 AL0OROLI0 8EVERAOES You shall serve beer (and such other alcoholic beverages required 
or approved by Oickey's) at your Restaurant provided that there are no extenuating circumstances 
approved by Oickey's or applicable laws or regulations preventing the sale of alcohol at your Restaurant. 
You agree to complywith all licensing,insurance and other laws, regulations and requirements applicable 
to,and inamanner consistent with prudent business practices in connection with the sale of a l ^ ^ 
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beverages Y e u w ^ e l e e c e m p ^ ^ b t b e ^ ^ 
wbiobO^e^emeyeubs^^ 
HARMLESS R O M A N O AGAINSTANY ^ABIOTY G R O O M S BY 
GOVERNMENT AGENCY RESULTING FROM YGOR SALE GFALOGHOLIO BEVERAGES GR YOOR 
BREACH OFYOUR OOVENANTSHEREUNOER 

8 ^ STANOARO ATTIRE OR UNIFORMS Yeo will ourobese end ragoira your employees teweer 
tbe ou^eotstenderde^irauoifei^sesmey be established end eppr^^ 
All ef yoor employees will wear oleen end 
prasoribed in tbe Oickey's Employee Handbook ifany,orotberwritten directive 

INSPECTIONS Yoo hereby grant Oickey's and its representatives and agents tbe right to enter 
opon yoor Restaurant premises at any time forthe purpose of conducting inspections ofyoor Restaurant 
andits operation. Yooshall cooperate with Oickey'srepresentativesandagentsbyrenderingsoch 
assistance as they may reasonably request and, open notice from Oickey's or its representatives and 
agentsandwithootlimitingOickey'sotherrightsunderthisAgreement, you shall take such steps as may 
be necessary to correct immediately any deficiencies detected during anv such inspection Oickey's 
reserves the rioht to charge you, and you shall oav. the costs of any such inspections if deficiencies are 
detected. Should you fail tocorrectsuch deficiencies within a reasonable timeas determined by 
Oickey's, Oickey's shall have the right (without, however, any obligation), to correct 
tochargeyouareasonablefeeforOickey'sexpensesinsoacting,payablebyyou immediately upon 
demand. 

8^3 REFERRAL FEES Oickey's may^from time to time, offer existing owner/operatorsfranchiseesa 
fee for referring prospects to Oickey's who ultimately become Oickey's owner/operatorsfra^ Any 
such prospect cannot bean existing Oickey'sowner/operatorfranchisee. and the assigned territory 
awarded such prospect must be outside the Assigned Area of any existing Oickey's 
owner/operatortranchisee Inthe event Oickey's announces and implements any such referral fee 
program, you acknowledge that you will comply with the requirements of such program. You further 
acknowledge that you do not have the authority to discuss or negotiate the offer ofafranchise to any 
prospectorotherwisetocontractoracton Oickey's behalf. Oickey's will not be bound by any statements 
orrepresentationsyoumaymake, and Oickey's is under noobligation to offer or enter intoafranchise 
agreementwith anyone you may referto Oickey's. 

FIELO SERVICE MANAGER Oickey's mayelect, in its sole discretion, to assign to youaField 
Service Manager(hereinsocalled),whoshall be an employee^^ representative or agent of Oickey's. 
The Field Service Manager may advise you as to any operational matters regarding your Restaurant as 
Oickey's may require. Should Oickey's elect to assignaField Service Manager, you will fully cooperate 
withtheField Service Manager inimplementingany recommendations madeby theFieldService 
Manager regarding operational matters. Oickey's is not obligated to assign to youaField Service 
Manager, and at any time, Oickey's may chose to terminate the assignment of any Field Service Manager 
orreassign to youadifferent Field Service Manager. 

8 CATERING You shall at all times offer catering services in accordance with Oickey's policie^^ 
and procedures. You shall maintainavan or other appropriate vehicle bearing the Oickey's logo and 
other identifying trade dress and promotional information as reooiredb^ Oickey's in order^^ 
services. Yoo shall participate in Oickey's catering hotline centralizing catering orders and reooest^ 
comply with Oickey's policies and procedures regarding the hotline You acknowledge that Oickey's 
reserves the right to terminate your hotline referrals and redirect them to other Oickey's restauran^^ 
service if Oickey's determines vou do not comolvwith Oickey's policies and procedures or if vour cat^^ 
service is found to be deficient. 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT • MINNESOTA Page 19 
2044-2012-2013 Franchise Agreement.doc Final: 09-01 -20442012 



O R ^ T H R O O G H S E R I E S ^ v o o r R e ^ r a ^ c o o ^ s d o v ^ r o u o h ^ ^ 
d e ^ m i o e ^ ^ ^ 
s e ^ o e ^ ^ o o r R e s ^ 

8 ^ 8 ^ C O M P ^ A N C E Y o o a o k o o w ^ o e ^ v o o w ^ ^ ^ ^ s o r o m o ^ ^ O ^ 
o o o d w ^ a n d P r o o r i e ^ M a ^ s ^ ^ e o r s o ^ o o a ^ ^ 
b r a o ^ o o o ^ ^ P r o o o e ^ M a ^ a o d s ^ c o m o ^ ^ ^ 
c o v e o a ^ and o b ^ ^ o n s imposed oooo yoo o o d e r ^ A o r e ^ 
andprooodores. Yoor faiiore to oompiy with any soohooyanants or obiioatioris shaii o o n s ^ 
ofdafaoitondarArtioialO 

CATERING HOTLINE Oiokay's shaii astahiish and m a i n t a i n ^ ^ 
raqoirad to partioipata sohjaot to tho poiioias, prooadoras, terms and conditions prosorihod in the 
Manoais By participating in the catering hotiine, yoo wiii he reqoired to o f r e r o e ^ 
options required hy Oickey's from time to time Oickey's reseryes the right to discontinoe or modify the 
catering hotiine atanytime. 

ARTIOLE^TRAININO 

Yoo agree that it is necessary to the continoed operation ofthe System and yoor Restaurant that 
yoo^ifanindiyidoa^yoorOperatinoPrincipaiOwner/Operatoratieasttwoofyoor 
Restaorantpersonnei as specified in the Manoais or as Oickey's may etherise reqoire receive the 
training and accordingly agree as foiiows: 

OBI INITIAL TRAININORROORAM 

1. Not laterthan sixty (00) days priorto the Openino Oate onadate or dates desionatedhy 
O ic l ^ s^ theOperating RrinoipalOwner/Qperator and t w o ^ o t h e r man 
completed, to Oickey^s satisfaction, Oickey's initial training program Prior to attending the initial training 
program, each participant most satisfy Oickey's the^ 
which requirements may inclode thatthe potential participant (i) has attended and soccessfol^^ 
such ServSafe training classes and ohtained such ServSafe certifications required h y O ^ ^ 
successfully completedaphoneinterviewwitharepr 
fullycompleted copies ofOickey's currentapplicationformsand payment ofthe t ra ins 
trainingprogram Training shall he conducted at Oickey's corporate training center, ataOompany-
Operated Restaurant or such other location as may he desionatedhy Oickey's Oickey's shall determine, 
in its sole discretion, whether your trainees have satisfactorily completed i n i t i a l s If any of your 
designated trainees fail to meet the admission requirements forthe initial training pro^ 
program isnot satisfactorily completed hy your trainees, or if Oickey's, in its reasonahle husiness 
judgment hased upon the pertom^ance of your trainees, determines that the training p r o g r a m s 
will^n^he satisfactorily completed h 

trainee(s), as applicahle, to apply for and complete such initial training no later than ^ 
thedate ofany such occurrence (hut in anyevent no laterthan sixty (00) days priorto the Opening Oate) 
Your management personnel must successfully completethetraining program asdetermined and 
certified in writinghy Oickey's prior to commencing pre^pening operations, as defined in t̂ ^ 
You shall he resoonsihle for any and all expenses incurred hyvouorvourtrainees in connection with the 
initialtrainino prooram.includino. without limitation costs oftravel.l^^^ 

2. ^ ^ o u t limiting Oickey's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 10, if 
fail to designate replacement trainee(s) who have satisfied the admission requirements for 
trainingprogram, if the initial trainingprogram is not satisfactorily complet^^ 
(or the initial designees if no replacement is designated) hy the required deadline set forth a l ^ ^ 
Oickey's determines that the training prooram cannot or will not he satisfactorily c o m ^ ^ 
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person(s), as set forth above, Dickey's may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement effective 
immediately upon notice to you. Dickey's shall not be obligated to return the Franchise Fee or any other 
fee paid by you under this Agreement. 

3. Dickey's shall provide instructors and training materials for the initial training program at a 
reasonable cost tofee equal to $500.00 per person (minimum fee of $1.500.00 for vou as determined bv 
Dickey's). Any successor or replacement Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. managers, employees and 
any additional Restaurant personnel may be required by Dickey's to attend and complete, to Dickey's 
satisfaction, Dickey's initial training program. Dickey's reserves the right to impose a training fee for any 
such additional initial training programs. You shall be responsible for any and all expenses incurred by 
you or your trainees in connection with any initial training program including, without limitation, costs of 
travel, lodging, meals, and wages. 

9.2 ADDITIONAL TRAINING. You, the Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. your managers and your 
other employees may attend such additional or remedial training programs and seminars as Dickey's may 
offer from time to time. All certified managers shall be required to complete twelve (12) credit hours of 
continuing education courses per year at a rate of one (1) credit hour per month. Should a certified 
manager not fulfill the one (1) credit hour per month requirement, that manager will lose their certified 
status and be required to complete Dickey's field certification program in order to be recertified. At 
Dickey's discretion such training (including on-site remedial training) shall be mandatory if Dickey's 
provides written notice setting forth the reasonable justification for such additional or remedial training in a 
manner consistent with Dickey's requirements throughout the System. For all such training, Dickey's will 
provide the instructors and training materials; however, Dickey's reserves the right to impose a 
reasonable fee for such training, including costs of travel, lodging, meals and wages for Dickey's 
representatives. You shall be responsible for any and all expenses incurred by you or your employees in 
connection with such additional training including, without limitation, costs of travel, lodging, meals and 
wages. 

9.3 MANAGERS; CHANGES IN PERSONNEL. If your Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator or any 
trained manager shall, for any reason, cease to serve in such capacity, your replacement must, at your 
expense, be trained at an approved Dickey's Restaurant, and must successfully complete the 
management training program prior to being able to work in-your Restaurant You may request that your 
Restaurant be approved by Dickey's as a certified training Restaurant by meeting Dickey's then-
applicable criteria. If approved by Dickey's, you may train your own managers at your Restaurant, thus 
reducing the expense of training new management personnel at off-site locations. Your Restaurant may 
lose its status as an approved certified training Restaurant if Dickey's determines that your Restaurant is 
no longer in compliance with the standards of a certified training Restaurant. All certified training 
Restaurants must be recertified by Dickey's every three (3) years in order to maintain certification. 

9.4 ON-SITE TRAINING. In connection with the opening of your Restaurant, Dickey's shall make 
available to you at your expense at least one (1) trained representative of Dickey's to provide on-site 
training, supervision and assistance^ with respect to such matters and for such period of time determined 
by Dickey's in its sole discretion. Such on-site training, supervision and assistance need not be for 
consecutive days and may be provided either before and/or after the Opening Date of your Restaurant. 
Except as otherwise provided, you shall be responsible for training all Restaurant personnel in 
accordance with the specifications and standards regarding such training described in the Manuals or 
otherwise in writing by Dickey's. 

9.5 RELEASE. As a condition to participation in Dickey's training program, your participating 
personnel shall execute and deliver to Dickey's the Consent and Release for Training in substantially the 
form attached as Attachment C 

ARTICLE 10. USE OF PROPRIETARY MARKS 
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10BI USE OF PROPRIETARY MARKS ^ a o c o ^ o o e w ^ ^ r i ^ 
O i o ^ s S ^ e o o e P i t ^ a T e x a s o o ^ o ^ o o ^ ^ 
to osethe P r o p r i a ^ Marksdoring the term o f ^ A g r e e m ^ a s ^ o ^ 

1. With respeot to yoor euhiioeoeed oee of the Proprietary Merke porsoeot to this 
Agreement, yoo agree that: 

A. You shaii use only the Proprieta^ Marks designated hyOiokey'eaod shaii use 
them oniy in the manner authorized and permitted hyOiokey's. Any unauthorized use of the 
Proprietary Marks shaii oonstitute an infringement of Oiokey's rights and an event of default under 
Ar t io ie^ 

S. You shaii use the Proprietary Marks only for the operation of your Restaurant at 
its AooeptedLooation or in oonneotion with advertising related to your Restaurant and only during 
the term of this Agreement. You expressly agree to oease use ofthe Proprietary Marks afterthe 
terminationor expiration of this Agreement andshall take appropriateaotiontoremovethe 
Proprietary Marks from your Restaurant premises and to oanoel any advertising relating to your 
use ofthe Proprietary Marks; 

OB Unless otherwise authorized or required hyOiokey's,you shall operate and 
advertise the franohised husiness only under the name "Oiokey'sSarheoue Pit" without prefix or 
suffix; 

0. Ouring the term of this Agreement, you shall identify yourself as the owner of the 
franohisedhusiness^inoonjunotionwithanyus 
limitedto,usesoninvoioes,orderforms,reoeiptsandoontraotsand(ii)inanotioeofsuohoon^^ 
and form and at oonspiououslooations on your Restaurant premises; 

E You shall not use the Proprietary Marks to inour anyohligation or indehtedness 
onhehalfofOiokey's; 

P. You shall not use the Proprietary Marks as part of any wehsite or domain name 
oryour e-mail address; 

O. You shall oomply with Oiokey'sinstruotions in filing and maintaining any requisite 
trade name or fiotitious name registrations and shall exeoute any doouments deemed neoessary 
hyOiokey's or its oounsel to ohtainproteotion for the Proprietary Marks or to maintain their 
oontinued validity and enforoeahility; and 

H You shall immediately notify Oiokey's of any infringement or ohallenge to its use 
of any of the Proprietary Marks or olaimhy any person of any rights in any of the Proprietary 
Marks. YouD vour Investors and your PrinoioalsOwner/Ooerator agree that they will not 
oommunioate with any person other than Oiokey's and Oiokey'soounsel in oonneotion with any 
suoh infringement, ohallenge or olaim. Oiokey's shall have sole disoretion to take suoh aotion as 
it deems appropriate and the right to exolusivelyoontrol any litigation, or Patent andTrademark 
Offioeaotion or other prooeeding(inoluding any olaim or prooeeding instituted hefore 
tribunal), arising out of any infringement, ohallenge or olaim or otherwise relating to any o f ^ 
Proprietary Marks You agree to exeoute any and all instruments and doouments, render suoh 
assistanoe and do suoh aots and things as may, in the opinion of Oiokey'soounsel, he neoessary 
or advisable to proteotandmaintainOiokey's interests in any suoh litigation or Patent and 
Trademark Offioe or other prooeeding, or to otherwise proteot and maintain Oiokey's interest 
the Proprietary Marks OIOKEYS WILL INOEMNIPY YOU AOAINSTANO REIMBURSE YOU 
POR ALL OAMAOES POR WHIOH YOU ARE HELO LIABLE IN ANY PROOEEOINO ARISING 
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OUT OF YOOR USE OF ANY OF THE P R Q ^ ^ 
OONOUOT O F Y O U . YOUR INVESTORSANOYOU^ 
RESFEOT TO S U O H F R O O E E O I N O A N O U S E O F THE FROFRIETARY MARKS I S I N 
OOMF^ANOEWITHTHETERMSOFTHISAGREEMENT 

2. You express^ oodera^od and aokoowledge that 

A. Oioka^s Sarhaoua Fit, ioo and Oiokay's are tha awoar and iioaosaa, 
respaotiva^afaiiright,titiaandiotarestioaodtathaFro^ 
assaoiatad with and symhoiizadhytham; 

S. Pursuant to its iioansa with Oiokay'sSarhaoua Fit, i o o , O i o k a ^ has th^ 
usa and grant suhiioaosas to usa tho Fropriatary Marks to ownar/ooaratorsfranohisaas in 
oonnaotion with tho operation ofhusinassasundartha System; 

0. The Proprietary Marks are vaiid and serve to identify Oiokey'sandOiokey's 
Sarheoue Pit, ino. as the souroe of origin of goods and servioes provided underthem; 

0. You shaii not direotiy or indireotiyoontest the validity of Oiokey's or Oiokey's 
SarheouePi^inoBs ownership or interest in orvaiidity ofthe Proprietary Marks; 

E. Your use of the Proprietary Marks under this Agreement does not give you any 
ownership or other interest in or to the Proprietary Marks, exoept the suhiioense granted hy this 
Agreement; 

F Any and aii goodwill arising from your use of the Proprietary Marks in your 
franohised husiness under this Agreement shaii inure soieiy and exolusively to Oiokey's benefit, 
and upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement and the suhiioense herein granted, no 
monetary amount shaii he assigned as attrihutahle to any goodwill assooiated with your use of 
the System orthe Proprietary Marks; 

O. The right and lioenseof the Proprietary Marksgranted hereunder toyou is 
nonexoiusive and Oiokey's and Oiokey'sSarheoue Pit, ino thus have and retain the foiiowing 
rights, among others, suhjeotonlytotheiimitations of Artioiel: 

i. Touse for their own aooount and to grant other suhlioenses for use of 
the Proprietary Marks, in addition to those suhiioenses already granted to existing 
owner/ooeratorsfranohisees: 

ii Todeveiop and establish other systems using the Proprietary Marks or 
other names or marks and to grant suhlioenses or franohises thereto without providing 
any rights to you; and 

iii To engage, direotly or indireotly, through their employees, 
representatives, lioensees, assigns, agents and othera,atwholesale, retail or otherwise, 
in (1) the produotion,distribution,lioense and sale of produots and se rv ioesand^ the 
use in oonneotion with suoh produotion, distribution and sale, of the Proprietary Marks 
and any andal l trademarks, tradenames, servioemarks, logos, insignia, slogans, 
emblems, symbols, designs, and other identifying oharaoteristios as may be developed or 
used from time to time by Oiokey's; and 

H Oiokey's reserves the right to add or substitute different trade names, servioe 
marks, trademarks, symbols, logos, emblems, and indioia of origin for the Proprietary Marks for 
use in identifying the System and the businesses operating thereunder; or if Oiokey's, in its sole 
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d i s o r e t i o ^ d e t e ^ o e s ^ ^ 
tradema^ symbol logos, e ^ In 
suoh ovontDloke^s may require you to dlsoonhnoe or modify yoor oso of any 
Marks or to usa ona or more additional or sobsflfofafredanamas,sarvloamarka,tradama^ 
symbols, logos, amblams, and Indlola of origin. 

ARTICLE^CON^OENTIALFRANCHISEOPERATIO^ 

1 ^ PROVISIONSOF MANUAL YoosriallreoalvafromOlokay'sona^satoftbaManoalsonloan 
and at trio oostastabllsriad by Olokay's or Its vendors and sriall retain soori sat of triaM 
replaoamant, for so long as tbls Agreement remains in affaot. Altematively, Oiokey'smay,asOiokey's 
deems appropriate, make any Manuals available to yoo tbroogb an establisbed on-line webs^ 

USE To proteot tbe reputation and goodwill of Oiokey's and to maintain bigb standards of 
operationunder Oiokey's Proprietary Marks,you sball oonduot your business in aooordanoe witb tbe 
Manuals, otber written direotiveswbiobOiokey's may issue to you frem time to time w b e ^ 
direotives are inoluded in tbe Manuals, and any otber manuals and materials oreated or approved by 
Oiokey's for use in tbe operation oftbefranobised business^ 

CONPIOENTIALITY Yoi^an^. vour PrinoioalsOwner/Qoeratorandlnvestors.and anv otber 
person affiliated witb vou sball at all times treat tbe Manuals, anv written direotives of Oioke^ 
otber manuals and materials, and tbe information oont̂ ^̂  
suob information as seoret and oonfidential in aooordanoe witb Artiole 12. You and vour Prinoipalssuob 
persons sball not at anv time oopv.duplioate^reoord. or otben^isereproduoetbese materials, in wbole or 
in part, or otberwise make tbese materials available to any unautborized person. 

OWNERSHIP. Tbe Manuals, written direotives,otber manuals and materials and any otber 
oonfidentialoommunioations provided or approved by Oiokey's sball at all times remain tbe sole property 
of Oiokey's, sball at all times be kept inaseoureplaoe on your Restaurant premises and sball be returned 
to Oiokey's immediately upon request or upon termination or expiration oftbis Agreement. 

^ SUPPLEMENTATION OP AGREEMENT Tbe Manuals, anywrittendireotives and any otber 
manuals and materials issued by Oiokey's and any modifioations to suob materials sball supplement tbis 
Agreement. 

11.0 REVISIONS Oiokey'smay,from time to time, revise tbe oontents of tbe Manuals and tbe 
oontents ofany otber manualsand materials oreated or approved for usein tbeoperation of tbe 
franobisedbusiness. You expressly agree to oomply witb eaob new or obangedstandard;provided, 
bowever, you sball bavetbirty (30) days in wbiob to implement oomplianoe witb eaob new or obanged 
standard. 

MAINTENANCE You sball, at all times, ensure tbat tbe Manuals are kept ourrent and up to 
date. In tbe event of any dispute as to tbe oontents of tbe Manuals, tbe terms of tbe master oopy of tbe 
Manuals maintained by Oiokey's at Oiokey'soorporeteoffioe sball oontroi. 

ARTIOLE12.00NPIOENTIALITYOOVENANTS 

12.1 OISOLOSUREOP OONPIOENTIALINPORMATION Youand eaobof yourPrinoipals 
aol^owledge tbat Oiokey's will disolose to you oonfidential proprietary information and trade ^s^ 
Oiokey's as part of tbe training program and tbe otber servioes to be rendered by Oiokey's hereunder. 
You and eaobof. your PrinoipalsOwner/Qperator. Investors and all otber persons affiliated witb vou sball 
not, during tbe term oftbisAgreementandtbereafter,oommunioateordivulge to, orusefortbe benefit of, 
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any other p e r a o o ^ partnership aeeooiatien,oerperatian or ether entity any oenfidentiaiinferma^^ 
knowiedge or know-hew oanoerning the methods of aeration of the fr^^ 
oomrnonioated to yoo or any of your Prinoioaissuoh persons or ofwhioh they may he aoorisedhyvirt^^ 
yoor operation ofthe franohisedhosinessonderthis Agreement Yoo and yoor Owner/Qoerator and eaoh 
of yoor Prinoioaisinyestors shaii diyoige sooh oonfidentiai information oniy to yoor Prinoipais and 
manager(s) of yoor Restaorant and sooh other Restaorant personnel as may reasonahiyregoireaooess 
to it to operate the franohisedhosiness. Anyandaiiinfomiation, knowledge, know how and teohniqoes 
osed in or related to the System whiohOiokey'soommonioates to yoo or yoor PrinoioalsQwner/Qoe^ 
inoloding, hot not limited to, the Manoals,reoipes, plans and speoifioations,ma^eting info 
strategies and site eyaloation and seleotiongoidelines and teohniqoes, shall he deemed oonfidentiai f̂ ^ 
purposes of this Agreement Neither yoo nor yoor PrinoioalsQwner/Qoerator nor yoor Inyestors shall at 
any time,withootOioke^s prior written oonsent, oopy, doplioate,reoord o r o t h e r 
materials or information, in whole or in part, nor otherwise make the same ayailahle to any onaothorized 
person T h e o o y e n a n t i n t h i s A r t i o l e ^ shall soryiye the expiration, termination or transfer of this 
Agreement or any interest herein and shall he binding opon yoo—and—eaoh of̂  yoor 
PrinoioalsQwner/Qoerator and yoor Inyestors. 

1^2 OONFIOENTIA4ITY AGREEMENTS FROM OTHER PARTIES AtOiokey 'sregoestandin 
addition to the regoirements of the other proyisions of this Agreement, yoo shall obtain and d e ^ ^ 
Oiokey's an exeootedoonfidentiality agreement, in ^ 
the holders of any direot or indireot ownership interest in yoo baying aooess to any oonfidentiai 
information of Oioke^porsoant to wbioh agreement tbe signatory ooyenants and agrees to maintain tbe 
oonfidentiality of the information reoeiyed by sooh person or entity in oonneotion with yoor reia^ 
withOiokey's. 

1^3 NEW OONOERTS^ RROOESSES OR IMPROVEMENTS If yoo^er^ yoor 
PrinoioalsOwner/Ooerator or any otber person affiliated witb yoo deyeloo any new oonoeotorooess or 
improyement in tbe operation or promotion of yoor Restaorant, yoo agree to promptly notify Oiokey's prior 
to implementation and proyideOiokey's with all neoessary related information,witho 
Oiokey's reserves tbe rigbt to approve any sooh new oonoept, prooess or improvement prior to 
implementation in yoor Restaorant Yoo^yoorOwner/OperatorandvoorPrinoipalslnvestorsaoknowledoe 
tbat any sooh oonoept, prooess or improvement shall beoome the property of Oiokey's and Oiokey's may 
ose or disolose sooh information to other owner/operatorsfranobisees or developers as it determines to be 
appropriate. 

IN^UNOTIVE RELIEF. Yoo.yoorOwner/OperatorandyoorPrinoipalslnvestorsaoknowledoe 
that any failore to oomply witb this Artiole 12 shall oonstitote an event of defaolt onder Artiole 16 and 
oaoseOiokey's irreparable injory for whioh no adeooate remedy at law may be available, and yoo. yoor 
Owner/Qperatorand yoor Prinoipalslnvestorsaooordingly oonsent to tbe issoanoeof an injonotion 
probibitino any oondoot by yoo or any of yoor Prinoipalssooh persons in violation of this Artiole 12. Yoo^ 
yoor Owner/Ooerator and voorPrinoipalslnvestors agree to pay all expenses (inolodingooort oosts and 
reasonable legalfees), inoorred by Oiokey'sin enforoing thisArtiole 12 (inolodingobtainingspeoifio 
pertormanoe,injonotive relief orany otberegoitable orotberremedyavailab^ 
of thisArtiole 12) This remedy is in addition to any otber remedies Oiokey's may have hereonder or at 
laworegoity. 

ART IOLE I^AOOOUNTINOANOREOOROS 

13.1 MAINTENANCE OF REOOROS Yoo sball maintain doringthetermoftbisAgreemeritand shall 
preserve for sooh period as may be regoired by law hot not less than three (3) years from the dates of 
their preparation foil, oomplete and aooorate books,reoords and aoooontsinoloding, hot not i ^ ^ 
sales slips, ooopons,porobase orders, porohaseinvoioes, payroll reoords,obeok stubs, bank statemen 
sales tax reoords and retoms,oashreoeipts and dishui^ements,joomals and ledgers in aooordanoew^ 
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generally accepted accounting principles on a timely basis and in a consistent form and manner as 
prescribed by Dickey's from time to time in the Manuals or in other written directives. 

13.2 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. You shall prepare all financial reporting on you and the 
Restaurant in accordance with the accounting methods, principles and practices prescribed by Dickey's 
for the accounting periods prescribed by Dickey's in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. During the term 
of this Agreement, you shall, at your expense, complete and submit to Dickey's on a continuous basis 
each of the following reports at the time set forth below and in the form prescribed by Dickey's in the 
Manuals or in other written directives: 

1. A Monthly Sales Report to be delivered to Dickey's in accordance with and on or before 
the dates set forth in Article 4.3; 

2. A monthly advertising expenditure report consisting of invoices or other documents which 
accurately reflect your expenditures for local advertising for each Sales Period during the previous 
calendar month, to be delivered to Dickey's within ten (10) days following the end of the last monthly 
Sales Period during such calendar month; 

3. True, complete and correct copies of your state sales tax reports and returns on or before 
ten (10) days following the date such reports and returns are to be filed with the appropriate governmental 
authority; and 

4. Such other forms, reports, graphs, information, and data as Dickey's may reasonably 
request, in the form and at the times specified in the Manuals or other written directives. 

13.3 BALANCE SHEETS. INCOME AND STATEMENTS OF CHANGE. You shall prepare and 
submit to Dickey's an unaudited balance sheet, income statement, and statement of changes in financial 
position for the franchised business, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, dated as of the end of your fiscal year, within sixty (GO) days after the end of your fiscal year, 
which financial statement shall be signed by you or by your chief financial officer attesting that it is true, 
complete, and correct. 

13.4 EXAMINATION OF AUDIT RECORDS. Dickey's or its designees shall have the right at all 
reasonable times, during the term of this Agreement and for a 12-month period following termination or 
expiration of this Agreement, to examine and copy, at Dickey's expense, your books, records and tax 
returns. Dickey's shall also have the right at any time, to have an independent audit made of your books. 
If any audit reveals that you have understated Net Sales in any report or statement, then you shall 
immediately pay Dickey's the additional amount of fees owing as a result of such understatement, 
together with interest as provided in Article 4.5. If an audit reveals that Net Sales have been understated 
in any report or statement by two percent (2%) or more, you shall additionally pay and reimburse Dickey's 
for all costs of the audit including, without limitation, travel, lodging, meals and wage expenses and 
reasonable accounting and legal fees. These remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies Dickey's 
may have at law or in equity. If, however, any inspection reveals that you have overstated Net Sales and 
that you have therefore overpaid any fees, the amount of the overpayment without interest, shall be 
credited toward your future fees or payment on future invoices. If you are at any time required to furnish 
any lender, lessor, government agency or other person audited financial statements with respect to the 
franchised business, you shall concurrently furnish Dickey's a copy of such audited financial statements. 

13.5 DISCLOSURE OF DATA. You hereby authorize Dickey's to disclose data from your reports, if 
Dickey's determines, in its sole discretion, that such disclosure is necessary or advisable, which 
disclosure may include disclosure to prospective or existing owner/operatorsfranchisees. financial 
institutions, investment bankers or other third parties. 
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A R ^ C L E ^ ^ S O R A N O E 

^ B l MAINTENANCE OF INSORANOE Yoo s ^ o ^ n ^ 
^ A g r e e m o n t a o d s ^ m a ^ o i o ^ f o r o e a o d o f t e o t ^ 
yoor exponso, an iosoraooepolioy or po l ios protoo^og yoo and 0 
aoooossorsandass ignsand^oi r raspaot ivao^oars , dirootors, sharobo^ar^ partners, amployaas, 
servants, indapandantoontraotors,ra^ 
to personal injory, death or property damage or any loss, liab^ty or expense a r i s ^ 
opon orin oonneotion with the condition,operation, ose or oooopanoy ofthe franoh^ 

14.2 OOVERAOES Soohpoiioy or policies shaiihe written hyaninsoranoe carrier or insoranoe 
carriers w i thaBests insoranceOoide rating of "A" or hotter, and shaii inciode,ataminim^ 
following: 

1. Oommerciai general iiahilityinsorance: 

A. Thecommerciaigeneral liahility insorance policy shall inclodehodily injory, 
property damage, advertising and personal injory, and medical payments coverage parts, written 
o n a n occorrencereporting hasis. Thehodily injory, property damage, and advertisingand 
personal injory coverage parts shall have a minimom per occorrence liahility limit of 
$1,000,000.00 per Restaorant location an 
Restaorant location. The medical payments coverage part shall haveaper occorrence liahility 
limit of$0,00000 per Restaorant location 

B The commercial generalliahility policy shall also haveaprodocts/completed 
operations coverage part withaminimom per occorrence liahility limit of $1,000,000 
Restaorant location and ageneralaggregateliahility limit of $2,000,000.00 per Restaorant 
location 

O The commercial general liahility policy shall also have the following 
endorsements: 

i. An endorsement listing Oickey's as an additional named insored on all 
coverage parts. 

ii. An endorsement making the commercial general liahility insorance policy 
issoed in yoor name primary insorance coverage onanon-contrihotoryhasis with any 
other insorance availahle to Oickey's. 

iii. An endorsement reqoiring the commercial general liahility insorance 
carrier(s) to provide at least thirty (00) days notice of any intent to cancel the c o m m e ^ 
general liahility policy, regardless ofthe reason for cancellation. 

2 Orime(inside/ootside)and employee dishonesty insorance: 

A^ Orime (moneys and secorities)inside/ootslde coverage shall haveaminimom 
peroccorrence liahility limitof$10,OOOOOperRestaorant location f o r i n s i d e c r i m e a n d a m ^ 
peroccorrence liahility limitof$10,000.00 per Restaorant location forootsidecrime 

8. Employeedishonestycoverageshallhaveaminimom per occorrence liahility 
limit of$00,00000 perRestaorantiocation. 

0. Worker's compensation insorance in amoonts provided hy applicahle law or, if 
permissihle onder applicahle law, any legally appropriate alternative providing sohstantially similar 
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c o m p e o s a ^ ^ ^ u r e d worked s ^ ^ o t o ^ to Oickey provided that yoo^maintain an exooss 
indomnityor^mhro^polioyoovering employed 
expenses for oo tho johaooideote, whioh polioy or po l io iossha^ 
aodOiokey's shaii motoaiiy agree upooaod^oooduot and maiotainari^^ 
program for yoor empioyees as yoo and Oiokey's shaii motoaiiy agree is appropriate d 
aisoiooiode, if avaiiahie,ao"aiteroateempioyereodorsemeot"iofavorof Oiokey'saodawaiverof 
sohrogatiooio favor of Oiokey'saod its direotors,offioers,sharehoiders, papers, e m p ^ 
representatives, and agents. The workersoompensation insoranoe and employer's iiahiiity/medioai 
disahiiitypoiioies most provide Coverage PartAforoiaims made hytheinjoredworkerandOo^ 
Bforoiaims made hytheinjored worker's family memhers,inoiodingwrongfoi death o i a ^ 

4. Aotomohileliahilityinsoranoeooverogeforowned,non-owned,and hired vehioleswitha 
liahility limit not less than $1,000,000 00 oomhined single iimî  
ooverageforyoordelivery and oatering operations) 

0. Liqoor liahility insoranoe: 

A if yoo sell alooholioheverages at yoor Restaorant, yoo shall oarryliqoorliahill^ 
insoranoe withaminimom per oooorrenoe liahility limit of $1,000,000.00 per Restaorontlooa^^ 

8 The liqoorliahilityinsoranoeshall also have the following endorsements: 

i. An endorsement listing Oiokey's as an additional named insored; 

ii. An endorsement making the liqoor liahility insoranoe polioyissoed in 
yoornameprimary insoronoeooverageona non^ontrihotoryhasiswithany other 
insoranoe availahle to Oiokey's. 

iii An endorsement reqoiring the liqoor liahility insoranoe oarrier(s) to 
provide atleast thirty (00) days notioe of any intent to oanoel the liqoor l iahi l i ty^ 
regardless ofthe reason for oanoeilation. 

0. Boilding and personal property insoranoe ooverage: 

A Property ooverage for physioal loss or damage to personal property and real 
property Inoloding the leasehold improvements, at eaoh Restaorant looation Thisooverage shall 
inolode all riskreplaoementoost property insoranoe for yoor Restaorant and itsoontents, 
awnings, eqoipment, signs, glass, additions onder oonstrootion, ootdoor fixtores, personal 
prg^rty, as well as hosihessinterroption insoranoe for inoome loss, food spoilage endorseme 
eqoipment breakdown ooverage,hosinessordinanoeooverage,dehris removal, preservati^ 
property,fire department servioeoharges, pollotantoleanopandremoval,newlyaoqoiredor 
oonstrootedproperty, property of others, property off premises,andstook. Theooinsoranoe 
peroentage shall not exoeed eighty peroent (00^) 

8 Thehoilding and personal property insoranoeshalialsohavethe following 
endorsements: 

i. An endorsement reqoiring thehoilding and personal property insoranoe 
oarrier(s) to provide at ieastthirty (00) days notioe ofany intenttooanoel thehoilding and 
personal property insoranoe ooverage,regardlessofthe reason foroanoellation 

ii. A loss payable endorsement listing Oickey's as the loss payee for 
eqoipmentandsoppliesfinanoedbyOiokey'seitberbyaioan,lineoforedit,oranopen 
aoooont 
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7. Umbrella liability insurance: 

A. Umbrella coverage over the above described general commercial liability, liquor 
liability, automobile liability, products/completed operations, and employer's liability insurance 
coverage parts with an each occurrence limit of $1,000,000.00. The umbrella policy shall be 
written on an occurrence reporting basis. 

B. The umbrella liability insurance shall also have the following endorsements: 

i. An endorsement listing Dickey's as an additional named insured. 

ii. An endorsement requiring the umbrella liability insurance carrier(s) to 
provide at least thirty (30) days notice of any intent to cancel the umbrella policy, 
regardless of the reason for cancellation. 

0. Employment practices liability coverage in such form and amounts required by Dickey's 
and with coverage limits of not less than $1.000.000.00 including third party and wage and hour 
coverage. 

9. Any insurance which may be required by statute or rule of the state or locality in which 
your Restaurant will be operated. 

10. Additional insurance coverages that may reasonably be specified by Dickey's from time 
to time, in accordance with standards and specifications set forth in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. 

14.3 DEDUCTIBLES. You may, with the prior written consent of Dickey's, elect to have reasonable 
deductibles in connection with the coverage required under Articles 14.2.1 and 14.2.7. 

14.4 BUILDER'S RISK. In connection with any finish-out, renovation, refurbishment or remodeling of 
your Restaurant, you or your approved contractor shall maintain builder's all risk insurance and 
performance/completion and payment bonds in forms and amounts, and written by a carrier or carriers, 
reasonably satisfactory to Dickey's. 

14.5 NO RELIANCE UPON DICKEY'S INSURANCE. Your obligation to obtain and maintain the 
above policies and bonds in the amounts specified or agreed to by Dickey's shall not be limited in any 
way by any insurance which may be maintained by Dickey's, nor shall your performance of that obligation 
relieve you of liability under the indemnity provisions set forth in Article 20. 

14.6 EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE. Within thirty (30) days after the execution of this AgreemenfflTe 
lease for the Restaurant and, thereafter, at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of any such policy, 
you shall deliver to Dickey's certificates of insurance indicating the contracted for insurance coverages as 
well as the description of special provisions (e.g. additional named insured status). You shall also provide 
a binder, declarations page, or confirmation of insurance, describing and confirming the coverages 
afforded by the required policies described in Article 14. 

14.7 REMEDIES. Should you, for any reason, fail to obtain or maintain the insurance required by this 
Agreement, as such requirements may be revised from time to time by Dickey's in the Manuals or 
otherwise in writing, Dickey's shall have the right (without, however, any obligation) immediately to obtain 
such insurance and to charge same to you, which charges, together with a reasonable fee for Dickey's 
expenses, shall be payable by you immediately upon notice. These remedies shall be in addition to any 
other remedies at law or in equity that Dickey's may have. 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT - MINNESOTA Page 29 
2044-2012=2013 Franchise Agreementdoc ' Final: O&OI-20442012 



A R ^ C L E ^ T R A N S F E R O F ^ T E R E S T 

^ B l TRANSFER O Y O ^ K E Y S . O ickey s ^ h a v e ^ ^ t o t r a o ^ or a ^ n ^ A g r e e ^ ^ 
anda^or any part o f^ r ights or ob^^onshereondor to any person or 
Spaoifioa^y, and without l imitat^ 
its assets, the Rropriatary Marks or the System toathird party; may marge, a ^ 
he aoquiredhy another corporation; may undertakearefinanoing,reoapitaiiza^ 
othereoonomioorfinanoiai restructuring; and, with regardtoanyoraii of the ahove saies, assignments 
and dispositions, you expressiy and specificaiiy waive any ciaims, demands or damages arising from or 
related tothe iossof the Proprietary Marksor the System against Oickey's underthisAgreement 
Nothing contained in this Agreement shaii require 
licensing the operation of Oickey's Sarhecue Pit Restaurants or other restaurants orto offer any s e ^ 
or products, whether or not hearing the Proprietary Marks, toyou, if Oickey's exercises its rights 
hereundertoassign its rights in thisAgreement 

15^ T R A N S P E R 8 Y Y 0 0 

Except as prohihited under applicahle Minnesota law: 

1. You and vour PrincioalsOwner/Ooerator and Investors understand and acknowledge that 
the rights and duties set forth in this Agreement are personal to you and that Oickey's has granted this 
franchise in reliance on the husiness skill,financial capacity and personal character of you and your 
PrincioalsOwner/Ooeratorand Investors. Accordingly, neither you nor vourOwner/Ooeratororanv 
Princi^lnvestormavTransferanvdirectorindirectownership interest in you, this Ag 
franchised husiness,without Oickey's prior written consent. In addition,neither you nor any permitted 
successor or assign to any part of your interest in this Agreement or the franchised husiness, nor any 
person or entity which directly or indirectly has or owns any interest in this Agreement in the franchised 
husinessorinyou, shall cause or permitaTransferofaOontrolling Interest (as defined in this ^ 
152Bl)withoutthe priorwritten consent o f O ^ 
shall not he required f o raT rans fe ro f less than a one percent (1^) interest in a PuhliclyDHeld 
Oorporation. Within five (5) days of the completion of eachTransfer of any ownership interest in yot^or 
any of the Management Group,you shall provide to Oickey's written notice of the completion of the 
Transfer and fully executed copies of all documents evidencing theTransfer and any and all amendments 
totheorganizationaidocumentsofthe applicahle entity in connection with theTransfer. 

Por purposes of this Agreementa'^ransferofaOontroll ing interest''shall mean: (i)aTransf^^^ 
directly or indirectly, individually or cumulatively, of more than fifty (50^) of the o w n e ^ 
oranyoftheManagementGroup; or (ii)aTransfer of any ownership interest, which, directly or indi^ 
individually or cumulatively, results in or may result in the change or removal of, or addition to, (a) any of 
the Management Groups or (h) the OoeratinoPrincioalOwner/Ooerator. Por purposes of this Agreement 
a''Puhlicly-Held Oorporetion''isaoorporetion whose securities are registered under S 
Securities ExchangeActof1934,asamended,oracorporation subject to the reguirements of Section 
1S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act as amended. Por purposes of this Agreement^TransfeB means 
any sale, installment sale,exchange, mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, assignment encumhrance or 
other transfer, conveyance or disposition, whether voluntarily, involuntarily or hyoperationof law or 
otherwise. 

AnypurportedTrensfer,hyoperetion of law or otherwise, not having the prior written consent of 
Oickey's reguiredhy this Article 1S, shall he null and void and shall constitute an event of d e f a ^ 
this Agreement forwhich Oickey's may then terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article 1S. 

2. Oickey's shall not unreasonably withhold its consent toaTransfer,however^ to the extent 
permittedunder applicable Minnesotalaw, so longastheTransferbasnotbeencomple tedpr io r to 
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Oioke^s receipt of notion thereof ^ 
foiiowiogee conditions ofitsepprovei to eoyeocbTreoeferre^^^ 

^ Aii of your eccrood monetae end other outstanding obiigetions to Dicker 
its subsidiaries end effiiietes arising under this Agreement or any other egreerne 
and Oickey's or its subsidiaries or affiliates shaii have i ^ n satisfied inatimeiy manner and you 
shaiihavesatisfied aii trade accounts and other debts, of whatever nature or kind,inatimeiy 
manner. 

B. You are not indefauitofany provision of this Agreement or any otber agreement 
between you and Oickey's or its subsidiariesoraffiiiates 

0 Oniess otherwise prohibited by appiicabie iaw, tbe transferor and its 
PrincioaisOwner/Ooeratorand investors, as appiicabie^ shaii have executedageneraireiease. in 
aform prescribed by Oickey's, of any and aii claims against Oickey's and its subsidiaries and 
affiliates and their respective officers,directore,sbareholders,partners,emp^ 
representatives, and agents, in their corporate and individual capacities, including, without 
limitation, claimsarising under this Agreement and any otberagreement between you and 
Oickey's or its subsidiaries or affiliates and federal, state and local laws, rules and ordinan^ 

0 Thetransfereesballenterintoawritten agreement, inafonn prescribed by 
Oickey's, assuming full, unconditional, joint and several liability for and agreeing to perto 
the date of theTransfer,all of your obligations,covenants and agreements containedin this 
Agreement; and iftransfereeisacorporation,partnership, limited liability company or otber en^ 
tbetransferee'ssbareholders, partners, membersor other owners, asapplicable, sball also 
execute such agreement as principals of tbe transferee, includingaguaranty of your obligations 
contained in this Agreement Tbe transferee sball assume operations ofthe franchised business 
within such timeframe required by Oickey's. 

E. The transferee sball demonstrate to Oickey'ssatisfaction tbattbetransferee 
meets the criteria wbicb Oickey's considers when reviewing a prospective 
owner/ooerator'sfranchisee's aoolication for a franchise, including Oickey's educational, 
managerial and business standards, transferee's good moral character, business reputation and 
credit rating, tbe transferee's aptitude and ability to conduct tbe franchised business (as may be 
evidenced by prior related business experience or otben^ise), the transferee's financial resources 
and capital and tbe geographic proximity of otber Restaurants operated by the transferee and 
temtories witb respect to wbicb transferee is obligated to develop Restaurants pursuant to any 
agreements between Oickey's and the transferee, in relation to your Restaurant 

P. Unlessprohibited by applicable law, thetransfereesball, at Oickey's option, 
execute foraterm ending on tbe expiration date oftbisAgreementand withsuch renewal term as 
may be provided by this Agreement, tbe form of franchise agreement then being offered to new 
System owner/ooeratorsfrancbisees and otber ancillary agreements as Oickey's may require for 
tbe franchised business, wbicbagreementssballsupersede this Agreement and its ancillary 
documents in all respects and tbe terms of which agreements may differ from the terms of this 
Agreement and may include, without limitation,abigber royalty fee and advertising fee and 
expenditure reguirement; provided, bowever, tbat the transferee shall not be required to pay any 
initialFrancbiseFeeandifthetransfereeisacorporation,partnerabip, limited l i a b ^ 
other entity, tbe transferee's sbareboldera, partners, memberor other owners, as applicable, sball 
also execute such aoreements as PrincioalsOwner/Ooerators and Investors of the transferee, 
includingaguarantyofyourobligationscontained in such Agreement 

O. Tbe transferee, at its expense, shall renovate, modernize and otherwise upgrade 
your Restaurant to conform to tbe then-current standards and specifications of System 
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R e s ^ u r a o ^ ^ o d ^ 
Oioke^s^eoDcu^otRe^aoraot^ 
O ^ e ^ w ^ o ret ime specified by Oickey 
reesenabie period witbin wbiob to efteot eoob reoovetioo, modemizefioo or upgrade end 
provided furtbe^tbettbeoosteofeogbwori^sbe^ot be ooreeeooebly expense 

H. Tbe transferor sbeii remain liabie for aii of tbe obiigations to Oioke^s in 
oonneotion witb tbe franobisedbusiness inoorred prior to tbe effective date of tbe transfer a 
sbaii execute any and aii instruments reasonabiyr^ 

L Priortocompietion of tbeTransfer to tbe transferee, at tbe transferee's expense, 
tbe transferee's Operating PrincioaiOwner/Qoerator. managers, cbefs, and otber personnel 
designated by Oickey's sbaii complete tbe inifiai training program and any otber^^^ 
tben required, upon sucb termsand conditions(including payment of areasonable fee), as 
Oickey's may reasonably require. 

^ You sball pay Oickey'satransferfeeof^O^OO.OOorsucb greater amount as is 
necessary to reimburse Oickey'sforitsreasonablecosts and expenses associated witb reviewing 
tbe application forTransfer,including,without limitation,legal and accounting fees. 

K. If transferee is acor^oration, partnership, limited liability company, orother 
entity, tbe transferee sball make and will be bound by any orall ofthe representations, warranties 
and covenants in Article 6B1 as Oickey's requests. Transferee shall provide to Oickey's evidence 
satisfactory to Oickey's that tbe terms of Article O.lbave been satisfied and are true and correct 
onthedateofTransfer. 

L Priorto the Transfer,you sball deliver to Oickey's for review and approval copies 
of all documents which will evidence tbe Transfer and, if applicable, any and all amendments to 
tbe organizational documents of theapplicableentity to be executed in connection witb tbe 
Transfer. 

0 Youbereby acknowledge and agree tbat each condition which must be met by tbe 
transferee is reasonable and necessary to ensure tbe transferee's full performance of tbe oblig^^ 
hereunder. 

15^ TRANSPERPOROONVEN^OEOPOWNERS^P IfaproposedTransferistoacorporation, 
partnership, limited liability company or otber entityformedsolelyforthe convenience 
extent permitted under applicable Minnesota law, Oickey's consent may be conditioned upon any 
requirements in Article 10 2, except tbat the requirements in Articles 10 2 ^ ^ 
apply In such event, you sball be tbe ownerof all the outstanding ownership interests in tbe entity, and if 
you are more tban one (1)individual,eacb individual shall have tbe same proportionate ownership 
interestintheentityassucb individual bad priorto tbeTransfer. 

10.4 R IOHTOPP^TREPUSAL 

1. Intbeeventyouor any person or entity holding adirect or indirect interest in you 
(including any interest to l ^ transferred pursuant^ 
Agreementdesiretoacceptanybonafideofferfromathirdpartytopurcbasesucb interest, you sball 
promptly notify Oickey's in writing of each sucb offer and shall provide sucb information and documents 
relating to tbe offer as Oickey's may require Oickey's sball have the rigbt and option, exercisable within 
fifteen (10) days after receipt of sucb writtennotification, information and documents,to send w r i ^ 
notice to the transferor tbat Oickey's intends to purchase tbe transferor's interest on the same 
conditionsofferedbytbe third party If Oickey's elects to purchase the transferor's interest, the closing on 
sucb purchase must occurwithin thirty (00) days from the date of notice to tbe transferor ofthe ele^ 
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po^ase by Oickey or sooh other date as may be agreed upon. Any material obange in tbe terms of 
any offer priorto closing sball oonstitoteanewoftersobjeotto tbe same rights o t f i ^ 
as in the oase of an initial offer. Failure of Oickey's to exercise tbe option afforded by this Article 15.4 
shall not constitoteawaiver of any otber provision of this Agreement incloding all prô ^ 
proposedTransfer. 

2. If the offer from tbe third party provides for payment of consideration otber tban cash or 
involves certain intangible benefits, Oickey's may elect to porcbase the interest proposed to be sold for 
the reasonable eqolvalent in cash. If tbe parties cannot agree within thirty (30) days on socb amoont, an 
independentappraisershallbedesignated by each party to determine socb amoont in tbe event tbat 
socb appraisers sball agree on socb amoont, the determination sball be final and binding In tbe event 
that socb appraisers fail to agree within t h i r t y ^ 
by soch appraisers, and tbe determination byamajority of appraisers sbail be binding. Each party shall 
bear tbe costs and expenses of the appraiser appointment by socb party, and tbe parties sball share 
egoallytbecostsand expenses ofthe third appraiser. 

3 if Oickey's elects to exercise the option described in this Article 15 4, it sball have tbe 
rigbt to set off tbe cost of tbe appraisal described in Article 15.4.2 above, if any, against any payment 
madebereonder. 

4. Failore to comply with the provisions of this Article 15.4prior to tbe porcbaseofadirect 
or indirect interest in yoo, in the franchised bosiness or in this Agreement sball constitote an even^ 
defaoitonder Article 10. 

100 T R A N S F E R U F O N O E A ^ O R F ^ A N ^ O ^ A B ^ 

1 Upon tbe death of any person (tbe "Oeoeased")witbadirect or indirect interest in this 
Agreement, the franchised bosiness or in yoo, tbe execotor, administrator or otber personal 
representative of the Oeceased sball transfer socb interest toatbird party, provided that any soch 
transfer sball be sobject to tbe terms, conditions and ^ 
15.2 and tbe rigbt of first refosal set forth in Article 15.4. if no personal representative is designated or 
appointed or no probate proceedings are institoted witb re^^ 
transfer of socb interests to tbe distribotee of socb interests shall be sobject to the te^^^ 
restrictionsregardingTransferssetfortb of Article 152 Iftbedistriboteeisreqoiredtobeapprovedby 
Oickey's, hot not approved by Oickey's, then tbe distribotee sball transfer socb interest toatbird p a ^ 
approved by Oickey'swithin twelve (12) months afterthe death ofthe Oeceased,sobjecttotbe terms and 
conditions set forth in Article 15.2 and tbe right offirstrefosal setforth in Article 15.4. 

2. Upon the Permanent Oisability (as defined in this Article 15.5) of any person withadirect 
orindirect interest in thisAgreement thefrancbised bosinessorin yoo, Oickey'smay, in itssole 
discretion, reqoiresocb interest to he transferred toatbird party approved by Oickey's 
months after notice to yoo, sohject to tbe right offirstrefosal set forth in Article 15.4. "Permanent 
Oisability''sball mean any physical, emotional or mental injory, illness or incapacity wbicb w^ 
person from performing tbe obligations set forth in this Agreement for at least ninety (00) consecoti^^ 
days and from which condition recovery within ninety (00) days from tbe date of determination of disa^ 
isonlikely Permanent Oisability sball be determined by two (2) licensed practicing physicians. One(1) 
licensed practicing physician shall heselected by Oiokey's,wbileasecond licensed practice 
sball be selected by yoo. Iftbese two (2) licensed practicing physicians cannot agree on whethera 
PermanentOisabilityexists, they sball appolntathird licensed practicing pby^^ 
sball be controlling Tbecosts ofany examined 

3. In the event of tbe death or Permanent Oisability of any Principal (incloding, witboot 
limitation, yoor OoeratinoPrincioal)voorOwner/Ooerator.or anv otber person withadirect or 
interest in this Agreement tbe franchised bosiness or in yoo, if Oickey's determines, in its sole d ^ 
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that sooh person had s o b s t a n ^ ^ ^ 
Oiokey 'sadopt ion maye leo t too^ 
sooh death or the ^ a o m s i x ^ m o n t h a l o w i n g sooh ParmanaotO^ 
interest of sooh person is transferred aooordanoe with thisArtiole 15 or 
period expires, whichever oomes first As compensation for managing yooRestaorant, Dickers wiii 
cha^eamanagementfeeoff ivepercent(5^of the Net SaiesofyoorRestaorantfor each Sales Period, 
which will he in addition to the royalty fee, advertising contrihotions and any other fees or payments d 
and owing to Oickey's and, if Oickey's provides one of its employees as manager, yoo shall pay Oickey's 
the manager's then-corrent salary for the time of soch interim management in addition, yoo will remain 
responsihleforpaymentof employee salaries, taxes, rent, otilities,sopplies andal l other costs and 
expenses associated with the operation of yoor Restaorant Oickey's shall exercise its hest efforts in 
managing yoor Restaorant, hot shall not he liahle for any losses inoorred hy yoor Restaorant doring the 
time of sooh management and thereafter IP O lOKEYSEtEOTS TO OPERATE YOOR RESTAURANT 
PURSUANT TO THIS A R T l O t E 1 5 5 3 , Y O t l S H A t t l N O E M N l P Y O l O ^ E Y ' S POR LOSSES ANO 
EXPENSES I N O U R R E O S Y O l O K E Y S A S A R E S U t T O P SUOH OPERATION TOTHE SAME EXTENT 
A S P R O V l O E O l N A R T l O t E 2 0 4 

4 Upon the death or claim of Permanent Oisahility of any person withadirect or indirect 
interest in this Agreement,the franchised hosiness or yoo,yoo or yoor representative most promptly 
notify Oickey's of soch death or claim of Permanent Oisahility Any transfer opon death or Permanent 
Oisahility shall he sohject to the same tem^s and conditions as descrihed in Article 1 5 2 s h a l l a p ^ 
exceptthatthereqoirements of Articles 1 5 2 2 0 , P a n d O s h a l l not apply If an interest is nottransferred 
opon death or Permanent Oisahility as reqoired in this Article 15.5, Oickey's may terminate this 
Agreement porsoantto Article 16. 

15.6 NON-WAIVER O P O L A I M S Oickey's consen t toaTrans fe ro fany in te res t in yoo, the 
franchised hosiness orthis Agreement shall not constitoteawaiver of any claims it may have against the 
transferring party, nor shall ithe deemedawaiver of Oickey's right to demand exact compliance with thi^ 
Agreement hy the transferee. 

15.T O P P E R I N O S S Y Y O U Secorities in yoo may he offered to the pohlic,hy private offering or 
otherwise, only with the prior written consent of Oickey's (whether or not Oickey's consent is r e ^ ^ 
onder Article 15.2), which consent shall not he onreasonahly withheld. All materials reqoired for soch 
offering hyfederalorstatelawshall he sohmitted to Oickey's foralimited review as d i s c o s ^ l^lowpri^^ 
to theirheing filed with any govemmentagency; and any materialsto he osed in any exemptoffering shall 
he sohmitted to Oickey's for soch review prior to their ose Yoor offering shall not imply (hyose of the 
Proprietary Marks or othen^ise) that Oickey's is participating in an onderwriting,issoance or oft^^ 
yoorsecori t iesorOickey'ssecori t iesorthesecori t iesof any sohsidiary or affiliate of Oickey's; and 
Oickey's review of any offering materials shall he limited solely to the sohject of the relationship h e h ^ 
yoo and Oickey's and its sohsidiaries and affiliates. Oickey's may, at its option, reqoire yoor offering 
materials to containawritten statement prescribed hy Oickey's concerning the limitations descri^ 
preceding sentence YOU ANO THE OTHER PARTICIPANTS IN THE OPPERINO MUST PUt tY 
INOEMNlPYOlO^EY'SlNOONNEOTlONWlTHTHEOPPERlNO Poreachproposedoffering, yooshall 
pay to dickey'sanonrefondahle fee of $1,00000, or soch other amoont as is necessarytoreimhora^ 
Oicke^sforits reasonahle costs and expenses associated with reviewing the proposed offering ma te r i a 
incloding withoot limitation, legal and aoooonting fees. Yoo shall give Oickey's written notice at leastthirty 
(00) days priorto any offering or othertransaction covered hy this Article 15.7. 

ARTICLE 16. OEPAULTANOTERMINATiON 

16.1 E V E N T S O P O E P A U L T N O T S U ^ E C T T O N O T I C E A N O C U R E Yooshallheindefaoltonder 
this Agreement and, to the extent permitted onder applicahle Minnesota law, at Oickey's option, all rights 
granted herein shall aotomatically terminate withoot notice to yoo, if; 
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1. Y o o ^ e a b a o k ^ p ^ r e c e i y e ^ b ^ 
ban^ptcy law or any state statos 

2. Anybaokropto^raoalvarsbiporlnsolvaooyprooaadiogiafi ladaga^^^ 
dismissed w i th ios i ^ (60) days f a ^ 

0. Yeo are merged, oaosalidated or dissolved; 

4 Afioaljodgmeotagaiostyoo remains unsatisfied orofreoordforthirty (00) days orlooger 
(unless yoo have soonerfiled an appropriate supersedeas bond); 

0. Any lien against trie equipment of trie franoriise business is foreolosed upon or if trie 
equipment oftbefranoriise business is levied or executed upon; 

10.2 EVENTS OF O E F A O L T S U B ^ C T TO 
and, to tbe extent permitted under aoolioable Minnesota law. Oiokev's may, at its option, termi^^^ 
Agreement upon delivery ofwrittennotioe and witboutprovidino you an opportunity to cure if: 

0^. You oease operation of your Restaurant, after opening, and suob cessation continues for 
atleastten(10)days; 

^2. Any transfer in violation of ArticlelO; 

00. You are in default underyour lease ofyour Restaurant premises; 

04. You fail to locateaproposedsite for your Restaurant witbin tbe time statedin, and 
otberwiseoomplywitb, A r t i c l e d ; 

You fail to acquireasite for your Restaurant witbin tbe time stated in and otberwise 
complywitb,Article7.0; 

^46. You fail to commence business witbin tbe time stated in, and otben^ise in accordance 
witb,Article7B10; 

4^7. You fail to comply witb tbe provisions of Article 0.0; or 

430. You fail to comply witb any confidentiality or non-compete provisions of tbis Agreement, 
including,without limitation,tbose set fortb in Art ic lesHand 12. 

4^210.0 EVENTS OF O E E A U L T S O ^ E O T TO T-OAYNOTIOEANO PORE You sball be in 
defaultand, to tbe extent permitted under applicable Minnesota law, Oickey's may, atits option, t̂  
thisAgreement after notice to you,upon tbe occurrence of any of tbe following breaches hereunder, and 
sucb breaches are not cured to Oickey's satisfaction witbin seven (7) days following the date of written 
notice of default from Oickey's, if: 

1. You fail to operate your Restaurant in accordance with tbe provisions, standards and 
specifications of Oickey's set forth in A r t i c l es^andOor in the Manuals or other written directives of 
Oicke^s (and in particular, and without limiting the generality of tbe foregoing, you s h e l l s 
pmvisions, standards and specifications set forth in ArticleO); provided tbat any f a i ^ 
RestaurantpursuanttoArticleO.O sball begovemed by Article 10.1; 

2. You fail to timely pay your initial Franchise Fee, royalty fees, Marketing Fund contribution 
or any otber monetary obligations owed to Oickey's or its affiliates under this Agreement or otherwise 
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^ u d ^ w ^ o u ^ m ^ 
sobmit yoor Months Sales Report 

3. Yoo misose or make any ooaotborized ose of the Proprietary Marks or otherwise 
materiaiiyimpairthe goodwill assooiatedwiththe Proprietary Marks o r ^ 
therein 

4. YooorvoorOwner/QoeratororaovofyoorPriooioalslovestorshreaohtheoovenaots 
forth io Article 10 ofthe Agreement or 

0. Yoo. yoor Qwoer/Qoerator or any of yoor Priooioalslnyestors oorohase food and 
heverage or other prodoots or otilize vendors or soppliers whioh have not heen approved hy Oickey's. 

Provided, if yoo commit or permit any of these hreaohes t w o - t i m e s doring any t w e l v e ^ ) ^ ^ 
period, Oickey's shall not he ohligated to provide yoo notice or an opportonity to core any sohseqoent 
hreachespriortoterminating yoor rights onder this Agreement If any fact or circomstance giving rise to 
any event of defaolt descrihed in Article 1 0 2 i s not sosceptihle to core, to the extent permitted o 
applicahle Minnesota law, soch event of defaolt shall he deemed an event of defaoitonder Article 10.1 
and not sohjectto any notice and core. 

4 ^ 1 0 . 4 E V E N T S O P O E P A O L T S U ^ E O T T O 3 0 - O A Y N O ^ O E A N O O U R E Yoo shall he in 
defaoltand,totheextentpermitted onder applicahle Minnesota law, Oickey's may,at its option, te 
this Agreement openaft^notice to yoo, opon the occorrence of any of the following hreacheshereonde^ 
and soch hreaches are not cored to Oickey's satisfaction within thirty (00) days fo l lows 
written noticeofdefaoltfrom Oickey's, if: 

1 Yoo or voor Owner/Ooerator or anv of yoor Princioalslnvestors hreach any other 
covenant, agreement, ohligation or term set forth in this Agreement (other than soch hreaches specif ic 
i n A r t i c l e s 1 0 1 a n d 1 0 ^ o r 

2 If any representation orwarrantv made hy yoo or yoor PrincioalsOwner/Ooerator or anv 
of yoo Investors in this Aoreement or in any certificate report, notice,financial statement or other 
docomentfomished to Oickey's at any time in connection with this Agreement or the operation of yoor 
Restaorantshall he false, misleading orerroneoos in any material respectwhen made. 

Provided, if yoo commit or permit any of these hreaches two (2) times doring any twelve (12) month 
period, to the extent permitted onder applicahle Minnesot 
yoo notice or an opportonity to ^ r e any sohsegoenthreaohes prior to terminating yoor rights onder this 
Agreement If any fact or circomstance giving rise to any event of defaolt descrihed in Article 10.0 is not 
sosceptihle to core, to the extent permitted onder applicahle Minnesota law, soch event of defaolt shall he 
deemed an event of defaoitonder Article 10.1and not sohjectto any notice and core. 

A R ^ O L E I ^ O S ^ O A ^ O N S U P O N T E R M I N A ^ O N O R E X P I R A T I O N 

Opon the termination or expiration of this Agreement all rights granted hereonder to yoo shall ter^^ 
and: 

1 Yoo shall immediately cease to operate yoor Restaorant asaOickey's Restaorant and 
shall notthereafter, directly orindirectly,representtothepohlicorholdyoorselfootasapresentorf^ 
owner/operatorfranchisee of Oickey's. Onlessotherwiseindicatedinawritingfrom Oickey's, and to the 
extent permitted unde^ner applicahle Minnesota law.yoo shall pay to Oickey's i n a ^ ^ 
payment asliqoidated damages and no tasapena l t y , royalty fees for theremaining term of the 
Agreement (or the renewal term, if applicahle) calcolatedhased opon the average Net Sales of yoor 
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R e ^ o r a ^ ^ ^ e ^ v e ^ c o ^ ^ ^examp^Byoo r 
average Net S a ^ ^ ^ ^ v e ^ p r e ^ o g c a ^ a r m o n ^ 
bevetbree^yee^rameioiogon thetermef yeurAgreement yeorliguideteddemegeeweu^be 
$150,00000 ^ 8 ^ 3 3 3 3 3 x ^ 
rameioioaveera^^et tbe time of terminetieo.veur Restaurants 
been aperatingferleeetban twelve (12) mootbe.liauidated damages^ 
average NetSalesefallOickev'eReetauraote in aperatieoforlesstbantwelve^^^ 

2 You sball immediately and pem^aneotî  
metbads, procedures, tecbniques, and trade secratsasseolated witb tbe 
and all etber distinctive fam^s, slogans, signs, symbols and devices associated witb tbe 
fortb intbe Manuals, in particular, you sballcease touse, without limitation, allsigns, advertising 
materials, displays, stationery, fom^s, and any otberarticles wbicb display tbe Pro^ 
items wbicb display tbe Proprietary Marias sball be removed from your Restaurant premises at your cost 
witbin thirty (00) days oftermination. 

0. You shall takesucb action as maybe neoessary tocancel any assumed name or 
eguivalent registration which contains the Proprietary Marks or any part thereof or any other service 
or trademark ofOickey's and you sball furnish Oickey's with evidence satisfactory to Oickey's of 
compliance witb this obligation witbin five (0) days aftertbe termination orexpiratio 

4 You shall, at Oickey's option (unless Oickey's exercises its option under Article17 0 
hereof, in which event Oickey's sballalso have the option to cause you to),assign to Oickey's any interest 
wbicb you have in any lease or sublease for your Restaurant premises or for any equipment used in tbe 
operation of tbe franchised business. Oickey's may exercise sucb option at orwitbin thirty (00) days after 
either termination or (subject to any existing rigbt to renew) expiration of this Agreement Tbe time for 
closing on tbe assignment of lease, sublease or equipment sball beadate no later tban ten (10) days 
after Oickey's exercise of tbe option(s) unless Oickey's is also exeroising its option to purchase property 
described below in Article 17.0, in which case the date ofclosing sball be on tbe same date prescribed for 
the purchase option Closing shall take place at Oickey's corporate office orat such other location as the 
parties may agree Ifneitberyou nor Oickey's electto exercise its option to acquire the lease or sublease 
for tbe premises of tbe franchised business,you shall make sucb modifications or alterations to sucb 
premises immediately upon termination or expiration of this Agreement as may be necessary to 
distinguish tbe appearance of sucb premises from tbat of other Restaurants operating under the System 
and sball make such specificadditional changes as Oickey's may reasonably request. Ifyoufailorrefuse 
to comply with the requirements of this Article 17.4,0^0^8 sball have the right to enter upon tbe 
premises ofthe franchised business, without being guilty oftrespass orany other crime ortort, to make or 
cause to be made sucb changes as may be required, at your expense, wbicb expense you sball pay upon 
demand. 

0 A Oickey's sball have tbe option, which it may exercise by providing written notice 
to you witbin thirty (00) days after termination or (subject to any rigbt to renew) expiration of this 
Agreement, topurcbase from youany or all of your fumisbings,equipment (including any computer 
hardware and software), signs, fixtures, supplies or inventory related to tbe operation o f ^ 
business, atyourcostorfairmarketvalue,whicbeveris less. Should Oickey's exercise sucb option: 

S. Oickey's sball be purchasing your assets only and sball be assuming no 
liabilities Notwithstanding anything contained herein to tbe contrary, Oickey's and you sball ful^ 
comply with tbe requirements ofany "bulk transfer" or fraudulent conveyance statute or 
equivalent law in the jurisdiction in wbicb your Restaurant is located, so that Oickey's sball not 
assume or acquire any "transferee" liability. 

O. Ifthe parties cannot agree onafair market value witbin thirty (00) days from the 
date of Oickey's notice to exercise its option, an independent appraiser shall be designated by 
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each party a n d ^ e t w o ^ i n d e p e ^ 
Tbadatarmioatioooffairma^ Each 
party sha^baar^aco^ and axpaosasoftba appear appaintad by soch party, a 
sba^bareaquallytbaccatsandaxpansasaftba third appraiser 

0. A tc ias i r ^yoosha i ida^ar toO ic^ 
hiiis of saia,assignrnaots,raiaasas avians, and soch athardacomaotsao 
Oickey's deems raascnahiy necessary tcpartact Oickey's titia and pcssassicn in an 
assets being porohased and decertify that the retirements cfaii taxing and ether gcvemmenta^ 
aothcrities have been satisfied if at tbe time cfcicsingyco have not obtained aiicf these 
certificates and other decoments, Oickey's may, in its scie discretion, piece tbe porchase price in 
escrow pending tbe issoanceofany retired certificates ordocoments. 

E Tbe time and piece forthe closing ofthe porohase and saie of socb assets shaii 
beadate not later tban thirty (30) days after the porchase price is determined by the parties or 
the appraisers, whichever is later,at tbe operating office of Oickey's in Oallas,Texa 
onlessthe parties motoally agreeto anotberdateorplace 

F At closing, Oickey's shall have tbe rigbt to set offall amoonts yoo owe to Oickey's 
and its sohsidiaries and affiliates and tbe cost inoorred in connection with any escrow 
arrangement (incloding reasonable legal fees), against any paymentfortbe assets, and shall pay 
tbe remaining amoont in cash. 

0 Yoo, at Oickey's option, sball assign to Oickey's all rights to tbe telephone nombers of 
yoor Restaorant and execote all forms and docomentsregoired by any telephone company to transfer 
socb service and nombers to Oickey's Yoo hereby appoint Oickey's yoor troe and lawfol agent and 
attomey-infactwith foil power and aotbority, forthe sole porposeoftaking socb action as is nec^ 
complete socb assignment This power of attorney sball sorvive tbe expiration or termination of this 
Agreement Yoo sball thereafter ose different telephone nombers at or in connection with any 
sobsegoent bosiness condoctedhy yoo. 

7 Yooagree, if yoocontinoeto operate or sobsegoentiybeginto operate anyother 
bosiness, not to ose any reprodoction,coonterteit, copy or colorable imitation of tbe Proprietary 
either in connection with socb other bosiness or its promotion, wbicb is likely to caoseconfosion,mi^^ 
or deception orwhich is likely to dilote Oickey's rights in and to tbe Proprietary Marks, and ^ 
not to ose any designation of origin or description or representation which falsely soggests or represents 
acontinoing association or connection with Oickey's. 

0 Yoo sball promptly pay all soms owing to Oickey's and its sohsidiaries and affiliates in 
tbe event ofterminationforany defaolt by yoo, socb soms sball inolode interest on any past doe amoonts 
as set forth in this Agreement, and all damages, costs, and expenses, incloding reasonable legal fees, 
inoorred by Oickey's asaresolt ofthe defaolt, which obligation shall give rise to and remain, ontil 
foll,alien in favor of Oickey's against any and all of the personal property, fomisbings,egoip^ 
fixtores and inventory owned hy yoo and on tbe premises of the franchised bosiness at tbe time of 
defaolt 

0 Yoo sball pay to Oickey's all damages, costs, and expenses, incloding reasonable legal 
fees, inoorred by Oickey's after the termination or expiration of this Agreement in obtaining^ 
otberrelieffortheenforcementofany provisions oftbisArticle 17 

10. Yoo sball immediately deliver to Oickey's all materials, incloding the Manoals, records, 
files,instroctions,co^espondence,costomer lists, and all otber writings or electronic dat^ 
operating tbe franchised hosiness, incloding, witboot limitation, brochores, agreements, invo 
otber related materials in yoor possession, and all copies thereof (all of which are acknowledge^ 
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O i o ^ s p r o p e r t ^ a n d s b ^ r e ^ 
Agreement end ef eny oorreependence between tbe parties end any etber deoomente wbicb yao 
reaeenabiy need far cempiiance witb any appiicabie iaw. 

11. YcoandycorPrincipaieQwner/Qperatcrandeacbofycorinveetcrsebaiiccmoiywitbtbe 
reetricticnecnccnfidentiaiinfcmiaticn contained in Article 12.1and tbe ccven 
102B Any otber person re t i red to execute similar covenants poreoanttc Articles 122cr 18 sbai i^ 
complywitb sucb covenants. 

ARTICLE 18. COVENANTS 

1. You covenant tbat during tbe term of tbis Agreement except as otben^ise approved in 
writino bvOickev's.vou and tbe OoeratinoPrincioal^ourOwner/Ooerator sball d e v o t e e 
and best efforts to tbe management and operation of tbe franobisedbusiness. 

2. You and your PrincioalsCwner/Ooerator and eacb of vour Investors soecificallv 
acknowledoe tbat pursuant to tbis Aoreement vou and vour PrincioaisOwner/Coerator and eaobof vour 
Investors will receive valuable soecializedtreinino.trede secrets and confidential ^ 
witbout limitation, information regarding tbe operetional, sales premotional and marketing 
tecbniques of Oickey's and tbe System and proprietary recipes wbicb are beyond your present skills and 
exoerience. and tbat of vour PrincioalsOwner/Ooeretor, Investors and vour manaoers and employees. 
You and your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator acknowledoe tbat sucb trainino. trade secrets, and confide^^^^ 
information provideacompetitiveadyantage and wil lbe valuable toyou intbe development of tbe 
franobisedbusiness and tbat gaining access to sucb training,tredesecrets,recipes, and confidential 
information is,tberefore,aprimary reason for entering into tbis Agreement. In consideration for sucb 
training, trade secrets, and confidential information, y o u ^ ^ ^ your P r i n c i ^ ^ 
your Investors covenantas follows: 

A. Witb respect to you,Ouring tbe term oftbis Agreement, orwitb respeot to eacb of 
your Principals, during tbe term of tbis Agreement for so long as sucb individual or entity satisfies 
tbe definition of your Principal in Article28.3.3, except as otberwiseapproved inwriting by 
Oickey's. neitber you nor your Owner/Operator nor any of your Principalslnvestors sball. eitbe^ 
directly or indirectly,for yourselves or tbrougb, on bebaif of or in conjunction witb any person, 
partnersbip, corporation or otber entity: 

i. Oivert or attempt to divert any business or customer of tbe francbised 
business to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otberwise, or do or 
perform, directly or indirectly, any otber act injurious or prejudicial to tbe goodwill 
associated witb tbe Proprietary Marks and tbe System; or 

ii. Own, maintain, operate,engage in or bave any financial or beneficial 
interest in (including any interest in corporations, iimited liability companies, p a ^ 
trusts, unincorporatedassociations, joint ventures or otber entities), advise, assist or 
make loans to, any person or entity engaged in any business wbicb is tbe same as or 
similar to or competitive witb tbe francbised business includino. but not iimited to. ^ 
foodrestaurant or caterinobusinesswbicbtbat offers smoked meats or barbecue-stvle 
food.includino cbopped beef brisket, sliced beef brisket, pulled pork^Viroinia style bam, 
marinated cbicken breast turkey breast poiisbsausaoe. spicy cbeddarsausaoe. or pork 
ribs asaprimarvorfeatured menu item. 

S. Witb respect to you, foracontinuous uninterrupted period commencingupon tbe 
expiration or termination of, ortransfer of all of your interest in,tbis Agreement or witb respect to 
vourOwner/Qperatorand eacb ofyourPrincipalslnvestors.foracontinuousuninte^upted period 
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commeoo iogopoo^eear i ^^ 
^ A g r e e m e o t o r ^ ^ e t i m e s u c ^ ^ 
P r i o o ^ Q w o ^ Q o e r a ^ o r a o ^ ^ i o A ^ o ^ 2 0 ^ 
two-year period sb^l be to^d coring any oeood of noooom^an^ exoept as otherwise 
approyed in writing by Oiokey's, neither yoo nor yoor Qwner/Qoerator nor any of yoor 
Prinoioalslnyestors shaii. either direotly or indireotiy. for yoorseiyes or tbroogh. on beba^ 
oonjonotion witb any person, partnership oorporation orother entity: 

i. Oiyert or attempt to divert any bosiness or oostomer of tbe franohised 
bosiness toanyoompetitor, by direotor indireot indooementorotberwise, or door 
perform, direotiy or indireotly, any otber aot injorioos or prejodioial to the goodwill 
assooiated with Diokey's Proprietary Marks and the System; 

ii. Employ or seek to employ any person who is at tbat time employed by 
Oiokey's, by an affiliate of Oiokey's, or by any other owner/ooeratorfranobisees or 
developer of Oiokey's, or otberwise direotiy or indireotly indooe sooh person to leave tbat 
person's employment,exoept as may be permittedonder any existing Oevelopment 
AgreementorfranobiseagreementbetweenOiokey'sandyoo;or 

iii. Own, maintain, operate,engage in or have any finanoial or benefioial 
interest in (inoloding interest inoorporations, limited liability oompanies, partnerships, 
trosts.oninoorooratedassooiations. joint ventoresventorw:̂ es or otber entities), advise^ 
assist or make loans to, any bosiness whiohtbat is tbe same as or similar to or 
oomoetitive with tbe franohised bosiness inolodino. hot not limited to. anv foedrestaorant 
or oaterino hosiness whiohtbat offers smoked meats or barbeooe^stvle food, inolodino 
oboooedbeef brisket slioedbeef brisket. oolledoork.Viroinia style ham.marinated 
obioken breast, torkev breast, oolisbsaosaoe.soioyoheddarsaosaoe. or oork ribs asa 
orimarvorfeatoredmenoitemwhiob bosiness is. or is intended to be. looatedwithina 
tb i r ty^mi ie radios ofthe looation aooepted bereonderorwitbinafive^mile 
any Restaorant in existenoe or onder oonstrootion as of date tbe time period set forth in 
Artioie 18.2.S oommenoes for yoo or yoor PrinoioalQwner/Qoerator or any of voor 
Investors, as aooiioable. 

C Artioles 18.2.A.ii and 182.8iii sball not apply to ownership of less tbanaone 
peroent (1^) benefioial interest in tbe ootstanding egoity seoorities of any Pobiioly-Held 
Corporation. 

3. Tbe parties agree that eaoh of tbe above oovenants sball be oonstroed as independent of 
any other oovenant or provision of this Agreement lfalloranyportionofaoovenantintbisArtiole18is 
held onreasonableoronenforoeablebyaooortoragenoyhavingvalidjorisdiotion in an onappealed final 
deoision to whioh Oiokey'sisaoarty.yoo.yoor Qwner/Qoerator and yoor Prinoioaislnvestors expressly 
agree to be boond by any lesser oovenantsobsomed witbin tbe terms of sooh oovenant tbat imposes the 
maximom doty permitted by law, as ifthe resoitingoovenantwere separately stated in and madeapart of 
thisArtiole 18 

4. Yoo and yoor PrinoipalsQwner/Qperator and Investors onderstand and aoknowledge that 
Oiokey'ssball bave the rigbt, in its sole disoretion, to redooe tbe soope of any oovenantsetfortb^ 
18 2, or any poison thereof, witboot yoor oonsenteffeotive immediately opon written notioe to yoo; ^ 
yoo and voor PrinoipalsQwner/Cperator and Investors aoree that they sball immediately oomp̂ ^ 
oovenant as so modified, whioh sball be folly enforoeabie notwithstanding the provisions of A ^ 

5. Yoo and yoor PrinoipaisQwner/Qperator and Investors expressly aoree that the existenoe 
of any olaimsyoomay have against Oiokey's, whether or not arising from this Agreementsbail not 
oonstitoteadefense to tbe enfdroement by Oiokey's of tbe covenants in this Artioie18,yoo and yoor 
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PrincipalsOwner/Qperator and Investors agree to pay all costs and expenses (including reasonable legal 
fees), incurred by Dickey's in connection with the enforcement ofthis Article. 

6. You and your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator and Investors acknowledge that a violation of 
the terms of this Article 18 would result in irreparable injury to Dickey's for which no adequate remedy at 
law may be available, and you and your Principalslnvestors accordingly consent to the issuance of an 
injunction prohibiting any conduct by vou. your Owner/Operator or any of your Principalslnvestors in 
violation of the terms of this Article. This remedy is in addition to any other remedies Dickey's may have 
hereunder or at law or equity. 

7. At Dickey's request, you shall require and obtain execution of covenants similar to those 
set forth in this Article 18, from any other person or entity that now or hereafter satisfies the definition of 
your Principallnvestors or vour Owner/Operator in Article 26.3.3 or any other person or entity who has 
received or will receive confidential information or training by Dickey's. Failure by you to obtain execution 
ofthe covenants required by this Article 18.7 shall constitute an event of default under Article 16. 

ARTICLE 19. TAXES, PERMITS AND INDEBTEDNESS 

1. You shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed, including without 
limitation, income, unemployment and sales taxes and all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind 
incurred by you in the conduct of the franchised business. 

2. You shall pay to Dickey's an amount equal to any sales tax, gross receipts tax, excise tax 
or any similar license or tax, directly or indirectly imposed on Dickey's with respect to any payment to 
Dickey's required under this Agreement The preceding sentence shall not apply to any franchise tax or 
income, war profits or excess profits tax (or any tax in lieu thereof), imposed on Dickey's with respect to 
the above payments. 

3. In the event of any bona fide dispute as to your liability for taxes assessed or other 
indebtedness, you may contest the validity or the amount of the tax or indebtedness in accordance with 
the procedures of the taxing authority or applicable law; however, in no event shall you permit a tax sale 
or seizure by levy of execution or similar writ or warrant or attachment by a creditor, to occur against the 
premises of the franchised business or any improvements thereon. 

4. You shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and shall 
timely obtain any and all permits, certificates or licenses necessary for the full and proper conduct of the 
franchised business, including, without limitation, licenses to do business, fictitious name registrations, 
sales tax permits, fire clearances, health permits, alcoholic beverage permits and licenses, and 
certificates of occupancy. 

5. You shall notify Dickey's in writing within five (5) days of the commencement of any 
action, suit or proceeding or of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award or decree of any court, 
agency or other governmental instrumentality, which may adversely affect the operation or financial 
condition ofthe franchised business. 
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A R ^ O L E ^ ^ O E P E N O E N T C ^ 

^ B l N O ^ O O ^ R Y R E L A ^ O N S H ^ T b e ^ ^ ^ o o w ^ e a o d ^ r e e ^ ^ A ^ m ^ 
does not o ^ e a f i d u c ^ r e ^ o n s b i p between t b e m , ^ 
tbetnotbingin this Agreement is 
subsidies joint venture^pertne^empioyee^em^eyer, joint em 
purpose. 

20.2 O W N ^ O P E R A T O R F R A N O H ^ E ^ A N ^ O E P E N O E N T O O N T R A O Ouringtbetermof 
tbis Agreement you sbeiiboid yourself out to tbe pubiioes en independent oontreotor operate 
business pursuant toefrenobise from Oickey's You agree to take suob action essbeii be neoessary to 
tbatend, including, witbout limitation, exbibit inganoticeof tbat fact inaconsp icuousp iace in tbe 
francbised premises, tbe content and form of wbicb Oickey's reserves tbe rigbt to specify in tbe M^^^ 
or otberwise in writing. 

20.0 NO AUTHORITY TO 8IN0 0 I 0 K E Y S You and vour PrincioaisOwner/Ooerator and eacb of 
vour Investors understand and agree tbat notbing in tbis Agreement autborizes you or your Pr inc ipe 
Owner/Ooerator and anv of vour Investors to make any contract agreement warranty or repres^nt^tio^ 
on Oickey's bebaif, or to incur any debt or otber obligation in Oickey's name; and tbat Oickey's sball in no 
event assume liability for,or be deemed liable hereunder asaresu l t of, any sucb action;nor sball 
Oickey's be deemed liable forany act or omission o f y o u r . vourPrincioalsOwner/Ooeratororanv^^ 
Inves t^ in tbe conduct oftbe francbised businessorforany claim o ^ ^ 

20.4 INOEMNITY 

1 Y O ^ Y O U R O W N E R / O P E R A T O R A N O EAOH OF YOUR P R I N O I P A t S I N V E S ^ 
S H A t 4 A T A t t T I M E 5 , I N O E M N I I ^ A N O H O t O H A R M t E S S T O T H 5 F U t t 5 5 T E X T E ^ 
E Y I ^ W O I O K E Y S , ITS SU8SIOIARIES, AFFILIATES, SUOOESSORSANO A N I O N S A N O T ^ ^ 
RESFEOTIVEOIREOTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES, 
AOENTS,INOEPENOENT CONTRACTORS, ANO REPRESENTATIVES FROM A L L ' L O S S E S A N O 
EXPENSES" (AS OEFINEO IN ARTICLE 2 0 4 0 S E L O W ) INCURRED IN CONNECTION WITH ANY 
A C T I O N , S U I T , P R O C E E D I N O , C I ^ I M , DEMAND, INVESTIGATION OR INQUIRY (FORMAL OR 
INFORMAL), O R A N Y S E T T L E M E N T T H E R E O F ( W H E T H E R O R N O T A F O R M A L PROCEEDING OR 
ACTION HAS SEEN INSTITUTED), WHICH ARISES OUT OF OR IS SASED UPON ANY OF THE 
FOLLOWING: 

A THE INFRINGEMENT, ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OR ANY OTHER 
V I O ^ A T I O N O R A L L E G E O V I O L A T I O N S Y Y O U O R Y O U R O W N E R / O P E R A T O R O R A N Y O F 
YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS O F A N Y PATENT MARI^ OR COPYRIGHT OR OTHPR 
PROPRIETARYRIGHTOWNEOORCONTROLLEDSYTHIRO PARTIES (EXCEPT AS SUCH 
MAY OCCUR WITH RESPECT TO ANY RIGHTS IN THE PROPRIETARY MAR^S OR 
COPYRIGHTSGRANTEO UNDERTHISAGREEMENT); 

S THEVIOLATION,SREACH OR ALLEGED VIOLATION OR S R E A C H S Y Y O U ^ 
YOUR OWNER/OPERATOR O R A N Y O F Y O U R PRINCIPALSINVESTORSOFANYFEDERAL 
STATE OR LOCAL LAW, REGULATION, RULING, STANDARD OR DIRECTIVE OR ANY 
INDUSTRYSTANDARD; 

C L ISEL ,SLANDERORANYOTHER FORM OF DEFAMATION O F O I C ^ E Y S O R 
THE SYSTEM, SY YOU. YOUR OWNER/OPERATOR OR B Y ^ A N Y OF YOUR 
PRINCIPALSINVESTORS; 

0 THE VIOLATION OR S R E A C H S Y YOU. YOUR OWNER/OPERATOR OR SY 
ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS OF ANY WARRANTY, REPRESENTATION, 
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AGREEMENT OR G8^GATIGN IN THIS AGREEMENT GR IN ANY OEVELGRMENT 
AGREEMENT GR GTHER AGREEMENT EETWEEN YGO ANO O ^ E Y S GR ITS 
SOSS^ARiESGRAFEiOATES^ANO 

E NEGLiGENTAGTS, ERRORS G R G M i S S i G N S S Y Y G O , ANY GFYGUR 
SUSSiOiARiES ANO AFFILIATES. YGOR GWNER/GPERATGR ANO ANY GF YGOR 
RRINOIPALSiNVESTGRS ANO YGOR OFFICERS, OIREOTORS, SHAREHOLOERS, 
PARTNERS, AGENTS,INOEFENOENTOONTRAOTORS,SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES, ANO 
REPRESENTATIVES ANO THOSE OF YOOR SOSSIOIARIES ANO AFFILIATES IN 
OONNEOTION WITH THE ESTABLISHMENT ANO OPERATION OF YOOR RESTAORANT, 
INOLOOING, SOT NOT LIMITEO TO, NEGLIGENT ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF ANY 
OF THE FOREGOING IN THE OPERATION OF ANY OELIVERY MOTOR VEHICLE THE 
PARTIES ACI^NOWLEOGE ANO AGREETHAT OICKEY'S CANNOT ANO OOES NOT 
EXERCISE ANYCONTROLOVER THE MANNER OFOPERATION OFANY DELIVERY 
MOTORVEHICLESOSEOSYOR ON SEHALFOFANYIN0EPEN0ENT DELIVERY SERVICE 
PROVIOERREOOIREOONOERTHISAGREEMENTORSYORONSEHALFOFYOOORANY 
OFYO0REMPLOYEES,AGENTS OR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS (EXCEPT,WITH 
RESPECTTO DELIVERYSERVICEPROVIDED SY YOO, DICKEYS MAY REOOIRE THAT 
YOOR DRIVERS MEET CERTAIN MINIMOM STANDARDS) ANO,THEREFORE,THAT THE 
SAFE OPERATION OF DELIVERY SERVICE IS THE INDEPENDENT OPERATOR'S (OR 
YO0RS,ASAPPLICASLE),SOLERESPONSISILITY 

2 YOO.YOOROWNER/OPERATOR ANO EACH OF YOOR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS 
AGREE TO GIVE DICKEY'S IMMEDIATE NOTICE OF ANY SOCH ACTION, SOIT, PROCEEDING, 
CLAIM, DEMAND, INOOIRY OR INVESTIGATION AT THE EXPENSE AND RIS^ OF YOO YOOR 
OWER/OPERATOR AND EACH OF YOOR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS. DICKEY'S MAY ELECT TO 
CONTROL (SOT ONDER NO CIRCOMSTANCE IS OBLIGATED TO ONDERTAI^E), ANO ASSOCIATE 
COUNSEL OFITSOWNCHOOSINGWITH RESPECTTO, THEDEFENSEANO/ORSETTLEMENT OF 
ANY SOCH ACTION, S0IT,PROCEEDING, CLAIM, DEMAND, INOOIRY OR INVESTIGATION SOCH 
AN ONDERTAI^ING BY DICKEY'S SHALL, IN NO MANNER OR FORM, DIMINISH THE OBLIGATION 
OF YOO. YOOR OWNER/OPERATOR AND EACH OF YOOR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS TO 
INOEMNIFYDICKEY'SANOTOHOLDITHARMLESS 

3 IN ORDER TO PROTECT PERSONS OR PROPERTY, OR ITS REPOTATION OR 
GOODWILL, ORTHE REPOTATION OR GOODWILL OF OTHERS, DICKEY'S MAY,AT ANY TIME 
AND WITHOOT NOTICE, AS IT IN ITS LODGMENT DEEMS APPROPRIATE, CONSENT OR AGREE 
TO SETTLEMENTS OR TAKE SOCH OTHER REMEDIAL OR CORRECTIVE ACTION AS IT DEEMS 
EXPEOIENTWITH RESPECTTOANY ACTION, S0IT,PROCEEDING, CLAIM, DEMAND, INOOIRYOR 
INVESTIGATION IF,IN DICKEY'S SOLE ^ODGMENT,THERE ARE REASONABLE GROONOS TO 
BELIEVETHAT: 

A ANYOFTHEACTSORCIRC0MSTANCESINARTICLE204BI ABOVE HAVE 
OCC0RRED;OR 

B ANY ACT,ERROR OR OMISSIONAS DESCRIBED INARTICLE204BIEMAY 
RESOLTDIRECTLYOR INOIRECTLYIN DAMAGE, IN^ORY OR HARM TOANY PERSON OR 
ANYPROPERTY 

4 ALL LOSSES AND EXPENSES INOORRED ONDER THIS ARTICLE 20 SHALL BE 
CHARGEABLE TO ANO PAID BY YOO. YOOR OWNER/OPERATOR OR ANY OF YOOR 
^ ^ ^ S I N V E S T O R S PORSOANTTO YOOR OBLIGATIONSOF INOEMNITYONDERTHIS 
ARTICLE, REGARDLESS OF ANY ACTION, ACTIVITY OR DEFENSE ONOERTAKEN BY DICKEY'S 
ORTHESOBSEOOENTSOCCESSORFAILOREOFSOCHACTION,ACTIVITYOROEFENSE 
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5. AS USED IN THIS ARTICLE 20, THE PHRASE "LOSSES AND EXPENSES" SHALL 
INCLUDE, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL LOSSES, COMPENSATORY, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, FINES, CHARGES, COSTS, EXPENSES, LOST PROFITS, LEGAL FEES, COURT COSTS, 
SETTLEMENT AMOUNTS, JUDGMENTS, COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGES TO DICKEYS 
REPUTATION AND GOODWILL, COSTS OF OR RESULTING FROM DELAYS, FINANCING, COSTS 
OF ADVERTISING MATERIAL AND MEDIA TIME/SPACE AND COSTS OF CHANGING, 
SUBSTITUTING OR REPLACING THE SAME, AND ANY AND ALL EXPENSES OF RECALL, 
REFUNDS, COMPENSATION, PUBLIC NOTICES, AND OTHER SUCH AMOUNTS INCURRED IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE MATTERS DESCRIBED. 

6. THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE 20 DO NOT ASSUME 
ANY LIABILITY FOR ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF THOSE WITH WHOM YOU, YOUR 
OWNER/OPERATOR. ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS OR YOUR SUBSIDIARIES AND 
AFFILIATES MAY CONTRACT, REGARDLESS OF THE PURPOSE. YOU. YOUR 
OWNER/OPERATOR AND EACH OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS SHALL HOLD HARMLESS 
AND INDEMNIFY THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE 20 FOR ALL 
LOSSES AND EXPENSES WHICH MAY ARISE OUT OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACTS, ERRORS OR 
OMISSIONS BY YOU, YOUR PRINCIPALSOWNER/OPERATOR. YOUR INVESTORS. YOUR 
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, YOUR OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, 
AGENTS, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS, SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES AND REPRESENTATIVES 
AND THOSE OF YOUR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, AND ANY SUCH THIRD PARTIES 
WITHOUT LIMITATION AND WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CAUSE OR CAUSES THEREOF OR THE 
NEGLIGENCE OF DICKEYS OR ANY OTHER PARTY OR PARTIES ARISING IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH, AND WHETHER SUCH NEGLIGENCE BE SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT, OR 
ACTIVE OR PASSIVE. ACCORDINGLY IT IS THE EXPRESS INTENTION THAT THE FOREGOING 
INDEMNITIES SHALL APPLY TO EACH INDEMNIFIED PARTY WITH RESPECT TO MATTERS 
WHICH IN WHOLE OR IN PART ARE CAUSED BY OR ARISE OUT OF, OR ARE CLAIMED TO BE 
CAUSED BY OR ARISE OUT OF, THE NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY OF SUCH INDEMNIFIED 
PARTY. 

7. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED PURSUANT TO 
THIS ARTICLE 20 BE REQUIRED TO SEEK RECOVERY FROM THIRD PARTIES OR OTHERWISE 
MITIGATE THEIR LOSSES TO MAINTAIN A CLAIM AGAINST YOU. YOUR OWNER/OPERATOR OR 
ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS. YOU. YOUR OWNER/OPERATOR AND EACH OF YOUR 
PRINCIPALSINVESTORS AGREE THAT THE FAILURE TO PURSUE SUCH RECOVERY OR 
MITIGATE LOSS WILL IN NO WAY REDUCE THE AMOUNTS RECOVERABLE FROM YOU. YOUR 
OWNER/OPERATOR OR ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS BY THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED 
PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE. 

8. You and your Principalslnvestors and your Owner/Operator expressly agree that the 
terms of this Article 20.4 shall expressly survive the termination, expiration or transfer of this Agreement 
or any interest herein. 

ARTICLE 21. GUARANTY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSOWNER/OPERATOR AND INVESTORS 

1. In consideration of the grant by Dickey's of a license and franchise to open and operate a 
Restaurant to Owner/OperatorFranchisee. pursuant to this Agreement to which this Personal Guaranty 
(herein so called) is made a part thereof, and for other good and valuable consideration, the undersigned-
the Principals of Owner/Operator and Investors of Franchisee, for themselves, their heirs, successors, 
and assigns, do individually, jointly and severally hereby become surety and guaranty for the payment of 
all amounts and the performance of the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement, to be paid, 
kept and performed by Owner/OperatorFranchisee. 
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2. The undersigned Principals, individually andOwner/Operator and Investors, jointly and 
severally, hereby agree to be personally bound and obligated by each and every condition and term 
contained in this Agreement (specifically including, without limitation, the covenants set forth in Article 12 
and Article 18 of the Agreement). 

3. If any default should at any time be made herein by Owner/OperatorFranchisee. then the 
undersigned PrincipalsOwner/Qperator and Investors, their heirs, successors and assigns, do hereby, 
individually, jointly and severally, promise to agree to pay to Dickey's all monies due and payable to 
Dickey's under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

4. In addition, if Owner/OperatorFranchisee fails to comply with any other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, then the undersigned, their heirs, successors and assigns, do hereby, 
individually, jointly and severally, promise and agree to comply with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement for and on behalf of Owner/OperatorFranchisee. 

5. In addition, should Owner/OperatorFranchisee at any time be in default on any obligation 
to pay monies to Dickey's or any subsidiary or affiliate of Dickey's, whether for merchandise, products, 
supplies, furniture, fixtures, equipment or other goods purchased by Owner/OperatorFranchisee from 
Dickey's or any subsidiary or affiliate of Dickey's, or for any other indebtedness of 
Owner/OperatorFranchisee to Dickey's or any subsidiary or affiliate of Dickey's, then the undersigned 
Principalslnvestors. their heirs, successors and assigns, do hereby, individually, jointly and severally, 
promise and agree to pay all such monies due and payable from Owner/OperatorFranchisee to Dickey's 
or any subsidiary or affiliate of Dickey's upon default by Owner/OperatorFranchisee. 

6. This Personal Guaranty shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement 
and/or any other collateral agreement(s) or any determination that this Agreement or any portion of it is 
void or voidable. 

7. It is further understood and agreed by the undersigned that the provisions, covenants and 
conditions of this Personal Guaranty will inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of Dickey's. 

8. Except as precluded by applicable law (including, without limitation, Minn. Stat. Sec. 
80C.21, and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J)), each of the undersigned Principalslnvestors herby submits to 
personal jurisdiction exclusively in the state and federal courts of the State of Texas with respect to any 
litigation, action or proceeding pertaining to this Personal Guaranty or this Agreement, and agrees that all 
such litigation will and must be venued in Piano, Texas. 

9. Owner/OperatorFranchisee and the undersigned PrincipalsOwner/lnvestor and Investors 
certify that the table immediately below contains a true, correct and complete listing of: (i) if 
Owner/OperatorFranchisee is an individual, Owner/Operator and his or her spouse (if anv)Franchisee: 
and (ii) if Owner/OperatorFranchisee is an entity, all of the holders of a direct or indirect ownership 
interest in Owner/OperatorFranchisee (including each Principallnvestor) and all persons and entities 
which directly or indirectly control or manage the business and affairs of Owner OperatorPranchisee. 
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Name (Full Legal 
Name) 

Address and 
Telephone No. 

Type of 
Ownership Interest 

Entity In which 
Ownership 

Interest Is Held 

Ownership % 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

ARTICLE 22. APPROVALS, WAIVERS AND REMEDIES 

22.1 PRIOR APPROVAL OR CONSENT OF PICKETS. Whenever this Agreement requires the prior 
acceptance, approval or consent of Dickey's, you shall make a timely written request to Dickey's and such 
acceptance, approval or consent shall be obtained in writing. 

22.2 NO WARRANTIES OR GUARANTIES. Dickey's makes no warranties or guarantees upon 
which vou. vour Owner/Operator or your Principalslnvestors may rely, and assumes no liability or 
obligation to you, your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator. your Investors or any third party to which it would not 
otherwise be subject, by providing any waiver, acceptance, approval, consent or suggestion to you or 
your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator. or vour Investors in connection with this Agreement, or for any neglect, 
delay or denial of any request therefor. 

22.3 EFFECT OF DELAY. WAIVER. OMISSION OR FORBEARANCE. No delay, waiver, omission 
or forbearance by Dickey's to exercise any right, option, duty or power arising out of any breach or default 
by you or your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator or vour Investors under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver 
by Dickey's to enforce any such right, option, duty or power against you or your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator 
or vour Investors, or as to a subsequent breach or default by you or your PrincipalsOwner/Qperator or 
your Investors. Subsequent acceptance by Dickey's of any payments due to it hereunder shall not be 
deemed to be a waiver by Dickey's of any preceding breach by vou. vour Owner/Operator or your 
Principalslnvestors of any terms, provisions, covenants or conditions of this Agreement. 

22.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE. All rights and remedies of the parties to this 
Agreement shall be cumulative and not alternative, in addition to and not exclusive of any other rights or 
remedies which are provided for herein or which may be available at law or in equity in case of any 
breach, failure or default or threatened breach, failure or default of any term, provision or condition of this 
Agreement or any other agreement between you and Dickey's or its subsidiaries or affiliates. The rights 
and remedies of the parties to this Agreement shall be continuing and shall not be exhausted by any one 
(1) or more uses thereof, and may be exercised at any time or from time to time as often as may be 
expedient; and any option or election to enforce any such right or remedy may be exercised or taken at 
any time and from time to time. The expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement shall not discharge 
or release vou. vour Owner/Operator, or any of your Principalslnvestors from any liability or obligation 
then accrued, or any liability or obligation continuing beyond, or arising out of, the expiration or earlier 
termination of this Agreement 
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A R ^ C L E ^ F O R C E M A ^ U R E 

1. As osed iothisAgreemeot the term 
look-eot er ether indostriel distorhence, wer (deolered or ondeolered^ riet, epidemic, fire er other 
oetestrophe,eot of eoy government, end eny other 
perty 

2. Except es provided in Artioie 1^1, if the pertom^enoe of enyohiigetionhyenyperty onder 
this Agreement is prevented, hindered or deieyedheceose of ^ 
hy ose of normeicommercieimeesores, the parties sheii he relieved of their respective o h i ^ 
extent the parties ere respectively necesseriiy prevented, hindered or delayed in soch pertom^encedo^ 
the period of soch Force Majeore; provided, that yoo shall continoe to he ohligated to perform all of yoo^ 
monetary ohligations onder this AgreementThe party whose performance is affected hy an event of 
Force Majeore shall give prompt notice of sooh Force Majeore event to the other party hy telephone or 
facsimile (in each case to he confirmed in writing), setting forth the natore of the event, an estimate as to 
its dorat ionandaplan for resoming compliance with this Agreement,which the party shall prompti 
ondertake and maintain with doe diligence.Soch affected party shall he liahle for failore to give so 
timely notice only to the extent of damage actoallycaosed. 

A R ^ C L E ^ N O ^ C E S 

1. Any and all notices reqoired or permitted onder this Agreement shall he in writing and 
shall he personally delivered or mailed hy expedited delivery service or certified or registered m ^ 
receipt reqoested, first-lass postage prepaid, or sent hy prepaid facsimile, telegram or telex 
that the sender confirms the facsimile, telegram or telex hy sending an original confirmation copy 
certified or registered mail or expedited delivery service within three (3) hosiness days aftertra^ 
tothe respective partiesatthefollowing addresses onlessand ontil adifferent address has heen 
designated hywritten notice to the other party: 

Notices to Oickey's shall he sentto: 

Oickey's BarhecoeRestaorants, Inc. 
^ E F l a n o F a r k w a y , ^ 3 5 
Flano,Texas 75074 
Facsimile: 0 7 2 ^ ^ 0 2 
Telephone: 0 7 2 ^ ^ 0 1 

withacopyto: 

Oickey's Bar^ecoeRestaorants, Inc. 
4014OoleAvenoe,Soite1010 
Oallas, Texas 70200 
Attn:LvnnA.LittleLeoalOeoartment 
Facsimile: 072-240-0007 
Telephone: 072240 0000 

Notices to yoo shall he sentto the address setforth on pagelofthisAgreement 

2. Any notice shall he deemed to haveheen given at the time of personal delivery or, inthe 
case offacsimile, telegram ortelex, opon transmission (provided confirmation is sentasdescrih^^ 
or, in the case of expedited delivery service or registered or certified mail, three (0) hosiness days after 
the date and time of mailing. Any change in the ahove addresses shall he made hy giving fifteen (15) 
calendar days written notice ofthe change to the other party. 
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A R ^ O L E ^ E ^ R E A G R E E M E N T 

This Agreement the deooments referred te herein, the etteehmente hereto, end eny 
^dden^oenetitote the entire,foii end compete Agreement h e ^ 

Qwner/Qoereter end yoor Prinoioeieinvestereooneemino the eohieotm 
eii orior reietedeereements^hethwri^ 
Prinoioeieinveetors.no other reoreeentetionehevinoindooed yoo to exeoote this Aoreement Exoeptfor 
those permitted to he medeoniietereiiyhyOioke^shereonder,no amendment ohenge or verienoe from 
this Agreement sheii he binding on either party oniessmotoeiiy agreed to hyOiokey's and yoo e^^ 
exeootedhy their aothorizedoffioers or agents in writing. 

ARTiOLE^SEVERAB^TYANOOONSTRUOTION 

SEVERABILITY Exoept as expressiy provided to the contrary herein, eaoh portion, artioie, part, 
term and provision of this Agreement shaii he considered s 
part, term or prevision is determined to he invalid a 
iaworregoiationhyacoortoragencyhavingvaiidiorisdiction, this shaii not impair the operation of, o 
have any other effect opon, soch other portions, articles, parts, terms and provisions of this Agreement as 
may remain othen^iseintelligihle; and the latter shall continoe to he given foil force a^^ 
the parties hereto; and the invalid portions, articles, parts, terms and provisions shall he deemed not to he 
apart ofthis Agreement 

2^2 NO AOOITIONAL RIGHTS OR REMEDIES Except as expressly provided to the contrary 
herein, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall he deemed, to confer opon any person or entity 
other than yoo, Oickey's, Oickey's officers,directorsandpersonnel and Oickey's and yoor respective 
socoessors and assigns as may he contemplated and aothorizedhy Article 15, any rights or remedies 
onder or asaresolt ofthis Agreement 

OONSTROOTION. Yoo and voor PrincioalsOwner/Ooerator and voor Investors expressly aoree 
to he hoond hy any promise orcovenant imposing the maximom doty permitted hy law which is 
sohsomed within the terms of any provision hereof, as thoogh it were separately stated in and madea 
part of this Agreement, that may resolt from striking from any of the provisions of this Agreement any 
portion or portions whichacoort may hold to he onreasonahle and onenforceahleinafinal decision to 
which Oickey's isaparty,orfromredocing the scope of any premise or covenant to the extent r e q o ^ 
oomplywithsochacoort order 

1. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of all parties and 
none shall he deemed to affectthe meaning orconstroction ofany provision ofthisAgreement 

2. All references to the mascoline,neoter or singolar shall he constroed to inolode the 
mascoline, feminine, neoterorploral, whereapplicahle. Withoot limiting theohligationsindividoally 
ondertaken hy voor PrincipalsOwner/Qperator and voor Investors hereonder. all acknowledgments, 
promises, covenants, agreements and ohligations herein made or ondertakenhy yoo shall he deemed 
^ointlvand severally ondertaken hwoorOwner/Qperatorand all ofvoor Principalslnvestors. 

3. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing between the parties, the term''Principallnvestor^ 
osed in this Agreement sball inolode, collectively or individoally,^if yoo are an individoa^^ 
and^ i f voo are an entitv.^eacb person or entity who now or hereafter directly or indirectly owns an 
eooitv interest in yoo or who now or hereafter execotes this Aoreement asaPrincipalanlnvestor or 
execotes an agreement in which sochperson or entity agrees to be boond by this Agreement a s a 
P^neiaalan Investor.and^eaob soch otber person or entitvwbicb is reooired by Oickey's asacon 
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t o a T r a n ^ o r o ^ e ^ e p o ^ o ^ 
P ^ p a ^ n v e ^ r a o r a n agreemeotby which soch peracn c r e n t i ^ a g r e e s t c he hcond hy this 
Agreement esePrincipoieo Nestor Per poroses of this Agreement the t e m ^ " ^ ^ 
eiscrefe^inciodevcorOoeretingPrincipoiOwne^Qperetc^ 

4 Eech reference in thisAgreementtcecc^craticn^imitediiehiiitycc^^ 
sheii he deemed tcrefertceech end enyefthe foregoing entities interehengeehiy end t cenyc 
ororganizetionB Forther, eech referenceto theorgenizetioneidocoments, egoity owners, partners, 
directors, managers, general partners, and officers of a oorporation, iimited iiahiiity company or 
partnership shaii he deemed to refer to each and any of the foregoinginterchangeahiy and to the 
fonctionai egoivaient ofthe foregoing forany entity ororganization 

2^4 OOONTERPARTS This Agreement may he execotedincoonterparts,and each oopy so 
execoted shaii he deemed an original. 

2^5 EFFECTIVE DATE This Agreement shall not heoome effective ontil signed hy the Chairman of 
the Board,OhiefExecotiveQfficer,orthe President ofOickey's 

A R T I O L E ^ A P P L I O A O L E t ^ ^ M E O I A T I O ^ A R B I T R A T I O ^ O O U R T A O T ^ 

MEDIATION Soh^ectonly to A r t l c l e 2 ^ t h e p a r t l e s agree to sohmlt all disputes, 
controversies, claims, oaoaes of action and/or alleged hreachesorfallores to perform artsln^ 
of or relating to this Agreement (and attachments) or the relationship created hy this Agreement 
(collectlvelyB'Dlsptrtes^tonon-hlndlno mediation priorto filing any a c ^ ^ 
to the Dispote. The mediation shall hecondooted In Ool l lnOoonty,Texasthroogh either an 
Individual mediator o r e medlatorappolnted hy a medlatlonservlces organization or hody, 
experienced In the mediation ofdlspotes In the food service hosiness, agreed opon hythe parties 
and, falling sooh agreement, wlthlnareasonahle period of time after either party has notified the 
other of Its desire to seek mediation of any Dispote (not to exceed fifteen ^ S ) days), throogh the 
American Arbitration Aaeoola t lon^AAA^Inaocordancewl th Its roles governing m e d l ^ 
office of the AAA located nearest to Dickey's corporate headqoarters In Piano, OolllnOoonty, 
Texas. The costs and expenses of medlatlon,lnolodlng compensation and expenses of the 
mediator, shall he home hy the parties e^oally. I f thepart les areonahleto resolve the Dispote 
within ninety (SO) days afterthe mediator has heen appointed, then either party may sohmlt soch 
Dispote to binding arbitration In a c c o r d a n o o w ^ 
POREOOINO, THE PROVISIONS OP THIS ARTICLE SHALL ONLY A P P L Y T O THE EXT 
PERMITTED ONDER APPLICABLE MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. 
S T A T . S E C . 0 0 C . ^ A N D M I N N . R U L E 2 0 0 0 . ^ 0 0 ( ^ ) . 

27.2 ARBITRATION ^oh^ect only to A l l e l e 27.1 and 2T.3, all Dlspotes which shall not he 
resolved throogh mediation In accordance with Article 27.1 shall hesohmltted for binding 
arbitration to the office of the A ^ l o c a ^ nearest to Dickey's corporate headqoarters In Piano, 
Collin Coonty, Texas, on demand of either party. Soch arbitration prooeedlngsshall he condocted 
In accordance with the then corrent commercial arbitration roles of the area. The arbitrators) 
shall have the rtght to award or Inolode In their award any relief which they deem proper In the 
clrcomstances, Incloding, withoot limitation, money damages (with Interest on onpald amoonts 
from the doe date), specific performance and In^onotlverallef.Provlded, that, to th^ 
permitted hy law, the partlesstlpolate and agree that the arhltratora shall not provide for, and no 
arbitration award shall Inolode, any ponltlve or exemplary damages, all of which are hereby 
waived hythopart les.Theaward and decision ofthe a ^ ^ 
opon all parties and ad^ostment may he taken on s e a w a r d notwithstanding the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. Dickey's andyooagree tha t arhltrat lonshallhecondocted on an 
Indlvldoal, notaclaoo^wldo basis. NOTWITHSTANDING THE POREOOINO, THE PROVISIONS OP 
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THIS ARTICLE 27.2 SHALL ONLY APPLY TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE 
MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. 
RULE 2860.4400(J)). 

27.3 CERTAIN CLAIMS BY DICKEYS. .Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 
Dickey's may bring an action (a) for monies owed, (b) for Injunctive relief or other extraordinary 
relief, or (c) Involving the possession or disposition of, or other relief relating to real property, In 
any court having jurisdiction and without first submitting such action to mediation or arbitration. 
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ARTICLE 27.3 SHALL ONLY 
APPLY TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. RULE 2860.4400(J)). 

27.4 ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT IN TEXAS. You have signed this Agreement and 
submitted It to Dickey's for acceptance and execution by Dickey's at Dickey's corporate 
headquarters In Piano, Collin County, Texas. You shall make all payments and perform other 
obligations arising hereunder at Collin County, Texas, and this Agreement is made and entered 
Into at Collin County, Texas. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
ARTICLE 27.4 SHALL ONLY APPLY TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE 
MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. 
RULE 2860.4400(J)). 

27.5 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED AND DELIVERED IN 
CONNECTION WITH A TRANSACTION NEGOTIATED AND CONSUMMATED IN COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT. WITH RESPECT TO ANY 
CONTROVERSIES. DIPSUTES. OR CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT 
OR THE PARTIES' RELATIONSHIP CREATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. ANY ACTION SHALL BE 
BROUGHT. MAINTAINED. AND CONCLUDED EXCLUSIVELY IN THE DISTRICT COURTS OF 
COLLIN COUNTY. TEXAS. OR THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTER 
DISTRICT OF TEXAS. SHERMAN DIVISION. YOU. FOR YOURSELF AND YOUR SUCCESSORS AND 
ASSIGNS, HEREBY IRREVOCABLY (A) SUBMFT TO THE NONEXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF THE 
STATE AND FEDERAL COURTS IN TEXASDISTRICT COURTS OF COLLIN COUNTY. TEXAS. AND 
THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS. SHERMAN 
DIVISION. (B) WAIVE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY OBJECTION THAT 
ITYOU MAY NOW OR IN THE FUTURE HAVE TO THE LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY LITIGATION 
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT BROUGHT IN THE DISTRICT 
COURT OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, OR IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS, DALLAS DMSIONAGREEMENTAS SET FORTH ABOVE: AND . 
(C) WAIVE ANY OBJECTION YOU MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE AS TO THE VENUE OF ANY 
SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN SUCH COURT OR THAT SUCH COURT IS AN 
INCONVENIENT FORUM, AND (D) AGREE THAT ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING AGAINST ANY PARTY 
TO THIS AGREEMENT ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH ANY OF THE LOAN 
DOCUMENTS SHALL BE BROUGHT IN ONE OF THE FOREGOING COURTS (EXCEPT AS 
PROVIDED IN ARTICLE 27.3). YOU HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AGREE THAT SERVICE OF 
PROCESS MAY BE MADE UPON YOU IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING RELATING TO ANY DISPUTE 
BY ANY MEANS ALLOWED BY TEXAS OR FEDERAL LAW. NOTWITHSTANDING THE 
FOREGOING, THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ARTICLE 27.5 SHALL ONLY APPLY TO THE EXTENT 
PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. 
STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. RULE 2860.4400fJ)K The parties acknowledge and agree that 
Dickev's may institute legal action for injunctive relief In anv court of competent jurisdiction. 

27.6. JURY TRIAL WAIVER. YOU AND DICKEY'S IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN 
ANY ACTION. PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM. WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY. BROUGHT 
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B Y E ^ E R O F T H E M A G A ^ S T T H E ^ ^ 
S O O H A C ^ O N O R P R O O E E O ^ 

WAIVER OF P O N ^ E ANO EXEMPLARY OAMAGES. THE P A R S E S HEREBY WAIVE TO 
THE FULLEST EXTENT RERMITTEO BY I^W ANY RIOHT TO OR OI^IM OF ANY PUNITIVE OR 
EXEMPLARY OAMAOESAOAINSTTHE OTHER. ANO AOREETHATINTHE EVENT OFAOISPUTE 
BETWEENTHEM EAOH S H A L L B E LIMITED TO THE REOOVERY OF OOMPENSATORYOAMAOES 
S U F F E R E O B Y T H E PARTY. 

APPLIOABLE STATE LAW Y o u ^ O l ^ ^ ^ l ^ o w l ^ ^ ^ p a r t l ^ 
agreement regarding applicable state law and forum set forth Io Article 27.5 p ^ 
parties with the mutual benefit of uniform Interpretation of fhla Agreement and any Olapute. You 
and Olokey'a further acknowledge the receipt and aufflclehcy of mutual consideration for auch 
benefit. NOTWITHSTANOINO THE FOREOOINO, THE PROVISIONS OFTHIS ARTIOLE 27.5 SHALL 
ONLYAPPLYTOTHEEXTENTPERMITTEOUNOERAPPLIOABLEMINNESOTALAW^INOLUOINO, 
WITHOUTLIMfTATION,MINN.STAT.SEO.50O.21ANOMINN.RULE2550 .^0^ . 

A R T I 0 L E 2 S . A 0 K N 0 W L E 0 0 M E N T S 

25BI OOMPLETIONOFINOEPENOENTINVESTIOATION. Yoo acknowledoethat voo have 
condoctedan Independent Investigation of thefrenchisedbosinessandrecogni^ethatthebosiness 
venture contemplated by this Agreement involves bosiness risks and that its success w^ 
upon your ability, effort, and resourees. Oickey's expressly disclaims making, and you acknowledge that 
you have not received or relied on, any warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the potential 
volume, profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement You acknowledge 
that you have completed and submitted to Oickey's the Owner/OoeratorFranchisee Questionnaires 
form ofAttachmentB. and thatyourresoonsesweretruthfuland weil considered. 

25.2 REOEIPT OF AOREEMENT ANO DISOLOSURE OOOUMENT You acknowledge that you 
received fromOickey'sacomplete copy of its Franchise Disclosure Document at least fourteen (14) 
calendar days prior to the date on which this Agreement was executed and the date on which you first 
made any payments to Dickey's or an affiiiate in connection with any franchise sale contemplated by thi^ 
AgreementYou acknowledge that you receivedacopy of this Agreement and the related attachments 
and agreements in the form executed by you at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the date on which 
this Agreementwas executed. 

25.3 REVIEW O F A O R E E M E N T You acknowledge that you have read and understood this 
Agreement and the related attachments and agreements and that Dickey's has provided you ample time 
and opportunity to consult with advisors of your own choosing about the content of the Agreement and 
the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement 

25.4 AUTHORISATION TO OONDUOTINVESTIOATION You acknowledge that, in orderto enable 
Dickey's to evaluateyour application to acquire theiicense and franchisehereingranted,youhaye 
authorised Dickey's and its agents and representatives to conduct such investigations concerning you 
and your PrincioaisOwner/Ooerator and your Investors as Dickey's deems necessary, in its sole 
discretion, including, without limitation, credit repoi^ and referenoes, financial and pe 
and civil and criminal references. 

25.5. NO FINANOIAL REPRESENTATIONS You represent to Dickey's that neither Dickey's nor its 
aoents or representatives have made any representations, and you have not relied on any 
representations made by Dickey's or its aoents or representatives, concemino actual or potential sales or 
profits ofaOickev's Restaurant 
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ARTICLE 29. STATE-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 

29.1 STATE SPECIFIC PROVISIONS CONTROL. You acknowledge that the Laws of various states 
may have jurisdiction over you and may modify certain of your rights and obligations hereunder. 
Accordingly, you acknowledge and agree that the Laws of such states (including those, if any, set forth in 
Article 29.2) (collectively, "Controlling Law") shall govern and control any contrary or inconsistent 
provisions of this Agreement (collectively, "Inconsistent Provisions") and such Inconsistent Provisions are 
hereby modified and amended, where applicable, so that any Inconsistent Provisions of this Agreement 
comply with Controlling Law; PROVIDED HOWEVER. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL ONLY BE MODIFIED 
AND AMENDED ONLY TO THE EXTENT: (A) SUCH CONTROLLING LAW IS BINDING ON THE 
PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT; (B) SUCH CONTROLLING LAW IS NOT PERMITTED UNDER 
APPLICABLE LAW TO BE WAIVED OR MODIFIED BY THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT; (C) 
SUCH CONTROLLING LAW IS APPLICABLE TO THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT; 
(D) REQUIRED BY SUCH CONTROLLING LAW; AND (E) REQUIRED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW TO 
RENDER ANY INCONSISTENT PROVISION LEGAL, VALID AND ENFORCEABLE, AND ANY AND 
ALL PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT (OR ANY PORTIONS THEREOF) WHICH ARE 
OTHERWISE LEGAL, VALID AND ENFORCEABLE SHALL NOT BE AFFECTED THEREBY. ALL 
OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL REMAIN THE SAME. As used 
herein, (a) "Laws" means any statutes, laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, writs, injunctions, or 
decrees of the applicable state or Tribunal, and (b) "Tribunal" means any applicable governmental 
department, commission, board, bureau, agency, or instrumentality of such state. 

29.2 PROVISIONS APPLICABLE UNDER MINNESOTA LAW. Notwithstanding any provisions in 
this Agreement to the contrary, subject to Article 29.1: 

1. Any condition, stipulation or provision (including choice of law provision) in this 
Agreement is void which purports to bind you (if you are an individual who is a resident of the State of 
Minnesota, or if you are a partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws of the 
State of Minnesota, or if you will operate the franchise granted under this Agreement in the State of 
Minnesota) to waive compliance or which has the effect of waiving compliance with any provision of 
Chapter 80C, Sections 80C.01 - 80C.22 of the Minnesota Statutes 1996 ("Minnesota Franchise Law") or 
which is otherwise prohibited under such law. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 

A. Dickey's shall not terminate or cancel the franchise granted under this 
Agreement, except in accordance with Minnesota Franchise Law or other applicable law; 

B. Dickey's shall not fail to renew the franchise granted under this Agreement, 
except in accordance with Minnesota Franchise Law or other applicable law; and 

C. Dickey's shall not withhold consent to an assignment, transfer or sale'of the 
franchise granted under this Agreement whenever the franchisee to be substituted meets the 
present qualifications and standards required of Dickey's franchisees, except as permitted under 
Minnesota Franchise Law or other applicable law. 

2. Pursuant to Chapter 2860, Sections 2860.0100 - 2060.9930 of the Minnesota Rules, 
1995, Department of Commerce ("Minnesota Franchise Regulations"): 

A, Dickey's shall not restrict or inhibit, directly or indirectly, the free association of 
franchisees for any lawful purpose, except in accordance with Minnesota Franchise Regulations 
or other applicable law; 
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B O i o k e ^ s ^ o o t o o m ^ e w ^ ^ 
franohises in your Assigned Area, except in eccerdence with the Minnesete Franchise 
Reguieticnscr ether eppiicehie lew; 

C Dickers sheii not raqoiraycotcessenttceraieese, assignment, ncveticn^cr 
waiver which wooidraiieve any party from iiahiiity imposed hy Minnesota Franchise Lew, ^ 
as permitted under Minnesota Franchise Law, Minnesota Franchise Regulations or other 
applicahle law; 

0. Oickey's shall not terminate or cancel the franchise granted under this 
Agreement, except in accordance with Minnesota Franchise Regulations or other applicahle law; 

E. Oickey's shall not unreasonahly withhold consent to any assignment, transferor 
sale ofthe franchise to he granted under this Agreement whenever thefranchisee to he 
substituted meets the present qualifications and standards required of Oickey's for fran^ 
exceptinaccordancewith Minnesota Franchise Regulations orotherapplicahle law; 

F. Oickey's shall not enforce any convent notto compete in this Agreement after the 
franchiserelationshipcontemplated hy this Agreement ceases to exist which is determined hya 
courtofcompetentjurisdictiontoheunreasonahle; 

O. Oickey'sshallnotrequire you to waive your rights toajury trial or to waive rights 
to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for hy the laws of the jurisdiction, or to consent to 
liquidated damages, termination penalties,or judgment notes, except as permittedunder the 
Minnesota Franchise Regulations orother applicahle law; 

H. Oickey's shall not require or prohibit any change in management or personnel of 
you unless the current or potential management or personnel fails to meet the present 
qualifications and standards required by Oickey's, except as permitted under Minnesota 
Franchise Regulations or other applicable law; 

L Oickey'sshall not fail to renew thefranchise granted underthisAgreement, 
exceptas permitted under Minnesota Franchise Regulations or other applicable law; and 

^ Any provision of this Agreement which is otherwise prohibited under Minnesota 
Franchise Regulations is void. 

^Signature Fage Followsj 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Agreement on 
the day and year first above written. 

DICKEYS: 

DICKEYS BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC., 
a Texas corporation 

By: 
Roland Dickey, Jr., President 

OWNER/OPERATORFRANCHISEE: 

[Corporation] 

corporation 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Liability Company] 

a limited liability company 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Partnership] 

limited partnership 

By: 
_, its general partner 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
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OPERATING PRINCIPALOWNER/QPERATOR: 

[Individual] 

, an individual 
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PRINCIPAUSHNVESTORS: 

[Individual] 

an individual 

[Individual] 

. an individual 

rindividuail 

. an individual 

[IndividuaH 

, an individual 

[Corporation] 

a corporation 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Liability Company] 

a limited liability company 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
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[Limited Partnership] 

limited partnership 

By: 
., its general partner 

By: . 
Name: 
Title: 
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ATTACHMENT A 

AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT FOR 
PREAUTHORIZED PAYMENTS 

(ACH DEBITS) 

COMPANY NAME: TAX ID NO. 

1 (we) hereby authorize Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., hereinafter called "Company", to initiate 
debit entries from my [ ] Checking [ ] Savings Account (check one) indicated below and the depository 
named below, hereinafter called "Depository", to debit the same to such account 

DEPOSITORY NAME: BRANCH: 

STATE: STATE: ZIP CODE: 

TRANSIT/ABA NO. ACCOUNT NUMBER: 

This authority is to remain in full force and effect until Company has received notification from me (or 
either of us) of its termination in such time and in such manner as to afford Company and Depository a 
reasonable opportunity to act on it. 

NAME(S): ID NO.: 

SIGNED: DATE: 
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ATTACHMENTS 

OWNER/OPERATORFRANCHISEE QUESTIONNAIRE 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas corporation ("Dickey's") and you are preparing to enter into 
a Franchise Agreement for the operation of a Dickey's® Barbecue Pit restaurant (the "Franchise"). The 
purpose of this Questionnaire (herein so called) is to determine whether any statements or promises were 
made to you, the undersigned Owner/OperatorFranchisee. that Dickey's has not authorized and that may 
be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide 
honest responses to each question. 

1. Have you received and personally reviewed Dickey's Franchise Disclosure Document (the 
"Disclosure Document") provided to you? 

Yes No 

2. Did you sign a receipt for the Disclosure Document indicating the date you received it? 

Yes No ._ 

3. Do you understand the information contained in the Disclosure Document? 

Yes No 

4. Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement and each exhibit attached 
to it? 

Yes No 

&r Please insert the date on which you received a copy of the Franchise Agreement (with all material 
blanks fully completed): ? 

65. Do you understand your financial and other obligations under the Franchise Agreement? 

Yes No 

76. Have you independently discussed the economic and business risks of owning and operating the 
Franchise with an attorney, accountant or other professional advisor? 

Yes No 

87. Do you understand the economic and business risks associated with operating the Franchise? 

Yes No 

98. Do you understand that the success or failure of the Franchise will depend in large part upon your 
skills and abilities, the service you provide to your customers, competition, interest rates, the 
economy, inflation, labor and supply costs, lease terms, real estate and the marketplace? 

Yes No 
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409. Do you understand and agree that no financial performance representation has been made by 
Dickey's in the Disclosure Document (including with regard to the performance of its franchised 
outlets or company-owned outlets and the potential performance of your outlet), that Dickey's 
does not make any such representations, and that Dickey's, its employees and other persons 
speaking on behalf of Dickey's have not made any such representations? 

Yes No 

4410. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else regarding the amount of money you may earn in operating the 
Franchise? 

Yes No 

4511. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else concerning the total revenues the Franchise may generate? 

Yes No 

4512. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else regarding the costs involved in operating the Franchise that are 
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the Disclosure Document? 

Yes No 

4413. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else concerning the actual, average or projected profits or earnings or 
the likelihood of success that you should or might expect from operating the Franchise? 

Yes No 

#14 Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else, other than those matters addressed in your Franchise Agreement, 
concerning advertising, marketing, media support, market penetration, training, support service or 
assistance relating to the Franchise that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained 
in the Disclosure Document? 

Yes No 

4€15. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any promise or 
agreement that is contrary to, different from, or in addition to, the matters set forth in the 
Franchise Agreement? 

Yes No 

4716. If you answered "Yes" to any of the questions 11 through 16, please provide a full explanation of 
your answer in the following blank lines. (Attach additional pages, if necessary, and refer to them 
below). If you answered "No" to each of the foregoing questions, please leave the following lines 
blank. 
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You understand that your answers are important to us and that we will rely on them. 

By signing this Questionnaire, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the above 
questions. 

Further, by signing this Questionnaire, you agree that Dickey's has properly provided you with all of the 
appropriate franchise disclosures and has not made any financial claims or representations to you. You 
agree to hold harmless and release Dickey's and its affiliates, shareholders, officers, directors, agents, 
attorneys, successors and assigns from any and all liability in connection with the sale of the franchise to 
the extent that any statement or representation made herein is determined to be false and misleading and 
to the extent permitted under applicable law. 

OWNER/OPERATORFRANCHISEE: 

[Corporation] 

corporation 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Liability Company] 

limited liability company 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Partnership] 

limited partnership 

By: 
., its general partner 

By: . 
Name: 
Title: 
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ATTACHMENT C 

CONSENT AND RELEASE FOR TRAINING 

The undersigned is an owner/operatora franchisee of Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas 
corporation ("'Dickey's), a principal of a Dickoy'c Owner/Operator of or an Investor in a Dickev's franchise or a 
manager of a Dickey's restaurant operated by a Dickey's owner/operatorftanchisee who is commencing 
training. As part of such training, the undersigned may visit, inspect, train and work in one or more of the 
Dickey's restaurants owned or operated by Dickey's, Dickey's Barbecue Pit, Inc., a Texas corporation, their 
affiliates or by one or more Dickey's owner/operatorsfranchisees. As an inducement to cause the owner of 
such restaurant to permit the undersigned to visit, inspect, train and work in such restaurant, THE 
UNDERSIGNED HEREBY WAIVES, RELEASES AND AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS 
DICKEYS BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC., DICKEYS BARBECUE PIT, INC., THE OWNER(S) OF 
SUCH RESTAURANT(S), AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, AFFILIATES, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FROM AND 
AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, LOSS, INJURY, DAMAGE, COST AND EXPENSE SUFFERED OR 
INCURRED BY THE UNDERSIGNED AS A RESULT OF ANY SUCH VISIT, INSPECTION, TRAINING OR 
WORK IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THE FOREGOING RELEASE AND INDEMNITY IS INTENDED TO 
BE AS BROAD AND COMPREHENSIVE AS PERMITTED BY LAW, AND INCLUDES LIABILITY, COST, 
DAMAGE, INJURY, COST AND EXPENSE SUFFERED AS A RESULT OR PARTLY AS A RESULT OF ANY 
NEGLIGENCE, ERROR OR OMISSION BY THE PARTIES SO RELEASED AND INDEMNIFIED. The 
undersigned further represents that he has independently obtained or is covered by adequate insurance to 
cover the risk of loss or injury. 

DATE 

SIGNATURE 

PRINTED NAME/TITLE (IF APPLICABLE) 
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DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS. INC. 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by and between 
Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Dickey's") and the 
Developer identified below in the Developer Summary as the Developer (hereinafter referred to as "you" 
or "Developer"). 

DEVELOPER SUMMARY 

EFFECTIVE DATE (Date Executed by Dickey's):. 

DEVELOPER: 

BUSINESS ENTITY: corporation/ partnership/ individual/ limited liability company, 
formed under the laws of: 

DEVELOPER'S ADDRESS: 

DEVELOPER'S TELEPHONE: 

DEVELOPER'S FACSIMILE: 

DEVELOPER'S E-MAIL ADDRESS: 

ATTORNEY OR ADVISOR: 

ATTORNEY'S OR ADVISOR'S ADDRESS: 
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R A T A L S 

WHEREAS, O i o ^ s has a ^ u i r e d ^ 
ski^aftort and money has dava iopa^aun^ua and distiootivasys^ 
aparatiao of rastau^nts under the mad^Oiokay'sBarhaouaP^ whioh s p a ^ 
prepared, authentio,harheoued meats and other products (the "Systems 

^ E R E A S , the distinguishing c h a r a c t e r 
exterior andinteriordesign,deoor, ooior scheme and fumishings^speoiaireoipes and menuitems; 
uniform standards, speciftcations and procedures for operetions^uaiity and uniformity of pre^ 
services offered; procedures for inventory and management controi; training and assistance; and 
advertising and promotionai programs; aii of which may he changed, improved and further developed hy 
Oickey's from time to time; 

^ E R E A ^ O i c k e y ' s identifies the System hy means of certain trade names, service marks, 
trademarks, symhois, logos, emhlems and indicia of origin, including, hut not limited to, the mark 
"Oickey's S a r l ^ c u e P ^ and such other trade names, service marks and trademarks as Oickey's may 
develop in the future to identify for the puhiic the source of services and products marketed under ^ 
marks and under the System and representing the System's high standards of duality, appearance and 
service (collectively, the "Proprietary Marks"); and 

^ E R E A S , you wish to ohtain the right to develop multiple Oickey^sSarhecue Pit restaurants 
(the "Restaurants" or "Pranchised Susinesses") under the System within the geographic territory 
descrihed in this Agreement, underthe terms and conditions ofthis Agreement; 

N O ^ , T H E R E P O R E , in consideration of the mutualundertakings and commitments set forth 
herein,the receipt and sufficiency ofwhich are herehy acknowledged,the parties agree as follows: 

A R T I O L E ^ 
ORANT 

A Oickey's herehy grants to you and you herehy accepts pursuantto the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the right andohligation to develop Restaurents solely within the g ^ ^ 
area descrihed helow (the'Territory''), such development rights to he exercised pursuant to Article 
and in accordancewith the deveiopmentscheduie in Article3S(the "Oevelopment Scheduled 

TheTerritoryshaiihe: 

S. Except as otherwiseprovided in thisAgreement andany Pranchise Agreement (as 
hereinafter defined) hetween you and Oickey's, and suh^ect to your full compliance with this Agreem^ 
Oickey's shall not establish or authorise any other person or entity,other than you,toestahiis^^ 
Restaurant in the Territory during the term of this Agreement. Oickey's, and any Oickey's 
owner/ooeratorfranchisee and anv other authori^edoerson or entity may^at any time,advertise and 
promote the System, or fulfill customer orders (including hut not iimited to catering and 
in theTerritory, and Oickey's may offer and sell (and authon^e others to offer and sell) products an^ 
services which may he similar to those offered hyaRestaurent, under the Proprietary Marks , ^ 
Terntory,if offered and sold other than throughaRestaurent (e.g.,product and catalog sales t h ^ 
direct mailings or internet sales, prepackaged fooditemsthroughgrocery stores or supermarkets, 
internet sales, or memorehilia or recipes threu^h other retail outlets^ Further. P i c k e d 
toDdirectlvorindirectlvDooerete. license, or orenta 
offerinoservicewithintheTerritoryifsuch location is withinaclosed environment such a s a s ^ 
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corporate campus, shopping mall, airport, military base, health care facility, limited access highway rest 
stop, college or university campus, theme park, truck stop, casino or similar location, and vou shall not 
have anv interest therein or rights thereto as a result of this Agreement 

C. This Agreement is not a franchise agreement and does not grant to you any right or 
franchise to operate a Restaurant or any right to use or any interest in the Proprietary Marks or the 
System. 

ARTICLE 2. 
DEVELOPMENT FEE 

A. In consideration for the development rights granted to you herein and the rights granted 
to you under separate Franchise Agreements, you shall pay to Dickey's, upon execution of this 
Agreement, a non-refundable development fee ("Development Fee") equal to $15,000.00 plus $10,000.00 
for each subsequent Restaurant to be developed hereunder after the initial Restaurant Pursuant to the 
Development Schedule set forth in Article 3.8, the total Development Fee is $ . 

B. The Development Fee shall be applied to the initial franchise fees payable with respect to 
each Restaurant opened hereunder as follows: 

1. For the initial Restaurant to be developed under this Agreement, $15,000.00 of 
the Development Fee shall be applied to the initial franchise fee of $15,000.00 due upon 
execution of the Franchise Agreement for the initial Restaurant 

2. For each additional Restaurant to be developed under this Agreement, 
$10,000.00 of the Development Fee shall be applied to the franchise fee due upon the execution 
of each applicable Franchise Agreement (each a "Subsequent Franchise Fee"). So long as you 
develop Restaurants in accordance with the Development Schedule and otherwise comply with 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the amount of the Subsequent Franchise Fee for 
each subsequent Restaurant shall be $10,000.00 (it being understood that the initial franchise fee 
for the first Restaurant shall be equal to $15,000.00). If you do not develop Restaurants in 
accordance with the Development Schedule or you do not otherwise comply with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, and provided that Dickey's remains willing, in its sole discretion, to 
continue to grant you franchises, the amount of the Subsequent Franchise Fee shall be 
$15,000.00, and the balance shall be paid out of your separate funds. 

C. All franchise fees shall be nonrefundable. 

ARTICLE 3. 
SCHEDULE AND MANNER FOR EXERCISING DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 

A. You shall exercise, the development rights granted hereunder only by entering into a 
separate franchise agreement ("Franchise Agreement") with Dickey's for each Restaurant for which a 
development right is granted. Dickey's current form of Franchise Agreement is attached as Attachment A. 
Upon execution of this Agreement, you shall execute and deliver a Franchise Agreement in the form 
attached as Attachment A for the first Restaurant to be developed hereunder. You shall additionally 
execute the form of Franchise Agreement then being used by Dickey's for new 
owner/operatorsfranchisees operating under the System, with respect to each subsequent Restaurant 
developed hereunder, not later than one (1) year prior to the projected opening date of the applicable 
Restaurant. These subsequent forms of Franchise Agreements may contain terms and conditions, 
including monetary obligations, which differ materially from the form of Franchise Agreement attached 
hereto, and shall also be included in the term "Franchise Agreements," as used herein. 
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B. 1. Acknowledging that time is of the essence, you agree to exercise your 
development rights hereunder and according to the Development Schedule (herein so called) 
below, which schedule designates the number of Restaurants in the Territory to be established 
and in operation by you upon the expiration of each of the designated development periods (the 
"Development Periods"): 

Commencement Date of 
Development Period 

Expiration Date of 
Development Period 

Cumulative Total Number of 
Restaurants Located In the Territory 
Which Developer Shall Have Open 

and In Operation 

During any of the Development Periods set forth above, subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, you may develop more than the total minimum number of Restaurants, which 
you are required to develop during that Development Period. Any Restaurants developed during 
a Development Period in excess of the minimum number of Restaurants required to be 
developed upon expiration of that Development Period shall be applied to satisfy your 
development obligation during the next succeeding Development Period, if any. Notwithstanding 
the above, you are not authorized to operate within the Territory more than the cumulative total 
number of Restaurants you are obligated to develop under this Agreement as set forth above in 
the Development Schedule without the prior written approval of Dickey's. 

2. If during the term of this Agreement, you cease to operate any Restaurant 
developed under this Agreement, you shall develop a replacement Restaurant to fulfill your 
obligation to have open and in operation the required number of Restaurants upon the expiration 
of each Development Period. The replacement Restaurant shall be developed within a 
reasonable time to be agreed upon by the parties after you cease to operate the Restaurant to be 
replaced. If during the term of this Agreement you, in accordance with the terms of any Franchise 
Agreement for a Restaurant developed under this Agreement, transfer your interest in such 
Restaurant, the transferred Restaurant shall continue to be counted in determining whether you 
have complied with the Development Schedule so long as it continues to be operated as a 
Dickey's Barbecue Pit restaurant under a Dickey's franchise agreement and the transferee is in 
good standing and not in default thereunder. If the transferred Restaurant ceases to be operated 
as a Dickey's Barbecue Pit restaurant during the term of this Agreement, or if the transferee 
defaults under its franchise agreement, you shall develop a replacement Restaurant within a 
reasonable time to be agreed upon by the parties in order to satisfy your obligations hereunder. In 
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e ^ e r case, the reasoned time pe r i ^ 
ep^cehleOevelopmeot Period teti ie end 
however tiiet in no eventerie^ such time period or extension exceed s i x ^ m e ^ 

^ At the end of each Deveiopment Period, you srieii provide Pickets with written 
notice of the projected opening date of each Restaurant required to he developed during the next 
Development Period. 

4. Pailurehy you to adhere to the Development Schedule or to any time period for 
the development of replacement Restaurants as set forth in Article 3.8.2 shall constitute an event 
ofdefauit underthisAgreement. 

ARTICLED 
TERM 

Unless soonerterminated in accordance with this Agreement, the term of this Agreement and ali 
rights granted hy Dickey's underthisAgreement shall expire entire date on which you successfully and in 
atimely manner have exercised all ofthe development rights and completed the development ohligations 
under this Agreement inaccordance with the Deveiopment Schedule (including, if applicahle, Article 
3.S.2).Poilowing termination of this Agreement, Dickey's shall have the right to establish and opera^^ 
license others to estahlish and operate, additional Dickey's restaurants in theTerritory so l o n g e s t 
location ofsuch restaurants does not infringe upon the protected territory ofyour Restaurants as setfor^ 
in the Pranchise Agreements relating to your Restaurants. 

ARTiOLESD 
YOUROUTIES 

Youmakethefol lowing representations, warranties andcovenantsandacceptthefollowing 
ohligations: 

A^ You shall complywith all terms and conditions setforth in this Agreement 

S 1 ifyouareacorporation, limited liahility company, partnership or any other entity, 
you represent warrant and covenantthat: 

a. You are duly organized and validly existing under the state law of its 
formation; 

h. You are duly qualified and are authorized to do husiness in each 
jurisdiction in which your husiness activities orthe nature ofthe properties owned hy you 
require such qualification; 

c. Your organizational documents shall at all times provide that your 
activitiesare iimited to the developmentand operation ofRestaurants; 

d. The execution, delivery andperformance of this Agreement has heen 
duly authorized hy all necessary action on hehalf of you and the holders of ownership 
interests in you, and hy all persons and entities which directly or indirectly control or 
manage your husiness and affairs (collectively,the "Management Groups, and such 
actionsdonotandwil lnotviolate, hreach or constituteadefault under any agreement 
judgment order, law, rule or regulation to which any of the foregoing isaparty or hy 
which hound; 
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e. Ifyoo corporation lim^d ^b i ^oompan^ partnorehiporany othor 
entity oopios of yoor organizations dooumoo^o^orgovom^gdooomoo^a^ 
aiiamandmantatharatoehaii bafomiehadto Oiokay^priortothaaxoootion of this 
Agraamant inoioding avidanoa ofthe ooneent and approval ofthe entry into and 
performance of this Agreement hytiie requite nomher or percentage of yoor owners 
and other persons governing or managing yoor hosiness and affairs, if any soch approval 
or consent is reqoiredhy yoor organizational docoments or other governing docoments; 
and copies ofeach ofthe foregoing foreach ofthe Management Groop; 

f. Ifyooareacorporation, iimitedliahility company, partnership or any 
other entity,the ownership interests in yoo and each of the Management Groop are 
accorateivandcomoletelv descrihed in Attachments Forther,ifyooareacorporation, 
limited liahilitycompany, partnership or any other entity, yoo shall at ali times maintaina 
corrent list of all of the owners ofadiract or indirect ownership interest in yoo and the 
Management Groop. Yooshallmake yoor list of owners availahle to Oickey's opon 
reqoest; 

g. if there shooid he achange in any ownerof yoor director indirect 
ownership interestwhichresolts in soch owner direotiy or indirectiy holding percent (20^) 
ormoreof yoorootstanding ownership interestor any change in theownershipor 
compositionoftheManagementOroop, yooshall notify Oickey's in writing prior to any 
soch change and otherwise comply with the terms and conditions of Article 8, and yoo 
shalicaoseeachsoch person or entity to execote this Agreement as one of yoor 
Princioalslnvestors (as defined in Article 2 ^ 3 ^ and he individoallv hoond hv ail of voor 
ohligations hereonder; 

h. if yoo have or at any time shallissoe any certificate evidencingany 
ownership interest in yoo, yoo shall have conspicooosly noted opon soch certificatea 
statement inform satisfactory toOickey's that it is heldsohjecttoailrestrictions on 
Transfers imposed hy this Agreement, in addition, yoo shall maintain on yoor records 
instructions againsttheTransferofanyofyoorownership interest which are prohihited 
onder this Agreement withoot Oickey'spriorwrittenconsent, and yoor organizational 
docomentsshalialsoprovide that all ownershipinterestsinyooaresohjecttoall 
restrictions onTransfers imposed hy this Agreement; 

i. Yoo and, at Oickey's reqoest, each of voor Princioalslnvestors have 
provided Oickey's with their most recent financial statements. Soch financial statements 
present fairly the financial oositionofvooand each of voor Princioaisinvestors.as 
applicahle,at the dates indicated therein andwith respect to yoo,the resolts of yoor 
operations andyoor cash flow for theyearsthenended. Yooagree that yooshall 
maintain at all times, doring the term of this Agreement sofficient working capital to f o ^ 
yoor ohligations onder this Agreement Each of the financial statements mentioned 
ahove has heen prepared in conformity with generally accepted aoooonting principles 
applicahletothe respective periods involved and, exceptas expresslydescrihed in the 
applicahle notes, applied onaconsistenthasis^ No material liahilities, adverse claims, 
commitments ofohligations ofany natore exist as ofthe date ofthisAgreement whether 
accrued, onliqoidated, ahsolote, contingent or otherwise, which are not reflected as 
liahilities on the financial statements ofvoo or soch Princioalsinvestors. 

j. Yoo and voor Princioalslnvestors acknowledoe and agree thatthe 
representations, warranties and covenants set forth ahove in Article 5.S.1arecontinoing 
ohligations of yoo and that any failore to comply with soch representations,warranties 
and covenants shall constitote an event of defaolt onder this Agreement yoo agree that 
yoo will cooperate with Oickey^s in any efforts made hy Oickey's to verify compliance with 
soch representations, warranties and covenants. 
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2. Upon the oxoootion of this Agreomont yoo shaii dosignato and retain an 
individoaitosa^aasthaOpare^ 
Tho Ooaretino PrinoioaiOwna^Ooareto^ Tha Owna^Ooaretor shaii satisfy tho foiiowing 
qoaiifioations,oniass waived in writing hyOiokay's: 

a. ifyoo arean individoai, yoo shaii parfonnaiiohiigationsof thaOparating 
PrinoioaiOwna^Ooareto^ 

h. ifyooareaoorporetion, iimited liahiiityoompany, iimited partnership, or 
any other entity, the Ooeratino PrinoioaiOwner/Ooeratorshaii^ at aii times dorino whioh 
heorsheservesasOoeratinoPrinoioaiOwner/Ooerator.^direotivorindireotiyhoidan 
ownerehip interest in yoo, (ii) he foiiyaothorized,direoted and entitled (inoioding, onder 
the governing dooomentsofyoo and the Management Groop, and onder any agreements 
and/or doiy adopted resoiotions hy the shareholders, direotors, officers, members, 
managers, and/or any other owner or governing hody of yoo and eaoh of the 
Management Groop) to manage and oontroi the day-to-day hosiness affairs ofyoo and to 
take any action whioh yoo are reqoired to take or omit to take onderthis Agreement, all in 
soch OoeratinoPrincioal'sOwner/Ooerator's sole discretion, and withoot the aoorovai or 
joinder of any person or entity. 

c Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Operating 
Princioai'sOwner/Ooerator's interest in voo shaii he and shaii remain free of anv oiedge, 
mortgaged hypothecation,iien,charge, encomhrance,voting agreement, proxy, secority 
interest orporchase right oroptions 

The OoeratinoPrincioalOwner/Ooerator shall, dorino the entire period he or she serves as soch. 
devote foil time and hest efforts to the sopervision and performance ofthe deveiopment activities 
contemplated onder this Agreement, shall execote this Agreement as one of yoor 
Principalslnvestors. shall he individoally. jointly and severeiiy hoond hy all ohligations of 
voorPrinoipalslnvestors hereonder. and shall heaothorized torepresentyoo andenterinto 
agreements and ondertakings on yoor hehalf. Yoo represent and warrant that, as ofthe date of 
this Agreement, each ondersigned person execoting this Agreement as an Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperator has heen desionatedhy as an Operating PrincipaiOwner/Qperator.and 
each soch person meets ali of the qoalifications set forth in this Agreement for an Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperator Yoo shall not caose or permit a change in any Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperatorwithoot Oickey's priorwritten consent. 

3. Ifyooexecotea OevelopmentAgreementforthree (3) or more Restaorants, 
notwithstandinganything contained herein whichmay he to the contrary,yoomay designate 
moltiole Operating PrincipalsQwner/Qperators 

4. Yoo onderstand that compliance hy ali developers and 
owner/operatorsfrenchiseesopereting onder the System with Oickey's training, deveiopment and 
operational reqoirements is an essential and material element of the System and that Oickey's 
and developers and owner/operatorsfranchisees operating onder the System conseqoently 
expend sohstantial time, effort and expense in training management personnel for the 
deveiopment and operation of their respective Oickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorants. Accordingly, 
yoo agree that if doring the term of this Agreement, yoo shall designate as yoor Operating 
PrineiaalQwner/Qperatoranvindivi^^ 
months prior to yoor engagement employed or engaged inamanagerial position hy Oickey's or 
any ofits sohsidiaries oraffiiiates, incloding hot not iimited to, individoais employed h^ 
work in its Oickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorants, or hy any other developer or 
owner/operatorfranchisee operating onder the System, soch former employer shall he entitled to 
he compensated for the reasonahle costs and expenses, ofwhatevernatore or kind,inoorred hy 
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sooh e m p ^ e r r e ^ e d to ^ainiog sooh em^oyee Tho parties agroo that sooh oxpooditores may 
ha oooartain and diftiooit to asoartainan^tharefore, agree that the oompansati^^ 
herein reasooahiy represents sooh expeoditores and is notapeoaity Anamoonteqoaitothe 
annoaioompensationofsooh employee atthe time ofthe t^^ 
former employer shaii he paid hy yoo to sooh fonner employer prior to sooh employee assoming 
the position of Operatino PrinoioalQwner/Ooerator. Theparties expressly aoknowledgeand 
agree that nooorrentor former employee of Oickey's, its sohsidiariesor affiliates or any 
develooerorowner/ooerator^ranohiseeondertheSystemshallheathird party henefioiary ofthis 
Agreement or any provision hereof Oiokey'sexpressly disclaims any representations and 
warranties regarding the perfonnance of any employee or former employee of Oickey's, its 
sohsidiaries oraffiliates, o rany developer or owner/ooeratorfranchisee operating onder the 
System,who is desionated as OperatinoPrincipalOwner/Operator or employed hy yoo in any 
capacity, and Oickey's shall not he liahle for any losses, of whatever natore or kind, inoorred hy 
yoo in connection therewith 

5 Yoo and eachof voor Principalslnvestors shallnot. doring the term of this 
Agreement and thereafter, commonicate or divolge to, or ose for the benefit of, another person, 
persons, partnership, association, corporation or other entity any confidential information, 
knowledge or know-how concerning the methods of development and operation of the 
Restaorants which may he commonicated to voo or anv of voor Principalsinvestors or of which 
they may he apprised onder this Agreement Yoo and each of yoor Principalsinvestors shaii 
disclose soch confidential infonnation only to yoor Principalslnvestors and voor personnel who 
most have access to it in connection with their employment with yoo Any and all information, 
knowledge,know-how,techniqoes and any materials osed in or related to the System which 
Oickey's commonicates to yoo or yoor Principalslnvestors shall he deemed confidential forthe 
porposes of this Agreement Neither yoo nor yoor Principalslnvestors shall at any time, withoot 
Oickey's priorwritten consent, dissolve, disseminate, copy, doplicate, record or otherwise 
reprodoce soch materials or information,in whole or in partner otherwise make the same 
availahle to any onaothorized person The covenants in this Ar t ic le5S5shal lsorv ive the 
expiration, termination or transfer of this Agreement or any interest herein and shall he 
perpetoally binding opon yoo and each ofyoor Principalslnvestors. 

a. Yoor Operating—PrincipalOwner/Qperator and each of yoor 
Principalslnvestors are hereby boond and personally obligated tocomply with the 
foregoing covenant 

b. Yoo and yoor Principalslnvestors acknowledge that any failore to comply 
with the reqoirements of this Art icie5S.5 shall constitote an event of defaolt onder this 
Agreement and will caose Oickey's irreparable injory. Therefore, yoo and yoor 
Principaislnvestorsaoree to pay allcoort costs and reasonahle legal f ^ s incurred by 
Oickey's in obtaining specific performance, injonctive relief or any other remedy a v a ^ 
to Oickey's foranyviolation ofthe reqoirementsofsoch article 

S. Yoo shall comply with all reqoirementsoffederal, state and local laws, roles and 
regolations. 

ARTIOLEO. 
OEPAULT.TRANSPERANOTERMINATION 

A Yoo shall be deemed to be in defaolt onderthisAgreementand ali rights granted herein 
shall aotomatically terminate withoot notice to yoo: ( ^ i f y o o b e c o m e insolvent or makeageneral 
assignmentforthebenefitofcreditorsorfileavolontary petition onder any section or chapter of federal 
bankruptcy laws or onder any similar law or statote of the United States or any state or admit in writi^^ 
yoor inability to pay yoor debts when d o e ; o r ^ i f yoo are adjodicated bankrupt or insolvent in 
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preceediogsft^d against yoo ^ 
statota of tha United States or any s ta ta ,w^ 
equity or other proceeding for the appointment ofareoeiverofyoo or other oostod^^ 
assets is fiied and consented to hy yoo,or ifareoeiver or other custodian permanent or temporariiy of 
your assets or property, or any part thereof, is appointed hy any court of competent jurisdiction; o r ^ i ^ 
proceedings foracomposition with creditors un 
you; o r ^ i f a f i n a i judgment against you remains unsatisfied or of record for thirty (30) days or ionger 
(uniessasupersedeashondisfiied);or(6)ifyouaredis^ived;or(7)ifexecutionisieviedagainst^y^^ 
husiness or property; or (3) if suit to foreciose any iien or mortgage against the premises or equipment of 
such husiness operated hereunder or under any Franchise Agreement is instituted and not dismissed 
within thirty (30) days; or (9) ifthe reai or personai property of any husiness operated hereunder or under 
any Franchise Agreementshaii he soidafterievyhy any sheriff, marshaiorconstahie. 

8. You shaii he deemed to he in default andOickey'sma^at its option, terminate this 
Agreement and aii rights granted hereunder,without affording you any opportunity to cure the default 
except as provided heiow, effective immediateiy upon written notice to you, upon the occurrence 
the foiiowing events of default; 

1. If you fail to timely pay Oevelopment Fees, timely comply with the Oevelopment 
Schedule, timely execute Franchise Agreements and pay franchise fees, timely open 
Restaurants, or timely open replacement Restaurants in accordance with Articie3hereof (and 
time is herehy stipulated to he ofthe essence); 

^ if vou or anv of vour Rrincioalslnvestors is convicted of. or shall have entereda 
plea of nolo contendere to,afeiony,acrime involving moral turpitude or any other crime or 
offense that Oickey's helieves is reasonahiy likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the 
Proprietary Marks, the goodwill associated therewith or Oickey's interest therein; 

3. Ifathreatordangertopuhiic health or safety results from the construction, 
maintenanceoroperation ofany Restaurant developed underthisAgreement; 

4 if you fail to designate a qualified replacement Operating 
RrlncloalOwner/Ooerator within thirty (30) days after any initial or successor Operating 
RrlnclpalOwner/Ooerator ceases to serve as such, ail as required under Article 5.8.^ 

5. If vou or anv of vour Rrincioaisinvestors hreach or fail to perform any of the 
representations, warranties and covenants in Article 5; 

S. AnyTransferin violation of Article 7; 

7. If vou or anv of vour Principaisinvestors fail to comply with the covenants in 
Ar t i c le5S5orSSor if you fail to ohtain the execution of the covenants required under Article 
5S.S.aorArt ic ieSH within thirty (30)days following Oickey's request that you ohtain the 
execution of such covenants; 

5 if an approved transfer upon death or permanent disahiiity is not affected within 
thetime period and in the mannerprescrihedhyArticle7.E; 

9. if you misuse or make any unauthorized use ofthe Proprietary Marks or 
otherwise materially impairthe goodwill associated therewith orwith the System or Oi^^^ 
therein and do not cure such defauitwithintwentyfour (24) hours following notice fre 

10 If you fail, refuse or neglect promptly to pay when due any monetary ohligation 
owing to Oickey's or its suhsidiaries or affiliates underthisAgreement, any Franchise Agreement 
orany otheragreementl^tween you and Oickey's oritssuhsidiariesoraffiiiates,otherthan those 
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monetae oblations described 
days low ing notice from Oickey 

11. Any defaolt oooorsonderaFranohiso Agreement and is not oorodwiti^in 
applioable grace oroore period expressly provided fortherein; or 

12. if yoo repeatedly commit an event of defaolt onder this Agreementwrietrier or 
not soch defaoits have heen cored hy yoo after notice hy Oickey 

0̂  Except as provided ahove in Article yoo shall he in defaoit hereonder if yoo or any of 
yoor sohsidiaries or aftiliates fail to comply with any other term or condition imposed hy this Agree 
any other development or other agreement between yoo or any of yoor affiliates and Oickey's, as soch 
may from time to time he amended. In soch event, to the extent permitted onder applicahle Minnesota 
law, Oickey's may terminate this Agreement hy giving written notice of termination stating t hena r 
soch defaolt to yoo at least ti^irty (30) days prior to the effective date of termination (or, in the case ofa 
hreach onder any other development agreementor other agreement between yoo orany of yoor 
sohsidiaries or affiliates and Oickey's, soch other period of time expressly provided therein f o r ^ 
soch breach atter notice thereof, if any) (the''Oore Periods provided, however, that yoo m 
termination by immediately initiatingaremedy to core soch defaolt and coring it to Oickey's satisfaction 
within the Oore Period and by promptly providing proof thereof to Oickey's. If any soch defaolt is not 
cored within the Oore Period, or soch longer period as applicable law may reqoire, this Agreement shall, 
sobject to Article 6.0, terminate withoot forther notice to yoo effective immediately opon the e^̂ ^ 
the Oore Period or soch longer period as applicable law may reqoire. 

0 Oponadefaolt onder Article 6^8 or ArticleSO, to the extent permitted onder applicable 
Minnesotalaw, Oickey's has the option,in its sole discretion,in addition to or in lieo of exercising its 
option to terminate this Agreement as provided in Article 6.8 and Article 6.0, to do any one or more of the 
following: 

1. Realizeopon,asiiqoidateddamagesand notasapenalty, the onapplied portion 
ofthe Oevelopment Pee; 

2. Terminate or modify any territorial rights granted to yoo in Article1.8; 

3 Redoce the area ofsoch territorial rights; 

4. Redooe the nomber of Restaorants which yoo may establish porsoant to Articles 
1and3.8i1;or 

6 Accelerate the Oevelopment Schedoie; or 

6. Increase the amoont of the Sobseqoent Pranchise Pee. 

E 1. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, yoo shall have no forther 
right to establish or operate any Restaorant for whichaPranchise Agreement has not been 
execoted by Oickey's and delivered to yoo atthe time oftermination or expiration. 

2̂  if, asaresoltofyoor defaolt, Oickey's does not elect to terminate this Agreement 
hot instead elects to modify soch territorial rights or modify yoor Oevelopment Schedoie, yoo shall 
continoe to perform yoor doties and obligations hereonder and develop Restaorants in 
accordancewith the Oevelopment Schedoie as modified by Oickey's. 

3. if Oickey's exercises any of its rights in Article 6.0,or ifthisAgreementotherwise 
expires or terminates, Oickey's shali beentitied to establish, and to license or permit otî ^ 
establish,restaorants, or condoct any other activity, in theTerritory or in the portion th^ 
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loogerapartof theTem^orporaoan^ 
as may be otherwise provided o n d e r ^ 
Oioke^sandyoo. 

^ Oiokey'sexereise of any of its iesser options onder ArtioieS.O shaii ooti^the event 
defaoit, oonstitoteawaiverhy Oiokey's to exeroise its option to terminate this Agre^ 
respeot toasohseqoent event of defaoitofasimiiar or different natore to the extent permitted onder 
appiioahie Minnesota iaw. 

G No defaoit onder this Agreement shaii oonstitote a defaoit onder any Franohise 
Agreement between the parties hereto,oniess the defaoit is aisoadefaoit onder the terms of sooh 
Franohise Agreement 

H. No right or remedy herein conferred opon or reserved to Oiokey's is exoiosive of any 
other right or remedy provided or permitted by iaw or in eqoity. 

i Upon termination or expiration ofthis Agreement regardiessoftheoaoseof sooh 
termination, yoo and yoor Prinoipaisinvestors shaii oomoivwith the restriotions on confident 
contained in Artioie 5.8.5 and the covenants against competition contained in Artioie 8 . ^^ Anyother 
person reqoired to execote simiiar covenants porsoant to Articles 5.8.5.a or shaii aisocompiywit^ 
soch covenants' 

^i. Tothe extent reqoired onder appiicabie Minnesota iaw, Oickey's shaii not terminate or 
cancel this Agreement, oniess^Oickey's has provided yoo with written notice setting fort̂  
reasons for the termination or cancellation of this Agreement at least ninety (90) days in advance of 
termination or cancellation and (ii) yoo shall have failed to correct the reasons stated for the t^^ 
or cancellation in soch notice to the satisfaction of Oickey's within sixty (50) days of receipt 
except that soch notice shaii beeffective immediately opon receipt for thefoiiowing groondsfor 
termination orcanceilation: 

1. Yoorvoiontary abandonment ofthe franchise relationship; 

2. Yoor conviction of an offense directly related to the bosiness condoctedporsoant 
to the franchised bosiness; or 

3 Yoor failore to coreadefaoit onder this Agreement which materially impairs the 
goodwill associated with Oickey's trade name, trademark, service mark, iogotypeorother 
commercial symbol after yoo have received written notice to core of at least twenty-foor (24) 
boors in advance thereof. 

Totheextentreqoiredonderappiicable Minnesota taw, thisArticle5.^ shall control a 
contrary terms and provisions ofthis Articled. 

ARTICLED 
TRANSFEROFINTEREST 

A. Transfer by Oickey's 

Oickey's shall havethe rightto transferorassignthisAgreementand all orany partofits rights or 
obligations herein to any person or legal entitywithoot yoor consent Specificaiiy, and wi^ 
theforegoing, yoo expressly affirm and agree that Oickey's may sell its assets, the Proprietary M a ^ 
the System toatbird party; may merge, acquire other entities, or be acqoired by another entity 
may ondertake a refinancing recapitalization, leveraged boy oot or other economic or financial 
restr^ctoring,and, with regard to any or ail of the above sales, assignments and dispositions,yoo 
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express and specitica^wa^e any ^ 
right to davalop Restaorants onder trie System against Oiokey's onder this Agreement. Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shaii raqoire Oickey's to remain in the hosiness of o^rating or licensing 
o^ration of Oickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorants or other restaorants or to ofter any services or prodocts, 
whether or not faring the Proprietary Marks, to yoo, if Oickey's exercises its rights hereonder to a s s ^ 
its rightsin thisAgreement 

S. Transfer hy yoo 

Except as prohibited onder appiicahie Minnesota iaw 

1. Yoo and voor Princioaisinvestors onderstand and acknowiedoe that the riohts 
and doties set forth in this Agreement are personal to yoo and that Oickey's has granted this 
franchise in reliance on the hosiness skill, financial capacity and personal character of yoo and 
voor Princioalsinvestors. Accordinqlv.neithervoonoranyPrincioaiinvestormavTransferanv 
directorindirectownership interest in yoo,this Agreement or the franchised hosiness,with^ 
Oickey's prior written consent in addition, neither yoo nor any permitted soccessor or assign to 
any part of yoor interest in this Agreement or the franchised hosiness, nor any person or entity 
which directly or indirectly has or owns any interest in this Agreement, in the franchised hosiness 
orinyoo,shall caose or pem^itaTransferofaOontrolling Interest (as hereinafter defined) wi^^ 
the prior written consent of Oickey's; provided, however, that Oickey's prior written consent shall 
not he reqoired foraTransferof less than a one percent (1^) interest in a PohliclyDHeld 
Oorporation. within five (5) daysofthe completion of eachTransfer of any ownership interest in 
yoo or any of the ManagementOroop, yoo shall provide to Oickey's written noticeof the 
completion oftheTransferandfollyexecoted copies of ail docoments evidencing theTransfer 
and any and all amendments to the organizational docoments ofthe applicahle entity in 
connection with theTransfer. Porporposesof thisAgreement,a"Transferof aOontrolling 
interes^'shail mean; (i)aTransfer, directly or indirectly, individoally or comolat^ 
fifty (50^) ofthe ownership interest in yoo or any ofthe Management Oroop; or (ii)aTransfe^ 
any ownerahip interest, which, directly or indirectly, individoally or comolatively,rasol^ 
resolt in the change or removal of, or addition to, (a) any of the Management Orqop, or (h) the 
Ooeratinq PrincioalOwner/Ooerator. Por porposes of this Agreement, a "PohliclyDHeld 
Oorporation''isacorporationwhosesecoritiesareregistered onder Section 12 of the Secorities 
ExchangeActof1934,as amended,oracorporationsohjecttothe retirements of Section 15(d) 
ofthe Secorities Exchange Act, as amended Por porposes ofthis Agreement, "Transfer means 
any sale, installment sale, exchange, mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, assignment, 
encomhrance or other transfer,conveyance or disposition,whether volontarily,involontarily or hy 
operation of law or otherwise. Any porportedTransfer,hy operation of law or otherwise,not 
having the written consent of Oickey's reqoiredhy this Article^shall he noil and void and shall 
constitote an event ofdefaoltonderthisAgreement. 

2. Oickey's shaii not onreasonahly withhold its consent toaTransfer so long as the 
Transfer has not heen completed prior to Oickey's receipt of notice thereof; however, Oickey's 
may, in its sole discretion, reqoire any or ali of the following as conditions of its approval to any 
sochTransferreqoiring Oickey's priorwritten consent 

a. All accroed monetary and other ootstanding ohligations to Oickey's and 
its sohsidiaries and affiliates arising onderthis Agreement orany Pranchise Agreement or 
other agreement between yoo or any of yoor sohsidiaries or affiliates and Oickey's or its 
sobsidiariesoraffiliatesshall havebeen satisfied inatimely manner, and yoo and yoor 
sohsidiaries and affiliates shall have satisfied ali trade accoonts and other debts,of 
whatever natore or kind, inatimely manner; 
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^ Yoo are not iodefao^ of any previse 
dafaoltondar any Frenohisa Agreomont or any othar agreomont batwaan yoo or yoor 
aobsidiariosora^atasandOiokoy'soritssobsidiariosora^^^ 

ô  Un losso tho^soproh ib i tadbya^^ 
Prinoioa^nvostore.asap^oab^ sha^havaaxaootadagonaral reload inaform 
presoribadbyOioka^ofanyanda^olaimsoftrensforor,ofwhatavarnatoreor 
againatOiokoy^anditsaobs^ariasanda^ 
shareho^are, partnara, am^oyao^ sonants, repreaantativoa and agants, in thair 
oorporetaandindividoaioapaoitios,^ 
Agreomont, any Franohiso Agreomont and any othoragraamontbatwoan yoo or yoor 
sobsidiariosoraffiiiatosandOiokoy'soritsso^diariosora^ 
iooai iaws, roios and ordinanoos; 

d. Tho transforoo shaii ontorintoawritton agreomont, inafonnprosoribod 
hyOiokoy's,assomingfoii,onoonditionai joint and sovorai iiahiiity for and agreeing to 
perform from tho data of thoTransfor,ailohiigations,oovonants and agroomonts of yoo 
inthisAgreoment; and iftrensfereoisaoor^retion, partnership, iimited i i a h ^ 
or other entity,tho transferee's sharehoidors, partnors,memhors or other ownors,as 
aooiioahio, shaii aisoexeoote sooh aoreement as Prinoioaisinvestors of tho transferee, 
inoiodingagoarantyofyoorohiigations contained in thisAgreement. 

e. Tho transferee shaii demonstrate to Oickey's satisfaction that transferee 
moots the criteria considerodhy Oickey's whenreviowingaprospectivedeveiopor's 
appiication for deveiopment rights, incioding Oickey's odocationai, manageriai and 
hosiness standards,transforoo's good morai character, hosiness ropotation and credit 
rating, transferee's aptitode and ahiiity to condoct the hosiness contompiated hereonder 
(as may ho evidenced hy prior reiated hosiness oxporionco or otherwise), transferee's 
financial rosoorcos and capitai,and thogoogrephicpreximity of other territories with 
respect to which transferee has heen granted deveiopment rights or of other Oickey's 
SarhocooPitrostaorantsoporatodhytransforee, ifany; 

f. Uniossprohihitod hy appiicahioiaw, tho transferee shaiioxocotetho 
standardformdovoiopmentagreomontthon heing offered to new System deveiopors era 
revised form ofthis Agreement, as Oickey's dooms appropriate, and soch other anciiiary 
agreements as Oickey's may reqoire, which agreements shaii soporsodo this Agreomont 
and its anciiiary docoments in aii respects and tho terms ofwhich agreements may differ 
from tho terms ofthisAgreement (oxcoptthattho Oeveiopmont Schedoie and tho 
Oovoiopmont Periods wiii not change), and if tho transferee isacorporation,aiimitod 
iiahiiity company, partnership or other entity, transferee's shareholders, momherŝ  
partners or other owners, as applicahle, shall also oxocoto soch agreements as 
Princioalslnvestors ofthe transferee, incloding a goaranty of Owner/ooerator'svoor 
ohiigationscontained in thisAgreement; 

g. Yooshall payatransfor foe of $10,000.00 or soch greater amoont as is 
necessary to roimhorso Oickey's for its reasonahle costs and expenses associated with 
roviowingthoapplication toTrensfor, incloding, withoot limitation, legal and a c ^ 
fees; 

hD Iftransforooisacorporetion, limited liahilitycompany, partnership or any 
other entity, transferee shall make and will ho hoond hy any or all ofthe representations, 
warranties and covenants in Article 5^BI as Oickey's reqoosts Transforee shall provide 
to Oickey's evidence satisfactory to Oickey's that tho terms of Article 5.8̂ 1 haveheen 
satisfied and are troo and correct onthedateofTransfer Tho transferor shaii remain 

^ iiahioforaii ofthe ohligations to Oickey's in connection with thisAgreement inoorred pri 
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to, the effective date of the transfer and shall execute any and all instruments reasonably 
requested by Dickey's to evidence such liability. 

i. Prior to the Transfer, you shall deliver to Dickey's for review and approval 
copies of all documents which will evidence the Transfer and, if applicable, any and all 
amendments to the organizational documents of the applicable entity to be executed in 
connection with the Transfer. 

3. You acknowledge and agree that each condition, which must be met by the 
transferee, is reasonable and necessary to ensure the transferee's full performance of the 
obligations hereunder. 

C. Transfer for Convenience of Ownership 

If a proposed Transfer is to a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity 
formed solely for the convenience of ownership, to the extent permitted under applicable Minnesota law, 
Dickey's consent may be conditioned upon any of the requirements in Article 15.2, except that the 
requirements in Articles 7.B.2.C, e, f and g shall not apply. In such event, you shall be the owner of all the 
outstanding ownership interests in the entity, and if you are more than one (1) individual, each individual 
shall have the same proportionate ownership interest in the entity as such individual had prior to the 
Transfer. 

0. Right of First Refusal 

1. You or any person holding a direct or indirect interest in you (including any 
interest to be transferred pursuant to Article 7.E) or in this Agreement and who desires to accept 
any bona fide offer from a third party to purchase your interests hereunder or any interest in you 
shall promptly notify Dickey's in writing of each such offer and shall provide such information and 
documents relating to the offer as Dickey's may require. Dickey's shall have the right and option, 
exercisable within sixty (60) days after receipt of such written notification, to send written notice 
that Dickey's intends to purchase the transferor's interest on the same terms and conditions 
offered by the third party. If Dickey's elects to purchase the transferor's interest, closing on such 
purchase must occur within thirty (30) days from the date of Dickey's notice electing to purchase, 
or such other date as may be agreed upon. Any material change in the terms of any third party 
offer prior to closing shall constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of first refusal by 
Dickey's as in the case of an initial offer. Failure of Dickey's to exercise the option afforded by 
this Article 7.0 shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, including all 
provisions relating to a proposed Transfer. 

2. If the offer from a third party provides for payment of consideration other than 
cash or involves certain intangible benefits, Dickey's may elect to purchase the interest proposed 
to be sold for the reasonable equivalent in cash. If the parties cannot agree within thirty (30) days 
on such amount, an independent appraiser shall be designated by each party to determine such 
amount In the event that such appraisers shall agree on such amount the determination shall 
be final and binding. In the event that such appraisers fail to agree within thirty (30) days, a third 
independent appraiser shall be designated by such appraisers, and the determination by a 
majority of appraisers shall be binding. Each party shall bear the costs and expenses of the 
appraiser appointment by such party, and the parties shall share equally the costs and expenses 
of the third appraiser. 

3. If Dickey's elects to exercise the option described in this Article 7.D, it shall have 
the right to set off the cost of the appraisal described in Article 7.0.2 above, if any against any 
payment made hereunder. 
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4. F a ^ r e t o o o m ^ w ^ ^ o p r e ^ 
direct or iodireot forest yoo or^sAgreomont 
Agroemont 

E. Traosfor Upon Ooath or Pormaooot Disahiiity 

ExoaptasprohihitadondarappiioahiaMionosotaiaw: 

1. tho doath of any parson withadiroot or indireot iotorastio this 
or in yoo (tho "Doooasod"^ tho oxoootor, administrator or othorporsonairoprosontativo 
Ooooasodshaiitransforsoohintorosttoathird party, provided that any sooh transfer shaii ho 
sohjeottothotorms, conditions and rostriotionsregardingTransfers set forth in Artioi^ 
therightoffirstrefosai setforth in Artioio^O if no personal representative is designate 
appointed or no prohate proceedings are institoted with respeot to the estate of the Oeoeased, 
then tho transfer of soch interest to tho distnhotoo of soch interest shaii ho sohjoct to tho torm^ 
conditionsand restrictions rogardingTransfors set forth in Articie7^ ifthedistrihotooisnot 
approved hy Oickey's, then tho distrihotoe shaii transfer soch interest toathird party approved hy 
Oickey's within twelve (12) months after tho death of tho Oeceased, sohject to the terms and 
conditions setforth in Articie^Band the right offirstrefosal setforth inArticio^O^ 

2. Upon tho permanent disahiiity of any person withadirect or indirect interest in 
this Agreement or in yoo, if Oickey's determines Oickey's may, in its solo discretion, reqoiro soch 
interest to ho transferred toathird party approved hy Oickey's within six (S) months after notice to 
yoo, sohjoct to tho right of first rofosai sot forth in Articie^O. ' Permanent disahiiity" shall mean 
anyphysicai, emotional or mental injory, illness or incapacity which wooldprevontapersonfro^ 
portorming the ohligations sot forth in this Agrooment for at least ninety (90) consecotive days 
and from which condition recovery within ninety (90) dayson thedatoof determination of 
disahiiity isonlikely. Permanent disahiiity shaii ho determined hytwo(2)liconsed practicing 
physicians. One (1) licensed practicing physician shall ho selected hy Oickey's, whiioasocond 
licensed practicingphysician shall ho seiectedhy yoo If those two (2) licensed practicing 
physicianscannotagroeon whothorapormanont disahiiity exists, they shaii appointathird 
licensed practicing physician whoso export opinion shaii he controlling. Thocosts ofany 
examination reqoiredhy this Article shall he paid hy Oickey's. 

5. Upon the death or claim of permanent disahiiity of any person withadirect or 
indirect interest in this Agreement or in yoo, yoo most promptly notify Oickey's of soch death or 
claim of permanent disahiiity. Excoptasothorwisoprovidod in this Articlo7.E,any transfer opon 
death or permanent disahiiity shaii ho sohject to the same terms and conditions descrihed in this 
Articled.B.2,excopt that tho roqoiromonts of Articios7.8.2.c,fandgshail not apply, if an 
interest is not transferred opon death or permanent disahiiity as roqoirod in this Arti 
shall ho in defaoit ondorthis Agreement. 

P Non^aivorofOiaims 

Oickey'sconsenttoatransforofanyintorostin yoo orin this Agreement shaii not constitotoa 
waiver of any claims it may have against the transferor,nor shall it he doomedawaivor of Oickey's 
to demand oxactcompiiancowith any ofthe terms ofthis Agreement hytho transferee. 

O. OfforingshyYoo 

Secorities in yoo may ho offered to tho pohlic,hy private offering or otherwise, oniy with tho prior 
written consent of Oickey's (whether or not Oickey's consent is reqoired onder Articie^S),^ 
shall not he onroasonahiy withhold. All materials roqoirod for soch offering hy federal or state iaw shall 
ho sohmitted to Oickey's foralimitod review as discossodheiow prior to their heing filed withany 
government agency, and any materials to ho osed in any exempt offering shall ho sohmitted to Oickey's 
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for soch review prior to their use. No offering hy you shei i impi^hy ose of the ProprieteryMerks or 
otherwise, thet Oickey's is per t io ipe^ 
securities of enysohsidiery or effiiiete of yoo, end Oickey's review of enyoff^^ 
iimited soieiyto the sohject ofthe reietionship between yoo end Oickey'sand its s o h s ^ 
end shaii not constitote en endorsement of yoor offering orerepresentetionor confirmation that yo 
offering compiies with appiicahiefederai or state iaws. Oickey's may, at its option, reqoire yoor offering 
materiais to containawritten statement prescribed hy Oickey's concerning the iimitat^ 
preceding sentence YOU ANO THE OTHER P A R T i O i P A ^ 
i N O E M N i ^ O i O ^ S i N O O N N E O T i O N ^ T H T H E O F F E R i N O Foreachproposedoffering,yoosha^^ 
pay to Oickey'sanon-refondabie fee of $2,00000, or soch iarger amoont as is necessary to reimborse 
Oicke^s for its reasonabie costs and expenses associated with reviewing the proposed offering materi 
incioding, withoot limitation, iegai and aoooonting fees Yoo shaii give Oickey's written notice at least 
thirty(30)dayspriortoanyofferingorothertransaction covered by this Articie^.O. 

ARTICLED 
COVENANTS 

A. Yoo covenant that doring the term of this Agreement, except as otherwise approved in 
writing by Oickey's. voo and the Ooerat inoRr inc^ 
tothe managementand operation ofthe developmentactivities contemplated onderthisAgreement 

S. Yoo and yoor Princioalsinvestors soecificaliy acknowledge that, porsoant to this 
Agreement yoo and yoor Princioalslnvestore will receive valoable specialized training trede secrets a^^ 
confidential information, which are beyond the present skills and experience of yoo and yoor 
Rrincioaislnvestors and yoor manaoere and employees and that yoo have the right and the obligation 
arising from this Agreementto develop theTerritory for the benefit of the System Yoo and yoor 
Princioalsinvestors acknowledoe that soch s o e ^ ^ 
provideacompetitiveadvantage and will beva loab le toyoo inthe development of thePranchised 
Sosinesses and that access to soch specialized training, trede secrets and confidential informati^^ 
therefore, aprimary reason for entering intothis Agreement inconsiderationforsochspecialized 
training,trade secrets^ confidential information and exclosiverights.yoo and yoor Princioalsl^^^ 
covenant as follows: 

1. ^ithrespecttoyoo,doringthetermofthisAgreementorwith respect to each of 
yoor Princioalslnvestors. doring the term ofthisAqreementforso long as soch individoal or entity 
satisfiesthedefinitionof''yoorPrincioalslnvestore''in Article13E. except as o t h e ^ 
in writing by Oickey's^neitheryoonor any of yoor Prinoioalslnvestorsshall.either directly or 
indirectly, for themselves, or throogh, on behalf of or in conjonction with any person(s), 
partnership or corporation: 

a. Oivert orattempttodivertany bosiness or costomer of any Oickey's 
Sarhecoe Pit Restaorant to any competitor, by direct or indirect indocement or otherwise, 
or do or perfonn, directly or indirectly, any other act injorioos or prejodicial to the goodwill 
associated with Oickey's Proprietary Marks and the System; or 

b Own, maintain,operate, engage in or have any financial or beneficial 
interest in (incloding interest in corporations, limited iiahiiity compani^^ 
trosts,onincorporated associations or joint ventores), advise, assist or make loans to, any 
personor bosiness which i s t hesame a s o r similar toorcomoetitive with Oickey's 
SarbecoePit restaorants, inclodingbot not limited to.anyfeedrestaorant or catering 
bosiness whiohtbat offers smoked meats or barhecoe-stvle food, incioding choooed beef 
brisket sl icedbeefbrisketooliedoork.Virginia style ham, marinated chicken breast 
torkev breast, oolishsaosage.soicy Cheddar saosage.or oork ribs asapr imary or 
featured mono item. 
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2. respect to yoo, fo raco^ooo^ 
excretion or tormioetionot or t r e n ^ 
oeohofyoorPrinoioo^ovestors.foreoootinooosoniotorrootod 
earlier o^^theoxpiretioo,tormioetion or transfer ofellof yoor î ^̂  
the time sooh individoal or entity oeeses to ^ 
Artioiel^E. and for two^yeare thereafter (whioh two-year period shaii he toiled 
period of nonoomoiianoe^ except as othen^seaooroyed in writing hyOiokey's. neither yoo nor 
any of yoor Principaisinyestors shaii. either directly or indirectiy.forthemseiyes or throoo 
hehalf of or in conjonction with any ^rson, partnership, corporation or other entitŷ  

a. Oiyertorattempttodiyertany hosiness or costomer of any Oickey's 
Sarhecoe Pit restaorant to any competitor, hy direct or indirect indocement or otherwise, 
or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injorioos or prejodiciai to the goodwill 
associated with Oickey's Proprietary Marks and the System; 

h. Employ or seek to empioy any person who is at that time employed hy 
Oickey's or hy any other deyelooer or owner/operatorfranchisee of Oickey's. or otherwise 
direct or indirectly indoce soch person to leave that person's employment provided, 
however,thatyoomayempioysoch person inamanagerial position with respect to yoor 
operation ofaOickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorant porsoant to the terms of the Pranchise 
Agreementapplicahietosoch Oickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorant or 

c. Own, maintain, operate,engage in or have any financial or heneficiai 
interest in (incloding any interest in corporations, limited iiahiiity companî ^^ 
trosts, onincorporated associations, joint ventores or other entities), advise, assist or 
make loans to. any person or entity engaged in any hosiness whichthat is the same as or 
similar to or competitive with Oickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorants incioding hot not iimited 
to. any feedrestaorant or catering hosiness whiehthat offers smoked meats or harhecoe 
style food, incloding chopped heefhrisket sliced heefhrisketooiiedpork V i m ^ 
ham,marinatedchickenhreast,torkeyhreastpoiishsaosage^spicycheddarsaosage,or 
porkrihsasaprimarvorfeatoredmenoitem.which hosiness is. or is intended to he. 
located intheTerritorvorwithin five (S) miles of the hoondary of the Territory, orwi^^ 
five (5) mile radios of any Oickey's Sarhecoe Pit restaorant in existence or onder 
constroctionasofdatethetimeperiodsetforthinArticleSS^commencesforyooor 
yoor Principailnvestor.as applicahle. 

0. Article S.SBI.h and 2.cshaii not apply to ownership of less than one percent (1^) 
heneficiai interestinthe ootstandingeqoitysecoritiesofanypohiicly-held corporation. 

0. The partiesagree that each ofthe ahove covenants shall he constroed as independent of 
any other covenant or provision of this Agreement If aii or any portion ofacovenant in this ArticieSis 
held onreasonahle or onenforceahiehyacoort or agency having valid jorisdiction in an onappeaied final 
decisiontowhichOickev'sisaparty.voo and yoor Principalslnvestors expressly agree to he hoond hv 
any lesser covenants sohsomed within the terms of soch covenant that imposes the maximom doty 
permitted hy iaw, as ifthe resoitingoovenantwere separately stated in and madeapart o f t h i s ^ 

E. Yoo and yoor Principalslnvestors onderstand and acknowledge that Oickey's shaii have 
the right io its sole discretion, to redoce the scope of any covenant set forth in Article S.S, or any p o ^ 
thereon, withoot yoor consent, effective immediately opon notice to yoo; and yoo and yoor 
Principaislnvestorsagreethatyooshail immediately comply with any covenant as so modified.which 
shall hefolly enforceahle notwithstanding the provisions of Article 14.A. 

P. Yoo and yoor Principalslnvestors expressly agree that the existence of any claims yoo 
may have against Oickey's, whether or not arising ftom this Agreement shall not constitoteadefenset^ 
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the eoforeomo^ by O i c ^ s ofthe coveoao^io^sArt io^^ YeoeodveorP^oioe^nveeteraeoreete 
pey ell oeete end expeoeee(ioo^diogreeeonehlelegel fees) inoorred hyOi^^ 
enforoement ofthis Artiole. 

G Feiioretooompiy withthe requirements of this ArtioieSsheiioonstitoteenevent of 
defeuit onder this Agreement Yoo end voor Prinoioeisinvestorseoknowiedoethetevioietion ofthis 
Artioie wooid resoit in irreperehie injory to Oiokey'sfor whioh noedeqoeteremedy et iewmey he 
eveiiehie.endyooend yoor Prinoioeisinvestorseooordinqiv consent to the issoenoe of e n ^ ^ 
prohibiting enyoondoothy yoo or yoor Prinoioeisinvestors in vioietion of the terms o f ^ This 
remedy is in addition to eny other remedies Oickey's meyheve hereonder oretiew or eqoity. 

H At Oickey's reqoest yoo sheiireqoire end obtain the execotion of covenants similar to 
thosesetfo^inthisArticleSfrom any person or entity that now or hereafter sat isf ies^ 
voor Princioallnvestor in Art iclel^E and anv other person or entity who has received or will receive 
confidential information or training from Oickey's. Failore by yoo toobtain theexecotion ofthese 
covenants following Oickey's reqoest shall constitote an event of defaolt onderthisAgreement 

ARTIOLE^ 
^OEFENOENTOONTRAOTORANO^OEMN^OATION 

A. Theparties acknowledge andagree that this Agreement doesnotcreateafidociary 
relationship between them, that yoo shall be an independent contractor and that nothing in this 
Agreement is intended to constitote either party an agent, legal representative, sobsidiary,^ 
partner, employee, joint employer orservant ofthe otherfor any porpose. 

8. Ooring thetermof this Agreement, yoo shall holdyoorself oot tothe poblicasan 
independentcontractorcondocting its development operations porsoant to development rightsgrant^^ 
Oickey's Yoo agree to take soch action as shall be necessary to that end, incioding, withoot limitation, 
exhibiting a notice of that fact in a conspicooos place in any office established forthe porposes 
hereonder, the contentandfom^ ofwhich Oickey's reserves the right to specify in writing. 

0. Yoo onderstand and agree that nothing in this Agreement aothonzes yoo or any of yoor 
Principalslnvestors to make any condoct aoreement warranty or representation on Oickey's beha^ 
incor any debt or other obligation in Oickey's name, and that Oickey's shall in no eventassome liability fo^ 
orbedeemedliableonderthisAgreementasaresoltof, any soch action,or for any act or omission of 
yoo or anv ofyoor Principalslnvestors or any claim or lodgment arisino therefrom. 

0 1 YOU ANO EAOH OPYOURPRlNOiPAtSlNVESTOPSSHAtt. AT At t TIMES. 
iNOEMNlPYANOHOtO HARMLESS TO THE P U t t E S T E ^ E N T P E R M l T T E O E Y t A ^ 
OICKEY'S, ITS SUSSlOlARiES,APPltlATES,SUOOESSORS ANO ASSIGNS AS ANO THEIR 
RESPEOTiVE OIREOTORS, OPPiOERS, SHAREHOLOERS, PARTNERS, SERVANTS, 
EMPLOYEES, AOENTSANO REPRESENTATIVES PROM AtL ' tOSSES ANO EXPENSES" 
(ASOEPINEO IN A R T l O L E 9 0 4 S S E L O ^ INOURREOINOONNEOTION WITHANY 
AOTlON,SUiT,PRO0EE0iNO0LAlM,0EMAN0,lNVESTlOATiONORlN0LilRY (FORMAL OR 
INFORMAL), OR ANY SETTLEMENT THEREOF WHETHER OR NOT A FORMAL 
PROOEEOiNOORAOTiON HAS SEEN 1NST1TUTEO)^H10HAR1SESOUT OF ORIS SASEO 
UPONANYOFTHEFOLLO^INO: 

A THE iNFRlNOEMENT,ALLEOEO INFRINGEMENT, OR ANY OTHER 
VIOLATION, OR ALLEGEO VIOLATION SY YOU OR ANY OF YOUR 
p^QiP^tSiNVESTORS OF ANY PATENT, MAR^, OOPYRIGHT OR OTHER 
PROPRiETARYRlGHTO^NEO OR OONTROLLEOSYTHIRO PARTIES (EXOEPT AS 
SUOH MAY OOOUR^iTH RESPEOT TO ANY RIGHTS iN THE PROPRIETARY 
MAR^SGRANTEOTOYOUUNOERAFRANOHISEAGREEMENT); 
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8 T H E V I O ^ ^ S R E A C H O R A ^ 
O R A N Y O F Y O U R P R ^ P A ^ N V E S T Q R S OF 

LOOAL L A ^ , REOULATION, RUONO STANOARO OR O I R E O T ^ OR ANY 
1NOUSTRYSTANOARO; 

0 O ^ 4 S L A N 0 E R O R A N Y O T H 5 R F O R M O F 0 E F A M A ^ O N O F 
O l O ^ Y ' S OR THE S Y S T E M 8Y YOU OR 8Y ANY OF YOUR 
P R I N O ^ A ^ N V E S T O R ^ 

0 T H E V I O ^ A T I O N O R 8REAOH 8 Y Y O U O R 8 Y A N Y O F Y O U R 
PRINO^AL^NVESTORS OF ANY WARRANTY. REFRESENTATION. AOREEMENT 
OR 0800ATION IN THIS AOREEMENT OR IN ANY FRANOH^E AOREEMENT OR 
OTHER AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU ANO OICKEY'S OR ITS SUSSIOIARIES OR 
AFFILIATES; ANO 

E AOTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF YOU, ANY OF YOUR 
SUSSIOIARIES OR AFFILIATES ANO ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS ANO 
THE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, AGENTS, 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS, SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES AND 
REPRESENTATIVES OF YOU AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES IN 
CONNECTION^ ITH THE PERFORMANCE O F T H E OEVELOPMENTACTIVITIES 
CONTEMPLATED UNDER THIS A G R E E M E N T O R T H E ESTABLISHMENT AND 
OPERATION OFANYDICI^EY 'S BARBECUE PIT RESTAURANT PURSUANT T O A 
FRANCHISEAGREEMENT 

2 Y O U A N D EACH O F Y O U R PRINCIPALSINVESTORS AGREE T O G I V E 
D I C I ^ E Y ' S I M M E D I A T E N O T I C E O F A N Y SUCH ACTION, SUIT, PROCEEDING,CLAIM, 
DEMAND, INOUIRYOR INVESTIGATION ATTHE EXPENSEANDRIS I^OFYOUAND EACH 
O F Y O U R PRINCIPALSINVESTORSDIC^EY 'SMAYELECTTOCONTROL^BUTUNDER NO 
CIRCUMSTANCE IS OBLIGATED TO UNDERTAKE), ANO ASSOCIATE COUNSEL OF ITS 
O ^ N C H O O S I N G ^ I T H R E S P E C T T O , T H E DEFENSE AND/OR SETTLEMENT OF ANY 
SUCH ACTION,SUIT, PROCEEDING,CLAIM, DEMAND, INOOIRY OR INVESTIGATION 
SUCH AN UNDERTAKING BY DICKEY'S SHALL, IN NO MANNER OR FORM, DIMINISH THE 
OBLIGATION OF YOU AND EACH OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS TO INDEMNIFY 
DICI^EY'SANDTOHOLDITHARMLESS 

^ IN ORDER TO PROTECT PERSONS OR PROPERTY OR ITS REPUTATION 
OR GOODWILL, OR THE REPUTATION OR GOODWILL OF OTHERS, DICKEY'S MAY,AT 
ANY TIME AND WITHOUT NOTICE, AS DICKEY'S, IN ITS JUDGMENT DEEMS 
APPROPRIATE, CONSENT OR A G R E E T O SETTLEMENTS ORTAI^E SUCH OTHER 
REMEDIAL OR CORRECTIVE ACTION AS DICI^EY'S DEEMS EXPEDIENT^ITH RESPOND 
TOTHEACTION,SUIT ,PROCEEDING,CLAIM, DEMAND, INQUIRY OR INVESTIGATION IF, 
INDIC^EY 'SSOLE^UDGMENT,THEREAREREASONABLEGROUNDSTOBELIEVETHAT: 

A ANY OF THE ACTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES ENUMERATED IN 
ARTICLE9 DBI ABOVE HASOCCURRED; OR 

B ANY ACT, ERROR OR OMISSION AS DESCRIBED IN 
ARTICLE9 DBI EMAYRESULTOIRECTLYORINDIRECTLYIN DAMAGE, IN^IURYOR 
H A R M T O A N Y P E R S O N O R A N Y P R O P E R T Y 

4 A ALL L O S S E S A N O EXPENSES INCURRED UNDER THIS ARTICLED 
SHALL BE CHARGEABLE TO AND PAID BY YOU OR ANY OF YOUR 
PRINCIPALSINVESTORS PURSUANTTOITSOBLIGATIONSOFINDE^INITYUNDER 
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THIS ARTICLE REGAROLESS OF ANY ACTION ACTIVITY OR 05FEHSE 
U H O E R T A ^ E N S Y O I O ^ E Y ' S OR THE SU8SEOUENT SUCCESS OR FAILORE OF 
SUCHACTIO^ACTIV ITYOROEFENSE 

S AS USEO IN THISARTICLE 9, THE F H R A S E " L O S S E S ANO 
EXPENSES" SHALL INCLUDE, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL LOSSES, 
COMPENSATORY, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE OAMAOES, FINES, CHARGES, 
COSTS, EXPENSES, LOST PROFITS, LEGAL FEES, COURT COSTS^ SETTLEMENT 
AMOUNTS, JUDGMENTS, COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGES TO DICKEY'S 
REPUTATION ANO GOODWILL, C O S T S O F O R RESULTINGFROM DELAYS, 
FINANCING, COSTS OF ADVERTISING MATERIAL AND MEDIA TIME/SPACE ANO 
COSTS OF CHANGING, SUBSTITUTING OR REPLACING THE SAME, ANDANY AND 
ALL EXPENSES OF RECALL, REFUNDS, COMPENSATION, PUBLIC NOTICES AND 
OTHER SUCH AMOUNTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION ^ITH THE MATTERS 
DESCRIBED 

5 THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED PURSUANT TO THIS A R T I C L E 9 0 O NOT 
ASSUME ANY LIABILITY FOR ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF THOSE ^ I T H ^ H O M 
YOU ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS OR YOUR SUBSIDIARIES ANO AFFILIATES 
MAY CONTRACT, REGARDLESS OF THE PURPOSE, YOU ANO EACH OF YOUR 
PRINCIPALSINVESTORS SHALL HOLD HARMLESS ANO INDEMNIFY THE PERSONS 
INDEMNIFIED PURSUANT TO THIS ARTICLE FOR ALL LOSSES ANO EXPENSES ^H ICH 
MAY ARISE OUT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF YOU, YOUR 
PRINCIPALSINVESTORS. YOUR SUBSIDIARIES ANO AFFILIATES, THE OCCURS, 
DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES AND 
REPRESENTATIVES OF YOU ANO ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, AND ANY SUCH 
THIRD PARTIES WITHOUT LIMITATION AND WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CAUSE OR 
CAUSES THEREOF OR THE NEGLIGENCE OF DICKEY'S OR ANY OTHER PARTY OR 
PARTIES ARISING IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, AND WHETHER SUCH NEGLIGENCE BE 
SOLE, ^lOINT OR CONCURRENT ORACTIVEORPASSIVE 

6 UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED 
PURSUANT TO THIS A R T I C L E 9 B E REQUIRED OR OBLIGATED TO SEEI^ RECOVERY 
FROMTHIRO PARTIES OR OTHERS OR MITIGATE THEIR LOSSES TO MAINTAINACLAIM 
AGAINST YOU OR ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS YOU AND EACH OF YOUR 
PRINCIPALSINVESTORSAGREETHATTHE FAILURE TO PURSUE SUCH RECOVERY OR 
MITIGATE L O S S ^ I L L IN N O ^ A Y R E O U C E T H E A M O U N T S RECOVERABLE ON YOU OR 
ANY OF YOUR PRINCIPALSINVESTORS BY THE PERSONS INDEMNIFIED PURSUANT TO 
THISARTICLE 

7. Yoo and yoor Priooloalslove^ors exorossly agroo ^ tho torms of this 
Art lolo^D.shol lsorvlvotho^torml^ 
horolo. 

A R T I C L E D 
APPROVALS 

A ^ o o o v o r this Agroomootroqolros tho prior approval or ooosoot of Oloko^^^ 
makoatlmolywrittooroqoosttoOlokoy'saodsoohapprevaloroonsontshallhoohtalood 

B Dlokoy'smakos oo warraotlos or goaraotoos opon whioh yoo may roly and assomosn^ 
llahlll^ or obligation to yoo or any third party to whioh It woold not othon^lso ho 
walvor, approval, advloo,oonsont or soggostlon to yoo In oonnootlon with this Agroomont, or hyroasono 
anynogloot,dolayordonlalofanyroqoostthorofor. 
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ARTICLE 11. 
NON-WAIVER AND REMEDIES 

A. No delay, waiver, omission or forbearance on the part of Dickey's to exercise any right, 
option, duty or power arising out of any breach or default by you or your Principalslnvestors under this 
Agreement shall constitute a waiver by Dickey's to enforce any such right, option, duty or power against 
you or your Princioalslnvestors. or as to a subsequent breach or default by you or your 
Principalslnvestors. Acceptance by Dickey's of any payments due to it hereunder subsequent to the time 
at which such payments are due shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Dickey's of any preceding breach 
by you or your Principalslnvestors of any terms, provisions, covenants or conditions of this Agreement. 

B. All rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement shall be cumulative and not 
alternative, in addition to and not exclusive of any other rights or remedies which, are provided for herein 
or which may be available at law or in equity in case of any breach, failure or default or threatened 
breach, failure or default of any term, provision or condition of this Agreement or any other agreement 
between you and Dickey's or its subsidiaries and affiliates. The rights and remedies of the parties to this 
Agreement shall be continuing and shall not be exhausted by any one or more uses thereof and may be 
exercised at any time or from time to time as often as may be expedient; and any option or election to 
enforce any such right or remedy may be exercised or taken at any time and from time to time. The 
expiration, earlier termination or exercise of Dickey's rights pursuant to Article 6 of this Agreement shall 
not discharge or release you or any of your Princioalslnvestors from any liability or obligation then 
accrued, or any liability or obligation continuing beyond, or arising out of, the expiration, the earlier 
termination or the exercise of such rights under this Agreement 

ARTICLE 12. 
NOTICES 

A. Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be personally delivered or mailed by expedited delivery service or certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested, first-class postage prepaid, or sent by prepaid facsimile, telegram or telex (provided 
that the sender confirms the facsimile, telegram or telex by sending an original confirmation copy by 
certified or registered mail or expedited delivery service within three (3) business days after transmission) 
to you at the address first set forth above, or to Dickey's at the following address unless and until a 
different address has been designated by written notice to the other party: 

Notices to Dickey's: Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 
801 E. Piano Parkway, #135 
Piano, Texas 75074 
Attn: Roland Dickey, Jr. 

Telephone: (972) 423-2201; Facsimile: (972) 423-2232 

With a copy to: 
Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc. 
4514 Cole Avenue, Suite 1015 
Dallas, Texas 75205 
Attn: Lvnn A. LittleLeoal Department 
Facsimile: (972) 248-8667 

Notice to you shall be sent to the address set forth on page 1 of this Agreement 
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8. Any notice sha^ be deomodtohavobooog^ 
eeeeeffecein^e^elegramortelex^^ 
04 in tiieceeeef expedited delivery eervice or revered or certiti^ 
tiiedeteendtimeofmeiiin^Anyobengeintiieei^veeddreeeeeebeiii^medeb^ 
oeienderdeyswritten notice oftbe obenge to tbe otberperty 

A R ^ C L E ^ 
SEVERABILITY ANOCONSTRUOTiON 

A. Excepted expressly provided to tbe contreryberein,eecb portion, article, pert, term e^^ 
provision of tbis Agreement sbeil be considered severable; end if, for any reason, any p o ^ 
part, term or provision is determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in contiict witb, any e x ^ ^ 
law or regulation byacourt or agency baving valid jurisdiction,tbis sball not impair tbe operation of, or 
bave any otber effect upon, tbe otber portions, articles, parts, terms or provisions of tbis Agreement tb^ 
remain otberwise enforceable, and tbe iatier sball continue to be given full force and effect and b i n d ^ 
parties; and tbe invalid portions, articles, parts, terms or provisions sbail be deemed not to be part o f ^ 
Agreement. 

8. Except as expressly provided to tbe contrary berein, nothing in this Agreement is 
intended, nor sbai lbe deemed, to confer uponany personor legal entity otber tbanyou, Oickey's, 
Oickey's officers, directors and personnel andsucbo f your and Oickey's respective successors andD 
assigns as may be contemplated (and, as to you, authorized by Article 7), any rights or remedies under or 
asaresult ofthis Agreement. 

0. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the parties arid 
sbail not affect tbe meaning or construction of any provision ofthis Agreement. 

0 All references to the masculine, neuter or singular sball be construed to include tbe 
masculine, feminine, neuter or plural, whereappiicabie. Without limiting theobiigationsindividually 
undertaken by your Princioalslnvestors under this Agreement, ail acknowledgments, promises, 
covenants, agreements and obligations made or undertaken by you in this Agreement shall be deemed 
iointiv and severally undertaken bv all ofyour Princioalsinvestors. 

E. Unless othen^iseaoreed to in writing i^tween the oarties. th^ 
used in this Agreement shaii include, collectively or individually, (i) if you are an individual,^ 
and (ii) if you are an entity, (a) each person or entity who now or hereafter executes this Agreement a s a 
Prinoipalan Investor or executes an aoreement in which such person or entity agrees to be bound bvti^i^ 
Agreement asaPrineieallnvestor.and (breach such otber p e r n o r entity which is reouired bv Oi^^^ 
asacondition toaTransfer or otherwise pursuant to this Agreement to execute this Agreement as one of 
your Principalslnvestors or an agreement bv wbicb such person or entity agrees to be bound bv this 
Agreement asaPrincipalan Investor. PorpurposesofthisAgreement.theterm "Principallnvestor" shaii 
also refer to your Operating Principal. The Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. TbeOwner/Qperator 
shall be one of vour Principalslnvestors unless otberwise agreed to between tbe you and Oickey's.in 
accordance with certain ownership conditions. 

P. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and each copy so executed shaii be 
deemed an original. 

0. This Agreement sball not become effective until signed byaPresident or more senior 
officer of Oickey's. 

H. Each reference intbisAgreementtoacorporation,iimited iiabiiity company or partnership 
shall be deemed to referto each and any oftbe foregoing entities interchangeably and to any other entity 
ororganization. Further, eacb reference to theorganizationaldocuments, equity owners, partners, 
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directors, managers, general partners, and officers of a corporation, limited liability company or 
partnership shall be deemed to refer to each and any of the foregoing interchangeably and to the 
functional equivalent of the foregoing for any entity or organization. 

ARTICLE 14. 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT: APPLICABLE LAW: MEDIATION 

A. This Agreement, the documents referred to herein and the Attachments hereto, and anv 
addenda constitute the entire, full and complete agreement between Dickey's and you and your 
Principalslnvestors concerning the subject matter hereof and shall supersede all prior related agreements 
between Dickey's and you and your Principalslnvestors. Except for those permitted to be made 
unilaterally by Dickey's hereunder, no amendment, change or variance from this Agreement shall be 
binding on either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed by their authorized officers 
or agents in writing. 

B. Subject only to Article 14.CO, the parties agree to submit all disputes, 
controversies, claims, causes of action and/or alleged breaches or failures to perform arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement (and attachments) or the relationship created by this Agreement 
(collectively, "Disputes") to non-blndlng mediation prior to filing any action In court with respect 
to the Dispute. The mediation shall be conducted In Collin County, Texas through either an 
Individual mediator or a mediator appointed by a mediation services organization or body, 
experienced In the mediation of disputes In the food service business, agreed upon by the parties 
and, falling such agreement, within a reasonable period of time after either party has notified the 
other of its desire to seek mediation of any Dispute (not to exceed fifteen (15) days), through the 
American Arbitration Association ("AAA") In accordance with its rules governing mediation, at the 
office of the AAA located nearest to Dickey's corporate headquarters In Piano, Collin County, 
Texas. The costs and expenses of mediation, including compensation and expenses of the 
mediator, shall be borne by the parties equally. If the parties are unable to resolve the Dispute 
within ninety (90) days after the mediator has been appointed, then either party may submit such 
Dispute to binding arbitration In accordance with Article 14.BC below. NOTWITHSTANDING THE 
FOREGOING, THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ARTICLE 14.B SHALL ONLY APPLY TO THE EXTENT 
PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. 
STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. RULE 2860.4400(J)). 

C. Subject only to Article 14.B and 14.0, all Disputes which shall not be resolved 
through mediation in accordance with Article 14.B shall be submitted for binding arbitration to the 
office of the AAA located nearest to Dickey's corporate headquarters In Piano, Collin County, 
Texas, on demand of either party. Such arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance 
with the then current commercial arbitration rules of the area. The arbitrators) shall have the 
right to award or Include in their award any relief which they deem proper in the circumstances, 
including, without limitation, money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from the due 
date), specific performance and Injunctive relief. Provided, that, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, the parties stipulate and agree that the arbitrators shall not provide for, and no arbitration 
award shall include, any punitive or exemplary damages, all of which are hereby waived by the 
parties. The award and decision of the arbitrators) shall be conclusive and binding upon all 
parties and adjustment may be taken on the award notwithstanding the termination or expiration 
of this Agreement Dickey's and you agree that arbitration shall be conducted on an individual, 
not a class-wide basis. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
ARTICLE 14.C SHALL ONLY APPLY TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE 
MINNESOTA LAW (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. 
RULE 2860.4400(J)). 
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D Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Dickey's may bring an action (a) 
for monies owed, (b) for Injunctive relief or other extraordinary relief, or (c) invohrlng the 
possession or disposition of, or other relief relating to real property, In any court having 

« r w T S S 3 ^ £ M i M ^ 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, MINN. STAT. SEC. 80C.21 AND MINN. RULE 2860.4400(J)). 

E You have signed this Agreement and submitted It to Dickev's for acceptance and 
execut lM bv Dickev's at Dlckuv's corporate headquarters in Piano. Collin County, Texas You 
shall make all payments and perform other obligations arising hereunder at Collin County, Texas, 
and this Agreement is made and entered into at Collin County. Texas.— 

EF. THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED AND DELIVERED IN i ^ E C T I O N WITH A 

K I B l 

•H RELIEF IN ANY COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION. F, You have slgnod this Agroomont and oubmittod It to Dlckey'e for acceptanco and oxocution by Dickoy'e at Dickoy'c corporate hoadquartoro In Piano, Collin County, Toxae. You chall mako all payment mni* r " r f n r n i n f h n r "hllgatlonc ariclna hereunder at Collin County, Texas, PARTIES IN SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING. 
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H WAIVER OF P U N ^ E ANO EXEMPLARY O A M A G E ^ THE P A R S E S HEREBY WAIVE 
TO THE FULLEST EXTENT RERMITTEO BY I^W ANY RIOHTTOOROLAIMOF ANY ROHITIVE 
E X E M R L A R Y O A M A O E S A O A I N S T T H E O T H E R . A N O A O R E E T H A T I N T H E E V E N T O F A O I S F U T E 
B E T W E E N T H E M E A O H S H A L L B E L I M I T E O T O T H E R E O O V E R Y O F O O M F E N S A T O R Y O A M A O E S 
S U F F E R E O B Y T H E PARTY. 

Gl You and O i c k e y acknowledge that the parties ^ ^ e m e o t roga^lng ^ 
state law and forum setforth In Article 14.F provide each ofthe parties with the m u t u a l ^ 
uniform Interpretation of this Agreement and any Olspute. You andOlckey's further acknowledge 
the receipt and sufficiency of mutual consideration for such heneflLNOTWITHSTANOINO THE 
FOREGOING. THE PROVISIONS OFTHIS ARTIOLE ^ . G H SHALL ONLY A P P L Y T O THE EXTENT 
PERMITTEOUNOERAPPLIOABLE MINNESOTA I^W (INOLUOING. WITHOUT LIMITATION. M l ^ ^^ 
S T A T . S E O . S O O ^ A N O M I N N . R U L E ^ S S ^ O O ^ . 

HJ. 1. Totheextent required onderappllcahle Minnesota law, this Agreement will ^ 
amended to require that in the event Oickey's provides you with written notice 
hreachedthisAgreementsuchwritten notice will he provided to you at least n i n e t y ^ d a y 
prior to the date this Agreement is terminated or cancelled hy Oickey's, and you will have sixty 
(SO) days after receipt of such written notice within which to con^ct the hreach specified in the 
written notice; provided that such noticeshail heeffectiveimmediately upon receipt for the 
applicahle groundsofterminationorcanceiiation specified in MinnStatSOOBI^ 

2 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, to the extent 
required under applicahle Minnesota iaw,acourt of competent^urisdiction will determine whe 
Oickey's will he required to postahond or other security, and the amount of such hond or other 
security, in any injunctive proceeding commenced hy Oickey's against you, your shareholders or 
the guarantors ofthisAgreement 

S Tothe extent required under applicahle Minnesota iaw, the applicahle provisions 
ofthisAgreementare herehy amended in accordancewith the following: 

MINNESOTA STATUTES, SECTION S O O ^ ANO MINNESOTA RULE 
^ 0 4400^) PROHIBIT THE FRANCHISOR FROM REQUIRING tlTIGATION 
TO SECONOUCTEOOUTSIOE MINNESOTA, R E O U I R I N G A W A I V E R O F A 
JURY TRIAL, OR REQUIRING THE FRANCHISEE TO CONSENT TO 
LIQUIOATEO DAMAGES, TERMINATION PENALTIES OR JUDGMENT 
NOTES IN AOOITION, NOTHING IN THE OFFERING CIRCUI^R OR 
AGREEMENTS CAN ABROGATE OR REOUCEANY O F T H E FRANCHISEE'S 
R IGHTSASPRQVIOEOFQRINMiNNESQTASTATUTES,CHAPTERS0C,QR 
FRANCHISEE'S RIGHTS TO ANY PROCEDURE, FORUM, OR REMEDIES 
PROVIDED FQRBYTHEtAWSQFTHEJURISDICT IQN 

WITH RESPECT TO FRANCHISES GOVERNED BY MINNESOTALAW, THE 
FRANCHISOR W l t L C Q M P L Y W i T H M I N N S T A T S E C S 0 C B I 4 , S U B D S 3 , 4, 
A N 0 5 W H I C H REQUIRE, EXCEPT IN CERTAIN SPECIFIED CASES, THATA 
FRANCHISE BEGIVEN 90 DAYS NOTiCEOFTERMINATION(WiTHS0 DAYS 
TO CURE) ANO 1S0 DAYS NOTICE FOR NON RENEWAL OF THE 
FRANCHISEAGREEMENT 
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A R ^ O L E ^ 
AO^NOWLEOGMENTS 

A. You aoknowiedge that yoo have conducted an independent io^^^ 
venture contempiatedhythieAgreementand recognize thatthe eucceeeofthiehus^^^ 
euhstantiaihusineserieke and wiiiiargeiy depend upon the your ahiiity Oickey^ expreeeiydisciaime 
making and you acknowiedge that it has not received or reiied on, any warranty or guarantee, e^^ 
impiied, as to the potential voiume, profits or success of the husiness venture contempiatedhy this 
Agreement You acknowiedge that you have compieted and submitted to Oickey's the Oeveioper 
Questionnaire, in the fom^ of Attachme^ 

B. You acknowledge that you have received, read and understand this Agreement and the 
reiated Attachments and agreements and that Oickey's has accorded you sufficient time and opportunity 
to consuitwithadvisors selected hy youahoutthepotentiai benefits and risks of entering into this 
Agreement 

0. You acknowledge that you received from Oickey^sacompletecopyof itsFranchise 
OisciosureOocument at least fourteen^calendar days priorto the date on which this Agreementwas 
executed and the date on which you first made any payments to Oickey's oran affiiiate in connection with 
any franchise sale contemplated by this Agreement You acknowiedge that you receivedacopy of this 
Agreement and the related attachments and agreements in the form executed by you at least sevens 
caiendardayspriortothe date on which thisAgreementwasexecuted. 

O You represent to Oickev's that neither Oickey's nor its aoents or representatives have 
made any representations, and vou have not relied on any representations made bv Oickev^s or its 
aoents orreoresentatives.concemino actual orootentiaisaies or profits ofaOickev's Restaurant 

^ iONATUREPAOEFO^OW^ 

O E ^ O P M ^ A O R E E M E N T D M i N ^ S O T A Pege^S 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Agreement on the day 
and year first above written. 

DICKEY'S: 

DICKEYS BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC., 
a Texas corporation 

By: 
Roland Dickey, Jr., President 

YOU: 

[Corporation] 

corporation 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Liability Company] 

limited liability company 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Partnership] 

limited partnership 

By: 
_, its general partner 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
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C O N S E N T O F O E V E L O P E R ^ P R ^ P A ^ N V E S T O R S 

Eaoh ofthe onde^igned acknowledges and agrees as fo^ws: 

^ Eaoh has read the ten^s and conditions of this Agreement and acknowledges that the 
execution of this ooarantv and their undertakinos as vour Princioalslnvestors onder the Ao 
partial consideration for the granting of the deveiopment rights in the Development Ag^^^ 
Dickers would not have granted such rights without the execution of this guaranty and these 
undertakings hy each ofthe undersigneds 

2. Each is included in the term^Princioaisinvestors^asdescrihedin Article ^ . E o f the 
Agreements 

3 Each individuaily^ointlyandseverally makes ai iof the covenants, representations, 
warrantiesandaqreementsof vour Princioalslnvestors set forthin the Aoreement ( i ^ 
iimitationthecovenantssetforth in Article 5 .8^ and Art ic ie^and is ohligated to perfom^th^ 

4. Each of the undersionedaorees that durino the term of the Develooment Agreement and 
while the undersioned satisfies the definition of a ^InvestoB in A r t i c l e 2 ^ ^ except as otherwise 
approved in writ inohvDickev^theundersioned shaii not, either directly or indirectly on hehalf of 
undersioned or throuoh, on hehalf of or in conjunction with any persons partnership, c o r p o r a l 
entity: 

i. Divert or attempt to divert any husiness or customer of the franchised 
husinesstoanvcompetitor^ hydirectorindirect inducementor otherwises or d o o r 
performs directly or indirectly, any other act iniurious or prejudicial to the ooodwill 
associated with Dickey's Proprietary Marks and the System: 

ii. Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time employed hv 
Dickey's, hv an affiiiate of Dickev's^ or hy any other franchisee or developer of Dickey's^ 
or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave that person's employments 
except as may he permittedunder anvexistino development aoreement or franchise 
aoreement hetween Dickey's and you: or 

iii. Qwn^ maintain^operate^ enoaoe in or have any financial or heneficiai 
interest in (including interest in corporations, l i m i t e d ^ 
trusts^ unincorporatedassociations^ joint ventures or other entities), advise assist or 
make loans to. any husiness that is similar to or competitive with the franchised husiness 
includino^ hut not iimited to. any restaurant or caterino husiness that offerssmoked meats 
or harhecue^stviefood^includino chopped heef brisker sliced heefhriskeL pulled pork^ 
Virginia style ham,marinated chicken hreast^turkeyhreast,polishsausaqe,spicy 
cheddarsausaoe^orporkrihsasaprimarvorfeatured menu item located in the United 
States or any other jurisdiction in which Dickey's has reoistered or souohtreoistration of 
itsProprietaryMarks 

5. Each ofthe undersioned aorees that foracontinuous uninterrupted period commencino 
upon: (a) the expiration ortermination ofthe Pranchise Aoreement^2) transfer of the franchise 
in the Pranchise Aqreement^^ the time such individual or entity ceases to satisfy 
^Investor^ in Article 25.3.3 (whichever is eariiest to occurs and fortwo (2) years thereaf ter^ 
period shaii he toiled durino any period of noncompliances except as otherwise approved in w r i ^ 
Dickev's^ the undersigned shall noL either directly or indirectly for yourselves or throuoh^^ 
inconiunctionwithanyperson, partnerships corporationorotherentity: 

i. Divert or attempt to divert any husiness or customer of the franchised 
husinesstoanvcompetitor^ hvdi rector indirect inducementorotherwise^ or do or 
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perform, directly or indirectly, anv other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill 
associated with Dickev's Proprietary Marks and the System; 

ii. Employ or seek to employ anv person who is at that time employed bv 
Dickev's. bv an affiliate of Dickev's. or bv anv other franchisee or developer of Dickev's. 
or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave that person's employment, 
except as may be permitted under anv existing development agreement or franchise 
agreement between Dickev's and vou: or 

iii. Own, maintain, operate, engage in or have anv financial or beneficial 
interest in (including interest in corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, 
trusts, unincorporated associations, joint ventures or other entities), advise, assist or 
make loans to. anv business that is similar to or competitive with the franchised business 
including, but not limited to. anv restaurant or catering business that offers smoked meats 
or barbecue-stvle food, including chopped beef brisket sliced beef brisket, pulled pork. 
Virginia style ham, marinated chicken breast, turkey breast, polish sausage, spicv 
Cheddar sausaoe. or oork ribs as a primary or featured menu item, which business is. or 
is intended to be. located within a thirty OOWnile radius of the location accepted 
hereunder or within a five ffl-mile radius of anv Restaurant in existence or urider 
construction as of date the time period set forth in Article 18.2.B commences for vou or 
vour Investor, as applicable. 

46. Each individually, jointly and severally, unconditionally, and irrevocably guarantees to 
Dickey's that all of your obligations under this Agreement will be punctually paid and performed. Upon 
default by you or upon notice from Dickey's, each will immediately make each payment and perform each 
obligation required of you under this Agreement. Without affecting the obligations of any of your 
Principalslnvestors under this guaranty, Dickey's may, without notice to your Principalslnvestors. waive, 
renew, extend, modify, amend or release any indebtedness or obligation of you or settle, adjust or 
compromise any claims that Dickey's may have against you. Each of your Principalslnvestors waives all 
demands and notices of every kind with respect to the enforcement of this guaranty, including, without 
limitation, notice of presentment, demand for payment or performance by you, any default by you or any 
guarantor and any release of any guarantor or other security for this Agreement or your obligations 
hereunder. Dickey's may pursue its rights against any of your Principalslnvestors without first exhausting 
its remedies against you and without joining any other guarantor hereto, and no delay on the part of 
Dickey's in the exercise of any right or remedy shall operate as a waiver of such right or remedy, and no 
single or partial exercise by Dickey's of any right or remedy shall preclude the further exercise of such 
right or remedy. Upon receipt by Dickey's of notice of the death of any of your Princioalslnvestors. the 
estate of the deceased will be bound by the foregoing guaranty, but only for defaults and obligations 
under this Agreement existing at the time of death, and in such event, the obligations of the remaining 
your Princioalslnvestors shall continue in full force and effect 

67. Each represents and warrants that, as of the date of this Agreement, each undersigned 
person executing this Agreement as an Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator has been designated as an 
Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. and each such person meets all of the qualifications set forth in this 
Agreement for an Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator. 
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68. Additionally, with respect to the individual designated as Operating Principal, Operating 
PrinGipalOwner/Qperator, Owner/Operator acknowledges that the undertakings by Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperator under this Agreement are made and given in partial consideration of, and as a 
condition to, Dickey's grant of rights to develop Restaurants as described herein. Operating 
PrincipalOwner/Qperator individuallv. iointlv and severally makes all of the covenants, representations 
and agreements of you and Operating PrincipalOwner/Qperator set forth in this Agreement and is 
obligated to perform hereunder. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
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OPERATING PRINCIPAUSIDEVELOPER: 

[Individual] 

PRINCIPAUSK)WNER/OPERATOR: 

[Individual] 

an individual 

, an individual 
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INVESTORS): 

rindividuail 

. an individual 

Nndividuall 

, an individual 

rindividuail 

. an individual 

rindividuail 

. an individual 

[Corporation] 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

corporation 

[Limited Liability Company] 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

limited liability company 

[Limited Partnership] 

By: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

limited partnership 

_, its general partner 
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ATTACHMENT A 

DICKEY'S BARBECUE RESTAURANTS, INC. 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

[If Not Attached, See Exhibit B to Franchise Disclosure Document] 
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ATTACHMENT B 

STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 

Name (Full Legal 
Name) 

Address and 
Telephone No. 

Type of 
Ownership Interest 

Entity In which 
Ownership 

Interest is Held 

Ownership % 

1. 

2 

3. 

4. ' 
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ATTACHMENT C 

DEVELOPER QUESTIONNAIRE 

Dickey's Barbecue Restaurants, Inc., a Texas corporation ("Dickey's") and you (the "Developer") are 
preparing to enter into a Development Agreement for the development of more than one Dickey's® 
Barbecue Pit restaurant franchise (the "Restaurants"). The purpose of this Questionnaire (herein so 
called) is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that Dickey's has not 
authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. Please review each of the following 
questions carefully and provide honest responses to each question. 

1. Have you received and personally reviewed Dickey's Franchise Disclosure Document (the 
"Disclosure Document") provided to you? 

Yes No 

2. Did you sign a receipt for the Disclosure Document indicating the date you received it? 

Yes No 

3. Do you understand the information contained in the Disclosure Document? 

Yes No 

4. Have you received and personally reviewed the Development Agreement and each exhibit 
attached to it? 

Yes No 

5r Please insert the date on which you received a copy of the Development A( 
material blanks fully completed): -

65. Do you understand your financial and other obligations under the Development Agreement? 

Yes No 

76. Have you independently discussed the economic arid business risks of developing, owning and 
operating the Restaurants with an attorney, accountant or other professional advisor? 

Yes No 

87. Do you understand the economic and business risks associated with developing, owning and 
operating the Restaurant? 

Yes No 

88. Do you understand that the success or failure of the Restaurants will depend in large part upon 
your ability to timely identify and open Restaurant locations in your territory, skills and abilities, 
the service you provide to your customers, competition, interest rates, the economy, inflation, 
labor and supply costs, lease terms, real estate and the marketplace? 

Yes No 
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489. Do you understand and agree that no financial performance representation has been made by 
Dickey's in the Disclosure Document (including with regard to the performance of its franchised 
outlets or company-owned outlets and the potential performance of your outlet), that Dickey's 
does not make any such representations, and that Dickey's, its employees and other persons 
speaking on behalf of Dickey's have not made any such representations? 

Yes No 

4410. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else regarding the amount of money you may earn in developing and 
operating the Restaurants? 

Yes No 

4211 Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else concerning the total revenues the Restaurants may generate? 

Yes No 

4312. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else regarding the costs involved in developing and operating the 
Restaurants that are contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the Disclosure 
Document? 

Yes No 

4413. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else concerning the actual, average or projected profits or earnings or 
the likelihood of success that you should or might expect from developing and operating the 
Restaurants? 

Yes No 

4514. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any statement or 
promise to you or anyone else, other than those matters addressed in your Development 
Agreement that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the Disclosure 
Document? 

Yes No 

4615. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Dickey's made any promises or 
agreements that is contrary to, different from, or in addition to, the matters set forth in the 
Development Agreement? 

Yes No 

4716. If you answered "Yes" to any ofthe questions 11 through 15, please provide a full explanation of 
your answer in the following blank lines. (Attach additional pages, if necessary, and refer to them 
below). If you answered "No" to each of the foregoing questions, please leave the following lines 
blank. 
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You understand that your answers are important to us and that we will rely on them. 

By signing this Questionnaire, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the above 
questions. 

Further, by signing this Questionnaire, you agree that Dickey's has properly provided you with all of the 
appropriate franchise disclosures and has not made any financial claims or representations to you. You 
agree to hold harmless and release Dickey's and its affiliates, shareholders, officers, directors, agents, 
attorneys, successors and assigns from any and all liability in connection with the sale of the franchise to 
the extent that any statement or representation made herein is determined to be false and misleading and 
to the extent permitted under applicable law. 

DEVELOPER: 

[Corporation] 

corporation 

By: 
Printed Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Liability Company] 

limited liability company 

By: 
Printed Name: 
Title: 

[Limited Partnership] 

limited partnership 

By: 
_, its general partner 

By: 
Printed Name: 
Title: 
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